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Ch-1 Introduction to Audit

Test your Understanding _
1. Lalji Bhai has purchased shares of a company listed on NSE. The audited financial statements of the company
provide picture of healthy financial performance having robust turnover, low debt and good profits. On above
basis, he is absolutely satisfied that money invested by him is safe and there is no chance of losing his money. Do
audited results and audit reports of companies provide such assurance to investors like Lalji Bhai? Is thinking of
Lalji Bhai correct?

An audit does not provide assurance to investor in shares regarding safety of his money. Share prices of securities
are affected by range of factors. An audit only provides reasonable assurance that financial statements are free
from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. Hence, thinking of Lalji Bhai is not correct.

2. Good deeds Limited is engaged in business of recycling of wastes from dumping grounds of municipal
corporation of Indore to usable manure. It is, in this way, also, helping to make the city clean. During course of
audit by Zoha & Zoha, a firm of auditors, it is observed by auditors that company has received a notice from
Central Bench of National Green Tribunal for not following certain environmental regulations involving imposition
of hefty monetary penalty on the company. The company is yet to reply to the notice. The auditors point out that
same is not stated in notes to accounts in financial statements. The company points out that auditors are going
beyond scope of their work. Does such a matter fall within scope of audit?

Proper disclosure of financial information is well within scope of audit.

3. A huge fire broke out in NOIDA plant of KT Limited. Plant assets comprising building, machinery and inventories
were insured from branch of a public sector insurance company. Apart from an insurance surveyor who was
deputed for assessing loss, the regional office of insurance PSU also appointed a CA for verification of books of
accounts/ financial records of the company and circumstances surrounding the loss. He was also requested to
submit an early report. Would the report by CA in nature of audit report?

Appointment of CA for verification of books of accounts/financial records and circumstances surrounding the loss is
for a specific objective to determine genuineness of loss and any issue affecting liability of insurance company. It is
an investigation and not in nature of audit report.

4. Zeeba Products is a partnership firm engaged in trading of designer dresses. The firm has appointed JJ & Co,
Chartered accountants to audit their accounts for a year. The auditors were satisfied with control systems of firm,
carried out required procedures and necessary verifications. In particular, they carried out sample checking of
purchases, traced purchase bills to GST portal and also made confirmations from suppliers. They were satisfied
with audit evidence obtained by them as part of audit exercise. An audit report was submitted to the firm giving
an opinion that financial statements reflected true and fair view of state of affairs of the firm.

However, later on, it was discovered that purchase manager responsible for procuring dresses from one location
was also booking fake purchases of small values by colluding with unethical dealers. Payments to these dealers
were also made in connivance with accountant through banking channel.

The partners of firm blame auditors for futile audit exercise. Are partners of firm correct in their view point?
Imagine any probable reason for such a situation.

It is example of failure of internal controls of the firm. The internal control has not operated due to collusion
between employees which is a limitation of internal control itself. The auditor has relied upon internal controls. It is
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very nature of financial reporting that management is responsible for devising suitable internal controls, Th;
inherent limitation of audit. * IS is g

5. The management of Exotic Tours and Travels Limited requests its auditor Raja & Co.to Provide an 3
report on the financial information for first quarter of a year by skipping required detailed procedures,
& Co. provide such a report? What would be nature of such a report? Would it be necessary for them
sufficient appropriate evidence in such a case?

ssurance
Can Raja
to obtajp

Such report would be in nature of “review”. However, auditors would have to obtain sufficient appropri
Flate

evidence.

6. CA. P Babu is conducting audit of financial statements of Quick Buy Private Limited. He was not able to obtg;
- - - T ln

external confirmations from certain debtors due to practical difficulties and peculiar circumstances, However

such a procedure is mandated under one of Standards on Auditing. :

Unable to obtain external confirmations from these debtors, he relied upon sale details to these parties, e-
invoices, e-way bills and also traced payments from these parties in bank accounts of the company. He was
reasonably satisfied with audit evidence obtained. Is there any other reporting duty cast upon him relating to not
following a mandated procedure in one of Standards on Auditing?

He is required to document how alternative procedures performed achieve the purpose of required procedure.
Reason for departure has to be documented unless it is clear. His report should draw attention to such departure.

7. The auditors of a company have only relied upon management representation letter regarding treatment of
certain tax matters under appeal by the company. The auditors have not carried out any other audit procedures
to justify management’s treatment of the said tax matters under appeal in the financial statements. What is
lacking on part of auditors in such a situation?

In the given case, auditors have relied only upon management representation letter regarding treatment of certain
tax matters under appeal by the company. No other audit procedures to verify management’s treatment of such
matters under appeal have been performed by auditors. It shows lack of “professional skepticism” on part of

auditors.

Correct/Incorrect

State with reasons (in short) whether the following statements are correct or incorrect: (1cAISMI
I

(i) The basic objective of audit does not change with reference to nature, size or form of an entity

" - X s ori dor
Correct: An audit is an independent examination of financial information of any entity, whether profit oriente

- . : ing an
not, and irrespective of its size or legal form, when such an examination Is conducted with a view to expressiné .
o : o en
opinion thereon. It is clear that the basic objective of auditing, i.e., expression of opinion on financial statem
does not change with reference to nature, size or form of an entity.

i nts
(ii) The purpose of an audit is to enhance the degree of confidence of intended users in the financial stateme

Accordancé
ded users in

2
,A

Correct: % J | |
s Sta:; Per SA 200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in

ards on Auditing”, the purpose of an audit is to enhance the degree of confidence of inten
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Ch-1 Introduction to Audit

the financial statements. This is achieved by the expression of an opinion by the auditor on whether the financial
statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an applicable financial reporting framework.

(iii) The auditor is not expected to, and cannot, reduce audit risk to zero and cannot therefore obtain absolute
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Correct: As per SA 200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance
with Standards on Auditing”, the auditor is not expected to, and cannot, reduce audit risk to zero and cannot
therefore obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud
or error. This is because there are inherent limitations of an audit, which result in most of the audit evidence on
which the auditor draws conclusions and bases the auditor’s opinion being persuasive rather than conclusive.

(iv) According to Mr. H, one of the team members of the auditor of Very Essential Limited was of the view that
no relation exists between accounting and auditing from the point of view of a company.

Incorrect: The viewpoint of Mr. H is incorrect because there exists a proper relation between accounting and
auditing from the point of view of a company. Audit is conducted for financial statements of a company and those
financial statements are prepared with the help of books of accounts of that company. In order to properly conduct
an audit of a company, an auditor is required to be aware of accounting principles and accounting policies of that
company.

(v) The term “Engagement Standards” refer to Standards on Auditing only.

Incorrect: Engagement Standards refer not only to Standards on auditing but also to Standards on review
engagements, Standards on assurance engagements and Standards on related services.

(vi) There is no difference between “audit” and “review.” [RTP Nov-22]

Incorrect: “Audit” and “Review” are two different terms. Audit is a reasonable assurance engagement, and its
objective is reduction in assurance engagement risk to an acceptably low level in the circumstances of the
engagement. However, “review” is a limited assurance engagement, and its objective is a reduction in assurance
engagement risk to a level that is acceptable in the circumstances of the engagement

(vii) For auditor’s opinion, reasonable assurance is an absolute level of assurance.

Incorrect: Reasonable assurance is a high level but not an absolute level of assurance, because there are inherent
limitations of an audit which result in most of the audit evidence on which the auditor draws conclusions and bases
the auditor’s opinion being persuasive rather than conclusive

(viii) Historical financial Information relates to financial Information based on assumptions about occurrence of
future events and possible actions by an entity [Nov-22]

Incorrect: Historical financial information relates to information expressed in financial terms of an entity about
economic events, conditions or circumstances occurring in past periods. Whereas financial information based on
assumptions about occurrence of future events and possible actions by an entity relates to prospective financial
information.
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Descriptive Questions

1. “Choosing of appropriate accounting policies in relation to accou nting issues is responsibility of management”.
Do you agree? Discuss duty of auditor, if any, in relation to accounting policies. [SM]

Choosing of appropriate accounting policies is responsibility of management.

The auditor evaluates selection and consistent application of accounting policies by management; whether such 3
selection is proper and whether chosen policy has been applied consistently on a period-to-period basis,

2. Assurance engagements are not restricted to audit of financial statements alone. Discuss. [SM]

Type of assurance engagement

o Audit of financial Statements:

Reasonable assurance engagement
o

Review of financial Statements: Limited assurance engagement
© Examination of Prospective financial information:

Provides assurance regarding reasonability of assumptions
forming basis of projections and related matters

Report on controls operating at an organization: Provides assurance regarding design and operation of
controls

3. An assurance engagement involves a three party relationship. Discuss meaning of three parties in such an
engagement. [SM]

A three party relationship involving a practitioner, a responsible party,

and intended users An assurance
engagement involves abovesaid three parties.

A practitioner is a person who provides the assurance. The term practitioner is broader than auditor. Audit is related

to historical information whereas practitioner may provide assurance not necessarily related to historical financial
information.

A responsible party is the party responsible for preparation of subject matter.

Intended users are the persons for whom an assurance report is prepared. These persons may use the report in
making decisions.

4. A Chartered Accountant is specifically asked to check accounts whether fraud exists. State with reasons
whether it is an example of reasonable assurance engagement, [SM]

It is not a reasonable assurance engagement. It is in nature of investigation.

5. An audit does not provide ahsolute assurance. Discuss how nature of audit procedures itself is one of the
reasons due to which audit cannot provide absolute assurance, [SM]

Nature of Audit procedures

The auditor carries out his work by obtaining audit evidence through performance of audit procedures. However,
there are practical and legal limitations on ability of auditor to obtain audit evidence.

CA Shubham Keswani
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For example, an auditor does not test all transactions and balances. He forms his opinion only by testing samples.
it is an example of practical limitation on auditor’s ability to obtain audit evidence.

Management may not provide complete information as requested by auditor. There is no way by which auditor
can force management to provide complete information as may be requested by auditor. In case he is not provided
with required information, he can only report. It is an example of legal limitation on auditor’s ability to obtain audit

evidence.

The management may consist of dishonest and unscrupulous people and may be, itself, involved in fraud. It may
be engaged in concealing fraud by designing sophisticated and carefully organized schemes which may be hard to
detect by the auditor. It may produce fabricated documents before auditor to lead him to believe that audit evidence
is valid. However, in reality, such documents could be fake or non-genuine.

We have already discussed under section on scope of audit that an auditor is not an expert in authentication of
documents. Therefore, he may be led to accept invalid audit evidence on the basis of unauthentic documents.

It is quite possible that entity may have entered into some transactions with related parties. Such transactions may
be only paper transactions and may not have actually occu rred. The auditor may not be aware of such related party
relationships or audit procedures may not be able to detect probable wrong doings in such transactions.

6. The person conducting audit should take care to ensure that financial statements would not mislead anybody.
Explain stating clearly the meaning of Auditing. [RTP May-20 + MTP Oct-21] OR

“An audit is independent examination of financial information of any entity, whether profit oriented or not, and

irrespective of its size or legal form, when such an examination is conducted with a view to expressing an opinion

thereon.”
Explain stating clearly how the person conducting this task should take care to ensure that financial statements

would not mislead anybody. [MTP Oct-19 + ICAI SM]

“An audit is independent examination of financial information of any entity, whetherprofit oriented or not, and
irrespective of its size or legal form, when such an examination is conducted with a view to expressing an opinion

thereon.” Analysis of the Definition

1. Audit is Independent examination of Financial information.

2. of any entity — that entity may be profit oriented or not and ir
Profit oriented — Audit of Listed company engaged in business.
On the other hand, Audit of NGO — not profit oriented.

3. The objective of the audit Is to express an opinion on the financial statements.

respective of its size or legal form. For example -

The person conducting this task should take care to ensure that financial statements would not mislead anybody.

This he can do honestly by satisfying himself that:

(i) the accounts have been drawn up with reference to entries in the books of account;

(i) the entries in the books of account are adequately supported by sufficient and appropriate evidence;

(iii) none of the entries in the books of account has been omitted in the process of compilation and nothing which

is not in the books of account has found place in the statements;
(iv) the information conveyed by the statements is clear and unambiguous;
{v) the financial statement amounts are properly classified, described and disclosed in conformity with accounting

standards; and
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(vi) the statement of accounts present a true and fair picture of the operational results ang of the a5
e Sets
liabilities. n

7. Explain the objectives of an Audit as per SA 200. [RTP May-22]

As per SA-200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor”, in conducting an audit of financia| Statement
S, the

overall objectives of the auditor are:
(a) To obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from mat
aterja|

misstatement; and
(b) To report on the financial statements, and communicate as required by the SAs, in accordance wit, t
€

auditor’s findings.

8. PACE is proprietorship firm of Mr Abhinav engaged in the manufacturing of textile and handloom Products,
sells its finished products both in the domestic as well as in the international market. The company is Making tota
turnover of Rs. 50 crores. It has also availed cash credit limit of Rs. 5 crores from Axis Bank. In the year 2017-18
proprietor of the firm is worried about the financial position of the company and is under the impression tha;
since he is out of India, therefore firm might run into losses. He approaches CA Mahesh about advantages of
getting his accounts audited throughout the year so that he may not suffer due to accounting weaknesses, Advise
regarding advantages of getting accounts audited. [MTP Mar-19]

o Audited accounts provide high quality information. It gives confidence to users that information on which they
are relying is qualitative and it is the outcome of an exercise carried out by following Auditing Standards
recognized globally.

o In case of companies, shareholders may or may not be involved in daily affairs of the company. The financial
statements are prepared by management consisting of directors. As shareholders are owners of the company,
they need an independent mechanism so that financial information is qualitative and reliable. Hence, their
interest is safeguarded by an audit.

An audit acts as a moral check on employees from committing frauds for the fear of being discovered by audit
Audited financial statements are helpful to government authorities for determining tax liabilities. _

o Audited financial statements can be relied upon by lenders, bankers for making their credit decisions &
whether to lend or not to lend to a particular entity.

An audit may also detect fraud or error or both. e eefulat

o An audit reviews existence and operations of various controls operating in any entity. Hence, it is Us€
pointing out deficiencies.

scertaining

9. CA N is the auditor of SR Ltd. The auditor expressed his opinion on the financial statements withouta gD
u

as to whether the financial statements as a whole were free from material misstatements or not. Inyo
whether CA N has complied with objectives of audit considering the applicability of relevant sA? [May-22]

o, i
Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor: As per SA-200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Audltor‘
conducting an audit of financial statements, the overall objectives of the auditor are: i mateﬁ‘"
(i) To obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free fro per the
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, thereby enabling the auditor to express an opi
financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an applicabl

nion on whe orting
e financil rep

framework; and
(i) To report on the financial statements, and communicate as required by the SAs, ina
findings.
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In the given case of SR Ltd, CA N expressed his opinion on the financial statements of SR Ltd without obtaining
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement or
not. Therefore, it can be concluded that CA N did not comply with the objective of audit as stated in SA 200.

10. The auditor cannot be expected to disregard past experience of the honesty and integrity of the entity’s
management and those charged with governance. Nevertheless, a belief that management and those charged
with governance are honest and have integrity does not relieve the auditor of the need to maintain professional

skepticism. Explain. [RTP Nov-22]

The auditor shall plan and perform an audit with professional skepticism recognising that circumstances may exist

that cause the financial statements to be materially misstated.

Professional skepticism includes being alert to, for example:
v Audit evidence that contradicts other audit evidence obtained.
v Information that brings into question the reliability of documents and responses to inquiries to be used

as audit evidence.

v Conditions that may indicate possible fraud.
v Circumstances that suggest the need for audit procedures in addition to thoserequired by the SAs.

Maintaining professional skepticism throughout the audit is necessary if the auditor is to reduce the risks of:

v Overlooking unusual circumstances.
v Over generalising when drawing conclusions from audit observations.
v Using inappropriate assumptions in determining the nature, timing, and extent of the audit procedures

and evaluating the results thereof.

» Professional skepticism is necessary to the critical assessment of audit evidence. It also includes consideration

of the sufficiency and appropriateness of audit evidence obtained in the light of the circumstances, for
example in the case where fraud risk factors exist and a single document, of a nature that is susceptible to
fraud, is the sole supporting evidence for a material financial statement amount.

» The auditor may accept records and documents as genuine unless the auditor has reason to believe the
contrary.

» Nevertheless, the auditor is required to consider the reliability of information to be used as audit evidence. In
cases of doubt about the reliability of information or indications of possible fraud, the SAs require that the
auditor investigate further and determine what modifications or additions to audit procedures are necessary

to resolve the matter.
» The auditor cannot be expected to disregard past experience of the honesty and integrity of the entity’s

management and those charged with governance.
» Nevertheless, a belief that management and those charged with governance are honest and have integrity does

not relieve the auditor of the need to maintain professional skepticism.

11. Standards on Auditing (SAs) apply In “audit of historical financial information” whereas Standards on Review

Engagements (SREs) apply in “review of historical financial information.” Explain in detail giving examples.
[RTP May-22]

It is to be understood that Standards on Auditing (SAs) apply in “audit of historical financial information” whereas
standards on Review Engagements (SREs) apply in “review of historical financial information”.

CA Shubham Keswani 7
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n auditing apply in “audit” of historical financial |r.1fo'rma.tion Which s ; 1

’ ::sn::a:l:::::;:::::nat":h:reas Standards on Review Engagements apply in “review” of historicalaf?::abb}

information which is a limited assurance engagement only. . ” - Nicia)

¥ "Historical financial information means” information expressed in ;nanc 8 :arms n

entity, derived primarily from that entity’s accounting system, al::m;. e:‘::‘:::ec :"’:“t
periods or about economic conditions or circumstances at points in tim past.

relation to 3 it
S Occurring i Past%ﬂ

¥" Here, we have to broadly understand that “audit” and “review Z::IFE two c:|ffe.rent terms.

¥ Audit is a reasonable assurance engagement, and its objective is reduction in assurance E"Bt‘igemem b
an acceptably low level in the circumstances of the engagement.

v

However, “review” is a limited assurance engagement, and its objective is 3 reduction in ass"%
engagement risk to a level that is acceptable in the circumstances of_ the en.gagement_ :
Standards on Auditing have been issued on wide spectrum of issues in the fiel
limited to) overall objectives of independent auditor, audit documentation,
statements, identifying and assessing risk of material misstatement, audit e
concern and forming an opinion and reporting on financial statements.

d of auditing including (but oy
planning an audit of fingp:
vidence, audit Sampling, Eding

Some examples of Standards on Auditing are :

(i) S& 200 Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and
on Auditing

(ii) SA 230 Audit Documentation

the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with Standards

(iii) SA 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Missta
Environment

(iv) SA 500 Audit Evidence

(v) Revised SA 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements

Examples of Standards on Review engagements are
(i) SRE 2400 (Revised) Engagements to Review Historical Financial Statements

(/i) SRE 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity

12. There are two interlinked

perspectives of independence of auditors,
independence in appearance,

one, independence of mind; and W
Explain. [MTP Oct-20)

; and (WO
,» one, independence of mind.d 3mi°n 4
. ‘ :
f Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by International Fe

frected ™
(i) Independence of mind ~ the state of ming that permits the provision of an opinion without belr.lsl am. .
influences allowing an individual to act with integrity, and exercise objectivity and professional skepticism

(ii) Independence in appearanc

. athirdf
€ ~the avoidance of facts and cirey mstances that are so significant that d
would reasonably conclude an

; romis==
auditor’s integrity, objectivity or professional skepticism had been comP

af

13. “Integrity’” and “Objectivity”

are among the fundame
auditor enshrined in IESBA code,

nt 10
relevd

ntal principles of professional ethics ,
Distinguish between the t

wo. [SM]
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The principle of” Integrity” requires auditor to be straight forward and honest in all professional and business
relationships. It implies fair dealing and truthfulness. It effectively means that he shall not be associated with
reports, returns communications or other informations which he believes contains a materially false or misleading
statement; contains statements or informations provided recklessly or omits required information where such
omission could be misleading

The principle of objectivity requires auditor not to compromise professional judgment because of bias, conflict of

interest or undue influence of others.

Hence, integrity requires auditor to be involved in fair dealing and truthfulness with client and not be associated
with materially false or misleading statements, reports, returns or communications. However, objectivity requires
auditor not to compromise professional judgment because of bias, conflict of interest or undue influence of others.

Case Study 1
Rohit, Gurpreet, Ali and Goreti are friends since their school days based in Mumbai. They have cleared CA foundation
exams in the same attempt and now plan to appear for CA Intermediate exams. All of them are avid news listeners

and regularly keep track of business news even on social media.

They are trying to understand new subjects including auditing. Rohit, Gurpreet and Ali have also started attending
Live Coaching Classes (LCC) being conducted by Board of studies of ICAI Goreti has not been able to join Live
Coaching Classes yet as she was away on a holiday with her parents. However, she plans to catch it up with her
friends very soon. Ali had also joined the classes but he had skipped some lectures.

During one informal get together, their discussions centred around new subject of auditing. They discussed many
things regarding its nature, scope, benefits and other general practical issues. Goreti was regularin keeping track of
audited results of companies being published in leading newspapers. Her view was that audited financial statements
of companies give 100% guarantee to different stake holders. It is the main reason behind so much reliance upon
auditing. But she could not understand why wrong doings in financial matters are being discovered after many years

have gone by.

Ali also concurred with her view and added that when financial statements are audited, each and every transaction
appearing in books of accounts is verified. However, he could not give clarity to Goreti.

Gurpreet was of the opinion that audit was conducted on the basis of sample checking. He was also of the view that
audited financial statements are not a guarantee against probable wrong doings in financial matters of the

companies.

Not to be left behind, Rohit also jumped in the fray. He supported Gurpreet and also added something of his own.

Based on above, answer the following questions: -
1. Gurpreet was of the view that audited financial statements are not a guarantee against probable wrong doings

in financial matters of companies. What kind of assurance does audit of financial statements provide?
(a) It provides reasonable assurance meaning a moderate level of assurance.

(b) It provides reasonable assurance meaning a low level of assurance.

(c) It provides reasonable assurance meaning a high level of assurance.

(d) It provides reasonable assurance meaning an absolute level of assurance.

2. Rohit added that auditor can force an employee of the company to provide him required information and

documents. Can he do so?

(a) Yes, he can do so. It is necessary to obtain audit evidence.

(b) Yes, he can do so. There are express rights given to him in this respect.

(c) No, he cannot do so. He can only request for providing him with necessary information and documents. But it

cannot be forced by him.
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(d) No, he cannot do so. He has no right of seeking information and documents. Therefore, question of forcing
does not arise.

3. Ali had listened in one of the classes that audit covers all aspects of an entity and concluded that each and
every transaction of entity is verified by auditor. Goreti also seemed to be in agreement with him but she was of
the view that besides this, it also meant that audit should be so organized to cover all areas of an entity. Which
of following statements is appropriate in this regard?

(a) Only view of Ali is correct.

(b) Only view of Goreti is correct.

(c) Views of both Ali and Goreti are correct.

(d) Views of both Ali and Goreti are incorrect.

4. All of them also discussed about benefits of auditing. Which of the following is not a likely benefit of auditing?
(a) Since auditing is connected to future events, audited information can be easily relied upon by users.
(b) Errors or frauds may be discovered during audit.
(c) Government authorities can make use of audited accounts for different purposes.

(d) It can help in bringing out deficiencies in maintenance of financial records.
5. Goreti told her friends that she had read a news report about how a company had misled its auditors by

producing some fabricated documents. Which of following statements seems to be appropriate in this regard?
(a) It was wrong on the part of auditor to rely upon fabricated documents. He must have discovered it as the

same falls within the scope of his duties.

(b) Although it was wrong on the part of auditor to rely upon fabricated documents, he cannot do anything in
the matter. He has to report on the basis of documents provided to him. He has no duty in this regard.

(c) Auditor has to conduct audit by exercising professional skill. But he is not an expert in discovering genuineness
of documents. Hence, management consisting of dishonest persons may have led him to rely upon fabricated

documents deliberately.
(d) Management cannot mislead auditor due to high level of knowledge and expertise possessed by him. The

above is an outlier case-one of the rare odd cases.

1. () 2. (c) 3. (d) 4. (a) 5. (c)

Case Study 2

Me and You Private Limited has been newly incorporated. The plant of the company has recently started
production with the help of funds provided by a bank for purchase and installation of machinery. Further, the
r.on:rpany is also utilizing working capital credit facilities from the same bank for meeting its day to day working
Fapttai requirements like for purchase of raw materials, labour payment etc. However, just within six months of
its operations, the management feels that working capital funds are inadequate and situation is creating liquidity

issues in the company,

Tie fnana'g.e'ment of the company has approached its bankers and requested for enhancement in working capital
:;e‘::tfaﬂhf:;s' The bank manager is insisting upon financial statements of the company for half year along with

rz_ectl\:?;;;angialswrance in this respect duly signed by Chartered Accountant as audit is far away. It also requires
o ncial statements for coming years along with a report from CA providing assurance regarding these
projections to consider request of management,

The ma t

fo:-'half”ig::l":':e:zr:;o:::e;ri?el‘:,t '::’hlf}' has qlurliﬂed recently and started practising. Reports providing assurance
gd nanclal statements i

necessary Information and records to him n this regard are sought from CA P. The Management provides

Assume, in above case, t
along with accompa::’in:i::::g: r;:rot'::: F:‘:?:\:de: ::iil‘fl adlancs Cg[flat srammprenes kit il 3 el
. ant ha g .
financial statements with a report for mutually agreed P'\::::s:zni?f: and requests him to provide duly signed
es.
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1. The management of company has engaged CA P to issue a duly signed report for half year. Which of the
following standards, if any, issued by ICAI are relevant for CA P?

(a) Standards on Review Engagements

(b) Standards on Auditing

(c) Standards on Related Services

(d) There are no standards for issuing report in such situation.

2. Which of the following statements is MOST APRROPRIATE in given case situation?
(a) CAP can assist management in preparation of financial statements of the company. However, issue of a report
in such a case is outside the scope of work.
(b) CA P can assist management in preparation of financial statements of the company and he can issue an audit

report.
(c) CA P can assist management in preparation of financial statements of the company and he can issue a

compilation report in this respect.
(d) The responsibility of preparation of financial statement is of company’s management. CA P cannot assist
management in preparation of financial statements of the company. However, he can issue a review report.

3. In the above said scenario for issuance of signed financial statements for half year by CA P, as discussed in last

para of Case Study, identify the MOST APPROPRIATE statement: -
(a) Standard on Quality control (SQC 1) is not applicable as CA P cannot issue audit report.
(b) Standard on Quality Control (SQC 1) is not applicable as CA P cannot issue review report.

(c) Standard on Quality Control (SQC 1) is applicable in such type of engagement.
(d) Standard on Quality Control (SQC 1) is not applicable as CA P is barred from issuing any report in such type of

engagement.

4 The banker of company has also requested for projected financial statements for coming years along with a
report from CA regarding these projections to consider request of management. Which of the following standards
issued by ICAI are relevant for CA P in such a situation, if any?

(a) Standards on Review Engagements

(b) There are no standards for issuing such type of reports.

(c) Standards on Related Services

(d) Standards on Assurance Engagements

5. Suppose CA P also accepts work of issuing projected financial statements with a report to be signed by him.
The management has projected turnover of *100 core for the next year, *150 crore & “200 crore for following years
respectively as compared to present turnover of 25 crore in current half year. Identify the MOST APPROPRIATE

statement in this situation: -
(a) CA P has to satisfy himself regarding arithmetical accuracy of projected data.
(b) CA P has to satisfy himself regarding reasonableness of assumptions underlying projected turnover and its

consistency with actuals.
(c) CA P has to satisfy himself regarding arithmetical accuracy of data along with its proper presentation to

banker.
(d) CA P has to satisfy himself regarding reasonableness of assumptions underlying projected turnover, its

consistency with actuals, disclosure and presentation.

1.c2.c3.c4.d5.d

Individual MCQs
1. Which of the following is not an advantage of audit?
(a) It provides high quality financial information.
(b) It acts as a moral check on employees.
(c) It enhances risk of management bias.
(d) It helps in safeguarding interests of shareholders.
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2. Which of the following is NOT TRUE about an assurance engagement?
(a) It relates to providing assurance about historical financial information only.
(b) The practitioner obtains sufficient appropriate evidence.
(c) There is some information to be examined by practitioner.
(d) A written assurance report in appropriate form is issued by practitioner.

3. Which of the following is TRUE about Engagement Standards? ) '
(a) Engagement standards ensure proper rights to practitioners in course o p.'arformance of ﬂ?e" du:les;:.l di
(b) Engagement standards ensure preparation and presentation of financial statements in a standardized
manner.

(c) Engagement standards ensure uniformity by practitioners in course of performance of their duties.
(d) Engagement standards ensure savings in resources of clients.

4. Consider following statements in relation to “Limited assurance engagement”:- _
Statement | - It involves obtaining sufficient appropriate evidence to draw reasonable conclusions.

Statement Il - Review of interim financial information of a company is an example of limited assurance
engagement.

(a) Statement lis correct. Statement Il is incorrect.
(b) Both Statements | and Il are correct.

(c) Both Statements | and Il are incorrect.

(d) Statement | is incorrect. Statement Il is correct.

5. Which of the following is TRUE about Standards on auditing?
a. These deal mainly with voluntary responsibilities of auditors.
b. These deal mainly with mandatory responsibilities of auditors.

¢. Their sole purpose is to help government authorities in augmenting revenues.
d. These deal mainly in carrying out audit according to legal provisions.

1.(c)2.(a) 3.(c) 4. (d) 5. (b)
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SA 210: Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagement

Test your Understanding

1. Chirag, as part of articled training, is part of an engagement team conducting audit of a company. He has read
somewhere that engagement letter issued by auditor to client also includes expected form and content of the
auditor’s report. He was at a loss to understand how could an auditor include form and content of the report
beforehand. Try to help Chirag by making things clear to him.

Engagement letter includes reference to expected form and content of audit report. It merely states that auditor
would provide opinion in this form. However, engagement letter also includes statement that the form and content
of report may need to be amended in the light of audit findings. Therefore, if in light of audit findings, auditor needs
to give a modified opinion, he shall do so.

2. The management of an entity feels that it is not necessary for it to give in writing explicitly to the auditor that
it understands its responsibilities for preparation of financial statements in accordance with applicable financial
reporting framework. Discuss, whether, it is necessary for the management to do so. In case management refuses,
why should an auditor not accept the proposed engagement?

It is necessary for management to give in writing explicitly to the auditor that it understands its responsibilities for
preparation of financial statements in accordance with applicable financial reporting framework. It is a necessary
precondition for an audit in accordance with SA 210. If the preconditions for an audit are not present, the auditor
shall discuss the matter with management.

Unless required by law or regulation to do so, the auditor shall not accept the proposed audit engagement: -

(a) If the auditor has determined that the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the
financial statements is unacceptable or

(b) If the agreement of management is not obtained on matters relating to understanding of responsibility of
management on preparation of financial statements, internal controls for preparation of financial statements,
providing access to all information to auditor and unrestricted access to persons within the entity.

Unless required by law or regulation to do so, such a refusal on the part of auditor is necessary as management is
not willing to accept its responsibility for preparation of financial statements in accordance with applicable financial
reporting framework. An audit is conducted on this basic premise according to SA 210. When basic premise on
which audit is conducted is not fulfilled, refusal by auditor is necessary.

Correct/Incorrect
(i) The audit engagement letter is sent by the client to auditor.

Incorrect: As per SA 210 “Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements”, the Audit engagement letter is sent by the
auditor to his client.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. On recurring audits, the auditor shall assess whether circumstances require the terms of the audit engagement
to be revised and whether there is a need to remind the entity of the existing terms of the audit engagement. The
auditor may decide not to send a new audit engagement letter or other written agreement each period. Explain
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the factors an auditor considers to be appropriate to revise the terms of the audit engagement or to reming the
entity of existing terms. [RTP May-21]

OR

A Chartered accountant is conducting audit of a client for last two years. Before proceeding to start audit for next
year, he notices that there is substantial change in management. Besides, client has ventured into areas of

business activity which were not present at time of accepting initial audit engagement. Discuss responsibility of
auditor in this regard in context of SA 210. [SM]

On recurring audits, the auditor shall assess whether circumstances require the terms of the audit engagement to
be revised and whether there is a need to remind the entity of the existing terms of the audit engagement.

The auditor may decide not to send a new audit engagement letter or other written agreement each period,

However, the following factors may make it appropriate to revise the terms of the audit engagement or to remind
the entity of existing terms:

* Any indication that the entity misunderstands the objective and scope of the audit.

* Anyrevised or special terms of the audit engagement.

* Arecent change of senior management.

* Asignificant change in ownership.

* Asignificant change in nature or size of the entity’s business.

* Achange in legal or regulatory requirements.

A change in the financial reporting framework adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.
* Achange in other reporting requirements.

2. Discuss preconditions for an audit as per SA 210. Explain how would an auditor proceed to establish the
presence of pre conditions for an audit. [Dec-21 & RTP May-21]

As per SA 210 “Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements”
management of an acceptable financial reporting framew
agreement of management and, where a
audit is conducted.,

» Preconditions for an audit may be defined as the use by

ork in the preparation of the financial statements and the
ppropriate, those charged with governance to the premise on which an

In order to establish whether the preconditions for an audit are present, the auditor shall:
(a) Determine whether the financial reporting framework is acceptable; and
(b) Obtain the agreement of management that it

(i) For the preparation of the financial sta
framework;

acknowledges and understands its responsibility:
tements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting

(i) For the internal control as management con
(iii) To provide the auditor with:
L ]

siders necessary; and

Access to all information such as records, documentation and other matters;

Additional information that the auditor may request from mana
and

. gement for the purpose of the audit;

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom the auditor determines it necessary
obtain audit evidence.
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3. An auditor who, before the completion of the engagement, is requested to change the engagement to one

which provides a lower level of assurance, should consider the appropriateness of doing so. Explain the

circumstances which may contribute towards a request from the client for the auditor to change the engagement.
[RTP Nov-22 + Nov-22]

An auditor who, before the completion of the engagement, is requested to change the engagement to one which

provides a lower level of assurance, should consider the appropriateness of doing so.

A request from the client for the auditor to change the engagement may result from

1. a change in circumstances affecting the need for the service,

2. a misunderstanding as to the nature of an audit or related service originally requested.

3. a restriction on the scope of the engagement, whether imposed by management or caused by circumstances.

CA Shubham Keswani 15

TELEGRAM: CANOTE HUB



Guest
Rectangle


Ch-1 Introduction to Audit
SQC-1 & SA 220

Test Your Understanding
1. CA P. Suryakantam has conducted audit of accounts of an entity for a particular year. ICAl has issued a letter to
him relating to certain matters concerning audit. He didn’t even bother to reply to the letter despite reminders,
Discuss which fundamental principle governing professional ethics is disregarded by him.

Failure to reply to professional body smacks of lack of courtesy and professional responsibility. The principle of
“Professional behaviour” is disregarded.

2. A Chartered accountant in practice issued a certificate showing original cost of plant and machinery installed
in premises of a client for Rs. 9 crores to save some regulatory fees for his client. However, original cost of plant
and machinery was Rs.15 crore as per records of client. Which fundamental principle governing professional
ethics is violated in this case?

“Integrity” requires that a professional accountant shall not knowingly be associated with reports, returns,
communications or other information where the accountant believes that the information contains a materially
false or misleading statement; contains statements or information provided negligently or omits or obscures
required information where such omission or obscurity would be misleading.

In the given case, a false certificate is knowingly issued showing misstated original cost of machinery. Therefore,
fundamental principle of “integrity” is violated.

3. CA Raman Gupta is offered appointment as auditor of a company. One of his distant uncles held some shares
in the same company. Holding of such shares, by a distant relative, is not prohibited under provisions of law nor
does it affect his independence. Before he could accept appointment, he received unfortunate news of death of
his uncle who had died without any children. He came to know that he was nominee of these shares having
substantial value. It landed him in a tricky situation. What should be proper course of action for him?

When threats to independence exist, the auditor should either desist from the task or eliminate the threat or at the
very least, put in place safeguards which reduce the threats to an acceptable level.

Holding of shares involves financial interest in the company and is in nature of self-interest threat. He has come to
hold shares due to nomination made by his distant relative before accepting the appointment. Considering above,
he should take steps to eliminate the threat by selling shares immediately before accepting appointment. Holding

of shares of the same company for which he is offered appointment as auditor constitutes threat to his
independence.

4. A Chartered accountant receives about 40% of his total audit fees from a single client. Discuss how it could

afl;ect independence of Chartered accountant as auditor of this client. What are such types of threats referred t0
as?

Und [ i
ue dependence on fees of a client constitutes a threat as there is fear of losing the client. Such threats e
referred to as self-interest threats.
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5. CA Murli Madhavan provides accounting and book keeping services to a leading NGO engaged in environmental
protection work. He is also offered audit of the accounts of NGO. Identify and discuss what kind of threat to
independence may be involved in accepting such an engagement.

In this case, Chartered Accountant is already rendering accounting and book keeping services to an NGO. If he
accepts audit, he would be involved in reviewing own work. Therefore, the same constitutes “self-review” threat.

6. CA PK Nair is offered appointment as auditor of a company engaged in providing tourism services. While making
due diligence of the proposed client, he comes to know that there have been raids on premises of the company
and residences of its directors by National Investigation Agency (NIA) on suspicion of links with terror outfits. It
has been followed up with searches by Enforcement Directorate hunting for illicit money trail. There is a strong
suspicion of tourism services provided by company being facade of terror funds. Should proposed offer be

accepted by him?

Integrity of principal owners has to be considered before accepting an audit engagement in accordance with SA
220. In this regard, SA 220 states requirements on lines of SQC 1. SQC 1 clearly states that in cases where there are
indications that the client might be involved in money laundering or other criminal activities, appointment should
not be accepted. In the instant case, there have been raids of NIA on suspected links with terror outfits which is a
criminal activity. Further, raids by Enforcement Directorate also point towards money laundering. Therefore,

proposed offer should not be accepted.

7. CA Arpita has joined a mid-sized CA firm recently. She finds that partners remain too busy and the firm is
proposing to accept audit work in areas in which it has no experience or capabilities. The firm is proposing to
accept audit of some entities engaged in emerging “fin-tech” sector. Such audits may be requiring extensive use
of technology and data analytics. However, the said firm has no such capabilities and trained personnel. Discuss,

whether, firm should accept such audits with reason.

SQC 1 requires that before accepting an engagement, competence (including capabilities, time and resources) to

perform engagement have to be considered.

In the given case, the proposed engagements involve use of technology and data analytics. The firm has no prior
experience of audits in emerging “fintech” sector. The firm does not have trained personnel to carry out these

audits. Hence, offer for these audits should not be accepted.

MCQs
1. Identify the most appropriate statement: -
(a) SA 220 applies at the level of firm.
(b) SQC 1 is premised on the basis that firm is subject to SA 220.
(c) SA 220 is premised on the basis that firm is subject to 5QC 1.
(d) SA 220 applies to all engagements,

2. Which of the following is not a fundamental principle governing professional ethics?
(a) Professional competence and due care

(b) Integrity

(c) Objectivity

(d) Safeguards to independence
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3. Identify the most appropriate statement in context of SQC 1.

(a) Assembly of engagement files should be completed in not more than 60 days after date of auditor’s repon |,
case of audit engagements.

(b) Engagement files should be completed before date of auditor’s report in case of audit engagements,

(c) Engagement files should be completed in not more than 60 days after completion of an engagement.

(d) Engagement files should be completed on date on which audit report is signed in case of audit engagements,

l.c2.d3.a

Case Study
Das & Co, a firm of auditors, is offered appointment as auditor of a company, a prospective new client. CA Sukanya,
one of partners, is dealing with new client. While meeting with officers of the company, she comes to know that
Sushant, CFO of the company, was her class mate. In fact, both of them had started CA together, However, Sushant
had left CA mid-way due to repeated failures and tried his luck to pursue MBA (finance) from one of leading
institutions.

During initial discussions, it transpires that company s going to launch new services in the fleld of “weather-
forecasting”. Such services would be available on web site of company and micro weather Information would be
avallable on payment of charges. The company requests aud t fem 1o be wisibly associated with thelr marketing blitz.

Assume that firm choses to accept the offer and writes 1o previous auditor, Walker & Co., to advise whether there
exist any professional reasons for them not to accept the proposed offer. Mowever, Walker & Co. do not reply to
the request of Das & Co.

During preliminary discussions, it also became known that the sad company has acquired all shares of another
company. Under relevant provisions of law, financial statements of both companies needed to be consolidated and

audited. Despite this knowledge, Das & Co. falled 10 advise their cliem regarding audit of consolidated financial
statements,

The company also offers auditors contract for providing IT services pertaining to information system of company.

1. Considering discussion about Sukanya and Sushant, which of the following statements seems most
appropriate?

(a) The above discussion is irrelevant in context of proposed offer.

(b) The proposed offer should be accepted by firm. The engagement team may be headed by CA Sukanya for better
coordination and results.

(c) The proposed offer should be accepted by firm. The engagement team may be headed by a different partner of
the firm.

(d) The matter is too trivial to be reported by CA Sukanya to other partners of firm.

2. Keeping in view request of the company to be visibly associated with company’s new services, identify which
type of threat is being faced by audit firm.

(a) Self-interest threat
(b) Familiarity threat
(c) Self-review threat
(d) Advocacy threat
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3. The previous auditors, Walker & Co., have not replied to communication of Das & Co. Which fundamental
principle of professional ethics is not followed by them?

(a) Objectivity

(b) Professional behaviour

(c) Professional competence and due care

(d) Integrity

4. Das & Co. have failed to advise the company regarding audit of consolidated financial statements. Which
fundamental principle of professional ethics is violated by Das & Co.?

(a) Professional behaviour

(b) Integrity

(¢) Objectivity

(d) Professional competence and due care

5. Which of the following statements is most appropriate regarding providing offer of work of IT services by
auditors to the company?

(a) Such offer may create a self-review threat.

(b) Such offer may create an advocacy threat.

(c) Such offer does not constitute any threat.

{d) Such offer may create self-review and advocacy threats

1.62:d 3 ba.d 5.8

Correct/Incorrect
(i) An Auditor is considered to lack independence if the partner of the audit firm deals with shares and securities

of the audited entity.

Correct: If partner of the firm deals with shares and securities of the audited firm then such threat is known as the
Advocacy Threats and auditor will be lacking independence.

(ii) The Audit Engagement documentations should ordinarily be retained by the auditor for minimum of six years
from the date of the auditor's report or the date of the group auditor's report, whichever is later.

Incorrect: SQC 1 requires firms to establish policies and procedures for the retention of engagement documentation.
The retention period for audit engagements ordinarily is no shorter than seven years from the date of the auditor’s
report, or, if later, the date of the group auditor’s report.

(iii) Familiarity threats, which occur when auditors are deterred from acting objectively with an adequate degree
of professional skepticism. Basically, these could happen because of threat of replacement over disagreements
with the application of accounting principles, or pressure to disproportionately reduce work in response to

reduced audit fees.

Incorrect: Intimidation threats, which occur when auditors are deterred from acting objectively with an adequate
degree of professional skepticism. Basically, these could happen because of threat of replacement over
disagreements with the application of accounting principles, or pressure to disproportionately reduce work in

response to reduced audit fees.
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Familiarity threats are self-evident, and occur when auditors form relationships with the client where they eng up
being too sympathetic to the client’s interests.

(iv) There is a very thin difference between advocacy threats and intimidation threats to an auditor whjle
performing his duty.

Incorrect: Advocacy threats, which occur when the auditor promotes, or is perceived to promote, a client’s opinion
to a point where people may believe that objectivity is getting compromised. e.g. when an auditor deals with shares
or securities of the audited company, or becomes the client’s advocate in litigation and third party disputes.

Intimidation threats, which occur when auditors are deterred from acting objectively with an adequate degree of
professional skepticism. Basically, these could happen because of threat of replacement over disagreements with

the application of accounting principles, or pressure to disproportionately reduce work in response to reduced audit
fees.

So, it can be concluded that there is not very thin difference between the advocacy threats and intimidation threats.

(v) Advocacy threat, is the threat which occur when an auditing firm, its partner or associate could benefit from
a financial interest in an audit client. [MTP Mar-23]

Incorrect: Self-interest threat is the threat which occur when an auditing firm, its partner or associate could benefit
from a financial interest in an audit client.

Further, Advocacy threat is the threat which occur when the auditor promotes, or is perceived to promote, a client’s
opinion to a point where people may believe that objectivity is getting compromised, e.g. when an auditor deals

with shares or securities of the audited company, or becomes the client’s advocate in litigation and third party
disputes.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions

1. Briefly outline how principles-based approach differs from rules-based approach to ethics. [sM]

Principles Based Approach VS Rules Based Approach
Ethical guidance may follow principles-based approach or rules-based approach. The essence of principles-based
approach to ethics is that it requires compliance with spirit of ethics.
professional judgment in every situation based upon their professional kno
that accountants should use professional judgment to evaluate every situat

It requires accountants to exercise
wledge, skill and expertise. It requires
ion to arrive at conclusions.

However, rules-based approach to ethics strict|
and spirit of ethics may be overlooked while st
rigid as it may not be possible to deal

y follows clearly established rules. It may lead to a narrow outlook
rictly adhering to rules. Further, rules- based approach is somewhat
with every practical situation relying upon rules.

Therefore, it is necessary that spirit of code is followed.

2. How does SQC 1 ensure that independence in engagements is not breached by an audit firm? [SM]

Observance of “Independence” in all éngagements is the basic requirement.
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The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable assurance that the firm,
its personnel and (including experts contracted by the firm and network firm personnel) maintain independence
where required by the Code.

Such policies and procedures should enable the firm to: -

(a) Communicate its independence requirements to its personnel

(b) Identify and evaluate circumstances and relationships that create threats to independence, and to take
appropriate action to eliminate those threats or reduce them to an acceptable level by applying safeguards, or, if

considered appropriate, to withdraw from the engagement.

There should exist a mechanism in the firm by which engagement partners provide the firm with relevant
information about client engagements and personnel of firm promptly notify firm of circumstances and
relationships that create a threat to independence.

All breaches of independence should be promptly notified to firm for appropriate action. Its objective is to ensure
that independence requirements are satisfied.

At least annually, the firm should obtain written confirmation of compliance with its policies and procedures on
independence from all firm personnel required to be independent in terms of the requirements of the Code.

3. As per SA 220, the engagement partner shall take responsibility for the overall quality on each audit
engagement to which that partner is assigned. While taking responsibility for the overall quality on each audit
engagement, analyse and explain the emphasis of the actions of the engagement partner and appropriate

messages to the other members of the engagement team. Also define engagement partner.
[RTP Nov’'20]

As per SA 220 “Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements”, the engagement partner shall take
responsibility for the overall quality on each audit engagement to which that partner is assigned.

The actions of the engagement partner and appropriate messages to the other members of the engagement team,
in taking responsibility for the overall quality on each audit engagement, em phasise:

(a) The importance to audit quality of:
(i) Performing work that complies with professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements;

(i) Complying with the firm’s quality control policies and procedures as applicable;
(iii) Issuing auditor’s reports that are appropriate in the circumstances; and
(iv) The engagement team'’s ability to raise concerns without fear of reprisals; and

(b) The fact that quality is essential in performing audit engagements.

Engagement partner refers to the partner or other person in the firm who is responsible for the audit engagement
and its performance, and for the auditor’s report that is issued on behalf of the firm, and who, where required, has

the appropriate authority from a professional, legal or regulatory body.

4. As per SA 220, “Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements” the auditor should obtain information
considered necessary in the circumstances before accepting an engagement with a new client. Explain stating
clearly the information that would assist the auditor in accepting and continuing of relationship with the client.

Information which assist the Auditor in accepting and continuing of relationship with Client: As per SA 220,
“Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements” the auditor should obtain information considered necessary
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in the circumstances before accepting an engagement with a new client, when deciding whether to continye

existing engagement and when considering acceptance of a new engagement with an existing client, The f0||0wmg

information would assist the auditor in accepting and continuing of relationship with the client:

(i)  Theintegrity of the principal owners, key management and those charged with governance of the entity;

(i)  Whether the engagement team is competent to perform the audit engagement and has the necessary
capabilities, including time and resources;

(iii) Whether the firm and the engagement team can comply with relevant ethical requirements; and

(iv) Significant matters that have arisen during the current or previous audit engagement, and their implications
for continuing the relationship.

5. The firm’s system of quality control should include policies and procedures addressing each and every element
of system of quality control. State those elements. [MTP Oct-19]

ELEMENTS OF A SYSTEM OF QUALITY CONTROL: The firm’s system of quality control should include policies and
procedures addressing each of the following elements:

(a) Leadership responsibilities for quality within the firm.

(b) Ethical requirements.

(c) Acceptance and continuance of client relationships and specific engagements.

(d) Human resources.

(e) Engagement performance.

(f) Monitoring.

6. The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable assurance that it has
sufficient personnel with the capabilities, competence, and commitment to ethical principles. Discuss the

personnel issues addressed by such policies and procedures. Also explain how addressing the personnel issues
would empower the firm. [MTP Oct-19]

The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable assurance that it has
sufficient personnel with the capabilities, competence, and commitment to ethical principles necessary to perform
its engagements in accordance with professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements and to enable
the firm or engagement partners to issue reports that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Such policies and procedures should address relevant HR issues including recruitment, compensation, training,
career development, performance evaluation etc.

There should be emphasis on the continuing professional development of firm’s personnel.

7. The auditor should be straightforward, honest and sincere in his approach to his professional work. He must
be fair and must not allow prejudice or bias to override his objectivity. He should maintain an impartial attitude

and both be and appear to be free of any Interest which might be regarded as being incompatible with integrity
and objectivity. Many different circumstances,

or combination of circumstances, may be relevant and accordingly

it is impossible to define every situation that creates threats to independence and specify the appropriate

mitigating action that should be taken. In addition, the nature of assurance engagements may differ and

consequently different threats may exist requiring the application of different safeguards. Explain stating clearly

the five types of threats as contained in Code of Ethics for Professional Accou ntants, prepared by the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC). [MTP Oct-18 + SM]
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Threats to Independence

1. Self-interest threats, which occur when an auditing firm, its partner or associate could benefit from a financial
interest in an audit client, Examples include

(i) direct financial interest or materially significant indirect financial interest in a client,

(ii) loan or guarantee to or from the concerned client,

(iii) undue dependence on a client’s fees and, hence, concerns about losing the engagement,

(iv) close business relationship with an audit client,
(v) potential employment with the client, and
(vi) contingent fees for the audit engagement.

2. Self-review threats, which occur when during a review of any judgement or conclusion reached in a previous

audit or non-audit engagement (Non audit services include any professional services provided to an entity by an

auditor, other than audit or review of the financial statements. These include management services, internal audit,

ervice, design and implementation of information technology systems etc.), or when a

investment advisory $
e such threats

member of the audit team was previously a director or senior employee of the client. Instances wher

come into play are
(i) when an auditor having recently been a director or senio
(ii) when auditors perform services that are themselves subject matters of audit.

r officer of the company, and

or is perceived to promote, a client’s opinion to a

3. Advocacy threats, which occur when the auditor promotes,
d, e.g. when an auditor deals with shares or

point where people may believe that objectivity is getting compromise
securities of the audited company, or becomes the client’s advocate in litigation and third party disputes.

4. Familiarity threats are self-evident, and occur when auditors form relationships with the client where they end

up being too sympathetic to the client’s interests. This can occur in many ways:

(i) close relative of the audit team working in a senior position in the client company,

(i) former partner of the audit firm being a director or senior employee of the client,

(iii) long association between specific auditors and their specific client counterparts, and

(iv) acceptance of significant gifts or hospitality from the client company, its directors or employees.

5. Intimidation threats, which occur when auditors are deterred from acting objectively with an adequate degree
of professional skepticism. Basically, these could happen because of threat of replacement over disagreements with
the application of accounting principles, or pressure to disproportionately reduce work in response to reduced audit

fees.

8. Discuss fundamental principles of professional ethics. [RTP May-19+ Jan-21]

Fundamental principles of professional ethics relevant to the auditor when conducting an audit of financial

statements:

(a) Integrity

(b) Objectivity

(c) Professional competence and due care
(d) Confidentiality and

(e) Professional behavior.
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into accou
9. The Chartered Accountant has a responsibility to remain independent by takiﬂB"l oo th::hthe context i,
which they practice, the threats to independence and the safeguards available to elim reats. Explaj,

the guiding principles in this regard. [RTP May-21]

The Chartered Accountant has a responsibility to remain independent by taking into acco:nt the context in Which
they practice, the threats to independence and the safeguards available to eliminate the threats.

The following are the guiding principles in this regard: - .
i) For the public to have confidence in the quality of audit, it is essential that auditors should always he and

appears to be independent of the entities that they are auditing.
ii) In the case of audit, the key fundamental principles are integrity, objectivity and professional skeptlcism’

which necessarily require the auditor to be independent.
iii) Before taking on any work, an auditor must conscientiously consider whether it involves threats to hig

independence.
When such threats exist, the auditor should either desist from the task or put in place safeguards that

eliminate them.
v) Ifthe auditoris unable to fully implement credible and adequate safeguards, then he must not accept the work.

“If there is no struggle, there is no progress”
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Test Your Understanding

1. MG & Co, a firm of auditors, having a standing of 30 years is appointed as a statutory auditor of company
engaged in manufacturing of defence equipment. Due to opening of defence sector by government to private
players in recent times, many new companies have entered the fray to manufacture sophisticated defence
equipment. Considering technical and complex nature of operations, the auditors recognize that involvement of
experts in the audit is required. Does consideration for involvement of experts by auditors fall in the domain of
planning audit?

Consideration for involvement of experts by auditors falls within domain of planning. While planning an audit,
auditor would have to consider whether involvement of experts is necessary. In the stated case, company is involved
in technical and complex operations. Therefore, while planning an audit, auditors would have to consider whether
involvement of expert is necessary.

2. CA Kartik is planning for audit of a company engaged in manufacturing of cosmetics. Considering nature of
operations of the company, he had planned to include testing of controls of the company over purchases, sales
and inventories. One fine day, he reaches the corporate office and asks for manuals and required documentation
to ensure surprise element in testing. He had never shared with management his intention to carry out above
procedures. Is approach of CA Kartik proper?

In the case, CA Kartik has reached office of the company without sharing with management his intention to test the
controls. The auditor may decide to discuss elements of planning with the entity’s management to facilitate the
conduct and management of the audit engagement without compromising effectiveness of audit.

Sharing details of visit to test controls does not compromise effectiveness of audit. It is for the better facilitation
and conduct of audit. Therefore, approach of CA Kartik is not proper.

3. CA Mary, while planning audit of a company, feels that she would inquire from inhouse legal counsel of the
company status of pending litigation matters against the company to identify and assess risks of material
misstatements. Considering above description, are you able to identify said procedures? Where these identified
procedures are included in planning in accordance with SA-300?

These are planned risk assessment procedures to identify and assess risk of material misstatement. The objective of
planned inquiry of inhouse legal counsel is to identify and assess risk of material misstatement. Such planned risk
assessment procedures are included in audit plan in accordance with SA-300.

4. CA Shubhendu is statutory auditor of a social media company. Due to change in information technology
regulations by government, it has become mandatory for such companies to constitute “grievance redressal
mechanism” for users of social media platform of the company. Fallure to comply with regulations can potentially

lead to civil and criminal liabilities against the company. Is above factor to be considered by auditor while framing
audit strategy?

Changes in laws and regulations affecting the company is a factor to be considered while establishing overall audit
strategy. There has been change in information technology regulations applicable to the company. Noncompliance
of the same can have implications in form of civil and criminal liabilities. Such an important matter concerning
changes in laws and regulations is to be considered by auditor while establishing overall audit strategy.
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5. Rohit, undergoing practical training, is part of an engagement team conducting audit of a company engaged i,
manufacturing of paints. He has been provided with audit programme pertaining to sales. It lists out various item,
to be checked and verified by him including invoices, rate lists, postingin debtors accounts, correlation of invojces
with e-way bills on sample basis etc.

During verification, he notices that many e-way bills have been cancelled by the company within 24 hours of thejr
generation in month of March. There is no specific instruction in audit programme in this regard. He keeps mum,
Is attitude of Rohit proper?

ters objectively and bring significant matters to

Attitude of Rohit is not proper. The assistants should observe mat
e-way bills in month of March need to be looked

the notice of supervisor/principal. Reasons for cancellation of many
into. Matter should be informed to engagement partner.

MCQs
1. Which of the following is not considered in planning an audit generally?
(a) Understanding of legal and regulatory framework of an entity
(b) Need to consider determination of materiality
(c) Evaluating audit evidence
(d) Need to consider involvement of expert

2. Which of the following is true about audit plan?

(a) Once an audit plan has been finalized for an engagement, changes cannot be made to it.
(b) Audit plan includes scope, timing and direction of planned risk assessment procedures.
(c) Changes in audit plan cannot lead to change in audit strategy.

(d) Audit plan has to be documented by auditor.

3. Which of the following is not included in an audit programme normally?
(a) Extent of checking

(b) Date of checking

(c) Nature or type of procedure

(d) Planning of risk assessment procedures

4. Which of the following is not an advantage of an audit programme?
(a) It acts as a guide for audit of coming years.

(b) It fixes responsibility of assistants.

(c) It serves as a shelter for assistants.

(d) It serves a proof of work done by auditor.

5. Which of the following is most important principle for formulating an audit plan?
(a) Gaining knowledge of client’s workforce

(b) Gaining knowledge of client’s business

(c) Gaining knowledge of client’s vendors

(d) Gaining knowledge of tax laws applicable to client

1. (¢) 2. (d) 3. (d) 4. () 5. (b)
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Case Study
Kaur & Associates, a sole proprietor firm of Simran Kaur, is offered appointment as auditor of a company engaged
in manufacturing of automobile components for the first time. She is fact checking about the integrity of promoters
of the company and key managerial persons. Matters such as competence of staff to perform the engagement are
also considered by her. The appointment is subsequently accepted by her.

She is also taking into account number and location of branches of the company, requirements of Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013 and expected time by which audit has to be completed keeping in view statutory requirements.
Initially, she has thought it proper to inquire key employees of the company in procurement and marketing
departments and planned for the same. She has also planned to visit three plants of the company. The purpose of
planned inquiry and visit is to identify and assess risk of material misstatements.

A detailed set of instructions has been prepared by her office and it has been handed over to assistants in
engagement team. These set of instructions include details of extent of checking and nature of audit procedures to
be performed regarding purchases, sales, items of income, items of expenditure etc. During the course of execution
of above set of instructions, it has been brought to her notice that company is also producing substantial quantities
of scrap generated during manufacturing process. However, no instructions have been given to engagement team
in this regard.

1. Auditor is fact checking about promoters and key managerial persons. She is also considering competence of
staff to perform engagement. What is she trying to do?

(a) She is establishing audit strategy.

(b) She is conducting preliminary engagement activities.

(c) She is designing audit plan.

(d) She is checking her compliance of ethical requirements.

2. Consideration of number and location of branches, requirements of financial reporting framework and
expected time of completion are relevant factors primarily for which of the following -

(a) Developing audit plan

(b) Establishing overall audit strategy

(¢} Designing audit programme

(d) Designing risk assessment procedures

3. Taking into account description of planned inquiry and visit, which of the following statements is TRUE?
(a) Planned inquiry and visit fall in area of audit strategy.
(b) Planned inquiry and visit are planned risk assessment procedures and fall in field of audit plan.
(c) The said description is not related to audit planning.
(d) Planned inquiry and visit fall in scope of audit programme.

4. What is detailed set of instructions given to assistants in engagement team known as?
(a) Au’dit guidelines
(b) Audit plan
(c) Audit Programme
(d) Audit Procedures

5. The issue of generation of scrap has been overlooked in detailed set of instructions given to engagement team.
What should be proper course of action by CA Simran Kaur?
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i ' begun.
(a) She should ignore this information as audit has already beg
(b) She should modify earlier set of instructions.

i t team.
(c) She should leave the matter to wisdom of engagemen

(d) She should put the ball in court of management as she was not provided with complete informatiop, arlie;

1. (b) 2. (b) 3. (b) 4. (c) 5. (b)

Correct/Incorrect
1. The establishment of the overall audit strategy and the detailed audit plan are not necessarily digcre

te o
sequential processes, but are closely interrelated since changes in one may result in consequential changes
r
other.

0 the

Correct: Once the overall audit strategy has been established, an audit plan can be developed to achieve the aygj
objectives through the efficient use of the auditor’s resources. The establishment of the overall audit strategy ang

the detailed audit plan are not necessarily discrete or sequential processes, but are closely inter-related since
changes in one may result in consequential changes to the other.

2. Establishing an overall audit strategy that sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit, and that guides the
development of the audit plan is prerogative of the management.

Incorrect. The auditor shall establish an overall audit strate

gy that sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit
and that guides the development of the audit plan

3. Planning is a discrete phase of an audit

current audit engagement. Planning,

however, includes consideration of the timing of certain activities and audi
Procedures that need to pe complete

d prior to the performance of further audit procedures

6. The audit plan is more detailed than the overall audit strategy
Correc.t. The audit plan js more detailed than the ove
of audit pr cedures to be

performed by engageme
place over the Course of th

t
rall audit strategy that includes the nature, timing and exten
€ audit as the audit plan f

nt team members, Planning for these audit procedures takes

or the engagement develops.
7. Once the audit Plan has b

een drafted and communicated, it is oblj i llow the same:
[May-22 + MTP Apr-23] Igatory on the auditor to fo
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Incorrect: The auditor shall update and change the overall audit strategy and the audit plan as necessary during the
course of the audit. As a result of unexpected events, changes in conditions, or the audit evidence obtained from
the results of audit procedures, the auditor may need to modify the overall audit strategy and audit plan and thereby
the resulting planned nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures, based on the revised consideration of
assessed risks. This may be the case when information comes to the auditor’s attention that differs significantly
from the information available when the auditor planned the audit procedures,

8. Development of an audit plan is important before the establishment of the overall audit strategy to address
the various matters. [RTP Nov-22]

Incorrect: As per SA-300, “Planning an Audit of Financial Statements”, the auditor shall establish an overall audit
strategy that sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit, and that guides the development of the audit plan.
Once the overall audit strategy has been established, an audit plan can be developed to address the various matters
identified in the overall audit strategy, taking into account the need to achieve the audit objectives through the
efficient use of the auditor’s resources.

9. The auditor should update and revise the audit plan as and when required, however, the overall audit strategy
once established cannot be changed during the course of audit. [MTP Mar-21]

Incorrect: The auditor shall update and change the overall audit strategy and the audit plan as necessary during the
course of the audit. As a result of unexpected events, changes in conditions, or the audit evidence obtained from
the results of audit procedures, the auditor may need to modify the overall audit strategy and audit plan and thereby
the resulting planned nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures, based on the revised consideration of
assessed risks.

Descriptive Questions
1. The nature, timing and extent of the direction and supervision of engagement team members and review of
their work vary depending on many factors. Discuss those factors. [RTP Nov-22 + RTP Nov-21]

The nature, timing and extent of the direction and supervision of engagement team members and review of their
work vary depending on many factors, including:

* The size and complexity of the entity.

s The area of the audit.

* The assessed risks of material misstatement (for example, an increase in the assessed risk of material
misstatement for a given area of the audit ordinarily requires a corresponding increase in the extent and
timeliness of direction and supervision of engagement team members, and a more detailed review of their
work),

e Capabilities and competence of the individual team members performing the audit work.

2. Explain what do you mean by documentation of audit plan. Discuss the purpose served by it and also elaborate
the tools used by the auditor to reflect the particular engagement circumstances. [RTP Nov-22]

* Meaning: The documentation of the audit plan is a record of the planned nature, timing and extent of risk
assessment procedures and further audit procedures at the assertion level in response to the assessed risks.

* Purpose: It also serves as a record of the proper planning of the audit procedures that can be reviewed and
approved prior to their performance.
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* Tools: The auditor may use standard audit programs and/or audit completion checklists, tailored as needeq

reflect the particular engagement circumstances.

3. While developing an audit programme, the auditor may conclude that relying on certain interna.l controls is ap
effective and efficient way to conduct his audit. Explain stating clearly the points to be kept in mind whjje
developing an audit programme. [RTP Nov-22]

While developing an audit programme, the auditor may conclude that relying on certain internal controls is ap
effective and efficient way to conduct his audit. However, the auditor may decide not to rely on internal controls
when there are other more efficient ways of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence. The auditor shoylq
also consider thetiming of the procedures, the coordination of any assistance expected from the client, the
availability of assistants, and the involvement of other auditors or experts.

For the purpose of programme construction, the following points should be kept in mind:

(1) Stay within the scope and limitation of the assignment.

(2) Prepare a written audit programme setting forth the procedures that are needed to implement the audit plan,
(3) Determine the evidence reasonably available and identify the best evidence for deriving the necessary
satisfaction.

(4) Apply only those steps and procedures which are useful in accomplishing the verification purpose in the specific
situation.

(5) Include the audit objectives for each area and sufficient details which serve as a set of instructions for the
assistants involved in audit and help in controlling the proper execution of the work.

(6) Consider all possibilities of error.

(7) Co-ordinate the procedures to be applied to related items.

4. You have been appointed as an auditor of MKP Ltd. for the first time. Discuss briefly, the factors to be
considered by you while establishing overall audit strategy. [MTP May-22] @

“In establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall, among other considerations, ascertain the nature,

timing and extent of resources necessary to perform the engagement” Explain those considerations in detail.
[MTP Oct-21]

As per SA-300, “Planning an Audit of Financial Statements”, the auditor shall establish an overall audit strategy

that sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit, and that guides the development of the audit plan. In
establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall:

(i) Identify the characteristics of the engagement that define its scope:

(ii) Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the timing of the audit and the nature of the
communications required;

(iii) Consider the factors that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, are si

gnificant in directing the engagement
team’s efforts;

(iv) Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and, where applicable, whether knowledge gained
on other engagements performed by the engagement partner for the entity is rel

_ evant; and
(v) Ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary to perform the e

ngagement.

5. CA Vikas Jain discussed with his audit team about advantages and disadvantages of audit programme. He

explained to his team that —“work may become mechanical” as disadvantage of the audit programme. Discuss
explaining the disadvantages of an audit programme. [MTP Apr-22]
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Some disadvantages are there in the use of audit programme. The disadvantages are:

(i) The work may become mechanical and particular parts of the programme may be carried out without any
understanding of the object of such parts in the whole audit scheme.

(i) The programme often tends to become rigid and inflexible following set grooves; the business may change in
its operation of conduct, but the old programme may still be carried on. Changes in staff or internal control
may render precaution necessary at points different from those originally decided upon.

(iii) Inefficient assistants may take shelter behind the programme i.e. defend deficiencies in their work on the
ground that no instruction in the matter is contained therein.

(iv) A hard and fast audit programme may kill the initiative of efficient and enterprising assistants.

6. Engagement Partner CA Hitesh Kapur of Kapur and Associates wanted to develop an audit plan of Sampurna
Fabrics Ltd. Discuss the matters to be described in such an audit plan. [RTP May-22]

The auditor shall develop an audit plan that shall include a description of :

(i) The nature, timing and extent of planned risk assessment procedures, as determined under SA 315
“I|dentifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and Its
Environment”.

(i) The nature, timing and extent of planned further audit procedures at the assertion level, as determined under
SA 330 “The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks”.

(iii) Other planned audit procedures that are required to be carried out so that the engagement complies with SAs.

The audit plan is more detailed than the overall audit strategy that includes the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures to be performed by engagement team members.
Planning for these audit procedures takes place over the course of the audit as the audit plan for the engagement

develops.

Example
Planning of the auditor’s risk assessment procedures occurs early in the audit process.

However, planning the nature, timing and extent of specific further audit procedures depends on the outcome of
those risk assessment procedures. In addition, the auditor may begin the execution of further audit procedures for
some classes of transactions, account balances and disclosures before planning all remaining further audit
procedures.

7. M/s TP & Co., a firm of Chartered Accountants, is auditor of KSR Ltd. for many years. KSR Ltd. has diversified
their business into newer areas during the last year, The senior member of the audit team handed over the
standard audit programme of earlier years to the audit assistants and instructed them to follow the same. The
assistants are conducting the audit accordingly. Whether the attitude of the audit assistants is justified or they
are required to keep an open mind? Guide them. [Dec-21]

The Assistant Engaged — Be Encouraged to Keep an Open Mind: To start with, an auditor having regard to the
nature, size and composition of the business and the dependability of the internal control and the given scope of
work, should frame a programme which should aim at providing for a minimum essential work which may be termed
as a standard programme.

» As experience is gained by actually carrying out the work, the programme may be altered to take care of

situations which were left out originally, but are found relevant for the particular concern.
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e Similarly, if any work originally provided for proves beyond doubt to be unnecessary or irrelevant, it May b

dropped.
e The assistant engaged in the job should be encourag
him. . . . - :
He should be instructed to note and report significant matters coming to his notice, to his seniors or tg the

partners or proprietor of the firm engaged for doing the audit.

ed to keep an open mind beyond the programme givent

In the given case, the attitude of assistants of TP & Co. is not justified. They should keep an open mind and go beyonc
the programme to take care of newer areas of the business of KSR Ltd. into which the Company has diversifieqd.

8. In establishing overall audit strategy, the auditor shall ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement te
plan the timing of the audit and the nature of the communications required. Elucidate those cases by whijct
auditor can ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement.

[MTP Nov-21/Apr-23
In establishing the overall audit strategy, auditor shall ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plar
the timing of the audit and the nature of the communications required. The cases by which auditor can ascertair
the reporting objectives of the engagement are:

(i) The entity’s timetable for reporting, such as at interim and final stages.

(ii) The organization of meetings with management and those charged with governance to discuss the nature
timing and extent of the audit work.

(iii) The discussion with management and those charged with governance regarding the expected type and timin;
of reports to be issued and other communications, both written and oral, including the auditor’s report
management letters and communications to those charged with governance.

(iv) The discussion with management regarding the expected communications on the status of audit worl
throughout the engagement.

9. Surya and Chand Ltd is a manufacturing company engaged in the production of miscellaneous electrical goods
Trilochan and Co. has been appointed as the auditors to ca rry out its audit. Auditor thinks that Planning an audif
would involve establishing the overall audit strategy for the engagement and developing an audit plan. Also
Adequate planning benefits the audit of financial statements in several ways. Analyse and Advise explaining the
benefits of adequate planning. [RTP Nov-21 + Nov-18 + RTP May-18]

Planning an audit involves establishing the overall audit strategy for the engagement and developing an audit plan
Adequate planning benefits the audit of financial statements in several ways, including the following:

* Helping the auditor to devote appropriate attention to important areas of the audit.
Helping the auditor identify and resolve potential problems on a timely basis.

Helping the auditor properly organize and manage the audit engagement so that itis performed in an effectiv:
and efficient manner.,

Assisting in the selection of engagement team members with appropriate levels of capabilities anc
competence to respond to anticipated risks, and the proper assignment of work to them.

Facilitating the direction and supervision of engagement team members and the review of their work.

* Assisting, where applicable, in coordination of work done by auditors of components and experts.

10. Planning is not a discrete phase of an audit, but rather a continual and iterative process that often begins
shortly after the completion of the previous audit and continues until the completion of the current audit
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engagement. Planning includes the need to consider certain matters prior to the auditor’s identification and
assessment of the risks of material misstatement. Explain clearly stating those matters also. [RTP May-21/19]

In the context of recurring audits, as per SA-300, “Planning an Audit of Financial Statements”, Planning is not a
discrete phase of an audit, but rather a continual and iterative process that often begins shortly after (or in
connection with) the completion of the previous audit and continues until the completion of the current audit
engagement. Planning, however, includes consideration of the timing of certain activities and audit pracedures that
need to be completed prior to the performance of further audit procedures.

For example, planning includes the need to consider, prior to the auditor’s identification and assessment of the risks

of material misstatement, such matters as:

1. The analytical procedures to be applied as risk assessment procedures.

2. Obtaining a general understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the entity and how the
entity is complying with that framework.

3. The determination of materiality.

4. The involvement of experts.
5. The performance of other risk assessment procedures.

11. The auditor shall document the overall audit strategy, the audit plan and any significant changes made to the
overall audit strategy or the audit plan. Explain in detail. [RTP Nov-20/ 18 + MTP Aug-18]

The auditor shall document:
(a) the overall audit strategy;

(b) the audit plan; and
(c) any significant changes made during the audit engagement to the overall audit strategy or the audit plan, and

the reasons for such changes.

The documentation of the overall audit strategy is a record of the key decisions considered necessary to properly
plan the audit and to communicate significant matters to the engagement team.

Example
The auditor may summarize the overall audit strategy in the form of a memorandum that contains key decisions

regarding the overall scope, timing and conduct of the audit.

The documentation of the audit plan is a record of the planned nature, timing and extent of risk assessment
srocedures and further audit procedures at the assertion level in response to the assessed risks. It also serves as a
ecord of the proper planning of the audit procedures that can be reviewed and approved prior to their
verformance. The auditor may use standard audit programs and/or audit completion checklists, tailored as needed

o reflect the particular engagement circumstances.

\ record of the significant changes to the overall audit strategy and the audit plan, and resulting changes to the
lanned nature, timing and extent of audit procedures, explains why the significant changes weremade, and the
verall strategy and audit plan finally adopted for the audit. It also reflects the appropriate response to the

ignificant changes occurring during the audit.
2, Evolving one audit programme applicable to all business under all circumstances is not practicable. Explain

learly stating in detail the meaning of audit programme. [RTP Nov-20]
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Businesses vary in nature, size and composition; work which is sultable to one business may not be
others; efficiency and operation of internal controls and the exact nature of the service to be rende
auditor are the other factors that vary from assignment to assignment. On account of such Variations, e
audit programme applicable to all business under all circumstances is not practicable.

SUitapy

0
red by the
\f‘0|\-’ing Ong

However, it becomes a necessity to specify in detail in the audit programme the nature of work to pe don
no time will be wasted on matters not pertinent to the engagement and any special matter or any specific
can be taken care of.

e5p lhat
Situat}On

13. In most of the assertions much of the evidence be drawn and each one should be considered ang Weigheg
ascertain its weight to prove or disprove the assertion. An auditor picks up evidence from a variety of ﬁe|dt:
Analyse and explain with the help of examples. [RTP Nov-20] '
In most of the assertions much of the evidence be drawn and each one should be considered and Weighed p,
ascertain its weight to prove or disprove the assertion. In this process, an auditor would be in a position to identify
the evidence that brings the highest satisfaction to him about the appropriateness or otherwise of the assertion,

An auditor picks up evidence from a variety of fields and it is generally of the following broad types:
(a) Documentary examination,

(b) Physical examination,

(c) Statements and explanation of management, officials andemployees,
(d) Statements and explanations of third parties,

(e) Arithmetical calculations by the auditor,

(f) State of internal controls and internal checks,

(g) Inter-relationship of the various accounting data,

(h) Subsidiary and memorandum records,

(i) Minutes,

(j) Subsequent action by the client and by others.

Example

1. For cash in hand, the best evidence is ‘count’

2. For investment pledged with a bank, the banker’s certificate.

3. For verifying assertions about book debts, the client’s ledger invoices, debit notes, credit notes, monthly accounts
statement sent to the customers are all evidence: some of these are corroborative, other being complementany:

In addition, balance confirmation procedure is often resorted to, to obtain greater satisfaction about the reliability
of the assertion.

The auditor, however, has to place appropriate weight on each piece of evidence and accordingly should prescnbl’-
the priority of verification. Itis true that in all cases one procedure may not bring the highest satisfaction andit ma‘:
be dangerous for the auditor to ignore any evidence that is available. By the word “available” we do not mean tha
the evidence available with the client is the only available evidence. The auditor should know what ngrmallyshou
be available in the context of the transaction having regard to the circumstances and usage.

Id be further developed and revi : i .
14, Plans shou d WikeH o Necessary during the course of the audit. Explain 20]
[RTP May
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SA-300, “Planning an Audit of Financial Statements” further expounds this principle. According to it, planning is not
a discrete phase of an audit, but rather a continual and iterative process that often begins shortly after (or in
connection with) the completion of the previous audit and continues until the completion of the current audit
engagement. The auditor shall establish an overall audit strategy that sets the scope, timing and direction of the
audit, and that guides the development of the audit plan.

15. Overall audit strategy sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit, and guides the development of the
more detailed audit plan. The process of establishing the overall audit strategy assists the auditor to determine
such matters as for example — the resources to deploy for specific audit areas, such as the use of appropriately
experienced team members for high risk areas or the involvement of experts on complex matters. Explain the
other three such matters. [RTP May-20] @

The engagement partner of AST AND ASSOCIATES, firm of Chartered Accountants appointed as auditor of Fabric
India Ltd is considering as to management of key resources to be employed to conduct audit. Discuss how overall
audit strategy would assist the auditor. [MTP May-18]

Overall audit strategy sets the scope, timing and direction of the audit, and guides the development of the more
detailed audit plan. The auditor shall establish an overall audit strategy that sets the scope, timing and direction of
the audit, and that guides the development of the audit plan.

The process of establishing the overall audit strategy assists the auditor to determine, subject to the completion of
the auditor’s risk assessment procedures, such matters as:

(i) The resources to deploy for specific audit areas, such as the use of appropriately experienced team members
for high risk areas or the involvement of experts on complex matters;

(i) The amount of resources to allocate to specific audit areas, such as the number of team members assigned to
observe the inventory count at material locations, the extent of review of other auditors’ work in the case of
group audits, or the audit budget in hours to allocate to high risk areas;

(iii) When these resources are to be deployed, such as whether at an interim audit stage or at key cut-off dates;

and
(iv) How such resources are managed, directed and supervised, such as when team briefing and debriefing

meetings are expected to be held, how engagement partner and manager reviews are expected to take place
(for example, on-site or off-site), and whether to complete engagement quality control reviews.

16. “Once the overall audit strategy has been established, an audit plan can be developed to address the various
natters identified in the overall audit strategy”. Explain. [SM] @

rhe establishment of the overall audit strategy and the detailed audit plan are closely inter-related. Explain
[MTP Mar-19]

\udit strategy sets broad overall approach to the audit whereas audit plan addresses the various matters identified

n the overall audit strategy. Audit strategy determines scope, timing and direction of audit.

\udit plan describes how strategy is going to be implemented. The audit plan is more detailed than the overall
wudit strategy that includes the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures to be performed by engagement

eam members.
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Planning for these audit procedures takes place over the course of the audit as the audit plan for the engagement

develops.

The establishment of the overall audit strategy and the detailed audit plan are not necessarily discrete or
sequential processes, but are closely inter-related since changes in one may result in consequential changes to

the other.
17. The utility of the audit programme can be retained and enhanced only by keeping the programme as also the
client’s operations and internal control under periodic review so that inadequacies or redundancies of the

programme may be removed. Explain [RTP May-19]

Periodic Review of The Audit Programme
There should be periodic review of the audit programme to assess whether the same continues to be adequate for

obtaining requisite knowledge and evidence about the transactions. Unless this is done, any change in the business
policy of the client may not be adequately known, and consequently, audit work may be carried on, on the basis of
an obsolete programme and, for this negligence, the whole audit may be held as negligently conducted and the

auditor may have to face legal consequences.

The utility of the audit programme can be retained and enhanced only by keeping the programme as also the client’s
operations and internal control under periodic review so that inadequacies or redundancies of the programme may

be removed.
However, as a basic feature, audit programme not only lists the tasks to be carried out but also contains a few
relevant instructions, like the extent of checking, the sampling plan, etc. So long as the programme is not officially

changed by the principal, every assistant deputed on the job should unfailingly carry out the detailed work according
governing the work. Many persons believe that this brings an element of rigidity in the audit

to the instructions

programme.
This is not true provided the periodic review is undertaken to keep the programme as up-to-date as possible and by

encouraging the assistants on the job to observe all salient features of the various accounting functions of the client.

“Happiness is sticking to the Routine &
feeling the High of Completing a Topic”
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Test Your Understanding

1. During the course of audit of a company, an issue arose relating to treatment of interest costs of company on
its restructured loans taken from a bank. This important matter was discussed with CFO of the company and was
properly resolved. Is it necessary for the auditor to include in its working papers?

The auditor shall document discussions of significant matters with management, those charged with governance,
and others, including the nature of the significant matters discussed and when and with whom the discussions took
place.

In the instant case, an important matter regarding treatment of interest costs of company on its restructured loans
taken from a bank directly impacting profits of the company was discussed. Although issue was resolved, it is
necessary to document the same by including detail of the person with whom discussions took place along with
date.

2. CA sonali Morarka has completed audit of a listed company. The audit report dated 15th July, 2022 has been
issued. However, audit working papers including record of discussions with management, details of audit
procedures performed to obtain audit evidence and conclusions reached by her have not been properly
- assembled. More than six months have elapsed after issue of audit report. Subsequently, she has received a letter
from regulator in connection with audit of the company requesting her to share copy of audit file. Standard on
Quality Control (SQC) 1 provides that audit documentation is the property of the auditor. He may make portions
of, or extracts from, audit documentation available to clients subject to some conditions.

The letter has woken up her from deep slumber. She hurriedly assembled audit file and inserted some more
papers which were necessary. However, she put current date on these inserted papers and the copy of audit file
was sent to regulator. Discuss, the issues involved, in context of “audit documentation”.

An appropriate time limit within which to complete the assembly of the final audit file is ordinarily not more than
60 days after the date of the auditor’s report.

Further, preparing sufficient and appropriate audit documentation on a timely basis helps to enhance the quality of
the audit and facilitates the effective review and evaluation of the audit evidence obtained and conclusions reached
before the auditor’s report is finalized. Documentation prepared after the audit work has been performed is likely
to be less accurate than documentation prepared at the time such work is performed.

In the given case, even after passage of more than six months, she has not assembled audit file. Besides, she has
put in some papers with current date which is not permissible at all. It shows that part of audit documentation has
been prepared afterwards putting a question mark on quality of audit.

Case Study
CA Rajan Pillai is heading the engagement team conducting audit of a company.
While audit is in progress, consider following issues regarding audit documentation:-
(A) Audit programme was prepared assigning responsibilities for different types of works to be performed to team
members. The engagement team consists of 4 members Mobhit (CA final student), Rohit (CA final student), Shobhit
(Paid CA) and CA Rajan Pillai (partner of audit firm).
(B) The team has determined materiality for financial statements as a whole.
(C) The team has assessed risks of material misstatements to be low.
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(D) CA Shobhit is responsible for attending inventory count process and putting down its documentation part,
(E) During the course of audit, many related party transactions have cOme to notice.

On the basis of above, answer the following questions:

(1) Work relating to verification of revenue was assigned to Mohit in audit programme. However, it is being
performed by Rohit actually. Verification of trade receivables was planned to be carried out by Rohit in ayg;
programme. However, it being performed by CA Rajan Pillai due to last minute practical issues. Which of the
following statements is most appropriate in this regard relating to audit documentation?

(a) Audit programme contains names of persons and work to be performed. It is immaterial whether work assigneq
to one person is performed by another person.

(b) Audit programme was already prepared. Only persons assigned speci
(c) It is necessary that audit programme be suitably updated or notes are gi
that planned duties are in accordance with actual work performance.

(d) Changes in audit programme or notes clarifying the matter are required only when a person not forming part of
this issue of inter-shuffling of team members is

fic responsibilities can perform those duties.
ven in working papers to this effect sg

engagement team is deputed to perform a duty. Otherwise,
frivolous.

(2) As regards materiality, which of the following statements is most appropriate in context of audit
documentation?

(a) Materiality has already been determined. There is no need to putitinto working papers.

(b) Materiality depends upon professional judgment of auditor. Whatever amount has been determined can be

documented in working papers.
(c) Materiality arrived on basis of professional judgment along with factors considered in the determination has to

be documented.
(d) Materiality has been arrived upon professional judgment. It also depends upon professional judgment of auditor
whether he wants to document it or not.

(3) As regards team’s assessment that risk of material misstatements is low, which of the following statements is
odd one relating to documentation of risk?

(a) Discussion amongst engagement team members and detail of significant decisions reached has to be
documented.

(b) Details of risk assessment procedures have to be documented.

(c) Details about how understanding of each component of internal control was obtained has to be documented.
(d) Precise calculation of risk of material misstatements has to be documented.

(@) CA Shobhit is responsible for attending physical inventory count of the company. Which of the following is not
true in this regard relating to audit documentation?

(a) Dates on which physical inventory count process was attended by him should be documented. It may also include
photographs of that date showing his attendance of inventory counting process at a particular location.

(b) Detail of test counting undertaken should form part of audit documentation.

(c) Detail of obsolete goods found should form part of audit documentation.

(d) Reports showing that stocks conform to quality control standards in accordance with law are essential part of
audit documentation.

(5) As regards related party transactions, which of the following should not be part of audit documentation?
(a) Management representation letter in this regard
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(b) Related party transaction policy of the company
(c) Documentation to show that such transactions are at arm’s length basis
(d) Documentation to show that such transactions are at close length basis.

l.c2.c3.d4.d5.d

Correct/Incorrect
1. The auditor must include in audit documentation superseded drafts of working papers and financial
statements, notes that reflect incomplete or preliminary thinking etc. [RTP Nov-21]

Incorrect: The auditor need not include in audit documentation superseded drafts of working papers and financial
statements, notes that reflect incomplete or preliminary thinking, previous copies of documents corrected for
typographical or other errors, and duplicates of documents.

2. As per SA 230 on “Audit Documentation”, the working papers are not the property of the auditor. [SM]

Incorrect: As per SA 230 on “Audit Documentation” the working papers are the property of the auditor and the
auditor has right to retain them. He may at his discretion can make available working papers to his client, The auditor
should retain them long enough to meet the needs of his practice and legal or professional requirement.

3. Mr. A is a statutory auditor of ABC Ltd. The branch of ABC Ltd. is audited by Mr. B, another Chartered
Accountant. Mr. A requests for the photocopies of the audit documentation of Mr. B pertaining to the branch

audit.

Incorrect; SA 230 issued by ICAl on Audit Documentation, and “Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, provid es that,
unless otherwise specified by law or regulation, audit documentation is the property of the auditor. He may at his
discretion, make portions of, or extracts from, audit documentation available to clients, provided such disclosure
does not undermine the validity of the work performed, or, in the case of assurance engagements, the

independence of the auditor or of his personnel.

4. The auditor shall assemble the audit documentation in the audit file and complete the administrative process
of assembling the final audit file before the date of the auditor's report. [Nov-22]

Incorrect: The auditor shall assemble the audit documentation in an audit file and cbmplete the administrative
process of assembling the final audit file on a timely basis after the date of the auditor’s report. The completion of
the assembly of the final audit file after the date of the auditor’s report is an administrative process that does not
involve the performance of new audit procedures or the drawing of new conclusions.

Alternative reason: An appropriate time limit within which to complete the assembly of the final audit file is
ordinarily not more than 60 days after the date of the auditor’s report.
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Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions

1. Define audit documentation. Also give some examples. [SM]

Audit documentation refers to the record of audit procedures performed, relevant audit ewdenc-e obtained, ang
Conclusions the auditor reaChed. (terms SUCh as “Working papersn or "wol’k papers are also sometimes Used_)

Audit Documentation include: Audit programmes, Analyses, Issues memoranda, Summaries of significant Matters,
Letters of confirmation and representation, Checklists, Correspondence (including e-mail) concerning significang

matters

2. What do you mean by Audit Documentation? Also explain the nature and purpose of audit documentation,
[RTP May-19 + MTP Nov-21 + Nov-22]

SA 230 on “Audit Documentation”, audit documentation refers to the record of audit procedures performed,
relevant audit evidence obtained, and conclusions the auditor reached. (terms such as “working papers” or “worj

papers” are also sometimes used.)

Nature of Audit Documentation

Audit documentation provides:
(a) evidence of the auditor’s basis for a conclusion about the achievement of the overall objectives of the auditor;

and
(b) evidence that the audit was planned and performed in accordance with SAs and applicable legal and regulatory

requirements.

The following are the purpose of Audit documentation:
Assisting the engagement team to plan and perform the audit.

1.

2. Assisting members of the engagement team to direct and supervise the audit work, and to discharge their
review responsibilities.

3. Enabling the engagement team to be accountable for its work.

4. Retaining a record of matters of continuing significance to future audits.

5. Enabling the conduct of quality control reviews and inspections in accordance with sQcC 1.

6. Enabling the conduct of external inspections in accordance with applicable legal, regulatory or other

requirements.

3. The auditor shall prepare audit documentation that is sufficient to enable an experienced auditor to understand
significant matters arising during the audit. Explain the above statement and also give examples of significant

matters. [RTP Nov-22/20]

The auditor shall prepare audit documentation that is sufficient to enable an experienced auditor, having no
previous connection with the audit, to understand significant matters arising during the audit, the conclusion®
reached thereon, and significant professional judgments made in reaching those conclusions
Judging the significance of a matter requires an objective analysis of the facts and Circumstar;ces
Examples of significant matters include: .

» Matters that give rise to significant risks,

» Results of audit procedures indicating
a. that the financial statements could be materially Mmisstated, or

b. a need to revise the auditor’s previous assessment the
of the ris . 3 t and
auditor’s responses to those risks. ks of material misstatemen
CA Shubham Keswani 40


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-3 Audit Documentation

» Circumstances that cause the auditor significant difficulty in applying necessary audit procedures.
» Findings that could result in a modification to the audit opinion or the inclusion of an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph in the auditor’s report.

4. Give some examples of circumstances in which it is appropriate to prepare audit documentation relating to the
use of professional judgment where the matters and judgments are significant. [MTP Oct-20]

Some examples of circumstances in which it is appropriate to prepare audit documentation relating to the use of
professional judgment incl.de, where the matters and judgments are significant:
v' The rationale for the auditor’s conclusion when a requirement provides that the auditor ‘shall consider’ certain
information or factors, and that consideration is significant in the context of the particular engagement.
v The basis for the auditor’s conclusion on the reasonableness of areas of subjective judgments (for example,
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates).
v The basis for the auditor’s conclusions about the authenticity of a document when further investigation (such
as making appropriate use of an expert or of confirmation procedures) is undertaken in response to conditions
identified during the audit that caused the auditor to believe that the document may not be authentic,

5. Discuss with reference to SA-230, factors affecting form, contents and extent of audit documentation.
[MTP Apr-19]
Form, Content and Extent of Audit Documentation: Working papers should record the audit plan, nature, timing
and extent of auditing procedures performed, and the conclusions drawn from the evidence obtained.
The form, content and extent of working papers depend on factors such as:
e The size and complexity of the entity.
e The nature of the audit procedures to be performed.
e The identified risks of material misstatement.
* The significance of the audit evidence obtained.
e The nature and extent of exceptions identified.
e The need to document a conclusion or the basis for a conclusion not readily determinable from the
documentation of the work performed or audit evidence obtained.

e The audit methodology and tools used.

6. CA R comes to know some very critical information with regards to the business cycle of an entity for which he
has issued the audit report, which become known to him as an auditor after the date of the auditor’s report but
which existed at that date and which, if known at that date, might have caused the financial statements to be
amended or the auditor to modify the opinion in the. auditor’s report. He wants to perform additional audit
procedures to satisfy himself. As an auditor what he shall document, on the matters arising after the date of audit

report? [RTP Nov-22)

As per SA 230, “Audit Documentation”, if, in exceptional circumstances, the auditor performs new or additional
audit procedures or draws new conclusions after the date of the auditor’s report, the auditor shall document:

(i) The circumstances encountered;
(i) The new or additional audit procedures performed, audit evidence obtained, and conclusions reached, and

their effect on the auditor’s report; and
(iii) When and by whom the resulting changes to audit documentation were made and reviewed.

7. TRS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, having completed the audit of Genuine Leathers Ltd has started the
assembling of final audit file. TRS & Associates has esta blished policies and procedures for the timely completion
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of the assembly of audit files. Explain the various aspects related to final audit file discussed in SA 230 Biving
specific reference to SQC-1, wherever required. [RTP May-22]

Auditor TRS & Associates, CAs shall assemble audit documentation in an audit file and complete administratiye

process of assembling final audit file on a timely basis after the date of the auditor’s report.

(i) sQC 1 “Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Review of Historical Financial Information, and othe,
Assurance and related services”, requires firms to establish policies and procedures for the timely completion of the

assembly of audit files.

(ii) An appropriate time limit within which to complete the assembly of the final audit file is ordinarily not more than
60 days after the date of the auditor’s report. The completion of the assembly of the final audit file after the date
of the auditor’s report is an administrative process that does not involve the performance of new audit procedures

ar the drawing of new conclusions.

(i) Changes may, however, be made to the audit documentation during the final assembly process, if they are

administrative in nature.

Examples of such changes include:

(i) Deleting or discarding superseded documentation.

(ii) Sorting, collating and cross-referencing working papers.

(iii) Signing off on completion checklists relating to the file assembly process.

(iv) Documenting audit evidence that the auditor has obtained, discussed and agreed with the relevant members of

the engagement team before the date of the auditor’s report.
(v) After the assembly of the final audit file has been completed, the auditor shall not delete or discard audit

documentation of any nature before the end of its retention period.
(vi) SQC 1 requires firms to establish policies and procedures for the retention of engagement documentation. The

retention period for audit engagements ordinarily is no shorter than seven years from the date of the auditor’s

report, or, if later, the date of the group auditor’s report.

8. Audit documentation provides evidence that the audit complies with SAs. However, it is neither necessary nor
practicable for the auditor to document every matter considered. Further, it is unnecessary for the auditor to
document separately compliance with matters for which compliance is demonstrated by documents included

within the audit file. Explain giving examples. [MTP Oct-21]
Audit documentation provides evidence that the audit complies with SAs.

However, it is neither necessary nor practicable for the auditor to document every matter considered, or
professional judgment made, in an audit. Further, it is unnecessary for the auditor to document separately (asina
checklist, for example) compliance with matters for which compliance is demonstrated by documents included

within the audit file.

For example:
v The existence of an adequately documented audit plan demonstrates that the auditor has planned the audit.

v The existence of a signed engagement letter in the audit file demonstrates that the auditor has agreed the
terms of the audit engagement with management, or where appropriate, those charged with governance-
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¥' An auditor’s report containing an appropriately qualified opinion demonstrates that the auditor has complied
with the requirement to express a qualified opinion under the circumstances specified in the SAs.

In relation to requirements that apply generally throughout the audit, there may be a number of ways in which
compliance with them may be demonstrated within the audit file:

* For example, there may be no single way in which the auditor’s professional skepticism is documented. But the
audit documentation may nevertheless provide evidence of the auditor’s exercise of professional skepticism in
accordance with SAs. Such evidence may include specific procedures performed to corroborate management’s
responses to the auditor’s inquiries.

» Similarly, that the engagement partner has taken responsibility for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit in compliance with the SAs may be evidenced in a number of ways within the audit documentation.
This may include documentation of the engagement partner’s timely involvement in aspects of the audit, such as
participation in the team discussion required by SA 315,

9. "Completion Memorandum" is helpful as part of the audit documentation. Explain. [May-19]

Completion Memorandum or Audit Documentation Summary.

The auditor may consider it helpful to prepare and retain as part of the audit documentation a summary (sometimes
known as a completion memorandum) that describes-

(i) the significant matters identified during the audit.

(ii) how they were addressed.

Such a summary may facilitate effective and efficient review and inspection of the audit documentation, particularly
for large and complex audits. Further, the preparation of such a summary may assist auditor’s consideration of the
significant matters. It may also help the auditor to consider whether there is any individual relevant SA objective
that the auditor cannot achieve that would prevent the auditor from achieving the overall objectives of the auditor.

10. While documenting the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed in case of audit of PQR Ltd,
explain the important matters its auditor should record. [RTP May-21]

In documenting the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed, the auditor of PQR Ltd shall record:
(i) The identifying characteristics of the specific items or matters tested.

(ii) Who performed the audit work and the date such work was completed; and

(iii) Who reviewed the audit work performed and the date and extent of such review.

11. While auditing the books of accounts of Very Careful Limited for the financial year 2020-21, a team member
of the auditors of Very Careful Limited was of the view that with regard to audit of the company, no relation exists
between Audit File and Audit Documentation. Explain the relationship between Audit File and Audit

Documentation. [SM]

Audit file may be defined as one or more folders or other storage media, in physical or electronic form, containing
the records that comprise the audit documentation for a specific engagement. The auditor shall assemble the audit
documentation in an audit file and complete the administrative process of assembling the final audit file on a timely

basis after the date of the auditor’s report.
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12. A director of Very Different Limited was of the view that Audit Documentation of a company is t
of that company. Comment on the contention of the director regarding the audit documentation of t
[sM]

he prnpe
he companv

Audit Documentation of a company is not the property of the company rather Audit Documentation is the Prope
of Auditor of that company. g
13. The working papers of the branch auditor are also the property of the Principal Auditor and the Managemen
of the Company, so they have right to access them. State the relevant SA and comment. [MTP Mar-21)

Ownership of Working Papers: As per SA 230 “Audit Documentation”, working papers are the Property of ,
auditor. He may at his discretion, make available portions or extracts from his working paper to his client, T
auditor should adopt reasonable procedures for custody and confidentiality of his working papers.

An auditor is not required to provide the management/ clients or other auditors’ access to his working papers. Maj
auditor of the company does not have right of access to the working papers of the branch auditor.

In the case of a company, the main auditor has to consider the report of the branch auditor and has a right to see
clarification and to visit the branch but cannot ask for the copy of working paper and therefore, the branch auditc
is under no compulsion to give photocopies of his working paper to the principal auditor.

From above, it is clear that working papers of the branch auditor are his property only and neither the Principal
auditor not management has right to access that. Therefore, statement given in the question is incorrect.

14. While auditing the books of accounts of Very Careful Limited for the financial year 2020-21, a team membe
of the auditors of Very Careful Limited was of the view that with regard to audit of the company, no relation exist
between Audit File and Audit Documentation. Explain the relationship between Audit File and Aud
Documentation. [SM]

Audit file may be defined as one or more folders or other storage media, in physical or electronic form, containin
the records that comprise the audit documentation for a specific engagement. The auditor shall assemble the aud
documentation in an audit file and complete the administrative process of assembling the final audit file on a time
basis after the date of the auditor’s report.
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Test your Understanding
1. Wtf-'a" & Tear Private Limited is a “start-up” engaged in providing holistic solutions to problem of paddy stubble
bu.rn.mg mainly catering to needs of farmers of North western India. Due to importance given by governments to
this issue, companies have entered in the market in past few years. Many of these companies have not been
successful and have gone bust. As an auditor of the company, can you spot the component of risks of material
misstatement involved in above?

it has been stated that many companies engaged in providing holistic solutions to problem of stubble burning have
not been successful. It shows that line of activity is inherently risky. Therefore, there is a greater possibility of
misstatements. The component of risks of material misstatement involved is “inherent risk.”

2. A company has devised a control that its inventory of perishable goods is stored in appropriate conditions- in
a controlled environment to prevent any damages to inventory. Responsibility is fixed on two persons to monitor
environment using sensors and to report on deviations. Identify the component of risks of material misstatement
involved as an auditor of the company.

The company has devised a control that its inventory of perishable goods is stored in appropriate conditions and
responsibility is fixed on two persons to monitor environment using sensors and to report on deviations. There is a
possibility that persons given responsibility do not perform their work and report deviations. The component of risks
of material misstatement is “control risk”.

3. Shree Foods Private Limited is engaged in manufacturing of garlic bread. The auditors of company have planned
audit procedures in respect of recognition of revenues of the company. Despite that, there is a possibility that
misstatements in revenue recognition are not identified by planned audit procedures. Which risk is being alluded

to?

There is a possibility that planned audit procedures may not achieve desired result and fail to detect misstatements
in revenue recognition. The risk alluded to it is “detection risk”.

4. Jo Jo Limited is planning to list on Bombay Stock Exchange next year. As an auditor of Jo Jo Limited, identify
any one reason of increased audit risk due to listing of the company next year.

ext year. There is a greater chance of misstatements in
d be a possibility of intentional manipulation of
there is increased audit risk

Jo Jo Limited is planning to list on Bombay Stock Exchange n
the financial statements due to planned listing next year. There coul

financial statements so that good response is received to proposed issue. Therefore,
sing inappropriate opinion by the auditor when financial statements are materially misstated.

i.e., risk of expres
6. CA Smriti is auditor of a company. As part of audit, she is going through company policies and practices
regarding employee recruitment, training, orientation and related matters. She seems to be very much interested
in finding out whether company hires best candidates from applicant pool. Identify what she is trying to do? How

gaining knowledge about this aspect is useful to her as an auditor?

ractices regarding employee recruitment, training, orientation and related

ates is part of understanding HR function of the company. It, in turn, helpsin
edge, she can better understand

The study of company policies and p

matters including hiring of best candid
understanding control environment of the company. By gaining such a know!

internal control of the company.
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7. During the audit of same company, CA Smriti is keen to find out whether there exists a p.roper System of
segregation of duties in the company. She wants to be sure that a person responsible for recurd:r.tg a transacrion
is different from the person authorising it. Discuss what she is trying to do and how its understanding is significany
to her as an auditor.

She is keen to find out whether there exists a proper system of segregation of duties in the company. She is gaining
an understanding of internal control of the company. In particular, she is understanding “control activities”. When
A person recording a transaction is different from one authorizing it, she gains confidence that there exists a system
for preventing misstatements. It helps her in gaining insight into the internal control system of the company,

8. Zomba Products Private limited is a small company. The control systems in the company are rudimentary. How,
You as an auditor of the company, would proceed to evaluate internal control of the company?

In @ small company, control systems are basic and not formalized. Therefore, auditor should proceed to evaluate
internal control using narrative record.

9. XYZ Ltd is engaged in the business and running several stores dealing in variety of items such asready made
garments for all seasons, shoes, gift items, watches etc. There are security tags on each and every item. Moreover,
inventory records are physically verified on monthly basis. Discuss the types of inherent, control and detection
risks as perceived by the auditor.

Inherent Risk: Because items may have been misappropriated by employees, therefore, risk to the auditor is that
inventory records would be inaccurate.

Control Risk: There is a security tag on each item displayed. Moreover, inventory records are physically verified on
monthly basis. Despite various controls being implemented at the stores, still collusion among employees may be
there and risk to auditor would again be that inventory records would be inaccurate.

Detection Risk: Auditor checks the efficiency and effectiveness of various control systems in place. He would do that
by making observation, inspection, enquiry, etc. In addition to these, the auditor would also employ sampling
techniques to check few sales transactions from beginning to end. However, despite all these procedures, the
auditor may not detect the items which have been stolen or misappropriated.

10. A Partnership Firm of Chartered Accountants HT and Associates was appointed to audit the books of accounts
of Wind and Ice Limited for the financial year 2020-21. There was a risk that HT and Associates would give an
inappropriate audit opinion if the financial statements of Wind and Ice Limited are materially misstated. State
the Risk mentioned in the question.

The risk mentioned in the question is known as Audit Risk, because risk that auditor of a company will give ar
inappropriate audit opinion if the financial statements of that company are materially misstated is known as Audi

Risk.
11. The auditor of ABC Textiles Ltd chalks out an audit plan without understanding the entity’s business. Since h¢

has carried out many audits of textile companies, there is no need to understand the nature of biiinges ofA!
Ltd. Advise the auditor how he should proceed.
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Obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control (referred to
hereafter as an “understanding of the entity”), is a continuous, dynamic process of gathering, updating and analysing
information throughout the audit. The auditor should proceed accordingly.

12. While auditing the books of accounts of Heavy Material Limited for the financial year 2022-23, ateam member
of the auditor of Heavy Material Limited showed no inclination towards understanding the business and the
business environment of the above mentioned company. Is the approach of team member of the auditor of Heavy
Material Limited correct or incorrect? Also give reason for your answer.

The approach of team member of the auditor of Heavy Material Limited is incorrect because understanding the
business and the business environment of company whose audit is to be conducted is very important, as it helps in
planning the audit and identifying areas requiring special attention during the course of audit of that company.

13. Prince Blankets is engaged in business of blankets. Its major portion of sales is taking place through internet.
Advise the auditor how he would proceed in this regard as to understanding the entity and its environment.

While understanding entity and its environment, internet sales is being perceived as risky area by the auditor and
thereby would be spending substantial time and extensive audit procedures on this particular area.

14, Auditor GR and Associates, appointed for audit of PNG Ltd, a manufacturing company engaged in
manufacturing of various food items, While planning an audit, the auditor does not think that it would be
necessary to understand internal controls. Advise the auditor in this regard,

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit. Although most controls relevant
to the audit are likely to relate to financial reporting. not all controls that relate to financial reporting are relevant
to the audit. It is a matter of the auditor’s professional judgment whether a control, individually or In combination
with others, is relevant to the audit.

15, The team member of the auditor of Simple and Easy Limited was of the view that understanding the internal
control of the company would not help them in any manner in relation to audit procedures to be applied while

conducting the audit.

The view of the team member of the auditor is incorrect because understanding the internal control of the company
would help the auditor and his team members in designing the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures to be
applied while conducting the audit of the company.

16. Mr. Y, one of the team member of the auditors of What and Where Limited was very keen in knowing whether
the internal control of the company would safeguard the company’s assets. Advise Mr. Y.

The review of internal controls will enable the auditors to know whether the controls adequately safeguard the

assets.

17. Mr. H, a team member of the auditor of There and Here Limited was of the view that evaluation of internal
control of the company would help in identifying the areas where internal control is weak. Advise

The review of internal controls will enable the auditor to know what are the areas where control is weak and where

it is excessive.
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18. In order to evaluate the Internal Control of Your and nfwt::-:,nal:io,ntro .
ethiodtSsconfine o IR UKD DS RIRTRE IR wers there was a discussion relating to those
answered by the employees of the company. After obtaining the ans he company for a clear picture. State the
answers between team member of the auditor and employees of the
method of evaluation of internal control as discussed above.
wn as Internal Control Questionnajre

i uestion is kno :
The method of evaluation of internal control used in the above q s I T,
because in questionnaire method, a number of questions relating to in

; obtained, there is a discussion
be answered by employees of that company and when answers to the questions are . ;companv g
: oyees ear
relating to those answers between team members of the auditors and employ

picture.

19. Healthy and Useful Limited is into small manufacturing as well as trading busmes;:tFor tl;t:hpurpose o
evaluating the internal control of Healthy and Useful Limited, a team member of the auditors of the company
used a method according to which the whole description of internal control that was operating in the said
company was to be recorded. Identify the method of evaluation of internal control as mentioned above,

The method of evaluation of internal control referred above is known as Narrative Record because in Narrative
Record method, a whole description of internal control operating in an entity is recorded. Narrative Record method
is also appropriate for small manufacturing as well as trading business as is mentioned in the question above case,

Correct/Incorrect
(i) Control risk is the susceptibility of an account balance or class of transactions to misstatement that could be
material either individually or, when aggregated with misstatements in other balances or classes, assuming that
there were no related internal controls,

Incorrect: Inherent risk is the susceptibility of an account balance or class of transactions to misstatement that could

be material either individually or, when ageregated with misstatements in other balances or classes, assuming that
there were no related internal controls.

Incorrect: Understanding the Internal Contro

ey of D g
because it will assist the auditor ang his team to Different Limite

company and what audit procedures woul

d will hel

% Nderstang asto hoy Much

€ appropriate to be Used ¢
u

. e
P in developing an Audit Pfogram':e
. they can rely on internal control of !
'INg the coyrge of audit
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Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs Questions
1. The assessment of risks is a matter of professional judgment. Explain stating clearly what is not included in
Audit Risk? [MTP Aug-18 + May-23]

Assessment of Risks - Matter of Professional Judgement
The assessment of risks is based on audit procedures to obtain information necessary for that purpose and evidence
obtained throughout the audit. The assessment of risks is a matter of professional judgment, rather than a matter

capable of precise measurement.

What is not included in Audit Risk ?
(i) Audit risk does not include the risk that the auditor might express an opinion that the financial statements are

materially misstated when they are not. This risk is ordinarily insignificant.

(ii) Further, audit risk is a technical term related to the process of auditing; it does not refer to the auditor’s business
risks such as loss from litigation, adverse publicity, or other events arising in connection with the audit of financial

statements.

2. The risks of material misstatement may exist at the financial statement level and assertion level. Explain the
two levels. [RTP Nov-20]

The risks of material misstatement may exist at two levels:

(i) The overall financial statement level- Risks of material misstatement at the overall financial statement level refer
to risks of material misstatement that relate pervasively to the financial statements as a whole and potentially affect

many assertions,

(ii) The assertion level for classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures-Risks of material misstatement
at the assertion level are assessed in order to determine the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures
necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence. This evidence enables the auditor to express an opinion
on the financial statements at an acceptably low level of audit risk.

3. Obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control, is a
continuous, dynamic process of gathering, updating and analysing information throughout the audit. Analyse and

explain giving examples. [RTP May-20] OR

Obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment establishes a frame of reference within which the

auditor plans the audit and exercises professional judgment throughout the audit. Explain by giving examples.
[RTP Nov-23]

Obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control, is a continuous,
dynamic process of gathering, updating and analysing information throughout the audit.

The understanding establishes a frame of reference within which the auditor plans the audit and exercises
professional judgment throughout the audit, for example, when:

e Assessing risks of material misstatement of the financial statements;

e Determining materiality in accordance with SA 320;

e Considering the appropriateness of the selection and application of accounting policies;
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4. Significant risks often relate to significant non- mmine.transadmns Or:dj::agtn::nta; o No"‘mutine
transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or.natu re: 2 f El'e- ore occur infrequentl\r
Judgmental matters may include the development of acco_untmg estimates for wrrlch there s significa l
measurement uncertainty. In context of significant risk, explain the factors to be considereq by the it |,
exercising judgment as to which risks are significant risks. [RTP Nov-21 + May-23]

As part of the risk assessment, the auditor shall determine whether any of the risks identified are, in the auditopy
judgment, a significant risk. In exercising this judgment, the auditor shall exclude the effects of identifieq COontro),

related to the risk.

In exercising judgment as to which risks are significant risks, the auditor shall consider at least the following;

(a) Whether the risk is a risk of fraud;

(b) Whether the risk is related to recent significant economic, accounting, or other developments like changes in
regulatory environment, etc., and, therefore, requires specific attention:;

(c) The complexity of tra nsactions;

(d) Whether the risk involves significant transactions with related parties;

(e) The degree of subjectivity in the measurement of financial information related to the risk, especially those
Measurements involving a wide range of measurement uncertainty; and

(f) Whether the risk involves significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the entity,
or that otherwise appear to be unusual.

such as complex calculations. Also, risks of materia] misstatement may be greater for significant judgmental
matters that require the development of accounting estimates, arising from matters such as accounting principles
for accounting estimates may be subject to differing interpretation etc, Explain in detail. [MTP Nov-23] OR

Auditor or Sunshine Ltd. Is of the view that due to greater management intervention to specify accounting
treatment, the risk of material misstatement is great

routine transactions. [Dec-21 + RTP Nov-21 + SM)

the following:
% oreater T Intervention to Specify the accounting treat

b. Greater manual intervention for data collection ang Processin ment.
¢. Complex calculations or accounting Principles, E-

d. The nature of non-routine transactions,

Which ma e e effectivé
controls over the risks. Y make jt difficult for the entity to implement
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Risks of material misstatement- Greater for Significant Judgmental Matters

Risks of material misstatement may be greater for significant judgmental matters that require the development of

accounting estimates, arising from matters such as the following:

o Accounting principles for accounting estimates or revenue recognition may be subject to differing
interpretation.

o Required judgment may be subjective or complex, or require assumptions about the effects of future events,
for example, judgment about fair value.

Keeping in view above, view of Auditor of Sunshine Ltd is correct.

6. Internal control over safeguarding of assets against unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition may include
controls relating to both financial reporting and operations objectives. Explain stating clearly the objectives of
Internal Control. [RTP May-20]

Objectives of Internal Control are :

(i) transactions are executed in accordance with managements general or specific authorization;

(ii) alltransactions are promptly recorded in the correctamount in the appropriate accounts and in the accounting
period in which executed so as to permit preparation of financial information within a framework of recognized
accdunting policies and practices and relevant statutory requirements, if any, and to maintain accountability
for assets;

(iii) assets are safeguarded from unauthorised access, use or disposition; and

(iv) the recorded assets are compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is
taken with regard to any differences.

7. Briefly discuss the limitations of Internal Control. [MTP Apr-19]

Limitations of Internal Control:
(i) Internal control can provide only reasonable assurance: Internal control, no matter how effective, can provide

an entity with only reasonable assurance about achieving the entity’s financial reporting objectives. The likelihood
of their achievement is affected by inherent limitations of internal control.

(ii) Human judgment in decision-making: Realities that human judgment in decision-making can be faulty and that
breakdowns in internal control can occur because of human error.

(iii) Lack of understanding the purpose: Equally, the operation of a control may not be effective, such as where
information produced for the purposes of internal control (for example, an exception report) is not effectively used
because the individual responsible for reviewing the information does not understand its purpose or fails to take

appropriate action.

(iv) Collusion among People: Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the collusion of two or more people or
inappropriate management override of internal control. For example, management may enter into side agreements
with customers that alter the terms and conditions of the entity’s standard sales contracts, which may result in
improper revenue recognition. Also, edit checks in a software program that are designed to identify and report
transactions that exceed specified credit limits may be overridden or disabled.
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d implementing controls, management may make
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!Udgments on the nature and extent of the controls it chooses to implement, and "
it chooses to assume.

e e which segregation of
(vi) Limitations in case of Small Entities: Smaller entities often have fewer employees due o be ablegto exercis
duties is not practicable. However, in a small owner-managed entity, the owner-manager A ¢
more effective oversight than in a larger entity. This oversight may compensate for

the generally more limited opportunities for segregation of duties.

On the other hand, the owner-manager may be more able to override controls because the 5Y?tem of lnternlal
control is less structured. This is taken into account by the auditor when identifying the risks of material

misstatement due to fraud.

8. The division of internal control into five components provides a useful framework for auditors to consider how
different aspects of an entity's internal control may affect the audit. Mention those components of internal

control. [MTP Oct-21/Mar-23]

Division of Internal Control into Components: The division of internal control into the following five components
provides a useful framework for auditors to consider how different aspects of an entity’s internal control may affect
the audit:

(i) The control environment;

(i) The entity’s risk assessment process;

(iii) Monitoring of controls.

(iv) Control activities; and

(v) The information system, including the related business processes, relevant to financial reporting, and

communication;

9. “A satisfactory control environment is not an absolute deterrent to fraud although it may help reduce the risk

of fraud.” Explain. [RTP May-18]

Satisfactory Control Environment — not an absolute deterrent to fraud: Existence of a satisfactory control
environment can be a positive factor when auditor assesses risks of material misstatement.

However, although it may help reduce risk of fraud, a satisfactory control environment is not an absolute deterrent
to fraud. Conversely, deficiencies in control environment may undermine effectiveness of controls, in particular in
relation to fraud. For example, management’s failure to commit sufficient resources to address IT security risks may
adversely affect internal control by allowing improper changes to be made to computer programs or to data, or
unauthorized transactions to be processed. As explained in SA 330, control environment also influences the nature,
timing, and extent of the auditor’s further procedures.

Control environment in itself does not prevent, or detect and correct, a materia] misstatement. It may, however,
- . . ]

influence the auditor’s evaluation of the effectiveness of other controls (for example '
L

, - the monitoring of controls
and the operation of specific control activities) and thereby, the auditor’s assessme ¢

t nt of the risks of material
misstatement.

10. The auditor of XYZ Ltd, engaged in FMCG (Fast Moving Consumable G
control environment. As part of obtaining this understanding, the augitor
(i) Management has created and maintained a culture of honesty and ethi

00ds) obtains an understanding of the
evaluates whether:
cal behavior; and
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(ii) The strengths in the control environment elements collectively provide an appropriate foundation for the
other components of internal control,

Advise what is included in control environment. Also explain the elements of control environment.
[Nov-22 + RTP Nov-19]

Control Environment — Component of Internal Control: The auditor shall obtain an understanding of the control
environment. As part of obtaining this understanding, the auditor shall evaluate whether:

(i) Management hds created and maintained a culture of honesty and ethical behavior; and

(ii) The strengths in the control environment elements collectively provide an appropriate foundation for the other
components of internal control.

What is included in Control Environment?

The control environment includes:

(i) the governance and management functions and

(ii) the attitudes, awareness, and actions of those charged with governance and management.

(iii) The control environment sets the tone of an organization, influencing the control consciousness of its people.

Elements of the Control Environment: Elements of the control environment that may be relevant when obtaining
an understanding of the control environment include the following:

(a) Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values — These are essential elements that influence
the effectiveness of the design, administration and menitoring of controls.

(b) Commitment to competence — Matters such as management’s consideration of the competence levels for
particular jobs and how those levels translate into requisite skills and knowledge.

(c) Participation by those charged with governance — Attributes of those charged with governance such as:
e Their independence from management.
* Their experience and stature.
e The extent of their involvement and the information they receive, and the scrutiny of activities.
* The appropriateness of their actions, including the degree to which difficult questions are raised and pursued
with management, and their interaction with internal and external auditors.

(d) Management’s philosophy and operating style — Characteristics such as management’s:
» Approach to taking and managing business risks.

e Attitudes and actions toward financial reporting.
e  Attitudes toward information processing and accounting functions and personnel.

(e) Organisational structure — The framework within which an entity’s activities for achieving its objectives are

planned, executed, controlled, and reviewed.

(f) Assignment of authority and responsibility - Matters such as how authority and responsibility for operating
activities are assigned and how reporting relationships and authorisation hierarchies are established.

(g) Human resource policies and practices - Policles and practices that relate to, for example, recruitment,

orientation, training, evaluation, counselling, promotion, compensation, and remedial actions.
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1_1' Define Monitoring of Controls and in respect of monitoring of controls, ansWer
(i) How monitoring of controls would be helpful in assessing the effectiveness P

(") How can management accomplish monitoring of controls?
(iii) What is included in the Management’s monitoring activities? [RTP Nov-22]

the following questions:
ntrols?

: ; internal con
Monitoring of contrals Defi ned: Monitoring of controls is a process to assess the effectiveness of in trol

performance over time. ;
. Helps in assessing the effectiveness of controls on a timely basis: It involves assessing S fRCant o
controls on a timely basis and taking necessary remedial actions.

ii.  Management accomplishes through ongoing activities, separate evaluations etc.
accomplishes monitoring of controls through ongoing activities, separate evaluations, or a combination of
the two. Ongoing monitoring activities are often built into the normal recurring activities of an entity and
include regular management and supervisory activities.

iii. Management’s monitoring activities may include using information from communications from external
parties such as customer complaints and regulator comments that may indicate problems or highlight areas
in need of improvement

Management

12. Explain the matters which should be included for factors relevant to the auditors' judgement about whether
a control is relevant to the audit. [RTP Nov-22 + MTP May-22]

Controls Relevant to the Audit: Factors relevant to the auditor’s judgment about whether a control, individually or
in combination with others, is relevant to the audit may include such matters as the following:
(i) Materiality.
(ii) The significance of the related risk.
(iii) The size of the entity.
(iv) The nature of the entity’s business, including its organisation and ownership characteristics.
(v) The diversity and complexity of the entity’s operations.
(vi) Applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
(vii) The circumstances and the applicable component of internal control.
(viii) The nature and complexity of the systems that are part of the entity’s internal control, including the use of
service organisations.
(ix) Whether, and how, a specific control, individually or in combination with others, prevents, or detects and
corrects, material misstatement.

13. Auditor GR and Associates have been appointed to conduct audit of PNG Ltd, a I'nanufacturing company

engaged in manufacturing of various food items. While planning an audit, the auditors do not think that it would
be necessary to understand internal controls. Advise the auditor in this regard ex "

plaining clear
understanding the internal control. [RTP May-21] & ly the benefits of

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
Benefits of Understanding the Internal Control

An understanding of internal control assists the auditor in:

(i) identifying types of potential misstatements;
(ii) identifying factors that affect the risks of material misstatement, ang
(iii) designing the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures,
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14, The review of internal controls will enable the auditor to know the areas where control is weak. Explain stating
clearly the benefits of evaluation of internal control to the auditor. [RTP Nov-22]

genefits of Evaluation of Internal Control to the Auditor
The review of internal controls will enable the auditor to know:

(i) whether errors and frauds are likely to be located in the ordinary course of operations of the business;

(i) whetheran adequate internal control system is in use and operating as planned by the management;

(iii) whether an effective internal auditing department is operating;

(iv) whether any administrative control has a bearing on his work (for example, if the control over worker
recruitment and enrolment is weak, there is a likelihood of dummy names being included in the wages sheet
and this is relevant for the auditor);

(v) whether the controls adequately safeguard the assets;

(vi) how far and how adequately the management is discharging its function in so far as correct recording of -
transactions is concerned;

(vii) how reliable the reports, records and the certificates to the management can be;

(viii) the extent and the depth of the examination that he needs to carry out in the different areas of accounting;

(ix) what would be appropriate audit technique and the audit procedure in the given circumstances;

(x) what are the areas where control is weak and where it is excessive; and

(xi) whether some worthwhile suggestions can be given to improve the control system.

15. The auditor shall obtain an understanding of the information system, including the related business processes,
relevant to financial reporting, including the classes of transactions in the entity’s operations that are significant
to the financial statements, controls surrounding journal entries etc. Explain the other considerations in this
regard. [MTP May-22]

The auditor shall obtain an understanding of the information system, including the related business processes,
relevant to financial reporting, including the following are as under:
a. The classes of transactions in the entity’s operations that are significant to the financial statements;
b. The procedures by which those transactions are initiated, recorded, processed, corrected as necessary,
transferred to the general ledger and reported in the financial statements;
c. The related accounting records, supporting information and specific accounts in the financial statements that

are used to initiate, record, process and report transactions;
How the information system captures events and conditions that are significant to the financial statements;
The financial reporting process used to prepare the entity’s financial statements;

f.  Controls surrounding journal entries.

16. ABC Ltd. has many divisions and branches across the country. They 3 have an internal control system which is
well established and maintained by the management on a regular basis. Explain the meaning of internal control
as per SA-315 and also state the benefits of understanding the internal controls of a company. [Nov-22]

As per SA-315, “Identifying and Assessing the Risk of Material Misstatement Through Understanding the Entity
and its Environment”, the internal control may be defined as “the process designed, implemented and maintained
by those charged with governance, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance about the
achievement of an entity’s objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of

operations, safeguarding of assets, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Benefits of Understanding the Internal Control
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A.m.undemta"di“g of internal control assists the auditor in:

{') identifying types of potential misstatements;

(ii) identifying factors that affect the risks of material misstatement,
(iii) designing the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.

and

onsider in determining whether it is appropriate to ygq

17. Discuss the various points which auditor needs to ¢ ;
s audit, and if so, the length of the

audit evidence about operating effectiveness of controls obtained in previou
time period that may elapse before retesting a control. [MTP Apr-23 + Nov-19]

operating effectiveness of contros

In determining whether it is appropriate to use audit evidence about the
elapse before retesting a control, the

obtained in previous audits, and, if so, the length of the time period that may
auditor shall consider the following:

i) The effectiveness of other elements of internal control

monitoring of controls, and the entity's risk assessment process

ii) The risks arising from the characteristics of the control, including w

iii) The effectiveness of general IT-controls;

iv) The effectiveness of the control and its application by the entity,
extent of deviations in the application of the control noted in previous audits, and whether there have been
personnel changes that significantly affects the application of the control
vi) Whether the lack of a change in a particular control poses a risk due to changing circumstances; and
vii) The risks of material misstatement and the extent of reliance on the control.

. including the control environment, the entity's
hether it is manual or automated

including the nature and

v)
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Test your Understanding

1. A Chartered accountant during course of audit of a company finds that cash is not deposited into bank
frequently although concerned staff of company was required to do so. Further, the official responsible for
ensuring performance of above function, has also not paid any attention to it. Discuss what does it represent from
auditor’s perspective.

Cash is not deposited into bank frequently, although, concerned staff of company was required to do so. Further,
the official responsible for ensuring performance of above function, has also not paid any attention to it. It means
that control is not working as planned. It would not be able to prevent misstatement and very purpose of control is
defeated. It represents a “control deficiency”.

2. On perusing financial statements of Jo Jo Limited put up for audit, it is observed by the auditor that current
ratio has improved from 1.20:1 (in preceding year) to 1.75:1 (in current year). Identify what kind of risk
assessment procedures are being performed by auditor? Has it any relation with listing of the company next year
on Bombay Stock Exchange?

Itis noticed by the auditor that current ratio has improved from 1.20:1 (in preceding year) to 1.75:1 (in current year).
The auditor is using “analytical procedures” as risk assessment procedures. Current ratio has improved from
previous year. There could be a possibility of misstatement in current assets and current liabilities. It is possible that
improvement in current ratio is artificial due to misstatements and has been done to secure good response to the
proposed issue of company next year.

CASE STUDY-1

CA Paritosh is auditor of a company. The financial statements of the company have just been received for audit.

Following issues have been flagged pertaining to the financial statements of the company for purpose of risk

assessment: -

(i) The revenue of company has fallen from " 50 crore in last year to * 5 crore in current year (for which financial
statements have been received for audit) due to lack of demand in the market for company’s products.

(ii) Due to advent of new products in the market, company’s products are fast becoming outdated.

(iii) A large customer having an outstanding balance of * 5 crore has failed to pay to the company despite efforts
made by the company.

(iv) Inventory holding period has increased from 30 days in last year to 90 days.

(v) The company also gets carried out job operations from third parties.

Therefore, parts of inventories are lying with third parties.

Based on above, answer the following guestions: -

1. Regarding drastic fall in revenue of the company, which of the following is an audit risk?

(a) Fallin revenue would result in fall of profits for the company.

(b) Drastic fall in revenue may imply that company is not able to carry out its operations in foreseeable future due
to lack of demand in the market for company’s products. There is a risk that going concern disclosure is omitted

to be made in financial statements.
(c) The company can explore some new line of activity, if demand of its products is falling.

(d) Fall in revenue would mean lower tax liabilities for the company.
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h of the following is 3
2. The Company's products are getﬂng DutdatEd in the markE[:. WI;I:kEt B n audlt r]sk?
inthe m -
(@) The company should devise strategies to sell pl’O.dUC"S
(b) Inventories may be understated in such a scenario.

(¢) Inventories may be overstated in such a scenari?. S—
(d) The ctompany should launch a 1+1 free offer for its cus

3. Alarge customer has failed to pay to the company. Identify ?udit "f':" from below:
(a) Receivables may be misstated if irrecoverable debt is not writ.ten o f.f

(b) Receivables may be overstated if irrecoverable debt is not written off. |

(c) Writing off irrecoverable debt would impact profits of company adversely.

(d) Failure to recover outstanding debt would impact cash flows of company adversely,

4. Identify audit risk involved when inventory holding period has increased from 30 days to 90 days,
(a) There is a risk of overstatement of inventories.

(b) There is a risk relating to existence of inventories.

(c) There is a risk that slow movement of stocks would increase tax liability when GST rates are increaseq,
(d) There is a risk relating to holding and storage cost of inventories.

5. Part of inventories are lying with third parties. Identify audit risk involved.
(a) There is a risk that third parties do not manufacture according to specifications of the company,
(b) There is a risk that by getting job work done from third parties, company is increasing its costs.

(c) There is a risk that sufficient and appropriate evidence would not be available in respect of quantity and
condition of inventories lying with third parties.

(d) There is a risk that sufficient and appropriate evidence would not be available for quality control in respectol

inventories lying with third parties.

1. (b) 2. (c) 3. (b) 4. (a) 5. (c)

CASE STUDY-2

CA Piyush is understanding internal controls as part of audit exercise of a company.

It is a new client. He has studied controls in place
gaining an understanding of such controls, he has
operating as intended by the management,

In various operational areas of the company. After studying
- re
decided to test few controls to actually see whether thesed

Till now, he has studied controls over inventories
Nature of Control

Control description

¥ & = _________._--""/
Control over Tnventorfes |nVE|’it0rles of the Company |ving at each location should be insured. =
Control over inventories There should pe inventory counts on a regular basis for each location of t

company,

Bank reconcifian //
, Nciliations are to be Performed at regular inteNaL/
Based on above, answer the following Qquestions: -

Control over Bank operations

escribes teg orie
(a) Inspect insurance policies to verify that INventorieg at et of Contrp| regarding insurance of |nveﬂt}an. suff
insured and period of validity of policy are ot relevang ach |0t3tl0|'l are insured for fire and buré
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(b) Inspect insurance policies to verify that inventories at each location are comprehensively insured. Ensure
adequacy of sum insured by comparing it with value of inventories. Also ensure policy period has not expired.

(c) Inspect insurance policies to verify that inventories at each location are comprehensively insured. Ensure policy
period has not expired.

(d) Inspect insurance policies to verify that inventories at each location are insured for fire and burglary. Ensure
policy period has not expired.

2. Which of the following most appropriately describes test of control regarding inventory counts?
(a) Obtain detail of inventory counting procedure and ensure that inventory count is carried out according to laid
down procedure.

(b) Obtain detail of inventory counting procedure and ensure that inventory count is carried out according to laid
down procedure. Attend inventory count.
(c) Obtain detail of inventory counting procedure and ensure that inventory count is carried out according to laid
down procedure. Attend inventory count and perform test count.
(d) Attend inventory count and perform test count.

3. While testing control over bank reconciliations, it has been noticed that bank reconciliations are not being
performed at regular intervals. Identify the most appropriate description of “control deficiency” in this regard: -

(a) Bank reconciliations are not being performed regularly as concerned staff is overburdened.

(b) Bank reconciliations are not being performed regularly as concerned staff is overburdened. It could result in
errors.

(c) Bank reconciliations are not being performed regularly as concerned staff is overburdened. It could result in
errors. It may result in misstatement of cash and bank balance in financial statements.

(d) Bank reconciliations are not being performed regularly as concerned staff is overburdened. These should be
performed monthly and reviewed by senior accountant.

4. Since the company is a new client, which of the following statements is most appropriate?
(a) There is reduced detection risk.
'(b) There is increased detection risk.
(c) There is no effect on detection risk.
(d) Detection risk should be increased to lower audit risk.

5. Which of the following statements is most appropriate regarding auditor’s response to assessed risk of a new
client?
(a) More substantive procedures would require to be performed.
(b) Less substantive procedures would require to be performed.
(c) There is no effect on substantive procedures.
(d) There is no effect on substantive procedures as audit risk is low.

1. (b) 2. (c) 3. (c) 4. (b) 5. (a)

Correct/Incorrect
(i) Tests of control are performed to obtain audit evidence about the effectiveness of Internal Controls Systems.
Correct: Tests of Control are performed to obtain audit evidence about the effectiveness of: .

a. the design of the accounting and internal control systems that is whether, they are suitably designed
to prevent or detect or correct material misstatements and
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b. the operation of the internal controls throughout the period.

(1) Information obtained by performing risk assessment procedures shall not be used by the auditor as audit
evidence to support assessments of the risks of material misstatement.

Incorrect: Information obtained by performing risk assessment procedures and related activities may be used by
the auditor as audit evidence to support assessments of the risks of material misstaternent.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs Questions
1. For the purpose of Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall identify risks
throughout the process of obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment. Explain in detail along

with other relevant points. [RTP Nov-20]

For the purpose of Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall:

a. Identify risks throughout the process of obtaining an understanding of the eéntity and its environment, including
relevant controls that relate to the risks, and by considering the classes of transactions, account balances, and
disclosures in the financial statements;

b, Assess the identified risks, and evaluate whether they relate more pervasively to the financial statements as a
whole and potentially affect many assertions;

c. Relate the identified risks to what can go wrong at the assertion level, taking account of relevant controls that
the auditor intends to test; and

d. Consider the likelihood of misstatement, including the possibility of multiple misstatements, and whether the
potential misstatement is of a magnitude that could result in a material misstatement.

2. Discuss what is included in risk assessment procedures to obtain audit evidence about the design and
implementation of relevant controls. [RTP May-18]

Risk assessment procedures to obtain audit evidence about the design and implementation of relevant controls
may include-

¢ Inguiring of entity personnel.

* Observing the application of specific controls.

¢ Inspecting documents and reports,

* Tracing transactions through the information system relevant to financial reporting.

3. Much of the information obtained by the auditor’s inquiries is obtained from management and those
responsible for financial reporting. However, the auditor may also obtain information, or a different perspective
in identifying risks of material misstatement, through inquiries of others within the entity and other employees
with different levels of authority.

Explain with the help of examples, [RTP Nov-20]

Inquiries of Management and Others Within the Entity: Much of the information obtained by the auditor’s inquiries
is obtained from management and those responsible for financial reporting. However, the auditor may also obtaif
information, or a different perspective in identifying risks of material misstatement, through inquiries of others
within the entity and other employees with different levels of authority.

Examples
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/ Inquiries directed towards those charged with

: : governance may help the auditor understand the environment
in which the financial statements are prepared

~ Inquiries directed toward internal audit Personnel may provide information about internal audit procedures
performed during the year relating to the design and effectiveness of the entity’s internal control and whether
management has satisfactorily responded to findings from those procedures.

~ Inquiries of employees involved in initiating,

processing or recording complex or unusual transactions may help
the auditor to evaluate the appropriateness

of the selection and application of certain accounting policies.
v Inquiries directed toward in-house legal counsel may provide information about such matters as litigation,
compliance with laws and regulations, knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity, warranties,

post- sales obligations, arrangements (such as joint ventures) with business partners and the meaning of
contract terms.

v Inquiries directed towards marketing or sales personnel may provide information about changes in the entity’s
marketing strategies, sales trends, or contractual arrangements with its customers.

v Inquiries directed to the risk management function (or those performing such roles) may provide information
about operational and regulatory risks that may affect financial reporting.

v Inguiries directed to information systems personnel may provide information about system changes, system
or control failures, or other information system- related risks.

4. Analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures may identify aspects of the entity of which the
auditor was unaware and may assist in assessing the risks of material misstatement in order to provide a basis
for designing and implementing responses to the assessed risks. Explain in detail. [RTP Nov-20/23]

Analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures may identify aspects of the entity of which the
auditor was unaware and may assist in assessing the risks of material misstatement in order to provide a basis for
designing and implementing responses to the assessed risks.

Analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures may include both financial and non-financial
information, for example, the relationship between sales and square footage of selling space or volume of goods
sold.

Analytical procedures may help identify the existence of unusual transactions or events, and amounts, ratios, and
trends that might indicate matters that have audit implications. Unusual or unexpected relationships that are
identified may assist the auditor in identifying risks of material misstatement, especially risks of material

misstatement due to fraud.

HOWever, when such analytical procedures use data aggregated at a high level (which may be the situation with
analytical procedures performed as risk assessment procedures), the results of those analytical procedures only
Provide a broad Initial indication about whether a material misstatement may exist.

Accordinglv, in such cases, consideration of other Information that has been gathered when identifying the risks
of materia| misstatement together with the results of such analytical procedures may assist the auditor in

“nderstanding and evaluating the results of the analytical procedures.

S.ca Lis] dures of Effluent Limited which include observatio
nth sk Assessment Proce n
€ process of finalizing his RI ers. Discuss few examples of audit procedures

and Inspecti BRI
on th uiries of manageme
at may support inq [July-21]

w I
hleh inclue observation or Inspection of the entity's operations.

C
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Observation and inspection may support inquiries of management and others, and may also provide information
about the entity and its environment.

Examples of audit procedures which include observation or inspection of the entity’s operations are:

a. Documents (such as business plans and strategies), records, and Internal control manuals.

b. Reports prepared by management (such as quarterly management reports and interim financial statements)
and those charged with governance (such as minutes of board of director’s meetings)

c. The entity’s premises and plant facilities.

6. A higher level of assurance may be sought about the operating effectiveness of controls when the approach
adopted consists primarily of tests of controls. Explain and also state when will the auditor design and perform
tests of controls to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the operating effectiveness of relevant
controls. [RTP Nov-20]

Test of controls may be defined as an audit procedure designed to evaluate the operating effectiveness of controls
in preventing, or detecting and correcting, material misstatements at the assertion level.

The auditor shall design and perform tests of controls to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the
operating effectiveness of relevant controls when:

(a) The auditor’s assessment of risks of material misstatement at the assertion level includes an expectation that
the controls are operating effectively (i.e., the auditor intends to rely on the operating effectiveness of controls in
determining the nature, timing and extent of substantive procedures); or

(b) Substantive procedures alone cannot provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence at the assertion level.

A higher level of assurance may be sought about the operating effectiveness of controls when the approach adopted
consists primarily of tests of controls, in particular where it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures.

7. When more persuasive audit evidence is needed regarding the effectiveness of a control, it may be appropriate
to increase the extent of testing of the control as well as the degree of reliance on controls. Discuss the matters
the auditor may consider in determining the extent of test of controls. [RTP Nov-20]

When more persuasive audit evidence is needed regarding the effectiveness of a control, it may be appropriate t°
increase the extent of testing of the control as well as the degree of reliance on controls.

Matters the auditor may consider in determining the extent of test of controls include the following:

1. The frequency of the performance of the control by the entity during the period.,

2, The length of time during the audit period that the auditor is relying on the operating effectiveness of the control-
3. The expected rate of deviation from a control.

4. The relevance and reliability of the audit evidence to be obtained regarding the operating effectiveness of thé
control at the assertion level.

5. The extent to which audit evidence Is obtained from tests of other controls related to the assertion.
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8. Discuss the various points which auditor needs to consider in determining whether it is appropriate to use audit
evidence about operating effectiveness of controls obtained in previous audit, and if so, the length of the time
period that may elapse before retesting a control. [MTP Apr-23 + Nov-19]

In determining whether it is appropriate to use audit evidence about the operating effectiveness of controls
obtained in previous audits, and, if so, the length of the time period that may elapse before retesting a control, the
auditor shall consider the following:
i) The effectiveness of other elements of internal control, including the control environment, the entity's
monitoring of controls, and the entity's risk assessment process
i) The risks arising from the characteristics of the control, including whether it is manual or automated
iii) The effectiveness of general IT-controls;
iv) The effectiveness of the control and its application by the entity, including the nature and
v) extent of deviations in the application of the control noted in previous audits, and whether there have been
personnel changes that significantly affects the application of the control
vi) Whether the lack of a change in a particular control poses a risk due to changing circumstances; and
vii) The risks of material misstatement and the extent of reliance on the control.
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Test your Understanding :
1. CA A. Raja is auditor of Build Well Forgings Private Limited having a revenue of " 25 :r‘ore. The Comp.any has
been sanctioned a term loan of * 50 lacs from a bank. However, as at end of the year, only * 1 lac was availed dye
to delay in procurement of asset. The financial statements of the company do not disclose nature of se.-curiw
against which loan has been taken. Schedule Il of Companies Act,2013 requires disclosure in this respect. Discuss,

whether, non-disclosure of nature of security is material for auditor.

If there is any statutory requirement of disclosure, it is to be considered material. Schedule Il mandates disclosure
of nature of security in relation to loan. The amount involved is irrelevant.

2. One of the team members of auditors of Highly Capable Limited was of the view that Materiality and Audit Risk
are only considered at planning stage of an audit. Comment as an auditor.

The concept of materiality is applied by the auditor both in planning and performing the audit, and in evaluating
the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial
statements and in forming the opinion in the auditor’s report.

MCcQ
Which of the following is true regarding materiality?
(a) It is unaffected by nature of an item.
(b) It is unaffected by requirements of law or regulations.
(c) It is not a matter of professional judgment.
(d) It is not always a matter of relative size.

Correct/Incorrect
1. Materiality is not a matter of size. [May-22 + MTP Apr-23]

Incorrect: Financial statements should disclose all ‘material items’, i.e., the items the knowledge of which might
influence the decisions of the user of the financial statement. Materiality is not always a matter of relative size. For
example -a small amount lost by fraudulent practices of certain employees can indicate a serious flaw in the
enterprise’s internal control system requiring immediate attention to avoid greater losses in future. In certain cases,
quantitative limits of materiality are specified.

2. Materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if applicable, the materiality level or levels for
particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures) does not need any revision. [SM]

Incorrect: Materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if applicable, the materiality level or levels for
particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures) may need to be revised as a result of a change in
circumstances that occurred during the audit (for example, a decision to dispose of a major part of the entity’s

business), new information, or a change in the auditor’s understanding of the entity and its operations as a result of
performing further audit procedures.

3. When Profit before tax from continuing operations Is non-volatile, other benchmarks will be appropriate.
[Dec-le
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|ncorrect: profit before tax from continuing operations is oft

- O , en used for profit-oriented entities. When profit before
{ax from continuing operations is volatile, other benchmark

$ may be more appropriate, such as gross profit or total
revenues.

4, The concept of materiality is an important and relevant consideration for the auditor in financial statement.

[MTP Oct-19]
Process of accounting. It covers all the stages from
Itis very important for the auditor who has constantly to judge whether
re that a material item is disclosed separately and distinctly.

correct: The concept of materiality is fundamental to the
recording to classification and presentation.
a particular item is material or not and ensu

s.when establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor need not determine materiality for the financial
statements as a whole. [RTP May-21]

Incorrect : When establishing the overall audit strategy, the auditor shall determine materiality for the financial
statements as a whole.

6. There is direct relationship between materiality and the degree of audit risk.

Incorrect: There is an inverse relationship between materiality and the degree of audit risk. The higher the
materiality level, the lower the audit risk and vice versa. For example, the risk that a particular account balance or

class of transactions could be misstated by an extremely large amount might be very low but the risk that it could
be misstated by an extremely small amount might be very high.

7. Determining materiality involves the exercise of professional judgement. [Jan-21]

Correct: Determining materiality involves the exercise of professional judgment. A percentage is often applied to a
chosen benchmark as a starting point in determining materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

8.1f during the audit it appears as though actual financial results are likely to be substantially different from the
anticipated period end financial results that were used initially to determine materiality for the financial
statements as a whole, the auditor revises that materiality. [MTP Nov-22]

Correct: Materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if applicable, the materiality level or levels for
particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures) may need to be revised as a result of a change in
tircumstances that occurred during the audit, new information, or a change in the auditor’s understanding of the
entity and its operations as a result of performi ng further audit procedures.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs Questions
1 Youare being appointed as the auditor of Track Ltd. for the first time. You want to determine the materiality
tevel and for that you have applied percentage to choose benchmark as a starting point in determining materiality
Drthe financial statements as a whole. What are the factors that may affect the identification of an appropriate

benchmara [RTP May-22 + May-23]

A3y “Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit” prescribes the use of Benchmarks in Determining
Materiality for the Financial Statements as a Whole. Determining materiality involves the exercise of professional
ludgment, A percentage is often applied to a chosen benchmark as a starting point in determining materiality for

the f; i
f'""""Clal statements as a whole.
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Factors that may affect the identification of an appropriate benchmark indUd? shefolovwing:

* The elements of the financial statements. Example - assets, liabilities, eqm.tv, reuem:e, e"f’ens\?S:

® Whether there are items on which the attention of the users of the particular entity’s financial StatemeMs
tends to be focused. Example - for the purpose of evaluating financial performance users may tend tq fncl-'sun

profit, revenue or net assets. : d .
* The nature of the entity, where the entity is at in its life cycle, and the industry and economic en\uronmem In

which the entity operates; . R
* The entity’s ownership structure and the way it is financed [Example- if an entity is financed solely by deby
rather than equity, users may put more emphasis on assets, and claims on them, than on the entity’s €arnings).

* The relative volatility of the benchmark.

2. Materiality for the financial statements as a whole may need to be revised as a result of 3 change |,
circumstances that occurred during the audit. Explain with the help of example. [MTP Oct-19]

Revision in Materiality level as the Audit Progresses: Materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if
applicable, the materiality level or levels for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures) may
need to be revised as a result of a change in circumstances that occurred during the audit (for example, a decision
to dispose of a major part of the entity’s business), new information, or a change in the auditor’s understanding of
the entity and its operations as a result of performing further audit procedures.

Example

If during the audit it appears as though actual financial results are likely to be substantially different from the
anticipated period end financial results that were used initially to determine materiality for the financial statements
as a whole, the auditor revises that materiality.

If the auditor concludes that a lower materiality for the financial statements as a whole (and, if applicable,
materiality level or levels for particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures) than that initially
determined is appropriate, the auditor shall determine whether it is necessary to revise performance materiality,
and whether the nature, timing and extent of the further audit procedures remain appropriate.

3. The auditor’s determination of materiality is a matter of professional judgment, and is affected by the auditor’s
perception of the financial information needs of users of the financial statements. In this context, explain the
auditor’s assumptions about users of the financial statements. [RTP May-21 + Nov-23]

The auditor’s determination of materiality is a matter of professional judgment, and is affected by the auditor’s
perception of the financial information needs of users of the financial statements. In this context, it is reasonable
for the auditor to assume that users:

(i) Have a reasonable knowledge of business and economic activities and accounting and a willingness 10 study
the information in the financial statements with reasonable dilig

(i) Understand that financial statements are prepared, presented a

(iii) Recognize the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of 3
and the consideration of future events; and

(iv)] Make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

ence;

nd audited to levels of materiality; &
. ; e

mounts based on the use of estimates, judg™

4. Financial reporting frameworks often discuss the concept of materiality in the context of the preparatian an
presentation of financial statements. Explain, [RTP May-21] n
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Financial reporting frameworks often discuss the concept of materiality in the context of the preparation and
presentation of financial statements. Although financial reporting frameworks may discuss materiality in different
terms, they generally explain that:

1. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate,
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements;

2. Judgments about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size
or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both; and

3. Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration
of the common financial information needs of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on
specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered.

5. Whether misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements? Explain with examples [SM]

Factors that may indicate the existence of one or more particular classes of transactions, account balances or
disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial

statements include the following:

1. Whether law, regulations or the applicable financial reporting framework affect users’ expectations regarding
the measurement or disclosure of certain items.

Example
Related party transactions, and the remuneration of management and those charged with governance.

2. The key disclosures in relation to the industry in which the entity operates.

Example
Research and development costs for a pharmaceutical company.

3. Whether attention is focused on a particular aspect of the entity’s business that is separately disclosed in the

financial statements.

Example

A newly acquired business.

tors have to be considered this regard? [SM]

6. Is materiality required to be documented by the auditor? What fac

Audit documentation shall include the following amounts and the factors considered in their determination:

(a) Materiality for the financial statements as a whole
(b) If applicable, the materiality level or levels for particular classes of transactions, account balances or

disclosures
(c) Performance materiality and
(d) Any revision of (a)-(c) as the audit progressed.
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7. While conducting the audit of Smart TV Ltd, engagement team of HTR& Co, has considered materiality ang
audit risk throughout the audit. Discuss explaining the meaning of audit risk. [RTP May-22]

Audit risk is the risk that the auditor expresses an inappropriate audit opinion when the financial statements are
materially misstated. Audit risk is a function of the risks of material misstatement and detection risk.

Materiality and audit risk are considered throughout the audit, in particular, when:

(a) Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement;

(b) Determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures; and

(c) Evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and in forming the

opinion in the auditor’s report.

“Believe in yourself & soon the world will too”
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Test your Understanding

entity, has selected samples based upon his personal experience and
knowledge. Later on, it turns out that selected samples were not representative and it has led to faulty selection

of samples. The auditor contends that samples were selected based upon his personal experience and knowledge.
Can auditor escape from his responsibility in this regard?

1. An auditor, while conducting audit of an

In the provided situation, the auditor has selected samples based upon his personal experience and knowledge. It,
is a case of non-statistical sampling approach adopted by the auditor. Whatever may be the approach nonstatistical
or statistical sampling, the sample must be representative. This means that it must be closely similar to the whole
population although not necessarily exactly the same. The auditor cannot escape his responsibility in this regard.

MCQs
Which of the following is not an advantage of statistical sampling?

(a) Sample size does not increase in proportion to size of area tested.

(b) Sample selection is more objective.

(c) It provides a means of deriving a calculated risk and corresponding precision.
(d) In case of verifying compliance with specific legal requirements, it is suitable.

Correct/Incorrect
1. The level of sampling risk that the auditor is willing to accept will not affect the sample size.

[RTP Nov-22]
Incorrect: As per SA 530, “Audit Sampling” the level of sampling risk that the auditor is willing to accept affects the
sample size required. The lower the risk the auditor is willing to accept, the greater the sample size will need to be.

2. The method which involves dividing the population into groups of items is knows as block sampling.

Incorrect: The method which involves dividing the population into groups of items is known as cluster sampling
whereas block sampling involves the selection of a defined block of consecutive items.

3. Universe refers to the entire set of data from which a sample is selected and about which the auditor wishes
to draw conclusions.

Incorrect: Population refers to the entire set of data from which a sample is selected and about which the auditor
wishes to draw conclusions.

4. Non Statistical sampling is an approach to sampling that has the random selection of the sample items; and the
use of probability theory to evaluate sample results, including measurement of sampling risk characteristics.

Incorrect: Statistical sampling is an approach to sampling that has the random selection of the sample items; and
the use of probability theory to evaluate sample results, including measurement of sampling risk characteristics.

5. Sample need not be representative

Incorrect: Whatever may be the approach non-statistical or statistical sampling, the sample must be representative.
This means that it must be closely similar to the whole population although not necessarily exactly the same. The
sample must be large enough to provide statistically meaningful results.
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6. The objective of stratification Is to Increase the varlability of items within each stratu
sample size to be reduced without Increasing sampling risk.

m and therefore allow

Incorrect: The objective of stratification is to reduce the variability of items within each stratum and therefore alloy
sample size to be reduced without increasing sampling risk.

7. When statistical sampling is used to select a sample, sample need not be representative because the
statistical sampling takes care of the representation.

Incorrect: Whatever may be the approach non-statistical or statistical sampling, the sample must be representative.
This means that it must be closely similar to the whole population although not necessarily exactly the same. The
sample must be large enough to provide statistically meaningful results.

8. Stratified Sampling is used for homogeneous population.

Incorrect: Stratified sampling is used when the population is diversified i.e heterogeneous. The population is divided
into sub population having similar characteristics. Sample are then chosen from these sub populations which are
called as Stratum. Therefore, stratified sampling is not useful in case of homogeneous population.

9. Non statistical sampling is considered to be more scientific than the statistical sampling.

Incorrect: Statistical sampling uses scientific method of choosing samples from a given population. The use of
probability theory is involved in statistical sampling so that every sampling unit has an equal chance of getting
selected. In the non-statistical sampling, auditors’ judgment and past experience is used to choose samples without
any scientific method.

10. In case of Statistical sampling, auditor’s bias in choosing sample is involved.

Incorrect: Statistical sampling uses scientific method choosing samples from a given population. The use of
probability theory is involved in statistical sampling so that every sampling unit has an equal chance of getting
selected. In the non statistical sampling, auditor’s judgment and past experience is used to choose samples without
and scientific method. Hence, personal bias is involved in Non statistical sampling and not Statistical.

11. In stratified sampling, the conclusion drawn on each stratum can be directly projected to the whole
population. [Jan-21]

Incorrect: In case of stratified sampling, the conclusions are drawn on the stratum. The combination of all the
conclusions on stratum together will be used to determine the possible effect of misstatement or deviation. Hence

the samples are used to derive conclusion only on the respective stratum from where they are drawn and not the
whole population.

12. Low acceptable sampling risk requires larger sample size.

Correct: Sampling risk arises from possibility that the auditor’s conclusion based upon sample may be different from
conclusion that would have been reached if same audit procedures were applied on the entire population. If
acceptable sampling risk Is low, large sample slze Is needed
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Past Exams/RTps/ MTPs/SM Questions

1. The approach to audit and extent of checking are undergoing a progressive change in favour of more attention
towards the questions of principle and controls with a curtailment of non-c

onsequential routine checking. Discuss
the given statement. [May-22 +MTP May-22]

sampling: An Audit Procedure: No conscious effort in human society is divested of economic considerations and
auditing is no exception.

There is a growing realisation that traditional approach to audit is economically wasteful because all efforts are
directed to check all transactions without any exception. This invariably leads to more emphasis on routine
checking, which often is not necessary in view of the time and cost involved.

with the shift in favour of formal internal controls in the management of affairs of organisations, the possibilities
of routine errors and frauds have greatly diminished i.e., the internal controls as designed by the management are
for the very purpose of Prevention, Detection and Correction of Frauds and Errors.

Thus, the auditors often find extensive routine checking as nothing more than a ritual because it seldom reveals
anything material. Now the approach to audit and the extent of checking are undergoing a progressive change in
favour of more attention towards the questions of principles and controls with a curtailment of non-consequential
routine checking. By routine checking, we traditionally think of extensive checking and vouching of all the entries,
disregarding the concept of materiality.

The extent of the checking to be undertaken is primarily a matter of judgment of the auditor. There is nothing
statutorily stated anywhere which specifies what work is to be done, how it is to be done and to what extent it has
to be done. It is also not obligatory that the auditor must adopt the sampling technique. What he is to do as an
auditor is to express his opinion on the financial statements and become bound by that.

To ensure good and reasonable standard of work, he should adopt standards and techniques that can lead him to
aninformed professional opinion. On consideration of this fact, it can be said that it is in the interest of the auditor
that if he decides to form his opinion on the basis of a part checking (i.e., sampling), he should adopt standards and
techniques which are widely followed and which have a recognised basls.

Since Statistical theory of sampling is based on a scientific law, it can be relied upon to a greater extent than any
abitrary technique which lacks In basis and acceptability. This enables the auditor to make conclusions and express
fair opinion without having to check all of the items within the financial statements.

2. Explain the meaning of Audit Sampling as per the relevant standard on auditing. State the requirements relating
to augjy sampling, sample deslgn, sample size and selection of items for testing. [RTP Nov-22 +MTP Oct-21]
’
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Audit Sampling: As per SA 530 on “Audit Sampling”, the meaning of the term Audit Sampling is — the application of
audit procedures to less than 100% of items within a population of audit relevance such that all sampling units
have a chance of selection to provide the auditor with a reasonable basis on which to draw conclusions about the
entire population.

The requirements relating to sample design, sample size and selection of items for testing are explained below-
v Sample design - When designing an audit sample, the auditor shall consider the purpose of the audit
procedure and the characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn.
v" Sample Size - The auditor shall determine a sample size sufficient to reduce sampling risk to an acceptably
low level.
¥" Selection of Items for Testing - The auditor shall select items for the sample in such a way that each sampling
unit in the population has a chance of selection.

3. In most of the circumstances, the evidence available is not conclusive and the auditor always takes a calculated
risk in giving his opinion. Even by undertaking hundred percent checking of the transactions, the auditor does not
derive absolute satisfaction. This state of uneasiness led pragmatic auditors to adopt the statistical theory of
sampling to derive the necessary satisfaction about the state of affairs by checking only a part of the total
population of entries. Explain in detail. [RTP May-21]

In most of circumstances, evidence available is not conclusive and the auditor always takes a calculated risk in giving
his opinion. Even by undertaking hundred percent checking of the transactions, the auditor does not derive absolute
satisfaction. This state of uneasiness led pragmatic auditors to adopt the statistical theory of sampling to derive
the necessary satisfaction about the state of affairs by checking only a part of the total population of entries.

Auditors realised that they can derive good satisfaction by undertaking much lesser checking by adoption of this
technique in the auditing process. It is a mathematical truth that the sample, if picked purely on a random basis
would reveal the features and characteristics of the population.

By adopting the sampling technique, the auditor only checks a part of the whole mass of transactions. The
satisfaction he used to derive earlier, by checking all the transactions, can be derived by a sample checking provided
he can put reliance on the internal controls and checks within the client’s organisation because they provide the
reliability of the records,

Sampling is used as a part of Test of controls. Auditor will check few internal controls and their operating
effectiveness. Based on the conclusion derived, he can then design the sample size for test of details (i.e checking
of transactions and balances)
¥ If the internal control is satisfactory in its design and implementation, a much smaller sample can give the
auditor the necessary reliability of the result he obtains.
v On the other hand, if in certain areas controls are slack or not properly implemented, the auditor may have t0
take a much larger sample for getting satisfactory result.

Another truth about the sampling technique should be noted, It can never bring complete reliability; it cannot give

precisely accurate results. It is a process of estimation. It may have some error. What error is tolerable for 2
particular matter under examination is a matter of the individual’s judgment in that particular case.
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4. Audit testing done through Statistical sampling is more scientific than testing based entirely on the auditor’s
own Judgm.ent because it involves use of mathematical laws of probability in determining the appropriate sample
size in varying circumstances. Explain and also state advantages of Statistical sampling? [RTP May-22]

Audit testing done: llthEh this approach is more scientific than testing based entirely on the auditor’s own
judgment because it involves use of mathematical laws of probability in determining the appropriate sample size in
varying circumstances. Statistical sampling has reasonably wide application where a population to be tested consists

of a large number of similar items and more in the case of transactions involving compliance testing, trade
receivables’ confirmation, payroll checking, vouching of invoices and petty cash vouchers.

Advantages of Statistical Sampling in Auditing: The advantages of statistical sampling may be summarized as
follows:

(i) The amount of testing (sample size) does not increase in proportion to the increase in the size of the area
(universe) tested.

(i) The sample selection is more objective and thereby more defensible.

(iii) The method provides a means of estimating the minimum sample size associated with a specified risk and
precision.

(iv) It provides a means for deriving a “calculated risk” and corresponding precision (sampling error) i.e. the
probable difference in result due to the use of a sample in lieu of examining all the records in the group
(universe), using the same audit procedures.

(v) It may provide a better description of a large mass of data than a complete examination of all the data, since
non-sampling errors such as processing and clerical mistakes are not as large.

5. When designing an audit sample, the auditor shall consider the purpose of the audit procedure and the
characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn. Explain in detail. [RTP Nov-21]

Audit sampling enables the auditor to obtain and evaluate audit evidence about some characteristic of the items
selected in order to form or assist in forming a conclusion concerning the population from which the sample is
drawn. Audit sampling can be applied using either non-statistical or statistical sampling approaches.

When designing an audit sample,
* the auditor's consideration includes the specific purpose to be achieved and the combination of audit

procedures that is likely to best achieve that purpose.
» Consideration of the nature of the audit evidence sought and possible deviation or misstatement conditions
or other characteristics relating to that audit evidence will assist the auditor in defining what constitutes a

deviation or misstatement and what population to use for sampling.
* Infulfilling the requirement of relevant portion (paragraph 8) of SA 500, when performing audit sampling, the
auditor performs audit procedures to obtain evidence that the population from which the audit sample is

drawn Is complete.

The auditor’s consideration of the purpose of the audit procedure includes a clear understanding of what constitutes
those conditions that are relevant to the purpose of the audit

a deviation or misstatement so that all, and only,
rojection of misstatements.

Procedure are included In the evaluation of deviations or p

o the existence of accounts receivable, such as confirmation, payments

For example, i tails relating t
P, (GILest OF e date but received shortly after that date by the client, are not

Made by the customer before the confirmation

7§
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considered a misstatement. Also, a misposting between customer accounts does not affect the total accounts
receivable balance.

Therefore, it may not be appropriate to consider this a misstatement in evaluating the sample results of thjs
particular audit procedure, even though it may have an important effect on other areas of the audit, such as the
assessment of the risk of fraud or the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

In considering the characteristics of a population, for tests of controls, the auditor makes an assessment of the
expected rate of deviation based on the auditor’s understanding of the relevant controls or an the examination of
a small number of items from the population. This assessment is made in order to design an audit sample and to
determine sample size.

For example, if the expected rate of deviation is unacceptably high, the auditor will normally decide not to perform
tests of controls. Similarly, for tests of details, the auditor makes an assessment of the expected misstatement in
the population. If the expected misstatement is high, 100% examination or use of a large sample size may be
appropriate when performing tests of details.

In considering the characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn, the auditor may determine
that stratification or value-weighted selection is appropriate.

The decision whether to use a statistical or non-statistical sampling approach is a matter for the auditor’s judgment;
however, sample size is not a valid criterion to distinguish between statistical and non-statistical approaches.

6. This method is considered appropriate provided the population to be sampled consists of reasonably similar
units and fall within a reasonable range i.e. it is suitable for a homogeneous population having a similar range.
Explain about that method. [RTP Nov-22]

Simple Random Sampling: Under this method each unit of the whole population e.g. purchase or sales invoice has
an equal chance of being selected.

v Itis considered that random number tables are simple and easy to use and also provide assurance that the

auditors’ bias does not affect the selection.

v’ Each item in a population is selected by use of random number table either with a help of computer or picking
up a number in a random way (may be randomly from a drum). Today random numbers are also generated
using various applications on the cellphones like the random number generator.

This method is considered appropriate provided the population to be sampled consists of reasonably similar
units and fall within a reasonable range i.e. it is suitable for a homogeneous population having a similar rangé:

7. ABC Ltd is a Large Company with huge purchase and sales transactions. Which sampling approach i
recommended in such a company? Explain giving features of such sampling approach along with example.

[MTP Apr-22]

In larger organisations, with huge transactions, statistical sampling Is always recommended as it is unbiased, and
the samples selected are not prejudged.

CA Shubham Keswani 74


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-6B Audit Sampling
Feamn;,-s/(:hareu:teztristin:s of Statistical Sampling:

(1) Audit testing done through this approach is more scientific than testing based entirely on the auditor’s own
judgment because it involves use of mathematical laws of probability in determining the appropriate sample size in
varying circumstances.

(2) Statistical sampling has reasonably wide application where a population to be tested consists of a large number
of similar items and more in the case of transactions involving compliance testing, trade receivables’ confirmation,
payroll checking, vouching of invoices and petty cash vouchers,

(3) There Is no personal bias of the auditor in case of statistical sampling. Since it is scientific, the results of sample
can be evaluated and projected on the whole population in a more reliable manner.

For Example: An auditor while verifying the Purchases during the year realised that the purchase transactions in
that year are more than 45000 in number, then in such case, statistical sampling will be highly recommended in the
audit program. Random Sampling (discussed ahead in this topic) is the method you decide to choose sample in such
a situation.

8. With reference to SA 530 “Audit Sampling”, explain briefly the following factors that the auditor may consider
when determining the sample size for the Test of Details — (i) The desired level of assurance (ii) Stratification of
the pollution. [Dec-21]

Examples of factors influencing Sample Size for Test of Details:

(i) Desired Level of Assurance: An increase in the auditor’s desired level of assurance that tolerable misstatement
is not exceeded by actual misstatement in the population will increase the sample size. Hence, greater the level of
assurance that the auditor requires that the results of the sample are in fact indicative of the actual amount of
misstatement in the population, the larger the sample size needs to be.

(ii) Stratification of population: When stratification of the population is appropriate then sample size will decrease
as when there is a wide range (variability) in the monetary size of items in the population, it may be useful to stratify
the population. When a population can be appropriately stratified, the aggregate of the sample sizes from the strata
generally will be less than the sample size that would have been required to attain a given level of sampling risk,

had one sample been drawn from the whole population.

9. CA X is not sure about the kind of sampling method to be used for audit of a company. Advise him about the
choice of methods (name of methods only) of Sampling to be used in various circumstances. Also explain briefly
the advantages of the Sampling to be used by him In auditing. [MTP Nov-21]

Sample Selection:

CA. X should obtain the knowledge before using the sampling methods. The principal methods are as follows:
(1) Random selection.,

(2) Systematic selection.

(3) Monetary Unit sampling.

(4) Haphazard selection.

(5) Block selection.

CA Shubham Keswani ' 75

N


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-6B Audit Sampling

Advantages of Statistical Sampling in Auditing:

() The amount of testing (sample size) does not increase in proportion to the increase in the size of the are,
(universe) tested.

(ii) The sample selection is more objective and thereby more defensible.

(iii) The method provides a means of estimating the minimum sample size associated with a specified risk ang
precision,

(iv) It provides a means for deriving a "calculated risk" and corresponding precision (sampling error) i.e. the
probable difference in result due to the use of a sample in lieu of examining all the records in the group
(universe), using the same audit procedures.

(v) It may provide a better description of a large mass of data than a complete examination of all the data, since
non-sampling errors such as processing and clerical mistakes are not as large.

10. In considering the characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn, the auditor may
determine that stratification or value-weighted selection technique is appropriate. Guide the auditor on the use
of stratification and value-weighted sampling techniques. [RTP Nov-21]

In considering the characteristics of the population from which the sample will be drawn, the auditor may determine
that stratification or value-weighted selection technique is appropriate. SA 530 provides guidance to the auditor on
the use of stratification and value - weighted sampling techniques.

Stratification: Audit efficiency may be improved if the auditor stratifies a population by dividing it into discrete sub-
populations which have an identifying characteristic.

The objective of stratification is to reduce the variability of items within each stratum and therefore allow sample
size to be reduced without increasing sampling risk.

When performing tests of details, the population is often stratified by monetary value. This allows greater audit
effort to be directed to the larger value items, as these items may contain the greatest potential misstatement in

terms of overstatement.

Similarly, a population may be stratified according to a particular characteristic that indicates a higher risk of
misstatement, for example, when testing the allowance for doubtful accounts in the valuation of accounts
receivable, balances may be stratified by age.

Dividing a population into discrete sub population which have identifying characteristics is called as Stratification-
Each Sub population is called as Stratum and units under those sub population are referred to as Strata.

The results of samples from the units drawn under each sub population are projected to that respective stratum
In order to draw an opinion on the overall population, the auditor needs to combine the results of all the stratur®
to check for possible deviation or risk of materlal misstatement.

Projected misstatements of each stratum will be combined together to consider the possible effect of
misstatement in the account balances and class of transactions.

Example

20% of the items in a population may make up 90% of the value of an account balance. The auditor may decide
examine a sample of these items. The auditor evaluates the results of this sample and reaches a conclusion on the

CA Shubham Keswani 76

_‘


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-6B Audit Sampling

90% of value separately from the remaining 10% (on which a further sample or other means of gathering audit
evidence will be used, or which may be considered immaterial).

Value-Weighted Selection: When performing tests of details it may be efficient to identify the sampling unit as the
individual monetary units that make up the population. Having selected specific monetary units from within the

population, for example, the accounts receivable balance, the auditor may then examine the particular items, for
example, individual balances, that contain those monetary units.

one benefit of this approach to defining the sampling unit is that audit effort is directed to the larger value items
because they have a greater chance of selection, and can result in smaller sample sizes.

This approach may be used in conjunction with the systematic method of sample selection and is most efficient
when selecting items using random selection.

In value weighted selection, the sample size, its selection and evaluation will result in a conclusion in monetary
amounts.

11. Explain the following terms with reference to Audit Sampling :
(i) Stratification

(ii) Tolerable misstatement

(iii) Tolerable rate of deviation [RTP May-21]

(i) Stratification — The process of dividing a population into sub-populations, each of which is a group of sampling
units which have similar characteristics (often monetary value).

(ii) Tolerable misstatement — A monetary amount set by the auditor in respect of which the auditor seeks to obtain
an appropriate level of assurance that the monetary amount set by the auditor is not exceeded by the actual

misstatement in the population.

(iii) Tolerable rate of deviation — A rate of deviation from prescribed internal control procedures set by the auditor
in respect of which the auditor seeks to obtain an appropriate level of assurance that the rate of deviation set by

the auditor is not exceeded by the actual rate of deviation in the population.

12. CA B is appointed as an auditor of M/s. Divine Pharmacy, a wholesale medicine supplier. While auditing for
the financial year 2020-21, CA B wants to use test checking technique. Advise CA B, what kind of precautions

should be taken by him in this regard. [July-21 + SM]

The following Precautions should to be taken by CA B while applying test check techniques:
Y Thorough study of accounting system should be done before adopting sampling

Y Proper study of Internal control systems.
Y Areas which are not sultable for sampling should be carefully considered. eg: compliance with statutory

Provisions, transactions of unusual nature etc.

Proper planning for Sampling methods to be used and explaining the staff,
Transactions and balances have to be properly classified (stratified)
Sample size should be appropriately determined.

Sample should be chosen in unbiased way,

Errors located in the sample should be analyzed properly.

XN NN N
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: : f checking on a sampling plan.
13. Explain th idered for deciding upon the extent o
pla e factors that should be cons [RTP Nov-20 + 2]

The factors that should be considered for deciding u;:;on the extent of checking on a sampling plan are following:
(i) Size of the organisation under audit.

(i) State of the internal control.

(i) Adequacy and reliability of books and records.

(iv) Tolerable error range.

(v) Degree of the desired confidence.

14. Explain the sampling method which involves selection of a block(s) of contiguous items from within the

population. Also give example. [RTP May-20]

Block Sampling: This method involves selection of a block(s) of contiguous items from within the population. Block
selection cannot ordinarily be used in audit sampling because most populations are structured such that items in a
sequence can be expected to have similar characteristics to each other, but different characteristics from items
elsewhere in the population. Although in some circumstances it may be an appropriate audit procedure to examine
a block of items, it would rarely be an appropriate sample selection technique when the auditor intends to draw
valid inferences about the entire population based on the sample.

Example: Take the first 200 sales invoices from the sales day book in the month of September; alternatively take
any four blocks of 50 sales invoices. Therefore, once the first item in the block is selected, the rest of the block

follows items to the completion.

15. The auditor is required to project misstatements for the population to obtain a broad view of the scale of
misstatement but this projection may not be sufficient to determine an amount to be recorded. Explain

[RTP May-20]
The auditor is required to project misstatements for the population to obtain a broad view of the scale of
misstatement but this projection may not be sufficient to determine an amount to be recorded.

When a misstatement has been established as an anomaly, it may be excluded when projecting misstatements to
the population. However, the effect of any such misstatement, if uncorrected, still needs to be considered in
addition to the projection of the non-anomalous misstatements.

For tests of details, the auditor shall project misstatements found in the sample to the population whereas for
tests of controls, no explicit projection of deviations Is necessary since the sample deviation rate is also the
projected deviation rate for the population as a whole.

16. What are the matters that the auditor shall consider while designing an audit sample? [Nov-22]

When designing an audit sample,

* the auditor’s consideration includes the specific purpose to be achieved and the combination of audit
procedures that is likely to best achieve that purpose.

* Consideration of the nature of the audit evidence sought and possible deviation or misstatement conditions
or other characteristics relating to that audit evidence will assist the auditor in defining what constitutes @
deviation or misstatement and what population to use for sampling.
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o In fulfilling the requirement of relevant portion (paragraph 8) of SA 500, when performing audit sampling, the

auditor performs audit procedures to obtain evidence that the population from which the audit sample is
drawn is complete.

17. While planning the audit of S Ltd. you want to apply sampling techniques. What are the risk factors you should
keep in mind? [SM]

As per SA 530 “Audit Sampling”, sampling risk is the risk that the auditor’s conclusion based on a sample may be

different from the conclusion if the entire population were subjected to the same audit procedure.

sampling risk can lead to two types of erroneous conclusions:

(i) In the case of a test of controls, that controls are more effective than they actually are, or in the case of a test
of details, that a material misstatement does not exist when in fact it does. The auditor is primarily concerned
with this type of erroneous conclusion because it affects audit effectiveness and is more likely to lead to an
inappropriate audit opinion.

(ii) In the case of a test of controls, that controls are less effective than they actually are, or in the case of a test of
details, that a material misstatement exists when in fact it does not. This type of erroneous conclusion affects
audit efficiency as it would usually lead to additional work to establish that initial conclusions were incorrect.

“Make sure you SAMPLE,

Good Questions for Next Revision”
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1. You are nearing completion of audit of a company. On going through your working papers, it is noticed that
finished goods inventory was overvalued by Rs. 2 crore. It has also been noticed that freight of Rs.10 lacs paid on
import of machinery was charged to statement of profit and loss. Discuss, how you should, proceed ang
communicate in above situation before signing audit report.

The instances highlighted in above situation are examples of misstatements identified during the audit. Over
valuation of inventory of finished goods by Rs. 2 crore and wrongly charging freight of Rs. 10 lacs paid on machinery
to statement of profit and loss instead of capitalizing are examples of misstatements.

The auditor should communicate above identified misstatements to those charged with governance and request
for correction of these misstatements. In case, these are not corrected, understand the reasons for not making the
corrections and reassess materiality.

It should also be considered whether uncorrected statements are material individually or in aggregate. Effect of
uncorrected misstatements on the opinion in auditor’s report should be communicated to those charged with
governance.

2. Discuss documentation requirements for an auditor regarding misstatements identified during audit under SA
450.

The audit documentation shall include: -
a. The amount below which misstatements would be regarded as clearly trivial;
b. All misstatements accumulated during the audit and whether they have been corrected; and
c. The auditor’s conclusion as to whether uncorrected misstatements are material, individually or in aggregate,
and the basis for that conclusion.

3. Which of the following is false regarding communication of misstatements identified during course of an audit?
a. The auditor should request those charged with governance for correction of identified misstatements.

b. The auditor should obtain written representation acknowledging management belief that effect of uncorrected
misstatements is material.

. Theauditor should obtain written representation acknowledging management belief that effect of uncorrected
misstatements is immaterial.

d. The auditor should communicate effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.

Ans. B
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_ Correct/Incorrect
state with reasons (in short) whether the following statement is correct or incorrect:

(i) General IT controls support the functioning of Application controls,

Correct: General IT controls support the functioning of automated application controls and IT dependent controls.

(ii) Inquiry is often the most efficient audit testing method, but least effective.

Correct: Inquiry is the most efficient but least effective, Moreover, testing through inquiry alone is not sufficient.
Inquiry should be corroborated by applying any one or a combination of observation, inspection or reperformance.

(iii) Specialised audit tools like IDEA, ACL are required to perform data analytics.

Incorrect. Even though specialised audit tools are very useful, such tools are not always required or necessary to

carry out data analytics. More commonly available spreadsheet applications like MS-Excel can also be effectively
used for carrying out data analytics.

(iv) A combination of processes, tools and techniques that are used to tap vast amounts of electronic data to
obtain meaningful information is known as meaningful data.

Incorrect. A combination of processes, tools and techniques that are used to tap vast amounts of electronic data to
obtain meaningful information is known as Data Analytics.

(v) An automated environment basically refers to a business environment where the processes, operations,
accounting except the decisions are carried out by using computer systems.

Incorrect. An automated environment basically refers to a business environment where the processes, operations,
accounting and even decisions are carried out by using computer systems

(vi) Generally, applying inquiry in combination with reperformance as audit testing method gives the most
effective and efficient audit evidence

Incorrect. Generally, applying inquiry in combination with inspection gives the most effective and efficient audit
evidence

(vii) When auditing in an automated environment, inquiry Is often the most efficient and effective audit testing
method. [MTP Oct-21]

Incorrect: There are basically four types of audit tests that should be used _in anautemated envlronm?nt. They are
inquiry, observation, inspection and re-performance. Inquiry Is the most efficient audit test but it also gives the least
audit evidence. Hence, inquiry should always be used in combination with any one of the other audit testing
methods. Inquiry alone is not sufficient. Applying Inquiry In combination with inspection gives the most effective

and efficient audit evidence.

pends on the level of automation i.e., if a business environment

(viii) The Complexity of a business environment de
. L [Jan-21 + MTP Apr-23]

is more automated, It Is likely to be less complex.
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Incorrect: The fundamental principle of an automated environment is the ability to carry out business with |egg
manual intervention and more system driven. The complexity of a business environment depends on the leve| of
automation i.e., if a business environment is more automated, it is likely to be more complex. If a company uses an
integrated enterprise resource planning system (ERP) viz., SAP, Oracle etc., then it is considered more complex to
audit. On the other hand, if a company is using an off-the-shelf accounting software, then it is likely to be less
automated and hence less complex environment.

(ix). With reference to General IT control, the objective of Data Center and Network Operations is to ensure that
systems are developed, configured and implemented to meet financial reporting objectives. [July-21]

Incorrect: Objective of Data Center and Network Operations is to ensure that production systems are processed tg
meet financial reporting objectives. Objective of Application system acquisition, development, and maintenance is
to ensure that systems are developed, configured and implemented to meet financial reporting objectives.

(x) In an automated environment, the relationship between the application controls and the General IT controls
over IT systems are not interrelated. [Nov-22]

Incorrect: The relationship between the application controls and the General IT Controls is such that General IT
Controls are needed to support the functioning of application controls, and both are needed to ensure complete
and accurate information processing through IT systems. These two categories of control over IT systems are
interrelated.

MCQs
1. The operations of a company are automated substantially. Which of the following statements is most
appropriate in this respect?
(a) It results in complex business environment.
(b) It results in simple business environment and easier audit.
(c) Automation has no relationship with complexity of business environment.
(d) It results in simple business environment. However, it increases complexity of audit.

2. Which of the following is not a risk to a company’s internal control due to its IT environment?
(a) Potential loss of data

(b) Inability to access data when required

(c) Unauthorized access to data

(d) Processing of large volumes of data

3. Which of the following is not an example of “General IT controls”?
(a) Controls pertaining to Disaster recovery plan

(b) Controls pertaining to batch preparation

(c) Controls pertaining to data security

(d) Controls pertaining to validation of input data in an application

1.32.d3.d
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' . Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. Explain the meaning of automated environment. Also discuss the key features of an automated environment.
[RTP May-19]

An automated environment basically refers to a business environment where the processes, operations, accounting
and even decisions are carried out by using computer systems — also known as Information Systems (IS) or

Information Technology (IT) systems, Nowadays, it is very common to see computer systems being used in almost
every type of business,

some of the key features of an automated environment are as follows:
v~ Enable Faster Business Operations

Connectivity & Networking Capability
Accuracy in Data Processing & Computation
Ability to process Large Volumes of Transn
Better Security & Controls

Less prone to Human Errors

& K K K&

2. List the points that an auditor should consider to obtain an understanding of the Company’s automated
environment. [RTP Nov-22 +MTP May-22+0ct-21]

Understanding of the Company’s Automated Environment: Given below are some of the points that an auditor
should consider to obtain an understanding of the company’s automated environment

» Information systems being used (one or more application systems and what they are)

» their purpose (financial and non-financial)

* Location of IT systems - local vs global

* Architecture (desktop based, client-server, web application, cloud based)

= Version (functions and risks could vary in different versions of same application)

* Interfaces within systems (in case multiple systems exist)

* In-house vs Packaged

* Outsourced activities (IT maintenance and support)

* Key persons (CIO, CISO, Administrators)

3. Which are specific risks to the company's internal control having IT environment? [RTP Nov-22]

Given below are some such risks that should be considered:
* Inaccurate processing of data, processing inaccurate data,

or both.

Unauthorized access to data.

* Direct data changes (backend changes).

* Excessive access / Privileged access (super users).

* lack of adequate segregation of dutles.

* Unauthorized changes to systems or programs.

Failure to make necessary changes to systems or programs.
Loss of data.
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4. Discuss the impact of IT related risks on Substantive Audit, Controls and Reporting. [RTP May-18]
Impact on substantive checking

Inability to address above discussed risks may lead to non-
allinformation, data, and reports would have to be tested thorou
lead to increased substantive checking i.e., detailed checking.

reliance of data obtained from systems. In such a case,
ghly for their completeness and accuracy. It could

Impact on controls
It can lead to non-reliance on automated controls, system calculations and accounting procedures built into

applications. It may result in additional audit work.

Impact on reporting
Due to regulatory requirements in respect of internal financial controls (discussed in subsequent paras) in case of

companies, it may lead to modification of auditor’s report in some instances.

5. Objective of Data Center and Network Operations is to ensure that production systems are processed to meet
financial reporting objectives. Discuss the activities performed by Data Center and Network operations. Also

explain the meaning of General IT Controls in detail. [RTP May-21]

“General IT controls are policies and procedures that relate to many applications and support the effective
functioning of application controls. They apply to mainframe, miniframe, and end-user environments.
General IT-controls that maintain the integrity of information and security of data commonly include controls over

the following:”

(i) Data center and network operations

(ii) Program change

(iii) Access security

(iv) Application system acquisition, development, and maintenance (Business Applications)

These are IT controls generally implemented to mitigate the IT specific risks and applied commonly across multiple
IT systems, applications and business processes. Hence, General IT controls are known as “pervasive” controls or

“indirect” controls.

Data Center and Network Operations
Objective: To ensure that production systems are processed to meet financial reporting objectives.

Activities:
* Overall management of computer operation activities, preparing, scheduling and executing of batch jobs;
monitoring, storage and retention of backups,
* Such controls also help in performance monitoring of operating system, database and networks.
* Matters such as BCP (Business continuity plan) and DRP (Disaster recovery plan) which deal with recovery from
failures are also taken care of by such type of controls.

6. Data analytics can be used In testing of electronic records and data residing in IT systems using spreadsheet’
and specialised audit tools viz., IDEA and ACL to perform the selection of audit samples. Explain giving other
relevant points also In the above context of data analytics. [RTP May-21 + May-23]
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Data analytics r:an be us.ed in testing of electronic records and data residing in IT systems using spreadsheets and
specialised audit tools viz., IDEA and ACL to perform the following:

v Check completeness of data and Population that is used in either test of controls or substantive audit tests.

Selection of audit samples - random sampling, systematic sampling.

Re-computation of balances - reconstruction of trial balance from transaction data.

Reperformance of mathematical calculations - depreciation, bank interest calculation.
Analysis of journal entries as required by SA 240.

Fraud investigation.
Evaluating impact of control deficiencies,

LV T T !

7. The Auditor of HK Limited completed the audit of the company in an automated environment. Management of
the company requested the auditor to give an idea about any exceptions observed in IT environment that need

to be assessed. How the auditor should consider this request and report in light of an audit perspective?
[May-22] or

Foreceful Limited is a company dealing in mobile spare parts and having its showrooms in almost all the states in
the country. For FY 2020-21, the company transferred its accounts from manual to computerized system (SAP).
PQR & Co., Chartered Accountants have specialization in the system audit and have been appointed as the system
auditor. PQR & Co., at the end of the audit concludes that there are certain findings or exceptions in IT

environment and IT controls of the company which needs to be assessed and reported. Mention those points of
consideration. [July-21 + MTP May-23]

At the conclusion of each audit, it is possible that there will be certain findings or exceptions in IT environment and
IT controls of the company that need to be assessed and reported to relevant stakeholders including management
and those charged with governance viz., Board of directors, Audit committee.

Some points to consider are as follows:
¥ Are there any weaknesses in IT controls?
¥ What is the impact of these weaknesses on overall audit?
¥" Report deficiencies to management — Internal Controls Memo or Management Letter.
¥ Communicate in writing any significant deficiencies to Those Charged With Governance.

The auditor needs to assess each finding or exception to determine impact on the audit and evaluate if the exception
results in a deficiency in internal control.

8.Generally, applying inquiry in combination with Inspection gives the most effective and efficient audit evidence.
However, which audit test to use, when and in what combination is a matter of professional judgement, Discuss
Stating the different ways testing Is performed in an automated enviranment.

[MTP Oct-18)
The following are different ways testing Is performed In an automated envlronm{ant :
There are basically four types of audit tests that should be used. They are Inquiry, observation, inspection and
reperformance.

s the least audit evidence. Hence, inquiry should always be

Ir]ClUi is 1t it test but it Is also give
LS mestaftientaudiet ting methods. Inquiry alone is not sufficient.

Used in combination with any one of the other audit tes
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Reperformance is most effective as an audit test and gives the best audit evidence. However, testing by
reperformance could be very time consuming and least efficient most of the time.

Generally, applying inquiry in combination with inspection gives the most effective and efficient audit evidence,
However, which audit test to use, when and in what combination is a matter of professional judgement and wil| vary
depending on several factors including risk assessment, control environment, desired level of evidence required,
history of errors/misstatements, complexity of business, assertions being addressed, etc. The auditor shoy|g
document the nature of test (or combination of tests) applied along with the judgements in the audit file as requireg

by SA 230.

When testing in an automated environment, some of the more common methods are as follows:
* Obtain an understanding of how an automated transaction is processed by daing a walkthrough of ane end-
to-end transaction using a combination of inquiry, observation and inspection.
= Observe how a user processes transactions under different scenarios.
* Inspect the configuration defined in an application

9. In an automated environment, General IT controls are policies and procedures that relate to many applications
and support the effective functioning of application controls. One such area is access security. What is the
objective of access security and what are the activities included in it? [Nov-22]

Access Security
Objective: To ensure that access to programs and data is authenticated and authorized to meet financial reporting

objectives.

Activities:

Security Organization & Management
Security Policies & Procedures
Application Security

Data Security

Operating System Security

Network Security

Physical Security

10. Discuss relationship between “General IT controls” and “application controls” in an automated environment.

[sM]

General IT Controls vs, Application Controls
* These two categories of control over IT systems are interrelated.
* The relationship between the application controls and the General IT Controls is such that General IT Controls
are needed to support the functioning of application controls, and both are needed to ensure complete and
accurate information processing through IT systems.

Very few students diligently cover Question Banks,
Kudos for being among the Top!
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SA 500 Audit Evidence

Test Your Understanding
1. on perusal of financial statements of a company, auditor of company finds that notes to accounts contain aging
of trade payables in accordance with requirements of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013. The accountant of
company is responsible for ensuring proper aging of trade payables included in notes to accounts. The auditor
wants to verify whether aging of trade payables made in financial statements is proper or not. Identify what he
is trying to do.

The auditor is verifying aging of trade payables. He is “reperforming” the control which was mandated by the
management.

2. CA Sooryagaythri is conducting audit of an entity. During the course of audit, she has made oral inquiries from
head accountant regarding preparing of bank reconciliations every month as has been laid down by the
management. Discuss, whether inquiries as stated above would provide satisfaction to her that controlsin respect
of preparing bank reconciliations statements have operated effectively.

Inquiry alone ordinarily does not provide sufficient audit evidence of the absence of a material misstatement at
the assertion level, nor of the operating effectiveness of controls. Mere inquiry does not lead to obtaining of
sufficient appropriate audit evidence. In the instant case, CA Sooryagaythri should verify whether proper bank
reconciliations have been carried out monthly as stipulated by management. Only then, she can be satisfied about
operating effectiveness of controls in this regard.

3. A company has stipulated a control that reconciliations of its records showing quantitative details of its
property, plant and equipment are carried out at regular intervals with physical verification of such items. The
auditor has found that such reconciliations are being carried out as stipulated. Discuss, whether above factor,
increases reliability of other internally generated evidence within the company relating to existence of suchitems.

The management is carrying out reconciliations of items contained in Property, Plant and Equipment records with
physical verification of such items at regular intervals. It means that controls in this regard have operated
effectively. The reliability of audit evidence that is generated internally is increased when the related controls,
including those over its preparation and maintenance, imposed by the entity are effective.

Correct/Incorrect
1. While auditing the books of accounts of ABC Ltd., the auditor of the company looked at the inventory counting
Process to obtain audit evidence. In the present case, audit procedure used by the auditor is known as

“Inspection”, [Jan-21]

Incorrect: The audit procedure used by the auditor of ABC Ltd. is known as “observation”. Whereas inspection
involves examining records or documents, whether internal or external, in paper form, electronic form, or other

media, or a physical examination of an asset.

2, Inquiry alone ordinarily does not provide sufficlent audit evidence. [MTP Oct-21]

Correct: Most of the auditor’s work In forming the auditor’s opinion consists of obtaining and evaluating audit

8vidence. Audit procedures to obtain audit evidence can Include inspection, observation, confirmation,

recalculation, re performance and analytical procedures, often in some combination, in addition to inquiry.
Aithough inq;:iry may provide important audit evidence, and may even produce evidence of a misstatement, inquiry
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alone ordinarily does not provide sufficient audit evidence of the absence of a material misstatement at the

assertion level, nor of the operating effectiveness of controls.
3. Sufficiency is the measure of the quantity of audit evidence. [SM]

Correct: Sufficiency is the measure of the quantity of audit evidence. The quantity of audit evidence needed s
affected by the auditor’s assessment of the risks of misstatement (the higher the assessed risks, the more audit

evidence is likely to be required).
4. Purchase invoice is an example of internal evidence. [SM]

Incorrect: Internal evidence is the evidence that originates within the client’s organisation. Since purchase invoice
originates outside the client’s organisation, therefore, it is an example of external evidence.

5. When auditor inquires the management as part of the audit procedures it should be formal written form only
and not informal oral inquiries. [SM]

Incorrect: When auditor inquires the management as part of audit procedures such inquiries may range from formal
written inquiries to informal oral inquiries.

6. For an auditor, the Risk assessment procedure provides sufficient appropriate audit evidence to base the audit
opinion. [MTP Mar-23]

Incorrect: The auditor shall perform risk assessment procedures to provide a basis for the identification and
assessment of risks of material misstatement at the financial statement and assertion levels. Risk assessment
procedures by themselves, however, do not provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the audit
opinion.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. An auditor is called upon to assess the actualities of the situation, review the statements of account and give
an expert opinion about the truth and fairness of such accounts. This he cannot do unless he has examined the
financial statements objectively. Explain. [RTP Nov-22]

Auditing is a logical process. An auditor is called upon to assess the actualities of the situation, review the statements
of account and give an expert opinion about the truth and fairness of such accounts. This he cannot do unless he
has examined the financial statements objectively.

Objective examination connotes critical examination and scrutiny of the accounting statements of the undertaking
with a view to assessing how far the statements present the actual state of affairs in the correct context and
whether they give a true and fair view about the financial results and state of affairs. An opinion founded on 3
rather reckless and negligent examination and evaluation may expose the auditor to legal action Wwith
consequential loss of professional standing and prestige.

He needs evidence to obtain Information for arriving at his jJudgement.

SA 500 - “Audit Evidence”, explains what constitutes audit evidence in an audit of financial statements, and deals
with the auditor’s responsibility to design and perform audit procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the auditor’s opinion.
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2. Manya Textiles is manufacturer of bed sheets, curtain cloths, other handloom items etc. having its plant at
panipat. Auditors SJ & Co. is having doubts over the reliability of information given to him as audit evidence. Also,

auditors observed inconsistent information while conducting audit. Guide the auditor as to how they should
proceed in the given situation. [RTP Nov-22]

If:

(a) audit evidence obtained from one source is inconsistent with that obtained from another; or

(b) the auditor has doubts over the reliability of information to be used as audit evidence,

the auditor shall determine what modifications or additions to audit procedures are necessary to resolve the
matter, and shall consider the effect of the matter, if any, on other aspects of the audit.

3, sufficiency is the measure of the quantity of audit evidence. The quantity of audit evidence needed is affected
by the auditor’s assessment of the risks of misstatement and also by the quality of such audit evidence. Obtaining
more audit evidence; however, may not compensate for its poor quality. Explain also stating the factors affecting
auditor’s judgment as to sufficiency of audit evidence. [RTP Nov-20 + MTP Apr-23]

sufficiency is the measure of the quantity of audit evidence. The quantity of audit evidence needed is affected by
the auditor’s assessment of the risks of misstatement (the higher the assessed risks, the more audit evidence is likely
to be required) and also by the quality of such audit evidence (the higher the quality, the less may be required).
Obtaining more audit evidence, however, may not compensate for its poor quality. Auditor’s judgement as to
sufficiency may be affected by the factors such as:

(i) Materiality

(i) Risk of materialmisstatement

(iii) Size and characteristics of the population.

(a) Materiality may be defined as the significance of classes of transactions, account balances and presentation and
disclosures to the users of the financial statements. Less evidence would be required in case assertions are less
material to users of the financial statements. But on the other hand if assertions are more material to the users of
the financial statements, more evidence would be required.

(2) Risk of material misstatement may be defined as the risk that the financial statements are materially misstated
prior to audit,

This consists of two components described as follows at the assertion level
(a) Inherent risk—The susceptibility of an assertion to a misstatement that could be material before consideration

of any related controls.
(b) Control risk—The risk that a misstatement that could occur in an assertion that could be material will not be

Prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis by the entity’s internal control. Less evidence would be
required in case assertions that have a lower risk of material misstatement. But on the other hand if assertions have
a higher risk of material misstatement, more evidence would be required.

(c) Size of 2 population refers to the number of items included in the population. Less evidence would be required
in case of smaller, more homogeneous population but on the other hand in case of larger, more heterogeneous

Populations, more evidence would be required.
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4. The nature and timing of the audit procedures to be used may be affected by the fact that some of the
accounting data and other information may be available only in electronic form or only at certain points or periods
in time. Explain with the help of examples. [RTP Nov-20]

The nature and timing of the audit procedures to be used may be affected by the fact that some of the accounting
data and other information may be available only in electronic form or only at certain points or periods in time.

For example, source documents, such as purchase orders and invoices, may exist only in electronic form when an
entity uses electronic commerce, or may be discarded after scanning when an entity uses image processing systems
to facilitate storage and reference.

Certain electronic information may not be retrievable after a specified period of time, for example, if files are
changed and if backup files do not exist. Accordingly, the auditor may find it necessary as a result of an entity’s data
retention policies to request retention of some information for the auditor’s review or to perform audit procedures
at a time when the information is available.

5. The reliability of information to be used as audit evidence, and therefore of the audit evidence itself, is
influenced by its source, its nature and the circumstances under which it is obtained. Explain and elucidate the
guiding principles which are useful in assessing the reliability of audit evidence. [MTP Apr-22]

Reliability of Audit Evidence: As per SA 500 on “Audit Evidence”, the reliability of information to be used as audit
evidence, and therefore of the audit evidence itself, is influenced by its source and its nature, and the circumstances
under which it is obtained, including the controls over its preparation and maintenance where relevant. Therefore,
generalisations about the reliability of various kinds of audit evidence are subject to important exceptions.

While recognising that exceptions may exist, the following guiding principles about the reliability of audit evidence
may be useful:

(i) The reliability of audit evidence is increased when it is obtained from independent sources outside the entity.

(ii) The reliability of audit evidence that is generated internally is increased when the related controls, including
those over its preparation and maintenance, imposed by the entity are effective.

(iii) Audit evidence obtained directly by the auditor (for example, observation of the application of a control) is
more reliable than audit evidence obtained indirectly or by inference (for example, inquiry about the
application of a control).

(iv) Audit evidence in documentary form, whether paper, electronic, or other medium, is more reliable than
evidence obtained orally (for example, a contemporaneously written record of a meeting is more reliable than
a subsequent oral representation of the matters discussed).

(v) Audit evidence provided by original documents is more reliable than audit evidence provided by photocopies
or facsimiles, or documents that have been filmed, digitized or otherwise transformed into electronic form, the
reliability of which may depend on the controls over their preparation and maintenance.

6. While conducting the audit of Pummy Limited, the statutory auditors collected written representations from

the Management. The audit was finalized In addition to other audit procedures but, without making any inquiries,
as the statutory auditors were short of time. In the light of this information,

state the importance of inquiry 3°
one of the methods of collecting Audit Evidence, [RTP May-22]

Inquiry: As per SA 500 Audit Evidence: -
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(i) Inquiry consists of seeking information of knmnfledgeable persons

B i financial and non - financial, within the entity
; tity. Inquiry is
or outside the en

used extensively throughout the audit in addition to other audit procedures.

Inquiries may range from formal written inquiries to informal oral inquiries, Evaluating responses to inquiries is an
integral part of the inquiry process.

(ii) Responses to inquiries may provide the auditor with information not previously possessed or with corroborative
audit evidence. Alternatively, responses might provide information that differs significantly from other information
that the auditor has obtained, for example, information regarding the possibility of management override of

controls. In some cases, responses to inquiries provide a basis for the auditor to modify or perform additional audit
procedures.

(iii) Although corroboration of evidence obtained through inquiry is often of particular importance, in the case of
inquiries about management intent, the information available to support management’s intent may be limited. In
these cases, understanding management’s past history of carrying out its stated intentions, management’s stated
reasons for choosing a particular course of action, and management’s ability to pursue a specific course of action
may provide relevant information to corroborate the evidence obtained through inquiry.

(iv) In respect of some matters, the auditor may consider it necessary to obtain written representations from
management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance to confirm responses to oral inquiries.

7. CA K audited the books of accounts of E Ltd. for the financial year 2020-2021. The auditor used an audit
procedure according to which all the documents and records maintained by the company were checked in detail

to obtain audit evidence. Explain the audit procedure used by the auditor and its reliability.
[Dec-21]

Audit Procedure:

* Inspection involves examining records or documents, whether internal or external, in paper form, electronic
form, or other media, or a physical examination of an asset. Inspection of records and documents provides
audit evidence of varying degrees of reliability, depending on their nature and source and, in the case of internal
records and documents, on the effectiveness of the controls over their production.

* Example of inspection used as a test of controls is inspection of records for evidence of authorisation.

* Some documents represent direct audit evidence of the existence of an asset, for example, a document
constituting a financial instrument such as a inventory or bond. Inspection of such documents may not
necessarily provide audit evidence about ownership or value. In addition, inspecting an executed contract may
provide audit evidence relevant to the entity’s application of accounting policies, such as revenue recognition.
Inspection of tangible assets may provide reliable audit evidence with respect to their existence, but not
necessarily about the entity’s rights and obligations or the valuation of the assets. Inspection of individual
inventory items may accompany the observation of inventory counting.

* Inview of above, it can be concluded that CA K used Inspection as an audit procedure,

8.1n the course of audit of SMP Limited for the financlal year ended 31st March, 2020 you have observed as an
auditor that the company has provided a sum of % 20 Lakhs In the books of account as Gratuity payable to
eMployees based on certificate obtained from an actuary, Glve your comments with reference to the Standard

oN Auditing, [MTP Nov-21]

CE"tificate from a Management's Expert: In the given case, SMP Limited has provided a sum of 20 lakh in the books
of ACCounts 35 gratuity payable on the basis of certificate obtained from an actuary. The liability towards gratuity
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payable to the employees at the time of cessation of service should be asceﬁain?d AOSRImEES f.or Inite account
when the employees are in service, it is an ascertained present liability accruing over the period of service b,
payable upon cessation of service.

The auditor should check the quantification of the gratuity lia bility. He should ascertain whether the same had been

actuarially determined. The auditor should treat the actuary as managements’ expert and conduct procedyre,
relevant to checking the opinion of an expert in accordance with SA 500.

As per SA 500, “Audit Evidence”, when information to be used as audit evidence has been prepared using the worg
of a management’s expert, the auditor shall, to the extent necessary, having regard to the significance of thy
expert’s work for the auditor’s purposes:

1. Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of that expert;

2. Obtain an understanding of the work of that expert; and

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of that expert’s work as audit evidence for the relevant assertion.

9. The objective of auditing is to design and perform audit procedures in such a way as to enable the auditor to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the
auditor's opinion. This can be obtained by performing which procedures? Name the types of audit procedures the
auditor can perform to obtain audit evidence? [Nov-22]

Audit Procedures to Obtain Audit Evidence: Audit evidence to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the
auditor’s opinion is obtained by performing:

(1) Risk assessment procedures; and

(1) Further audit procedures, which comprise:

i. Test of controls, when required by the SAs or when the auditor has chosen to do so; and

ii. Substantive procedures, including tests of details and substantive analytical procedures.

Audit procedures to obtain audit evidence can include
(a) Inspection

(b) Observation

(c) External Confirmation

(d) Recalculation

(e) Reperformance

(f) Analytical Procedures

(g) Inquiry

10. Auditing is a logical process. An auditor is called upon to assess the actualities of the situation, review the
statements of account and give an expert opinion about the truth and fairness of such accounts. This he cannot
do unless he has examined the financial statements objectively. He needs evidence to obtain information ol
arriving at his judgment, Discuss explaining clearly the meaning of audit evidence in detail.

[MTP Nov-23 + Nov-2%

Auditing is a logical process. An auditor Is called upon to assess the actualities of the situation, review the stis"ﬁ‘?”“""ts

of account and give an expert opinion about the truth and fairness of such accounts. This he cannot do unless b
has examined the financial statements objectively.
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Objective examination connotes critical €xamination a
with aview to assessing how far the statements present
they give a true and fair view about the financial results
and negligent examination and evaluation may ey
professional standing and prestige.

nd scrutiny of the accounting statements of the undertaking
the actual state of affairs in the correct context and whether
and state of affairs. An opinion founded on a rather reckless
pose the auditor to legal action with consequential loss of

He needs evidence to obtain information for arriving at his judgment

Audit evidence may be defined as the information used by the auditor in arriving at the conclusions on which the

auditor’s opinion is based. Audit evidence includes both information contained in the accounting records underlying
the financial statements and other information,

Explaining this further, audit evidence includes:-

(1) Information contained in the accounting records: Accounting records include the records of initial accounting
entries and supporting records, such as checks and records of electronic fund transfers; invoices; contracts; the
general and subsidiary ledgers, journal entries and other adjustments to the financial statements that are not

reflected in journal entries; and records such as work sheets and spreadsheets supporting cost allocations,
computations, reconciliations and disclosures.

(2) Other information that authenticates the accounting records and also supports the auditor’s rationale behind
the true and fair presentation of the financial statements: Other information which the auditor may use as audit
evidence includes, for example minutes of the meetings, written confirmations from trade receivables and trade
payables, manuals containing details of internal control etc. A combination of tests of accou nting records and other
information is generally used by the auditor to support his opinion on the financial statements.

SA 501- “Audit Evidence—Specific Considerations for Selected Items”

Inventory
1. ABC Itd is engaged in manufacturing of different type of yarns. On going through its financial statements for
the past years, it is observed that inventory is material to the financial statements.

You as an auditor of the company wanted to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence
and condition of the inventory as appearing in the financial statements. Discuss, how would you proceed as an

auditor. [MTP May-20]

When inventory is material to the financial statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence

"€garding the existence and condition of inventory by:

(1) Attendance at physical inventory counting, unless impracticable, to:
(i) Evaluate management’s instructions and procedures for recording and controlling the results of the entity’s

[Th?sicai inventory counting; dures
(i) Observe the performance of management’s count procedures;
(i) Inspect the inventory; and

(iv) Perform test counts; and '
2 Performing audit procedures over the entity’s 2

re ¥
flect actyal inventory count results.

| inventory records to determine whether they accurately
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2. Explain clearly the examples of matters relevant in planning attendance at physical inventory counting.
[RTP May-29

Matters relevant in planning attendance at physical inventory counting include, for example:
a. Nature of inventory,

b. Stages of completion of work in progress.

c. Therisks of material misstatement related to inventory.

d. The nature of the internal control related to inventory.

e. Whether adequate procedures are expected to be established and proper instructions issued for physicy|
inventory counting.

f. The timing of physical inventory counting.

g. Whether the entity maintains a perpetual inventory system.

h. The locations at which inventory is held, including the materiality of the inventory and the risks of materis|
misstatement at different locations, in deciding at which locations attendance is appropriate
i. Whether the assistance of an auditor’s expert is needed.

3. When inventory under the custody and control of a third party is material to the financial statements, the
auditor can obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of that inventory
by taking written representation from management. [Dec-21]

Incorrect: When inventory under the custody and control of a third party is material to the financial statements, the
auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of that inventory by
performing one or both of the following:
a. Request confirmation from the third party as to the quantities and condition of inventory held on behalf of
the entity.
b. Perform inspection or other audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances.

Litigation & Claims
1. Pachranga International Ltd is manufacturer of pickles, ginger garlic paste, jams etc having its plant at Jaipur.

Being in food industry, the company is facing many litigations in various courts across India. Auditors SPV & Co.
wants to identify such litigations and claims involving the company which may give rise to risk of material
misstatement. Guide the auditor as to how they should proceed for the purpose. [MTP Apr-21]

The auditor SPV & Co. shall design and perform audit procedures in order to identify litigation and claims involving
the entity (Pachranga International Ltd) which may give rise to a risk of material misstatement, including:
(i) Inguiry of management and, where applicable, others within the entity, including in-house legal counsel-
(i) Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and correspondence between the
entity and its external legal counsel; and
(ili) Reviewing legal expense accounts,

2. SPR Ltd has been into the media business since 1990. During the F.Y 2021-2022 many notices were received bY
the company for hurting public sentiments and financial claims were filed against the company. As an auditof of
the company, you requested the management for arranging the meeting with company's external legal counse"
Management is of the view that such meetings are necessary in some certain circumstances only. Can you fist

down those certain circumstances? [May-22]

: ol
Circumstances when becoming necessary to meet with external legal counsel: In the given case of SPR Ltd.,Aud'm
requested the management for meeting with SPR’s external legal counsel.
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In certain circumstances, the auditor also may judge it necessary to meet with the entity’s external legal counsel to

giscuss the likely outcome of the litigation or claims.

This may be the case, for example, where:
(i) The auditor determines that the matter is a significant risk.
(il The matter is complex.

(iij) There IS disagreement between management and the entity’s external legal counsel.

ordinarily, such meetings require management’s permission and are held with a representative of management in
attendance.

3, The audit procedures performed so far by auditor of a company indicate that there is a possibility that company
has not disclosed all material litigation cases involving the company. Does such a situation warrant direct
communication by auditor with external lawyer of the company?

As per requirements of SA-501, If the auditor assesses a risk of material misstatement regarding litigation or claims
that have been identified, or when audit procedures performed indicate that other material litigation or claims
may exist, the auditor shall, seek direct communication with the entity’s external legal counsel. The above
situation warrants direct communication with company’s standing external lawyer.

Segment Information
1. TRM Ltd. is a company engaged in manufacture of beauty products. It has hair care segment, skin care segment
and kids’ beauty products. The auditor wants to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
presentation and disclosure of segment information in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework. Suggest the audit procedures in the given case. [MTP Nov-21]

The auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the presentation and disclosure of segment

information in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework by:

(1) Obtaining an understanding of the methods used by management in determining segment information. Further,
(i) Evaluating whether such methods are likely to result in disclosure in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework; and
(i) Where appropriate, testing the application of such methods; and

(2) Performing analytical procedures or other audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances.

2.GPS & Co, Chartered Accountants, conducting the audit of Pratibha Ltd., a listed company for the year ended
31.03.2022 is concerned with the presentation and disclosure of segment information included in Company's
Annual Report, GPS & Co wanted to ensure that methods adopted by management for determining segment
information have resulted in disclosure in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Guide
GPS & Co with 'Exam ples of Matters' that may be relevant when obtaining an understanding of the methods used

by the management with reference to the relevant SA. [may-22]

Auditors, Gps & Co wanted to ensure and obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding presentation and
disclosure of segment information in accordance with applicable financial reporting framework by obtaining

understanding of methods used by management in determining segment information.

AS per SA 501- “aydit Evidence—Specific Considerations for Selected Items”, example of matters that may be

"elevant when obtaining an understanding of the metho
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information and whether such methods are likely to result in disclosure in accordance with the applicable financia|
reporting framework include:

(i) Sales, transfers and charges between segments, and elimination of intersegment amounts.
(i) Comparisons with budgets and other expected results, for example,

operating profits as a percentage of saleg
(iii) The allocation of assets and costs among segments.

(iv) Consistency with prior periods, and the adequacy of the disclosures with respect to inconsistencies,

SA 505 External Confirmations

1. Define the following :

(i) Positive confirmation request
(ii) Negative confirmation request
(iii) Non-response

(iv) Exception [RTP May-20]

e Positive confirmation request — A request that the confirming party respond directly to the auditor indicating
whether the confirming party agrees or disagrees with the information in the request, or providing the requested
information.

Negative confirmation request — A request that the confirming party respond directly to the auditor only if the
confirming party disagrees with the information provided in the request.

Non-response — A failure of the confirming party to respond, or fully respond, to a positive confirmation request,
or a confirmation request returned undelivered.

Exception — A response that indicates a difference between information requested to be confirmed, or contained
in the entity’s records, and information provided by the confirming party.

2. When using external confirmation procedures, the auditor shall maintain control over external confirmation
requests including sending the requests, including follow-up requests when applicable, to the confirming party:

Explain the other points as to when using external confirmation procedures, the auditor would be required to
maintain control over external confirmation requests. [RTP May-20]

When using external confirmation procedures, the auditor shall maintain control over external confirmation
requests, including:

(2) Determining the information to be confirmed or requested;
(b) Selecting the appropriate confirming party;

(c) Designing the confirmation requests, including determining that requests are properly addressed and contal
return information for responses to be sent directly to the auditor; and

(d) Sending the requests, including follow-up requests when applicable, to the confirming party
3. What are the factors to be considered while designing a confirmation request? [Nov-12]

Factors to consider when designing confirmation requests include:

« Specific identified risks of material misstatement, including fraud risks.
e The layout and presentation of the confirmation request.

Prior experience on the audit or similar engagements.

The assertions being addressed.

el
The method of communication [for example, in paper form, or by electronic mode (like e-mail) of ot
medium].
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s authorisati i
. Manfige.ment;rties maisatltlm or e.ncouragement to the confirming parties to respond to the auditor.
Conﬁrmlng p v only be willing to respond to a confirmation request containing management’s
authorisation.

. The ablllW_ of t'he intended confirming party to confirm or provide the requested information (for example,
individual invoice amount versus total balance).

4. CA Rohit is appointed as an auditor of Grace Ltd., he wants to design a suitable confirmation request letter for
a few debtors of Grace Ltd. As a senior auditor of the firm, explain to him with reference to SA 505 "External
confirmation™ all the conditions that should be present to use Negative Confirmation requests as the sole
substantive audit procedure to address an assessed risk of material misstatement at the assertion level. [July-21]

Negative confirmations is a request that the confirming party respond directly to the auditor only if the confirming

party disagrees with the information provided in the request. Negative information provide less persuasive audit
evidence than positive confirmations.

Accordingly, CA Rohit, Auditor of Grace Ltd, shall not use negative confirmation requests as the sole substantive
audit procedure to address an assessed risk of material misstatement at the assertion level unless all of the
following are present:

(a) The auditor has assessed the risk of material misstatement as low and has obtained sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the operating effectiveness of controls relevant to the assertion;

(b) The population of items subject to negative confirmation procedures comprises a large number of small,
homogeneous, account balances, transactions or conditions;

(c) Avery low exception rate is expected; and

(d) The auditor is not aware of circumstances or conditions that would cause recipients of negative confirmation
requests to disregard such requests.

5, External confirmation procedures frequently are relevant when addressing assertions associated with account
balances and their elements but need not be restricted to these items. Apart from confirmations for bank
balances and accounts receivables, what are the other situations where external confirmation procedures may
provide relevant audit evidence in responding to assessed risks of material misstatement? [RTP Nov-22 +MTP
May-22]

Other examples of situations where external confirmations may be used include the following:
> Inventories held by third parties at bonded warehouses for processing or on consignment
e Property title deeds held by lawyers or financiers for safe custody or as security

~ Investments held for safekeeping by third parties, or purchases from stockbrokers but not delivered at the
balance sheet date s o

~ Amounts due to lenders, including relevant terms of repayment and restrictive covenants.

» Accounts payable balances and terms

# Long outstanding share application money.

6. R Ltd. has asked for email responses for the purpose of external confirmation. The auditor, however, feels
that external confirmation received electronically involves the risk of its reliability. [MTP May-22]

i , for example b i .
Correct: A 505, “External Confirmations”, responses received electronically, fo ple by facsimile or electronic

il, involve risks as to reliability because proof of origin an

’
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and alterations may be difficult to detect. Hence R Ltd. Should avoid using email responses as evidence for externg)

confirmation.
7. Audit evidence obtained from external confirmation is always reliable. [MTP Oct-21]

Incorrect: The reliability of information to be used as audit evidence, and therefore of the audit evidence itself,
influenced by its source and its nature, and the circumstances under which it is obtained, including the controls gye,

its preparation and maintenance where relevant. Even when information to be used as audit evidence is obtainaq

from sources external to the entity, circumstances may exist that could affect its reliability.

8. CA Jignesh Desai is in midst of audit of a company. The company is fairly large one and has a well -functioning
internal audit department. While considering sending out external confirmation requests to trade receivables
outstanding as on date of financial statements, he has delegated the process of choosing trade receivables,
designing requests and receiving responses from customers to internal audit department. The responses are alsp
received on the mail id of internal audit department. Is approach of CA lJignesh Desai proper?

When using external confirmation procedures, the auditor shall maintain control over external confirmation
requests, including:
a. Determining the information to be confirmed or requested;

b. Selecting the appropriate confirming party;
c. Designing the confirmation requests, including determining that requests are properly addressed and contain

return information for responses to be sent directly to the auditor; and
d. Sending the requests, including follow-up requests when applicable, to the confirming party.

In the given case, it appears that external auditor has delegated entire work of sending out external confirmation
requests to internal audit department over which he has no control. Further, responses to external confirmation
requests are received on mail id of internal audit department. All these acts are not in line with requirements under

SA 505.

9. On reviewing schedule of trade receivables of a company, CA Mary finds that in respect of one outstanding
balance, the CFO of the company is not willing to allow her to send external confirmation request due to the
reason that sending out such request could spoil precariously placed business relations with the customer. on
further inquiry, she finds out that there is a dispute going on with the company relating to some quality issues of
goods sent to the customer and matter is sub judice. Efforts are also being made by the company for out of e
settlement. Reviewing correspondence with the customer, she finds that issue is near resolution and no fraud
risk factors exist. Is unwillingness of CFO justifiahle?

. e
Interms of requirements of SA 505, If management refuses to allow the auditor to send a confirmation request th
auditor shall inquire as to management’s reasons for the refusal, and seek audit evidence as to their validity 2"

reasonableness,

A common reason advanced is the existence of a legal dispute or ongoing negotiation with the intended confifm'ng
party, the resolution of which may be affected by an untimely confirmation request. Further, fraud risk factors
not exist. Keeping in view, unwillingness of CFO is justifiable.

8
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Ch-8 SA
1. The newly appointed auditor of BTN Limited wants to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about
whether the opening balances contain misstatements that materially affect the current period's financial
statements. What audit procedures should he perform for this purpose? [May-22 + MTP Apr-23]

pudit Procedure Regarding Opening Balances: The newly appointed auditor of BTN Ltd shall read the most recent

financial statements, if any, and the predecessor auditor’s report thereon, if any, for information relevant to
opening balances, including disclosures.

The auditor of BTN Ltd shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether the opening balances
contain misstatements that materially affect the current period’s financial statements by:
(1) Determining whether the prior period’s closing balances have been correctly brought forward to the current
period or, when appropriate, any adjustments have been disclosed as prior period items in the current year’s
statement of Profit and Loss.
(2) Determining whether the opening balances reflect the application of appropriate accounting policies; and
(3) Performing one or more of the following:
(i) Where the prior year financial statements were audited, perusing the copies of the audited financial
statements including the other relevant documents relating to the prior period financial statements.
(ii) Evaluating whether audit procedures performed in the current period provide evidence relevant to the
opening balances; or
(iii) Performing specific audit procedures to obtain evidence regarding the opening balances.

2. Auditors of M/s Tender India (P) Ltd. were changed for the accounting year 2016-17. The closing inventory of
the company as on 31.3.2016 amounting to Rs. 100 lacs continued as it is and became closing inventory as on
31.3.2017. The auditors of the company propose to exclude from their audit programme the audit of closing
inventory of Rs. 100 lacs on the understanding that it pertains to the preceding year which was audited by another
auditor. [MTP Oct-19]

Verification of Inventory: As per SA 510 “Initial Audit Engagements — Opening Balances”, in conducting an initial

audit engagement, the objective of the auditor with respect to opening balances is to obtain sufficient appropriate

audit evidence about whether-

(i) Opening balances contain misstatements that materially affect the current period’s financial statements; and

(i) Appropriate accounting policies reflected in the opening balances have been consistently applied in the
current period’s financial statements, or changes thereto are properly accounted for and adequately presented
and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

When the financial statements for the preceding period were audited by predecessor auditor, the current auditor
May be able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding opening balances by perusing the copies of
the audited financial statements including the other relevant documents relating to the prior period financial
Statements such as supporting schedules to the audited financial statements.

Ordinarily, the current auditor can place reliance on the closing balances contained in the financial statements for
the Preceding period except when during the performance of audit procedures for the current period the possibility

0 -
m's"‘taternents in opening balances is indicated.
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General principles governing verification of assets require that t
correctly valued as on the Balance Sheet date.

he auditor should confirm that assets haye been

The contention of the management that the inventory has not undergone any change cannot be accepted, it forms
part of normal duties of auditor to ensure that the figures on which he is expressing opinion are correct and Properly
valued. Moreover, it is also quite likely that the inventory lying as it is might have deteriorated and the same neeq

to be examined.

The auditor is advised not to exclude the audit of closing inventory from his audit programme.

“Dream for success & work for it,

I'm glad you're doing that"
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SA 550 Related Parties

1. The nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some circumstances, give rise to higher risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements than transactions with unrelated parties. Explain with the
help of at least three examples. [RTP May-20 + Nov-23]

Many related party transactions are in the normal course of business. In such circumstances, they may carry no
higher risk of material misstatement of the financial statements than similar transactions with unrelated parties.
However, the nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some circumstances, give rise to higher
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements than transactions with unrelated parties.

Example

o Related parties may operate through an extensive and complex range of relationships and structures, with a
corresponding increase in the complexity of related party transactions.

« Information systems may be ineffective at identifying or summarising transactions and outstanding balances
between an entity and its related parties.

o Related party transactions may not be conducted under normal market terms and conditions; for example,
some related party transactions may be conducted with no exchange of consideration.

2. The auditor has a responsibility to perform audit procedures to identify, assess and respond to the risks of
material misstatement arising from the entity’s failure to appropriately account for related party relationships,
transactions or balances. During the audit, the auditor should maintain alertness for related party information
while reviewing records and documents. He may inspect the records or documents that may provide information
about related party relationships and transactions. Explain in detail with examples. [RTP Nov-21 + MTP Nov-23]

During the audit, the auditor should maintain alertness for related party information while reviewing records and
documents. He may inspect the following records or documents that may provide information about related party
relationships and transactions, for example:

1. Entity income tax returns.

2. Information supplied by the entity to regulatory authorities.

3. Shareholder registers to identify the entity’s principal shareholders.

4. Statements of conflicts of interest from management and those charged with governance.

5. Records of the entity’s investments and those of its pension plans.

6. Contracts and agreements with key management or those charged with governance.

7. Significant contracts and agreements not in the entity’s ordinary course of business.

8. Specific invoices and correspondence from the entity’s professional advisors.

9. Life insurance policies acquired by the entity.

10. Significant contracts re-negotiated by the entity during the period.

11. Internal auditors’ reports.
12. Documents associated with the entity’s filings with a securities regulator e.g, prospectuses)

3.Pltd.isa company from a business group "ABCD" and is engaged in trading of garments. The promoters of the
tOmpany are promoters and directors of some other group companies also. You have been appointed as an
auditor of P Ltd. P Ltd has entered into various inter-company transactions (within group companies) during the
Year which are outside its normal course of business. What will be your duties as an auditor in relation to those

transactions? [May-22]
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Duties of Auditor in identifying Significant Related Party Transactions: For identified significant related party
transactions outside the P Ltd.’s normal course of business, the auditor shall:

1. Inspect the underlying contracts or agreements, if any, and evaluate whether:
(i) The business rationale (or lack thereof) of the transactions suggests that they may have been entered into tg

engage in fraudulent financial reporting or to conceal misappropriation of assets;
(ii) The terms of the transactions are consistent with management’s explanations; and
(iii) The transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable

financial reporting framework; and
2. Obtain audit evidence that the transactions have been appropriately authorised and approved.

4. In the context of related parties, the potential effects of inherent limitations on the auditor's ability to detect

material misstatements are greater.

Correct: In the context of related parties, the potential effects of inherent limitations on the auditor’s ability to
detect material misstatements are greater for such reasons as the following:

¢ Management may be unaware of the existence of all related party relationships.

¢ Related party relationships may present a greater opportunity for collusion, concealment or manipulation by

management.

SA 560 Subsequent Events

Test Your Understanding
1. CA PK Jacob is conducting audit of a company for year 2021-22. The company is engaged in export of ethnic
rugs to buyers in Europe. The audit is nearing completion in month of July 2022. However, it becomes known to
the auditor that one of overseas buyers has made a legal claim against the company on 1st June 2022 for injury
caused to a customer of one European buyer due to sub-standard dyes used in rugs of one lot of order shipped in
August, 2021, The management of company has decided to agree to an out of court settlement of Rs.5 crore t0
protect its reputation. The financial statements of the company are silent on this issue. Discuss, how, CA PK Jacob

should proceed to deal with above issue.

In the given case, the auditor has come to know of legal claim against the company before issue of audit report. It
has also come to his knowledge that management of company has agreed to an out of court settlement of Rs.5
crore. It is an example of subsequent event between the date of the financial statements and the date of the
auditor’s report. It provides evidence of conditions that existed at the date of the financial statements and requires
adjustment in financial statements. He should ask company management to make necessary adjustment to the
financial statements. If adjustment is not made by management, he should consider impact on auditor’s report.

2. CA Chandni Khanna is going to complete audit of a company within next few days. She has performed necessary
audit procedures like inquiry of management personnel, reading minutes of meetings held after date of financial
statements, going through books of accounts after date of financial statements to make sure that all subsequent
events before signing audit report have been considered by her. Still, she wants to be certain that no such events
have been left out. What she should do in such a situation? Also, discuss the rationale of doing so.

She has already performed necessary audit procedures like inquiry of management personnel, reading minutes of
meetings after date of financial statements and going through books after date of financial statements.
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Now, she should re?ueist manadgement and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, to provide a
written representation in accordance with SA 580, “Written Representations” that all events occurring subsequent

o the date of the financial stateme?ts and for.which the applicable financial reporting framework requires
ad;‘ustme“t or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

The rationale of obtaining written representations is that even after performing abovesaid procedures, she may not
come to know all subsequent events. Therefore, it is necessary from an auditor’s point of view to obtain
acknowledgment from management in the form of Written representations that all such events for which the
applicable financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

3. Which of the following is not an example of subsequent event?

(a) Event occurring between date of financial statements and date of auditor’s report.

(b) Event occurring on date of financial statements.

(c) Event occurring after filing audit report with tax authorities. Had such an event been known earlier, auditor
would have amended report.

(d) Event occurring during course of performing audit procedures after date of financial statements.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. The auditor shall perform audit procedures designed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all
events occurring between the date of the financia! statements and the date of the auditor’s report, that requires
adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements have been identified. With reference to SA 560, what are
the audit procedures included in the auditor's risk assessment? [July-21 Suggested]

e The auditor shall perform audit procedures designed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all
events occurring between the date of the financial statements and the date of the auditor’s report that require
adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements have been identified.

* The auditor is not, however, expected to perform additional audit procedures on matters to which previously
applied audit procedures have provided satisfactory conclusions.

* The auditor shall perform the procedures required above so that they cover the period from the date of the
financial statements to the date of the auditor’s report, or as near as practicable thereto.

The auditor shall take into account the auditor’s risk assessment which shall include the following:
2. Obtaining an understanding of any procedures management has established to ensure that subsequent events

are identified,
Inquiring of management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance as to whether any

subsequent events have occurred which might affect the financial statements.

Reading minutes, if any, of the meetings, of the entity’s owners, management and those charged with
governance, that have been held after the date of the financial statements and inquiring about matters
discussed at any such meetings for which minutes are not yet avallable.

i Reading the entity’s latest subsequent interim financlal statements, if any.

b.

C.

2. The auditor has no obligation to perform any audit procedures regarding the financial statements after the
date of the auditor’s report. However, when, after the date of the auditor’s report but before the date the
; port. ' wn to the auditor that, had it been known to the auditor at

financ;

al statements are issued, a fact becomes kno

the date of the auditor’s report’mav have caused the auditorto amend the auditor’s report. Explain the auditor’s
’

Obligay:
'8ation jn the above situation. [MTP Nov-21]

c
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The auditor has no obligation to perform any audit procedures regarding the financial statements after the date of
the auditor’s report. However, when, after the date of the auditor’s report but before the date the financiy|
statements are issued, a fact becomes known to the auditor that, had it been known to the auditor at the date of
the auditor’s report, may have caused the auditor to amend the auditor’s report, the auditor shall:

a. Discuss the matter with management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance.

b. Determine whether the financial statements need amendment and If so,

c. Inquire how management intends to address the matter in the financial statements.

3. SA 560, “Subsequent Events” deals with the auditor’s responsibilities relating to subsequent events in an audit
of financial statements. Financial statements may be affected by certain events that occur after the date of the

financial statements. Many financial reporting frameworks specifically refer to such events. Explain those events
and also define subsequent events. [RTP Nov-21]

SA 560, “Subsequent Events” deals with the auditor’s responsibilities relating to subsequent events in an audit of
financial statements. Financial statements may be affected by certain events that occur after the date of the
financial statements.

Many financial reporting frameworks specifically refer to such events. Such financial reporting frameworks ordinarily
identify two types of events:

(a) Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the date of the financial statements; and
(b) Those that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the date of the financial statements.

SA 700 explains that the date of the auditor’s report informs the reader that the auditor has considered the effect
of events and transactions of which the auditor becomes aware and that occurred up to that date.

Subsequent events refer to events occurring between the date of the financial statements and the date of the
auditor’s report, and facts that become known to the auditor after the date of the auditor’s report.

4. Inquiry from Management is helpful for Auditor to evaluate subsequent events. Discuss specific enquiries in
reference of SA 560, which might have effect on the financial statements. [Nov-17]

Inquiring from Management to Evaluate Subsequent Event: As per SA 560 —Subsequent Events|], in inquiring of
management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, as to whether any subsequent events have
occurred that might affect the financial statements, the auditor may inquire as to the current status of items that

were accounted for on the basis of preliminary or inconclusive data and may make specific inquiries about the
following matters-

(i) Whether new commitments, borrowings or guarantees have been entered into.

(i) Whether sales or acquisitions of assets have occurred or are planned.

(iii) Whether there have been increases in capital or issuance of debt instruments, such as the issue of new shares
or debentures, or an agreement to merge or liquidate has been made or is planned.

(iv) Whether any assets have been appropriated by government or destroyed, for example, by fire or flood.
(v) Whether there have been any developments regarding contingencies.

(vi) Whether any unusual accounting adjustments have been made or are contemplated.

(vii) Whether any events have occurred or are likely to occur which will bring into question the appmpriatenesso

accounting policies used in the financial statements as would be the case, for example, if such events call int©
question the validity of the going concern assumption.

(viii) Whether any events have occurred that are relevant to the measurement of estimates or provisions made "
the financial statements.
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(ix) Whether any events have occurred that are relevant to the recoverability of assets.

5. Discuss meaning of “Date the financial statements are issued” under SA 560.

Meaning of “Date the financial statements are issued”

it reflects the date that the auditor’s report and audited financial statements are made available to third parties.
The date the financial statements are issued generally depends on the regulatory environment of the entity.

In some circumstances, the date the financial statements are issued may be the date that they are filed with a
regulatory authority. Since audited financial statements cannot be issued without an auditor’s report, the date that
the audited financial statements are issued must not only be at or later than the date of the auditor’s report, but
must also be at or later than the date the auditor’s report is provided to the entity.

SA 570 Going Concern

Test Your Understanding

puring course of audit of a company, CA. Varun Aggarwal notices that company is facing significant skilled labour
shortages resulting in hampering of operations of company. The company’s manufacturing is dependent upon
skilled labour coming from villages in certain districts of Eastern UP. However, due to job opportunities available
near villages now, many are not interested in going out from their native villages. Such a situation has led to
company not being able to keep its commitments, losing out on orders and fall in its revenues. Fixed costs of the
company remain at a high level. As a result, company is facing a liquidity crunch and is not able to pay its creditors
on time. The bankers of company are also not willing to help the company to tide over liquidity crisis. The auditor
is having doubts over going concern status of the company. How should management of the company try to
address auditor’s concerns? What audit procedures may be performed by auditor in such a situation?

Significant shortage of skilled labour, inability to pay creditors on time and overall liquidity crisis faced by the
company are examples of events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In such a situation, management should try to address auditor’s concerns by preparing its future plan of action
including preparation of cash flow forecast showing inflow and outflow of cash. Such a cash flow forecast should
3ddress auditor’s concerns regarding liquidity crisis being faced by the company.

The auditor should perform audit procedures to evaluate the reliability of the underlying data to prepare the
forecast and determining whether there Is adequate support for the assumptions underlying the forecast. The
auditor shoyld also consider whether any additional facts or Information have become available since the date on

whic
h Management made its assessment.

1 Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
+On the basis of which assumption the financial statements of a company are prepared. Explain, [RTP May-19]

Goh
. € Concern Basis of Accounting ; O ——
er ; 0 ents are prepared on the i
) the Boing concern basls of accounting, the financial statem prep assumption that the

My is o g0ing concern and will continue Its operations for the foreseeable future. When the use of the going

C assets and liabllities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able

OnCEr .
e N basis of accoy nting is appropriate, A
lize its assats and discharge Its liabilities in the normal course of bu :

CA
shubham Keswani 105

.



Guest
Rectangle


Ch-9 SA 550/560/570/580

2. Management's assessment of the entity's ability to contin
about inherently uncertain future outcomes of events or conditions. What are relevant factors to that Judgement;

[Jan-21]

ue as a going concern involves making a iUdEemem

Management’s assessment of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern involves making a judgment, at ,

particular point in time, about inherently uncertain future outcomes of events or conditions. The following factors
are relevant to that judgment:

» The degree of uncertainty associated with the outcome of an event or condition increases significantly the
further into the future an event or condition or the outcome occurs. For that reason, most financial reporting
frameworks that require an explicit management assessment specify the period for which management js
required to take into account all available information.

» The size and complexity of the entity, the nature and condition of its business and the degree to which it js
affected by external factors affect the judgment regarding the outcome of events or conditions.

> Any judgment about the future is based on information available at the time at which the judgment is made,
Subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgments that were reasonable at the

time they were made.

3. While doing audit of ABC Pvt Ltd, on the basis of sufficient and appropriate evidence, auditor comes to a
conclusion that use of the Going Concern Basis of Accounting is appropriate, but a material uncertainty exists.
Discuss the implications for auditor’s report if:
(a) Adequate Disclosure of a Material Uncertainty is Made in the Financial Statements
(b) Adequate Disclosure of a Material Uncertainty is Not Made in the Financial Statements

[RTP Nov-21 + May-23]
Use of the Going Concern Basis of Accounting is Appropriate but a Material Uncertainty Exists
The identification of a material uncertainty is a matter that is important to users’ understanding of the financial
statements. The use of a separate section with a heading that includes reference to the fact that a material
uncertainty related to going concern exists alerts users to this circumstance.

(a) Adequate Disclosure of a Material Uncertainty is Made in the Financial Statements

If adequate disclosure about the material uncertainty is made in the financial statements, the auditor shall express
an unmodified opinion and the auditor’s report shall include a separate section under the heading “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern.”

(b) Adequate Disclosure of a Material Uncertainty is Not Made in the Financial Statements

If adequate disclosure about the material uncertainty is not made in the financial statements, the auditor shall:
(a) Express a qualified opinion or adverse opinion, as appropriate, in accordance with SA 705 (Revised); and

(b) In the Basis for Qualified (Adverse) Opinion section of the auditor’s report, state that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the financial
statements do not adequately disclose this matter.

4, Give examples of financial events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt 0"
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. [RTP Nov-21]

The following are examples of Financial events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast s'lE"iﬁcanl
doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern :
v Net liability or net current liability position.
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, Fixed-term borrowings approaching maturity without realistic prospects of renewal or repayment; of excessive
cliance on short-term borrowings to finance long-term assets
5 .

|ndications of withdrawal of financial support by creditors.

Negative operating cash flows indicated by historical or prospective financial statements.
y financial ratios.

v

v
/ Adverse ke

5. when performing risk assessment procedures as required by SA 315, the auditor shall consider whether events
or conditions exist that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. In so
doing, the auditor has dete"‘ﬂlﬂﬁd that management of XYZ Ltd has already performed a preliminary assessment
of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, Explain how would auditor of XYZ Ltd proceed in the above

case.

Also
management.

explain how would the auditor proceed if such an assessment has not yet been performed by the

(RTP May-21)
When performing risk assessment procedures as required by SA 315, the auditor shall consider whether events or
conditions exist that may cast significant doubt onthe entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In so doing, the auditor shall determine whether management has already performed a preliminary assessment of
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, and:

(i) If such an assessment has been performed, the auditor shall discuss the assessment with management and
determine whether management has identified events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and, if so, management’s plans to address
them; or

(ii) If such an assessment has not yet been performed, the auditor shall discuss with management the basis for the
intended use of the going concern basis of accounting, and inquire of management whether events or conditions
exist that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

6. As described in SA 200, the potential effects of inherent limitations on the auditor’s ability to detect material
misstatements are greater for future events or conditions that may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going
concern. Explain stating the auditor’s responsibilities with regard to going concern. (RTP May-21)

The auditor’s responsibilities are:
(1) to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on, the appropriateness of
Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements, and
{2) to conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists about the entity’s

ability to continye as a going concern.

H ‘ o
OWever, as described in SA 200, the potentlal effects of inherent limitations on the auditor's ability to detect
Material v
ateria| Misstatements are greater for future events or conditions that may cause an entity to cease to continue as

d H .
Boing concerp, The auditor cannot predict such future events or conditions.

Al ’
':Cording;y, the absence of any reference to a materlal uncertainty about the entity’s ability to continue as a going

COncer ‘s abili i
i, Nin an auditor’s report cannot be viewed as a guarantee as to the entity’s ability to continue as a going
ern.
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7. M/s ANS & Associates has been appointed as the statutory auditors of MNO Ltd. The company has beep
suffering losses due to the emergence of highly successful competitor, thereby leading to negative networth, Also,
the sales head, key management personnel, of the company left the company due to health issues. When cp
Amar, the engagement partner discussed the scenario with the management of the company, he did not get any

satisfactory reply from the management. What is the responsibility of M/s ANS & Associates with regard to SA
570? [SM]

As per SA 570, one of the objectives of the auditor regarding going concern is to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence regarding the same and to conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements.

* Further it also contains the list of events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern which are:
¥ Financial indicator- Negative networth

v Operating indicator- Loss of key management and emergence of highly successful competitor.

In the present case, MNO Ltd. has negative networth on account of emergence of highly successful competitor and
the sales head of the company has also left the company.

Also, CA Amar did not get any satisfactory reply when he discussed the going concern matter with the management.

Thus, from the above facts, it appears that MNO Ltd. is not going concern.

* |fthe management of MNO Ltd. has used the going concern basis of accounting, the auditor should first ask the

management to adjust the financial statements.

* |f the management of MNO Ltd. does not agree with the same, CA Amar shall consider the impact on his audit
report.

8. The auditor of a company is having concerns about following of going concern basis of accounting followed by
management for preparation of financial statements. It asks the management to justify preparation of financial
statements. However, management is not willing to make its assessment and share with auditor. What are
implications for auditor’s report in such a scenario?

Management unwilling to make or extend its assessment If management is unwilling to make or extend its

assessment when requested to do so by the auditor, the auditor shall consider the implications for the auditor’s
report.

In such a situation, a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion in the auditor’s report may be appropriate, because
it may not be possible for the auditor to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding management’s usé
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements,

9. Which of the following is not an example of events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern?

(a) Adverse key financial ratios

(b) Inability to invest in modernisation of plant
(c) Inability to pay creditors on time

(d) Inability to pay salary of staff
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SA 580 Written Representations

Ch

1. Written representation from management can be 3 substitute for other evidence that the auditor could expect
to be reasonably available.

incorrect: One of the ob}ect.w.'es of th.e Written representation is to support other audit evidence relevant to the
ﬁnancIal statements or spemflf: assertions in the financial statements by means of written representation. So it is
clear that written representations cannot be a substitute for other evidence that the auditor could expect to be

reasonably available,

2. Explain the objectives of the auditor regarding written representations. [Jan-21 + MTP Oct-21]

The objectives of the auditor regarding written representation:

(i) To obtain written representations: To obtain written representations from management. Also that management
befistomi X has fulfilled its responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements and for the completeness
of the information provided to the auditor;

(i) To support other evidence: To support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or specific
assertions in the financial statements by means of written representations; and

(iii) To respond appropriately

To respond appropriately to written representations provided by management or if management does not provide
the written representations requested by the auditor.

3. CA K is re-appointed as the auditor of B Ltd. He wants to re-confirm certain matters and has asked the
management to give written representations for the same. Under what circumstances can an auditor ask the
management to reconfirm its acknowledgement and understanding of responsibilities in written representation?
[Dec-21]

Other Written Representation: Other SAs require the auditor to request written representations. If, in addition to
such required representations, the auditor determines that it is necessary to obtain one or more written
representations to support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or one or more specific
assertions in the financial statements, the auditor shall request such other written representations.

The written representations draw on the agreed acknowledgement and understanding of management of its
responsibilities by requesting confirmation that it has fulfilled them. The auditor, CA K of B Ltd, may also ask
management of B Ltd to reconfirm its acknowledgement and understanding of those responsibilities in written
representations,

This is Particularly appropriate when:
() Those who signed the terms of the audit engagement on behalf of the entity no longer have the relevant

responsibilities;

(ili’ The terms of the audit engagement were prepared Ina previous year;
(i) There is any indication that management misunderstands those responsibllities; or

(V) Changes in circumstances make it appropriate to do so.
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4. Written representation from management can be a substitute for other evidence that the auditor could €Xpect
to be reasonably available. (RTP May-22)

Incorrect: One of the objectives of the written representation is to support other audit evidence relevant to the
financial statements or specific assertions in the financial statements by means of written representation. So it js
clear that written representations cannot be a substitute for other evidence that the auditor could expect tg be
reasonably available.

5. The auditor P of PAR and Co., a firm of Chartered Accountants is conducting audit of Kapur Industries Ltd. The
auditor requests management to provide Banker’s certificate in support of Fixed deposits whereas management
provides only written representation on the matter. Discuss how would you deal as an auditor. @'

“Although written representations provide necessary audit evidence yet they do not provide sufficient
appropriate audit evidence on their own about any of the matters with which they deal”. Discuss. [SM]

Although written representations provide necessary audit evidence, they do not provide sufficient appropriate audit
evidence on their own about any of the matters to support other audit evidence to confirm certain matters or
provided to the auditor written statement by management with which they deal.

Furthermore, the fact that management has provided reliable written representations does not affect the nature or

extent of other audit evidence that the auditor obtains about the fulfillment of management’s responsibilities, or
about specific assertions.

Applying the above to the given problem, the auditor would further request the management to provide him with
the Banker’s certificate in support of fixed deposits held by the company.

6. Akash & Associates are the statutory auditors of Deluxe Ltd. for the FY 2020-21. During the course of audit, CA
Akash, the engagement partner requested the management of the company to provide written representation
with respect to val_uation of a transaction. The management, however does not provide the same to CA Akash.
What course of action should CA Akash follow in such situation? [MTP Mar-23]

If management of Deluxe Ltd. does not provide one or more of the requested written representations, CA Akash
should: Z

a. Discuss the matter with management;
b. Re-evaluate the integrity of management and evaluate the effect that this may have on the reliability of
representations (oral or written) and audit evidence in general; and

Take appropriate actions, including determining the possible effect on the opinion in the auditor’s report in
accordance with SA 705,

7. CAR Gurumurthy is ahout to complete audit of a company, Before completion, he asks management to |:lr0""ide
him a written representation confirming that management has fulfilled its responsibilities regarding preparatio”
of financial statements. He also wants management to confirm in writing about providing of all the necessary
information and completeness of transactions to him. The management feels that auditor is seeking irrelevant

documents near the completion of audit. Why view of management is not

proper? What possible implications it
may lead to?

The view of management is not proper. Audit evidence obtained during the audit that management has fulfilled
responsibilities regarding preparation of financial statements and about information provided and completeness of
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"ansadions is ot SUfﬁCi?nF without obtaining confillmation from management that it believes that it has fulfilled
esponsibilities. This is because the auditor is not able to judge solely on other audit evidence whether

management has prepared and presented the financial statements and provided information to the auditor on
" the basis of the agreed acknow'E.dgement and understanding of its responsibilities. In case of refusal of
ment to provide such a confirmation, it may lead to disclaimer of opinion by the auditor.

those I

manage

g. Written representations are: -
(a) Necessary audit evidence
(b) sufficient appropriate audit evidence

(c) Not audit evidence
dit evidence depending upon auditor’s professional judgment

(d) Au
Ans (A)
“You are like a Flower, one day you’ll Blossom,
keep watering your Destiny with Hardwork”
Ca
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1. On reviewing internal control over inventories as part of statutory audit of a company, auditor finds that
physical verification is not being conducted at regular intervals as stipulated by the management. The auditor
finds it to be significant deficiency in internal control over inventories. He points it out to the management ina
one-liner as under: -

“Physical verification of inventories is not being conducted at regular intervals as stipulated by management,”
Is above communication by auditor proper? Ignore statutory reporting requirements, if any in this regard.

While pointing out significant deficiencies in internal control, auditor has not only to communicate significant
deficiencies giving their description but also explain the potential effects and sufficient information to those
charged with governance and management to understand context of communication.

Therefore, the above communication is not proper.

Not only significant deficiency has to be communicated, it should also be explained to management the potential
effects of not carrying out physical verification of inventories at regular intervals as stipulated by management. It

should explain that such a significant deficiency can lead to misstatement of inventories impacting profits of the
company.

Highlighting importance of such a control, it should be stated that responsibility be fixed for concerned persons for
adhering to such an important control.

2. List out some matters that the auditor may consider in determining whether a deficiency or combination of
deficiencies in internal control constitutes a “significant deficiency”.

Examples of matters that the auditor may consider in determining whether a deficiency or combination of
deficiencies in internal control constitutes a significant deficiency
* The likelihood of the deficiencies leading to material misstatements in the financial statements in the future.
* The susceptibility to loss or fraud of the related asset or liability.
* The subjectivity and complexity of determining estimated amounts, such as fair value accounting estimates.
* The financial statement amounts exposed to the deficiencies.

* The volume of activity that has occurred or could occur in the account balance or class of transactions exposed
to the deficiency or deficiencies.

* The importance of the controls to the financial reporting process, for example:

General monitoring controls (such as oversight of management).

Controls over the prevention and detection of fraud.

Controls over the selection and application of significant accounting policies.
Controls over significant transactions with related parties.

Controls over significant transactions outside the entity’s normal course of business.

Controls over the period-end financial reporting process (such as controls over non-recurring iﬂumal
entries).

T ILTELY

* The cause and frequency of the exceptions detected as a result of the deficiencies in the controls.

3. In what ways an effective two-way communication betwee

en auditor and those charged with governance is
important?

Communication from auditor is Important with those charged with governance.
An effective two-way communication is important in assisting: -
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The auditor and those charged with governance in understanding matters related to the audit in context, and
in developing a constructive working relationship. This relationship is developed while maintaining the
auditor’s independence and objectivity,
b, The auditor in obtaining from those charged with governance information relevant to the audit. For example,
those charged with governance may assist the auditor in understanding the entity and its environment, in
identifying appropriate sources of audit evidence, and in providing information about specific transactions or
events; and
Those charged with governance in fulfilling their responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process,
thereby reducing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.

CASE STUDY
CA. Gaurav Gogoi is about to conclude audit of a company. It has been noticed during the course of audit that there
is shortage of important raw material supplies being imported from China due to prevailing geo-political situation.
The company has shared with him its plan to deal with the situation. He is satisfied with assessment of the company
for dealing with the matter. The issue is disclosed in financial statements and considering management’s
assessment, it is felt that use of going concern assumption by company in preparation of financial statements is

appropriate.

Besides, he also wants to be sure that all subsequent events till now have been considered and accounted for, where
ever necessary, in financial statements.

Before concluding audit, he requests written representations from management regarding its responsibilities.
However, it is noticed that such written representations provided by management use qualifying language.

He has also communicated significant findings from audit in writing with those charged with governance in the
company and has retained copy of relevant mails. Besides, there are certain matters which were communicated by
him orally from time to time during the course of audit to those charged with governance.

Based on above, answer the following questions: -

(1) As regards description of matter above concerning issue of going concern, which of the following statements

is most appropriate for auditor’s report?

3. The auditor should express an unmodified opinion.

b. The auditor should express a qualified opinion as material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

¢ Besides expressing an unmodified opinion, the auditor’s report shall include a separate section under the

heading “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” drawing attention to the note in which such

disclosure is made in financial statements along with related matters.

Such an issue does not affect auditor’s opinion.

(2) As regards going concern basis of accounting is concerned, which of the following statements is true?

a A company showing net loss in its financial statements is essentially not a going concern.

Following going concern assumption of accounting s primary duty of auditor.
In case, 3 company is not a going concern, its financial statements must be prepared on liquidation basis.

b.
C.
% Audit Procedure seeking confirmation from banker regarding outstanding balance relates to verification of

80ing concern assumption.
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(3) Which of the following statements is true in respect of auditor’s responsibilities in respect of subsequep

events?

d.

There is no obligation for an auditor to perform audit procedures for events occurring between date offinanciai

statements and date of auditor’s report.

There is no obligation for an auditor to perform audit procedures after signing of auditor’s report, even jf he
comes to know of an event, which if known to him earlier would have caused him to amend the audit report,
The auditor has only to rely upon written representation of management regarding subsequent events, He 3
no other means to know about such events.

The auditor should perform necessary audit procedures to know about events occurring between the date of

financial statements and date of auditor’s report. -

(4) As regards use of qualifying language in written representations, which of the following statement is most

appropriate?

d.

It is reasonable for the auditor to accept such wording if the auditor is satisfied that the representations are
being made by those with appropriate responsibilities and knowledge of the matters included in the
representations,

Written representations should be unconditional. Such a wording is not acceptable.

Such a wording dilutes intent of written representations. However, it can be accepted by auditor only in
exceptional circumstances.

Qualifying language in written representations is compulsory.

(5) As regards auditor’s responsibility regarding matters communicated orally with those charged with
governance, which of following is most appropriate?

d.

Matters communicated orally have to be documented by the auditor stating when and to whom these were
communicated.

Matters communicated orally need not be put into writing. It is sufficient for auditor to have communicated
orally.

Matters communicated orally need not be put into writing. It is not practically feasible.

Matters communicated orally have to be documented by the auditor stating to whom these were
communicated.

1.c2.c3.d4.a5.a

McQ

An auditor of a company communicates significant findings from audit with those charged with governance in the
company. Which of the statements is false in regard to communication made?

(a) Evaluation of adequacy of communication process is required on part of the auditor.

(b) Planned scope and timing of audit has also to be communicated,

(c) Communication of rationale behind audit procedures is necessary.

(d) Significant difficulties encountered during audit, if any, have to be communicated.
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Test your Understanding

a2 company intends to apply analytical procedures for verifying revenue. Discuss any two analytical

 auditor of .
A hich may be performed by auditor relating to revenues.

Proced“res "
Mi‘a' procedures in relation to revenue can include;-

Ana . . ) o

0 comparing revenue of current year with previous year and investigating significant fluctuations

(i) Comparing revenue of current year with budgeted targets and investigating significant fluctuations

Correct/Incorrect :
1. As per the standard on Auditing (SA) 520 “Analytical Procedures” ‘the term “analytical procedures” means
evaluations of financial information through analysis of plausible relationships among financial data only.

incorrect. As per the standard on Auditing (SA) 520 “Analytical Procedures” the term “analytical procedures” means
evaluations of financial information through analysis of plausible relationships among both financial and
ponfinancial data. OR

The term "Analytical Procedures” means evaluation of financial information through analysis of plausible
relationships among financial data and non-financial data. [Nov-22]

correct: As per Standard on Auditing (SA) 520 “Analytical Procedures”, the term “analytical procedures” means
evaluations of financial information through analysis of plausible relationships among both financial and non-
financial data. Analytical procedures also encompass such investigation as is necessary of identified fluctuations or
relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant information or that differ from expected values by a
significant amount.

2. Auditor can depend on routine checks to disclose all the mistakes or manipulation that may exist in accounts.

Incorrect. Routine checks cannot be depended upon to disclose all the mistakes or manipulation that may exist in

accounts, certain other procedures also have to be applied like trend and ratio analysis in addition to reasonable
tests,

3. Only purpose of analytical procedures is to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence when using substantive
analytical procedures.

Ln;:r;ed' Analytical procedures use comparisons and relationships tf) assess whether account balances or other
)T :;Ei.ir reasonable. Analytical procedures are used fc.:r the fo!lowfng pu rpo.ses:
i) To dea‘_'" relevant and reliable audit evidence when using substantwe?naimcaiiprocedure.s; and

sign and perform analytical procedures near the end of the audit that assist the auditor when forming an

Over, ; ; ; ; .
e all conclusion as to whether the financial statements are consistent with the auditor’s understanding of the
ity.

4, Analvti
l¥tical Procedures are required in the planning phase only.

'"‘°frect, An

additi alytical Procedures are required in the planning phase and it Is often done during the testing phase. In
on the

se are also required during the completion phase.
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5. Substantive analytical procedures are generally less applicable to large volumes of transactions that tend 1, be
predictable over time

Incorrect. Substantive analytical procedures are generally more applicable to large volumes of transactions thy
tend to be predictable over time

6. Ratio analysis is useful in analyzing revenue and expense account only.

Incorrect: Ratio analysis is useful for analysing asset and liability accounts as well as revenue and expense accounts

7. Reasonableness test rely only on the events of the prior period like other analytical procedures.

Incorrect: Unlike trend analysis, Reasonableness test does not rely on events of prior periods, but upon non-financial
data for the audit period under consideration.

8. The statutory auditor of the company can apply analytical procedures to the standalone financial statements
of a company only and not to the consolidated financial statements.

Incorrect: Analytical procedures may be applied to consolidated financial statements, components and individual
elements of information.

9. If an entity has a known number of employees at fixed rates of pay throughout the period, there would be
more need to perform tests of details on the payroll. [RTP Nov-20)

Incorrect: If an entity has a known number of employees at fixed rates of pay throughout the period, it may be
possible for the auditor to use this data to estimate the total payroll costs for the period with a high degree of

accuracy, thereby providing audit evidence for a significant item in the financial statements and reducing the need
to perform tests of details on the payroll.

10. SA 520 deals with the auditor's use of analytical procedures as substantive procedures ("substantive analytical

procedures”), and as procedures near the end of the audit, that assist the auditor in preparation of the financial
statements. [May-22]

Incorrect: SA 520 deals with the auditor’s use of analytical procedures as substantive procedures (“substantive

analytical procedures”), and as procedures near the end of the audit that assist the auditor when forming an overall
conclusion on the financial statements.

11. An unexplained decrease in GP Ratio may result due to fictitious sales. [RTP Nov-22]

Incorrect: A fictitious sale will increase the GP Ratio, instead of decreasing it. GP ratio normally comes down if theré

are unrecorded sales or reversal of fictitious sale entries recorded in the previous year or fictitious purchase of
decrease in closing stock.
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Ch- Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions

the purposes of the SAs, the term “analytical procedures” means evaluations of financial information
r

h analysis of plausible relationships among both financial and non-financial data. Explain giving examples
u

roug
:; poth. [RTP Nov-211

tical procedures include the consideration of comparisons of the entity’s financial information with, for
Ana

e}(ample:

. Comp :
anticipated results of the entity, such as budgets or forecasts, or expectations of the auditor, such as an

estimation of depreciation.
gialint Inaussy information, such as a comparison of the entity’s ratio of sales to accounts receivable with
industry averages or with other entities of comparable size in the same industry.

arable information for prior periods.

analytical procedures also include consideration of relationships, for example:

. Among elements of financial information that would be expected to conform to a predictable pattern based
on the entity’s experience, such as gross margin percentages.

« Between financial information and relevant non-financial information, such as payroll costs to number of
employees.

2. Explain how a statutory auditor of a company can apply analytical procedures at the planning phase of audit.
[MTP Nov-21] [OR]

Inthe planning stage, analytical procedures assist the auditor in understanding the client’s business and in
identifying areas of potential risk. Explain. [RTP Nov-20]

Analytical Procedures are required in the planning phase and it is often done during the testing phase.
Taddition these are also required during the completion phase.

Analytical Procedures in Planning the Audit: In the planning stage, analytical procedures assist the auditor in
Understanding the client’s business and in identifying areas of potential risk by indicating aspects of and
developments in the entity’s business of which he was previously unaware.

This information will assist the auditor in determining the nature, timing and extent of his other audit
Procedures,

Analytica| Procedures in planning the audit use both financial data and non-financial information, such as
Number of employees, square feet of selling space, volume of goods produced and similar information.
:i:iexarn.p!e, analytical procedures may help the auditor during the p‘lanning stage to defermine the nature,

M8 and extent of audit pracedures that will be used to obtain audit evidence for specific account balances
O classes of transactions.

3. :
pr:xpfaln the aspects to be considered by an auditor when designing and performing substantive analytical

ures, either alone or in combination with test of details, as substantive procedures in accordance with SA
*(RTp Nov-22)

Vi

Sithe, ica| Procedyres used as substantive tests: When designing and performing substantive analytical procedures,
Ohe o i Y

shay. €orincom bination with test of details as, substantive procedures in accordance with SA 330, the auditor
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(i) Determine the suitability of particular substantive analytical procedures for given assert.ions, taking accoyp,
of the assessed risks of material misstatement and test of details, if any, for these assertions.

(i} Evaluate the reliability of data from which the auditor's expectation of recor.cied amc-nunts Or ratios j
developed, taking account of source, comparability, and nature and relevance of information available, and
controls over preparation.

(iii) Develop an expectation of recorded amounts or ratios and evaluate whether the expectation is s;ui’fici\*ermY
precise to identify a misstatement that, individually or when aggregated with other misstatements, may cause
the financial statements to be materially misstated.

(iv) Determine the amount of any difference of recorded amounts from expected values that is acceptap|e
without further investigation,

4.Discuss with examples the factors that are relevant when determining whether data is reliable for purposes of
designing substantive analytical procedures. [RTP Nov-22 + May-23]

The reliability of data is influenced by its source and nature and is dependent on the circumstances under which it
is obtained. Accordingly, the following are relevant when determining whether data is reliable for purposes of
designing substantive analytical procedures:

(i) Source of the information available. For example, information may be more reliable when it is obtained from
independent sources outside the entity;

(ii) Comparability of the information available. For example, broad industry data may need to be supplemented
to be comparable to that of an entity that produces and sells specialised products;

(iii) Nature and relevance of the information available. For example, whether budgets have been established as
results to be expected rather than as goals to be achieved; and

(iv) Contll"nls over the preparation of the information that are designed to ensure its completeness, accuracy and
validiiy. For example, controls over the preparation, review and maintenance of budgets.

5. Substantive analytical procedures are generally more applicable to large volumes of transactions that tend to
be predictable over time. Explain [MTP May-22]

Substantive Analytical Procedure: Substantive analytical procedures are generally more applicable to large volumes
of transactions that tend to be predictable over time.

» The application of planned analytical procedures is based on the expectation that relationships among dat?
exist and continue in the absence of known conditions to the contrary.

» However, the suitability of a particular analytical procedure will depend upon the auditor’s assessment of hoW
effective it will be in detecting a misstatement that, individ ually or when aggregated with other misstatements:
may cause the financial statements to be materially misstated.

» In some cases, even an unsophisticated predictive model may be effective as an analytical procedure. FC!’
example, where an entity has a known number of employees at fixed rates of pay throughout the period, it
may be possible for the auditor to use this data to estimate the total payroll costs for the period with a high
degree of accuracy, thereby providing audit evidence for a significant item in the financial statements and
reducing the need to perform tests of details on the payroll.

> The use of widely recognised trade ratios (such as profit margins for different types of retail entities) can ofte”
be used effectively in substantive analytical procedures to provide evidence to support the reasonablenéss 0
recorded amounts.

8
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ncial statements

the matters relevant to the auditor’s evaluation of whether the expectation can be developed

ely to identify a misstatement that, when aggregated with other misstatements, may cause the
su to be materially misstated. [RTP May-22]

fina

relevant to the auditor’s evaluation of whether the expectation can be developed sufficiently precisely to
tatement that, when aggregated with other misstatements, may cause the financial statements to be
d, include:

Matters
identify @ miss
materiallv misstate

(i) The accuracy with which the expected results of substantive analytical procedures can be predicted.
For example, the auditor may expect greater consistency in comparing gross profit margins from one period to
another than in comparing discretionary expenses, such as research or advertising,

(ii) The degree to which information can be disaggregated.

For example, substantive analytical procedures may be more effective when applied to financial information on
individual sections of an operation or to financial statements of components of a diversified entity, than when
applied to the financial statements of the entity as a whole.

(iii) The availability of the information, both financial and non-financial.

For example, the auditor may consider whether financial information, such as budgets or forecasts, and non-
financial information, such as the number of units produced or sold, is available to design substantive analytical

procedures. If the information is available, the auditor may also consider the reliability of the information.

7. While applying the Substantive Analytical Procedures what techniques can be used by the statutory auditor of
acompany to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence? (MTP Apr-22 + RTP May-21)

While applying the Substantive Analytical Procedures the statutory auditor of a company may use the following
techniques to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence.

Trend analysis — Trend analysis is a commonly used technigue. It is the comparison of current data with the prior
Period balance or with a trend in two or more prior period balances. We evaluate whether the current balance of
an account moves in line with the trend established with previous balances for that account, or based on an

Understanding of factors that may cause the account to change.

Ratio analysis - Ratio analysis is useful for analysing asset and liability accounts as well as revenue and expense
3ccounts. An individual balance sheet account is difficult to predict on its own, but its relationship to another

account js often more predictable (e.g., the trade receivables balance related to sales). Ratios can also be compared

Over time or to the ratios of separate entities within the group, or with the ratios of other companies in the same

industry,

R " ;
®2sonableness tests — Unlike trend analysis, this analytical procedure does not rely on events of prior periods, but

u , : .
Pon Non-financial data for the audit period under consideration (e.g., occupancy rates to estimate rental income

orj : .
Nterest rates to estimate interest income or expense). These tests are generally more applicable to income

Sta SO
y tement accounts and certain accrual or prepayment accounts. In other words these tests are made by reviewing
er . .
EIE'tlt?inshlp of certain account balances to other balances for reasonableness of amounts.

strutt . .
ura . ioti from financial and/or nonfinancial
5 | Modelling ~ A modelling tool constructs a statistical model data of

orga . .
€counting periods to predict current account balances (€-8. linear regression).
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The statutory auditor may use any of the above mentioned techniques while applying substantive analyticy
procedures depensing upon the availability of data and requirements of the case.

8. Explain the commonly used technique in the comparison of current data with the prior period balance of With
atrend in two or more prior period balances. [RTP May-20]

Trend analysis — Discussed Above

9. The decision about which audit procedures to perform, including whether to use substantive analyticy|
Procedures, is based on the auditor’s judgment. Explain [RTP Nov-20]

The auditor’s substantive procedures at the assertion level may be tests of details, substantive analytica|
procedures, or a combination of both. The decision about which audit procedures to perform, including whether to
use substantive analytical procedures, is based on the auditor’s judgment about the expected effectiveness ang
efficiency of the available audit procedures to reduce audit risk at the assertion level to an acceptably low level.

The auditor may inquire of management as to the availability and reliability of information needed to apply
substantive analytical procedures, and the results of any such analytical procedures performed by the entity. It may
be effective to use analytical data prepared by management, provided the auditor is satisfied that such data is
properly prepared.

10. Tree Limited presented its financial statements for the F.Y. 2021-2022 to its auditor for expressing an opinion
thereon. The auditor while carrying out the audit started comparing various items of profit and loss account of

the year under audit with previous financial years. What is auditor trying to achieve by carrying out those
comparisons? [May-22])

Purpose of Applying Analytical Procedure: Analytical procedures use comparisons and relationships to assess
whether account balances or other data appear reasonable.

The auditor of Tree Ltd. Would achieve the following by carrying out the comparison stated in the question:

(i) If balances included in the Statement of Profit and Loss of an entity are compared with those contained in the
Statement of Profit and Loss with that of the previous period, it would be possible to find out the reasons for
increase or decrease in the amount of profits of those years.

(ii) By setting up certain expenses’ ratios on basis of balances included in the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the
year under audit, comparing them with the same ratios for the previous year, it is possible to ascertain the

extent of increase or decrease in various items of expenditure in relation to sales and that of trading profitin
relation to sales.

(iii) If differences are found to be material, the auditor would ascertain the reasons thereof and assess whether
the accounts have been manipulated to inflate or suppress profits.

(iv) It would be possible to identify the existence of unusual transactions, amounts, ratios and trends that might
indicate matters that have audit implications.

11. If analytical procedures performed in accordance with SA 520 identify fluctuations or relationships that 2
inconsistent with other relevant information or that differ from expected values by a significant amount, hoW
would the auditor investigate such differences. [MTP Nov-23 + Nov-23]
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ytical procedures perforljned n Efccordanr,e with SA 520 identify fluctuations or relationships that are
¢ with other relevant information or that differ from expected values by a significant amount, the auditor
ate such differences by:

if anal
inconsiste”
shall investié

quiring of management and obtaining appropriate audit evidence relevant to management’s responses:
Audit evidence relevant to managgment s responses may be obtained by evaluating those responses taking into
sccount the auditor’s understanding of the entity and its environment, and with other audit evidence obtained

during the course Of the aUdIt.

i) In

(il performing other audit procedures as necessary in the circumstances: The need to perform other audit
proCEdureS may arise when, for example, management is unable to provide an explanation, or the explanation,
together with the audit evidence obtained relevant to management’s response, is not considered adequate.

12. Analysis by computation of ratios includes the study of relationships between financial statement amounts.
state Commonly used ratios. [RTP Nov-21]

Analysis by computation of ratios includes the study of relationships between financial statement amounts.
commonly used ratios include:

« Elements of income or loss as a percentage of sales

« Gross profit turnover

» Accounts receivable turnover

« |nventory turnover

» Profitability, leverage, and liquidity

13. Whether it is possible to independently verify the correctness of some of the items of expenses included in
the statement of profit and loss? Explain with the help of some examples. [Dec-21]

Often it is possible to independently verify the correctness of some of the items of expenses included in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

v For instance, the cost of importing goods which are subjected to an ad-valorem duty at uniform rate can be

"uerified from the amount of duty paid. Similarly, a quantity of sugar sold by sugar mill can be verified

"I‘dEPEndently from the amount of excise duty/ GST paid.

Similarly, the amount of any income or expenses which has a direct relationship with the amount of profits

or that of sales can be verified independently, e.g., commission paid to a manager calculated on the basis of

net profits, commission paid to a selling agent as percentage of sales, etc. Such calculation of ratios, trends and

;‘:lf:spétri.s?ns is also termed as analytical review.

o evfelntls Important to note.that Analytical procedures may help identify the existenc.e f)f ur'\useal transactions

Unusuals, and amounts, ratios, and trends that m[ght.indicate matters that have audit mglucatmns.

rnisstate"f unexpected relationships that are identified may assist the auditor in identifying risks of material
ment, especially risks of material misstatement due to fraud.
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14. With respect to SA 520 "Analytical procedures", explain the following factors to be considered by the iy,
for substantive audit procedures,
(i) Account type (i) Predictability (iii) Nature of Assertion. [Nov-20]

The auditor should consider the following factors for Substantive Audit Procedures:

Account Type - Substantive analytical procedures are more useful for certain types of accounts than for Others,
Income statement accounts tend to be more predictable because they reflect accumulated transactions Over
period, whereas balance sheet accounts represent the net effect of transactions at a point in time or are Subject y,
greater management judgment.

Predictability — Substantive analytical procedures are more appropriate when an account balance or relationshipg
between items of data are predictable (e.g., between sales and cost of sales or between trade receivables and ¢,
receipts). A predictable relationship is one that may reasonably be expected to exist and continue over time.

Nature of Assertion - Substantive analytical procedures may be more effective in providing evidence for some
assertions (e.g., completeness or valuation) than for others (e.g., rights and obligations). Predictive analytical
procedures using data analytics can be used to address completeness, valuation/ measurement and occurrence,

15. As per the Standard on Auditing (SA) 520 “Analytical Procedures”, 3 what are the examples of analytical
procedures having consideration of relationships? [Nov-22]

Analytical procedures also include consideration of relationships, for example:

Among elements of financial information that would be expected to conform to a predictable pattern based
on the entity's experience, such as gross margin percentages.

* Between financial information and relevant non-financial information, such as payroll costs to number of
employees.
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quested to go through the following and answer the questions that follow:

puring the audit of M/s Persistent & Co, Mr. A found that the firm has changed the method of Depreciation
from WDV to SLM but has not given the retrospective effect. Mr. A has calculated the difference of depreciation
but M/s Persistent & Co. has stated that they don’t want to change the financial statements and if auditor
persists they may give the effect in the next financial year.

puring the audit of M/s Dubious Brothers, Mr B observed that the firm had a very large amount of cash sales
and there were no details of the customers to whom the sales were made. Further, cash generated was not
even deposited into bank regularly. When Mr. B asked the firm to give him an opportunity to count cash, the
manager of the firm said that the cash is with the owner and it cannot be made available to the auditor for the
checking purpose. The manager also declined to give an opportunity for stock verification to Mr B.

puring the audit of M/s Honest & Associates, Mr. A came to know that the firm has changed its method of
valuation of stock. This change has a material impact on the financial statement of the firm. The firm has made
relevant disclosures in the financial statements and has given proper accounting treatment to this exercise.

gased on above, answer following questions:

1. In case of M/s Persistent & Company, what would be an ideal Audit Opinion?
(a) Unmodified

(b) Qualified

(c) Mention the fact in Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

(d) Disclaimer ;.

2.In case of M/s Dubious Brothers, what Audit Opinion should the Auditor give?
(a) Qualified

(b) Adverse

(c) Disclaimer

(d) Unmodified

3. According to you, what would be appropriate course to take in case of M/s Honest & Associates?
(a) Issue Qualified Opinion

(b) Issue Adverse Opinion

(c) Mention the fact of change in method in Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

(d) Issue Disclaimer of Opinion

4. When the Auditor, after conclusion of an Audit exercise, is of the opinion that there are material misstatements

in the Financial Statements, but they are not pervasive, then what should an Auditor do?
(a) Issue Unmodified Opinion

(b) Issue Qualified Opinion

(€) Issue Disclaimer of Opinion

d) Mention i in Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

5. When the Auditor concludes that the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance

With the applicable financial reporting framework, Auditor shall give:
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(a) Modified Opinion

(b) Qualified Opinion

(¢) Disclaimer of Opinion
(d) Unmodified Opinion

1. (b) 2. (c) 3. (c) 4. (b) 5. (d)

MCQs based Questions
1. While expressing an unmodified opinion on financial statements, the auditor shall not use which o the
following phrases?
(a) present fairly in all material respects
(b) give a true and fair view
(c) with the foregoing explanation
(d) All of the above

2. i, is a paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter appropriately presented or
disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgement, is of such importance that it is fundament|
to the user’s understanding of the financial statements.

(a) Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

(b) Other Matter Paragraph

(c) Key Audit Matter

(d) Management Responsibility Paragraph.

3. Statement 1: Communicating key audit matter in the auditor’s report constitutes a substitute for disclosure in
the financial statements.

Statement 2: Instead of modifying an opinion in accordance with SA 705, the statutory auditor can use Key Audit
Matter paragraph in the audit report with an unmodified opinion.

(a) Only Statement 1 is correct

(b) Only Statement 2 is correct

(c) Both the statements are correct

(d) None of the statement is correct

4. Which of the following is not correct?

(a) SA 700 - Forming an Opinion and Reporting on the Financial Statements

(b) SA 701- Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report

(c) SA 705- Comparative Information- Corresponding figures and Comparative Financial Statements

(d) SA 706- Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report

5. Responsibilities of Joint Auditors are governed by:
(a) SA 200
(b) SA 229
(c) SA 299
(d) SA 230

1. (c) 2. (a) 3. (d) 4. (¢) 5. (c)
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o sA 700 “Forming an Opinion & Reporting on Financial Statements”

Test Your Understanding
cthili Thakur, @ CA student, was perusing audit report of a company. Her eyes fell on an 18-digit alpha
L number stated at end of audit report below the signatures of auditor and membership number. Make

ric S — :
ume dgrstand objective and significance of such a randomly generated number. Is it required to be stated in
run

€ dit repOl’tS only?

:ase Of aU
18-digit alpha numeric number noticed by her at end of audit report is Unique Document Identification number

h;!N) It is a system generated unique number. Its basic objective is to curb the malpractices of non-CAs

U ersonating themselves as CAs. It helps in securing reports and documents issued by practising CAs. It is required

mz stated in case of audit reports and certificates.

n DE

. CA. Maya Memani has conducted audit of a company. She has asked Sana, a CA student undergoing training in
;er office, to prepare draft audit report. Sana was part of engagement team conducting the audit. She has been
urther told to prepare draft report expressing unmodified opinion. After drafting para comprising unmodified
pinion, Sana feels no need to provide basis for opinion. Discuss why her thinking is not proper.

gasis for Opinion” is one of basic elements of an audit report in accordance with SA-700. Even in cases where
smodified opinion is expressed by auditor, “Basis for opinion” has to be provided by auditor. Basis for opinion
ection provides context about auditor’s opinion. Therefore, Sana’s thinking is not proper.

Correct/Incorrect
.In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may not become aware

f possible bias in management’s judgments. [RTP Nov-20]

ncorrect: In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware
f possible bias in management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack of neutrality together with
Incorrected misstatements causes the financial statements to be materially misstated.

. The Location of the description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
il e
Ways within the body of the auditor's report [July-21]

n ; , - .
_h‘:"'feu. The description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statement shall be always
"1OWN as below -

3 Within the bod

W y of the auditor’s report

ithi ) -
ocati ' an appendix to the auditor’s report, in which case the
o on of the appendix or

SPecific reference within the auditor’s report to the location of such a description on a website of an appropriate

a'-m'l()r' 2 i
'y, where law, regulation or national auditing standards expressly permit the auditor to do so.

auditor’s report shall include a reference to the

B'The
re
s no need of addressee in the Auditor’s report. [SM]

||"|c°
Wfreq: Th based on the circumstances of the engagement.
+ Tegyl

Wditg

€ auditor’s report shall be addressed, as appropriate, o :
ation or the terms of the engagement may specify to whom the auditor’s report is to be addressed. The

Or tq ths "eport is normally addressed to those for whom the report is prepared, often either to the shareholders
O5€ chargeg with governance of the entity whose financial statements are being audited.

Ubhap, Keswani
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4, Where the firm is appointed as an auditor of the entity the audit report is signed only in the name of augjt firm,

[May-19] or "
Where a firm is appointed as the auditor of a company, the report is signed only In the persanal name of i,
partner signing the report. [Nov-22]

Incorrect: Where the firm is appointed as the auditor, the report s signed in the personal name of the auditor 3p4
in the name of the audit firm. The partner/proprietor signing the audit report also needs to mention the mernhers.hip
number assigned by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India along-with registration number for the firm,

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. The auditor evaluated, in respect of T Ltd., whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. Auditor’s evaluation included consideration of
the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, including indicators of possible bias in managements
judgments. Advise the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices. [MTP Mar-19]

The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the applicable financial reporting framework. This evaluation shall include consideration of the qualitative aspects
of the entity’s accounting practices, including indicators of possible bias in management’s judgments.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Accounting Practices
1. Management makes a number of judgments about the amounts and disclosures in the cfinancial statements.

2. SA 260 (Revised) contains a discussion of the qualitative aspects of accounting practices.

3. In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware of
possible bias in management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack of neutrality together with
uncorrected misstatements causes the financial statements to be materially misstated. Indicators of a lack of
neutrality include the following:

(i) The selective correction of misstatements brought to management’s attention during the audit

(i) Possible management bias in the making of accounting estimates.

4. SA 540 addresses possible management bias in making accounting estimates.

Indicators of possible management bias do not constitute misstatements for purposes of drawing conclusions 0"
the reasonableness of individual accounting estimates. They may, however, affect the auditor’s evaluation of
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement.

2. In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware of
possible bias in management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack of neutrality together with
uncorrected misstatements causes the financial statements to be materially misstated. Explain and analysé the
indicators of lack of neutrality with examples, wherever required. [RTP May-20]

In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware of possibTE
bias in management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack of neutrality together with uncorrecté
misstatements causes the financial statements to be materially misstated.

Indicators of a lack of neutrality include the following:
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e correction of misstatements brought to management’s attention during the audit.

Ch—lZ

e sete!

mple . i i :
Exa cting misstatements with the effect of increasing reported earnings, but not correcting misstatements that

rré . )
co s the effect of decreasing reported earnings.
hav . " 7
The combination of several deficiencies affecting the same significant account or disclosure (or the same internal
¢ control component) could amount to a significant deficiency (or material weakness if required to be

communicated in the jurisdiction). This evaluation requires judgment and involvement of audit executives.

(i) possible management bias in the making of accounting estimates.

I

3, While drafting auditor’s report of LK Ltd., what are the matter to be included by auditor in Opinion Section
paragraph? [RTP Nov-22]

The first section of the auditor’s report shall include the auditor’s opinion, and shall have the heading “Opinion”.

opinion section of the Auditor’s report shall also:

(i) |dentify the entity whose financial statements have been audited;

(ii) State that the financial statements have been audited;

(iii) Identify the title of each statement that comprises the financial statements;

(iv) Refer to the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

(v) Specify the date or period covered by each financial statement comprising the financial statements.

4. The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the applicable financial reporting framework. Explain stating clearly specific evaluations made by the auditor.
(RTP May-22 + MTP Oct-21/Mar-23)

The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the applicable financial reporting framework. This evaluation shall include consideration of the qualitative aspects
of the entity’s accounting practices, including indicators of possible bias in management’s judgements.

In particular, the auditor shall evaluate whether:

() The financial statements adequately disclose the significant accounting policies selected and applied;

(b) The accounting policies selected and applied are consistent with the applicable financial reporting framework
and are appropriate;

:;] The accounting estimates made by management are reasonable;
) The information presented in the financial statements is relevant, reliable, comparable, and understandable;

(&) The financial statements provide adequate disclosures to enable the intended users to understand the effect
¢ of materja| transactions and events on the information conveyed in the financial statements; and
) The terminology used in the financial statements, including the title of each financial statement, is appropriate.

:::I:::: when the financial statements are prepared in accordance with a fair presentation framework, the
“atem:n mentioned above shall also include an evaluation by the'audltor as to whether the financial
(a) Thents achieve fair presentation which shall include consldelratian of: i
(b) Wh overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements; an |

ether the financial statements, including the related notes, represent the underlying transactions and

evente ; ;
'Sin a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements adequately refer toor describe the applicable finanl:ial
reporting framework.

5. M/s S & Associates are the Statutory Auditors of Real Ltd., a company engaged in the business of manufacturing
of garments. The auditor has completed the audit and is in the process of forming an opinion on the financiy|
statements for the F.Y. 2020-2021. CA K, the engagement partner, wants to conclude that whether the financia|
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. What factors he
should consider to reach that conclusion? [Dec-21]

Factors to be considered to form an opinion:
v The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, i
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
v In order to form that opinion, the auditor shall conclude as to whether the auditor has obtained reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

That conclusion shall take into account:
(a) The auditor’s conclusion, in accordance with SA 330, whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been
obtained
(b) The auditor’'s conclusion, in accordance with SA 450, whether uncorrected misstatements are material,
individually or in aggregate.
(c) The evaluations required
(i) The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the applicable financial reporting framework.
(i) This evaluation shall include consideration of the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices,
including indicators of possible bias in management’s judgments.

6. The auditor’s report shall include a section with a heading “Responsibilities of Management for the Financial

Statements.” SA 200 explains the premise, relating to the responsibilities of management and, where

appropriate, those charged with governance, on which an audit in accordance with SAs is conducted. Explain
[SM + MTP Apr-23]

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements: The auditor’s report shall include a section with a heading
“Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements.”

SA 200 explains the premise, relating to the responsibilities of management and, where appropriate, those charged
with governance, on which an audit in accordance with SAs is conducted. Management and, where appropriate;
those charged with governance accept responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements. Management
also accepts responsibility for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The description of management’s responsibilities in the auditor’s report includes reference to both responsibilities
as it helps to explain to users the premise on which an audit is conducted. This section of the auditor’s report shall
describe management’s responsibility for:

(a) Preparing the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, and fof
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;[because of the possible effects of fraud
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Ch- s octs of the z_audlt., matenahwl does not a;?piy to management’s acknowledgement regarding its
e the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control (or for establishing and

on ot -y fOr
sibility : | control over financial '
g effective internal con al reporting) to prevent and detect fraud.] and
i

mainlﬂ*

ssing the entity’s ability to cor'ltlnug as a going concern and whether the use of the going concern basis of

ss€ ; appropriate as well as disclosing, if applicable, matters relating to going concern. The explanation of

s responsibility for this assessment shall include a description of when the use of the going concern
propriate.

ounﬁﬂg i
ement .

acc
mand
pasis of
ris fully satisfied with the audit of an entity in respect of its systems and procedures and wants to
thout any hesitation. Discuss the type of opinion that can be given and state giving reasoning.
[RTP May-21]

dito

7. The Au .
port wi

!551-'9 are

Unqualified Opinion:
LA unqualified opinion should be expressed when the auditor concludes that the financial statements give a true

and fair view in sccordance with the financial reporting framework used for the preparation and presentation of

the financial statements.

2. An unqualified opinion indicates, implicitly, that any changes in the accounting principles or in the method of
their application, and the effects thereof, have been properly determined and disclosed in the financial statements.

3, An unqualified opinion also indicates that:

(i) the financial statements have been prepared using the generally accepted accounting principles, which have
been consistently applied;

(i) the financial statements comply with relevant statutory requirements and regulations; and

(iii) there is adequate disclosure of all material matters relevant to the proper presentation of the financial
information, subject to statutory requirements, where applicable.

8. The requirements of SA 700 are aimed at addressing an appropriate balance between the need for consistency
and comparability in auditor reporting globally. Explain. [RTP May-21]
Y The requirements of SA 700 are aimed at addressing an appropriate balance between the need for consistency
and comparability in auditor reporting globally and the need to increase the value of auditor reporting by
ma_kiﬂg the information provided in the auditor’s report more relevant to users.
Thns.SA promotes consistency in the auditor’s report but recognizes the need for flexibility to accommodate
an:;T:::r cirr..:urnstances of individual jurisdictions. ‘ .
Credibintnw-r in the auditor’s report, when the audit has been .con-ducte:-d in accordance ‘.Nlth SAs, promotes
COnductez .m the global marketplace by making more readily identifiable those audits that have been
Ralssite in accordance with globally recognized standards. _

Ps to promote the user’s understanding and to identify unusual circumstances when they occur.
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SA 701 “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor’s Report”

Correct/Incorrect
Communicating Key Audit Matters is a substitute for the auditor expressing a modified audit Opinion Whey
required by the circumstances of a specific audit engagement in accordance with SA 705, [Jan-21]
Incorrect: Communicating key audit matters in the auditor’s report is not a substitute for the auditor eXpressing ,

modified opinion when required by the circumstances of a specific audit engagement in accordance with SA 705
(Revised)

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. Communicating Key Audit Matter is not a substitute for disclosure in the Financial Statements rather
Communicating key audit matters in the au ditor’s report is in the context of the Auditor having formed an opijg,
on the financial statements as a whole. Analyse. [RTP May-18 + MTP May-22]

Communicating key audit matters in the auditor’s report is not:

(i) A substitute for disclosures in the financial statements that the applicable Financial reporting framework
requires management to make, or that are otherwise necessary to achieve fair presentation;

(ii) A substitute for the auditor expressing a modified opinion whe
audit engagement in accordance with SA 705 (Revised);

(iii) A substitute for reporting in accordance with SA 570 when a
conditions that may cast significant doubt on an entit

(iv) A separate opinion on individual matters.

n required by the circumstances of a specific

material uncertainty exists relating to events or
y's ability to continue as a going concern; or

2. As an auditor of listed company, what are the matters that the auditor should keep in mind while determining
"Key Audit Matters”. [MTP Oct-21 + Nov-23]

Determining Key Audit Matters: As per SA 701,
Report”, the auditor shall determine, from the
matters that required significant auditor attenti

“Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s
matters communicated with those charged with governance, those
onin performing the audit. In making this determination, the auditor

315, Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Materi
Environment,
(i) Significant auditor judgments relating to areas in the fin

management judgment, including accounting estimates that h
uncertainty.

ancial statements that involved significant
ave been identified as having high estimation

(iii) The effect on the audit of significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

The auditor shall determine which of the matters determined in accor

dance with above were of most significancé
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and there

fore are the key audit matters.
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Correct/Incorrect
erm used, in the context of misstatements, to describe the effects on the financial statements
ossible effects on the financial statements of misstatements, if any, that are detected
ropriate audit evidence. [May-22]

Loijsat
as'\le 15 a
" ments oF the p

fficient apP

jve is a term used, in the context of misstatements, to describe the effects on the financial

. pervas
orrECt. ) : :
Inctements of misstatements or the possible effects on the financial statements of misstatements, if any, that are
Stadeteded due to an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.
un
2. When the auditor has to express an adverse opinion, he need not communicate with those charged with
overnance as this may have an impact on payment of his audit fees.

auditor expects to modify the opinion in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall communicate

incorrect: When the
the expected madification and the wording of

with those charged with governance the circumstances that led to

the modification

past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
you as an auditor are not only prevented in completing certain audit

1. While conducting audit of VED Ltd.,
ence even by performing alternative procedures. How you

procedures but also are not able to obtain audit evid
will deal with this situation? [MTP Apr-22]

As per SA 705, “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, if, after accepting the
engagement, the auditor becomes aware that management has imposed a limitation on the scope of the audit that
the auditor considers likely to result in the need to express a qualified opinion or to disclaim an opinion on the

financial statements, the auditor shall request that management remove the limitation.

uditor shall communicate the matter to those charged with
lved in managing the entity and determine
propriate audit evidence.

If management refuses to remove the limitation, the a
governance, unless all of those charged with governance are invo
whether it is possible to perform alternative procedures to obtain sufficient ap
If — , " . =

the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the auditor shall determine the implications

as fD”DWs:
1 . ; .
(1) If the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if

any, ¢ :

o ould be material but not pervasive, the auditor shall qualify the opinion; or

i the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if
Y. could be both material and pervasive so that a qualification of the opinion would be inadequate to

co .
ml?;ur\',:i:ithe gravity of the situation, the auditor shall: .
fi) s withraw from the audit, where practicable and pOSSIbfe un
) drawal from the audit before issuing the auditors rep
Opinion on the financial statements.

der applicable law or regulation; or
ort is not practicable or possible, disclaim an

ose charged with governance any

| communicate to th
given rise to a modification of the

It ayg;
tor wi
Withdraws, before withdrawing, auditor shal
hat would have

ttEI‘s r
e ; ; 2
OPinign Barding misstatements identified during the audit t

S
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2. Delightful Ltd. is a company engaged in the production of smiley balls. During the FY 2020- 21 the Compap,
transferred its accounts to computerised system (SAP) from manual system of RIERRELSINES the_erﬂpluyees
the company were not well versed with the SAP system, there were many errors in the accounting dyri,

transition period. As such the statutory auditors of the company were not able to extract correct data ang repory
from the system. Such data was not available manually also. Further, the employees and the Management of the
company were not supportive in providing the requisite information to the audit team. The auditor believes that
the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements could be both materia| and
pervasive. Explain the kind of audit report that the statutory auditor of the company should issue in this cage,

g the

[RTP Nov-2y)
The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit eviden

which to base the opinion, and the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of
undetected misstatements, if any, could be both material and pervasive.

€on

The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when, in extremely rare circumstances involving multiple uncertainties, the
auditor concludes that, notwithstanding having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding each of

the individual uncertainties, it is not possible to form an opinion on the financial statements due to the potenis)
interaction of the uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on the financial statements.

In the present case Delightful Ltd, the statutory auditor of the company is unable to extract correct data and reports
from the SAP system for conduct of audit. Also, such data and reports are not available manually. Moreover, the

auditor believes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements could be both
material and pervasive.

As such, the statutory auditor of Delightful Ltd. should give a disclaimer of opinion.

3. What an auditor should state in “Basis for opinion" section of auditor's report and when the auditor modifies
the opinion on the financial statements, what amendments he should make in this section ?

[Jan-21 + RTP Nov'20]
An auditor should state in “Basis for Opinion” section of Auditor’s Report as under:

Basis for Opinion:

The auditor’s report shall include a section, directly following the Opinion section, with the heading “Basis for
Opinion”, that:

(i) States that the audit was conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing;

(ii) Refers to the section of the auditor’s report that describes the auditor’s responsibilities under the SAs;

(iii) Includes a statement that the auditor is independent of the entity in accordance with the relevant ethical

requirements relating to the audit and has fulfilled the auditor’s other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

(iv) States whether the auditor believes that the audit evidence the auditor has obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for the auditor’s opinion,

Amendments an Auditor should make ; _
When the auditor modifies the opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall, in addition to the specific
elements required by SA 700 (Revised):

(i) Amend the heading “Basis for Opinion”

required by para of SA 700 (Revised) to “Basis for Qualified Opinion
“Basis for Adverse Opinion,” or “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion,” as appropriate; and

(ii) Within this section, include a description of the matter giving rise to the modification.
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i iscla
_when the auditor disclaims an opinion on the financial statements due to an inability to obtain sufficient

dit evidence, the auditor shall
ropriate au amend the description of the audi saani i
SAme. Explain: (RTP May-22 + July-21 Suggested) e auditor’s responsibilities required by

when the auditor dISClcE:.II‘I"IS an opinion on the financial statements due to an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate

audit evidence, the auditor shall amend the description of the auditor’s responsibilities required by SA 700 (Revised)

to include only the following:

A statement that the auditor’s responsibility is to conduct an audit of the entity’s financial statements in

accordance with Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report;

b Astatement that however, because of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section,
the auditor was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on the financial statements; and

c. The statement about auditor independence and other ethical responsibilities required by SA 700 (Revised).

a.

5. M/s Daisy & Associates are the statutory auditors of Zebra Ltd. for the FY 2021-22. CA Daisy, the engagement
partner wants to verify the cash in hand as on 31.03.2022. The cash balance of the company as on 31.03.2022 is
£1,00,000/- and the turnover of the company for the year is 6 crores. The management of the company informs
CA Daisy that such cash verification is not possible as the cashier is on leave for his marriage and no other
employee of the company is available as all are busy in year ending activities. Explain the relevant provisions 10
deal with such a situation.

If, after accepting the engagement, the auditor becornes aware that management has imposed a limitation on the
scope of the audit that the auditor considers is likely to resultin the need to express a qualified opinion or to disclaim
an opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall request that management remove the limitation.

In the present case CA Daisy, the statutory auditor is unable to verify the cash in hand of Zebra Ltd. as on 31.03.2022.
The same is due to a limitation imposed by the management of Zebra Ltd. which is due to the non availability of the
cashier. In such situation, CA Daisy should perform alternate procedures to verify the cash on hand of the company.
Further, CA Daisy should consider the impact on the auditor’s report and may consider issuing a qualified opinion.

5. Distinguish between an adverse opinionand a qualified opinion. Also draft an opinion paragraph for both types
of opinion. [SM]

An auditor shall express an adverse opinion, when the auditor having obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence, concludes that misstatements, individually or in aggregate are both material and pervasive. Whereas,
when the auditor, having obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence, concludes that misstatements are

material but not pervasive, shall express a qualified opinion.

SA705 - “Modifications To The Opinion In The Independent Auditor’s Report” deals with the form and content of
both types of report,

The following are the draft of the opinion paragraphs of the reports.

(a) Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABC Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and Its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities, which comprise the consolidated balance
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sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of profit and Loss, (consolidated statement of changEs.
equity) and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consoligatey
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to g the

“consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our information and according t, the
explanations given to us, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion Section
of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not give a true and fair view in conform;
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group, jts
associates and jointly controlled entities, as at March 31, 2021, of its consolidated profit/loss, (consolidated Position
of changes in equity) and the consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

(b). Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity) and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (in which are included the Returns for the year
ended on that date audited by the branch auditors of the Company’s branches located at (location of branches)) .
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects
of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2021 and profit/loss, (changes in equity) and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

SA 706 (Revised) on “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and
Other Matter Paragraphs In The Independent Auditor’s Report”

Correct/Incorrect
1. The inclusion of an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the Auditor's Report affects the auditor's opinion.
[MTP Mar-21]
Incorrect: When the auditor includes an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall
Indicate that the auditor’s opinion is not modified in respect of the matter emphasized. Such a paragraph shall refer
only to information presented or disclosed in the financial statements.
The inclusion of an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report does not affect the auditor’s opinion.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1, State clearly the objective of the Auditor as per SA 706. Also define emphasis of matter paragraph and other
matter paragraph. [MTP Oct-20]

As per SA 706 (Revised) on “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs In The Independent
Auditor’s Report”, the objective of the auditor, having formed an opinion on the financial statements, is to dra¥
users’ attention, when in the auditor’s judgment it is necessary to do so, by way of clear additional communicatio”
in the auditor’s report, to:

(a) A matter, although appropriately presented or disclosed in the financial statements, that is of such importancé
that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements; or

(b) As appropriate, any other matter that is relevant to users’ understanding of the audit, the uditor’s
responsibilities or the auditor’s report.

i
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gmphasis of Matter paragraph = A paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter appropriately

presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such importance that it is
fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements,

other Matter paragraph — A paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter other than those
presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is relevant to users’ understanding
of the audit, the auditor’s responsibilities or the auditor’s report.

2. Define Emphasis of Matter Paragraph and how it should be disclosed in the Independent Auditor’s Report?
[RTP Nov-20]

Emphasis of Matter paragraph: A paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter appropriately
presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such importance that it is
fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements. When the auditor includes an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall:

(i) Include the paragraph within a separate section of the auditor’s report with an appropriate heading that includes
the term “Emphasis of Matter”;

(ii) Include in the paragraph a clear reference to the matter being emphasized and to where relevant disclosures
that fully describe the matter can be found in the financial statements. The paragraph shall refer only to information
presented or disclosed in the financial statements; and

(iii} Indicate that the auditor’s opinion is not modified in respect of the matter emphasized.

3. D Ltd. is a company engaged in publishing business magazines. CA P is the statutory auditor of the company.
The company takes property in the barter deal from its real estate customers against publication of their
advertisements. The properties obtained during the year through such barter deals have been considered in the
books of accounts on the basis of possession letter only and have been included in PPE in the financial statements.
Considering this matter of such importance that is fundamental to the users understanding, CA P has decided to
communicate the same in his report. CA P seeks your guidance in reporting this matter in his audit report.
[May-22]
Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs in the Auditor’s Report: If the auditor considers it necessary to draw users’
attention to a matter presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgement, is of such
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements, the auditor shall include an
Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report provided:
(i) The auditor would not be required to modify the opinion in accordance with SA 705 as a result of the matter; and
(i) When SA 701 applies, the matter has not been determined to be a key audit matter to be communicated in the
auditor’s report.

In the given case as the properties obtained during the year through barter deals and included in the PPE in the
books of accounts on the basis of possession letter only, hence there is a need to add Emphasis on Matter Paragraph

in the Auditor’s Report.

The draft of the same is as under:
Emphasis of Matter — Effect of Properties obtained through barter deals by the company
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We draw attention to Note (Y) of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the properties obtainea
through barter by the company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

4. Mention the examples of circumstances where the auditor may consider it necessary to include an Emphasig
of Matter paragraph. [RTP Nov-22 + MTP Oct-21]

Examples of circumstances to include Emphasis of Matter Paragraph: As per 5A 706 (Revised) on “Emphasis of
Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs In The Independent Auditor’s Report”, the examples of
circumstances where the auditor may consider it necessary to include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph are;

a. Anuncertainty relating to the future outcome of an exceptional litigation or regulatory action.

b. A significant subsequent event that occurs between the date of the financial statements and the date of the
auditor’s report.

c. Early application (where permitted) of a new accounting standard that has a material effect on the financial
statements.

d. A major catastrophe that has had, or continues to have, a significant effect on the entity’s financial position.

SA 710 “Comparative Information — Corresponding Figures &
Comparative Financial Statements”

1. The nature of the comparative information that is presented in an entity’s financial statements depends on the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. There are two different broad approaches to the
auditor’s reporting responsibilities in respect of such comparative information: corresponding figures and
comparative financial statements. Explain clearly stating the essential audit reporting differences between the
approaches. Also define comparative information and audit procedures regarding comparative information.

[RTP May-19 + Nov-23]
The nature of the comparative information that is presented in an entity’s financial statements depends on the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. There are two different broad approaches to the
auditor’s reporting responsibilities in respect of such comparative information: corresponding figures and
comparative financial statements. The approach to be adopted is often specified by law or regulation but may als0
be specified in the terms of engagement.

The essential audit reporting differences between the approaches are:

(a) For corresponding figures, the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements refers to the current period onlyi
whereas

(b) For comparative financial statements, the auditor's opinion refers to each period for which financial statements
are presented,

Definition of Comparative Information - The amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements in
respect of one or more prior periods in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
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Mdit Pr": ‘ shal determine whether the financial statements include the comparative information required by the

e financial reporting framework and whether such information is appropriately classified. For this purpose,
i rshalI evaluate whether: |

et mparative information agrees with the amounts and other disclosures presented in the prior period; and

a The Cicounting policies reflected in the comparative information are consistent with those applied ir; nd

" ::ff ent period 0T if there have been changes in accounting policies, whether those changes have been properly

unted for and adequately presented and disclosed.
acco

+ senior member of the firm Kaur & Associates, Chartered Accountants, informed to its auditing staff that at
he time of audit reporting regarding corresponding figures, when corresponding figures are presented, the
tl

Lditor's opinion shall not refer to the corresponding figures except in specified circumstances. What are those
a
exceptional circumstances? [May-22]

2.Th

Audit reporting Regarding Corresponding Figures: When corresponding figures are presented, the auditor’s
opinion shall not refer to the corresponding figures except in the following circumstances:

1. If the auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion, a disclaimer of
opinion, or an adverse opinion and the matter which gave rise to the modification is unresolved, the auditor shall
modify the auditor’s opinion on the current period’s financial statements.

In the Basis for Modification paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall either:

(a) Refer to both the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures in the description of the matter giving
rise to the modification when the effects or possible effects of the matter on the current period’s figures are
material; or

(b) In other cases, explain that the audit opinion has been modified because of the effects or possible effects of
the unresolved matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures.

2.1 : @ i " 2 2
. f t:e auditor obtains audit evidence that a material misstatement exists in the prior period financial statements
whi g ' :
b ;Ch an unmodified opinion has been previously issued, the auditor shall verify whether the misstatement has
n i ; i ;
ealt with as required under the applicable financial reporting framework and, if that is not the case, the

uditor . :
= shall express a qualified opinion or an adverse opinion in the auditor’s report on the current period financial
€ments, modified,

+ Prior p,
. it0rshe:hd Financial Statements Not Audited- If the prior period financial statements were not audited, the
uch 3 st;;: ' state in an Other Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report that the corresponding figures are unaudited.
@ment does not, however, relieve the auditor of the requirement to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

e\i’idenc

) € th . :

f'nanclal stazlt the opening balances do not contain misstatements that materially affect the current period’s
eéments,

3. NG

Ltd, 5

piniop on '::mntEd CAN as the statutory auditor for the F.Y. 2021-2022. Previous year's auditor gave a qualified

"‘-‘SponSihm € Comparative Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03,2021. What will be the reporting
ty casted on cA N when he forms an opinion and prepares audit report on the Comparative Financial

ateme
nts for the F.y. 2021-20227?
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Prior Period Financial Statements Audited by a Predecessor Auditor: As per SA 710, if the financial statemen
the prior period were audited by a predecessor auditor, in addition to expressing an opinion on the current peri
financial statements, CA. N, the auditor of NG Limited shall state in an Other Matter paragraph:

a. That the financial statements of the prior period were audited by a predecessor auditor

S of
Od,s

b. The type of opinion expressed by the predecessor auditor and, if the opinion was modified, the reason
therefor and

c. The date of that report, unless the predecessor auditor’s report on the prior period’s financial statements is
revised with the financial statements.

Branch Audit & SA 600

1. CA. Dicky Yadav is auditor of a company having four branches. The four branches are audited by another
auditor CA. Yamini Jain. The reports in respect of accounts of branches examined by her have already been sent
to company auditor. During the course of audit, CA Dicky Yadav asks the branch auditor to share with her

summary of audit procedures and findings in respect of accounts of branches examined. CA. Yamini Jain feels it
as encroachment of her domain. Discuss the issue.

As per SA 600 - “Using the Work of Another Auditor”, the principal auditor might discuss with the other auditor
the audit procedures applied or review a written summary of the other auditor’s procedures and findings which
may be in the form of a completed questionnaire or check-list.

Such review of audit procedures and findings can be undertaken if principal auditor feels that it is necessary to apply

such procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence. It is not an encroachment of another auditor’s
domain.

2. ABC Ltd is a company incorporated in India. It has branches within and outside India. Explain who can be

appointed as an auditor of these branches within and outside India. Also explain to whom branch auditor is
required to report. [SM]

Sub-section (8) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, prescribes the duties and powers of the company’s
auditor with reference to the audit of the branch and the branch auditor. Where a company has a branch office, the
accounts of that office shall be audited either by the auditor appointed for the company (herein referred to as the
company's auditor) under this Act or by any other person qualified for appointment as an auditor of the company
under this Act and appointed as such under section 139, or where the branch office is situated in a country outside
India, the accounts of the branch office shall be audited either by the company's auditor or by an accountant of by
any other person duly qualified to act as an auditor of the accounts of the branch office in accordance with the laws
of that country and the duties and powers of the company' s auditor with reference to the audit of the branch and
the branch auditor, if any, shall be such as may be prescribed.

It may be noted that the branch auditor shall prepare a report on the accounts of the branch examined by him and
send it to the auditor of the company who shall deal with it in his report in such manner as he considers necessa™:

Further as per rule 12 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the branch auditor shall submit his report

t
to the company’s auditor and reporting of fraud by the auditor shall also extend to such branch auditor to the exté”
it relates to the concerned branch.
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SA 299 “Joint Audit of Financial Statements”

Correct/Incorrect
1. Joint auditor is always bound by the views of majority of the joj i
Joint auditors regarding matters to b i
report. [May-19] g o be covered in

Incorrect- Where the joint auditors are in disagreement with regard to the opinion or any matters to be covered by

the audit report, they shall express their opinion in a separate audit re port. In such circumstances, the audit report(s)
issued by the joint auditor(s) shall make a reference to each other's audit report(s). Therefore joint auditor is not
bound by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding the matters to be covered in the audit report.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. Before the commencement of the audit, the joint auditors should discuss and develop a joint audit plan. In
developing the joint audit plan, the joint auditors should identify division of audit areas and common audit areas.
Explain stating the other relevant considerations in this regard. [RTP May-20]

Before the commencement of the audit, the joint auditors should discuss and develop a joint audit plan. In
developing the joint audit plan, the joint auditors should:

(a) identify division of audit areas and common audit areas;

(b) ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement;

(c) consider and communicate among all joint auditors the factors that are significant

(d) in directing the engagement team’s efforts;

(e) consider the results of preliminary engagement activities, or similar engagements performed earlier.
(f) ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary to accomplish the engagement.

2. In Joint Audit, "Each Joint Auditor is responsible only for the work allocated to him". Discuss. [SM]

It further states that, in respect of audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint auditor shall be
responsible only for the work allocated to such joint auditor including proper execution of the audit procedures.

On the other hand, all the joint auditors shall be jointly and severally responsible for:

(i) the audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is carried out by all joint auditors;

(ii) decisions taken by all the joint auditors under audit planning in respect of common audit areas;

(iii) matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any one of them and there is an agreement
among the joint auditors on such matters;

(iv) examining that the financial statements of the entity comply with the requirements of the relevant statutes;
(v) presentation and disclosure of the financial statements as required by the applicable financial
reportingframework;

(vi) ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the relevant statutes, applicable Standards on
Auditing and other relevant pronouncements Issued by ICAl.

In case a joint auditor comes across matters which are relevant to the areas of responsibility of other joint auditors
and which deserve their attention, or which require disclosure or require discussion with, or application of;udgrr‘u‘ent
by other joint auditors, the said joint auditor shall communicate the same to all the other joint auditors in writing
prior to the completion of the audit.
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3. The practice of appointing Chartered Accountants as joint auditors is quite widespread in big companies and
corporations. Explain stating the advantages of the joint audit. [SM + MTP Apr-23]

Joint Audit: The practice of appointing Chartered Accountants as joint auditors is quite widespread in big companje,

and corporations. Joint audit basically implies pooling together the resources and expertise of more than one firm

of auditors to render an expert job in a given time period which may be difficult to accomplish acting individually, |
“essentially involves sharing of the total work. This is by itself a great advantage.

In specific terms the advantages that flow may be the following:

(i) Sharing of expertise.

(ii) Advantage of mutual consultation.

(iii) Lower workload.

(iv) Better quality of performance.

(v) Improved service to the client.

(vi) Displacement of the auditor of the company taken over in a takeover often obviated.

(vii) In respect of multi-national companies, the work can be spread using the expertise of the local firms which are

in a better position to deal with detailed work and the local laws and regulations.

(viii) Lower staff development costs.

(ix) Lower costs to carry out the work.

(x) A sense of healthy competition towards a better performance

4, HMB Limited’s business has grown from one state of India to various 4 countries of the world. Since the business
has increased manifold, the management decided to appoint joint auditors for conducting the statutory audit of
the company. They appointed three CA firms for it. For which audit work the joint auditors will be jointly &
severally responsible? [Nov-22]

SA 299 Joint Audit of Financial Statements, all joint auditors shall be jointly and severally responsible for:
(i) the audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is carried out by all joint auditors;
(ii) decisions taken by all the joint auditors under audit planning in respect of common audit areas;
(iii) matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any one of them and there is an agreement
among the joint auditors on such matters;
(iv) examining that the financial statements of the entity comply with the requirements of the relevant statutes;
(v) presentation and disclosure of the financial statements as required by the applicable financial
reportingframework;
(vi) ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the relevant statutes, applicable Standards
on Auditing and other relevant pronouncements issued by ICAI.

“Hard Work is like Gajar ka Halwa,
May Take time,

but Results are Sweet"
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1. According to CARO 2020, the company auditor Is required to state that whether the title deeds of allimmovable
Properties held in the name of the company are disclosed In its financial statements. [May-22]

Incorrect: According to CARO, 2020, the company auditor is required to state whether the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

2. G put. Ltd. had fully paid up Capital and Reserves of X 1.20 crore as at the end of F.Y. 2020-2021. During the F.Y
2021-2022, business was interrupted due to Covid restrictions and therefore the company incurred losses to the
tune of X 25 lacs. During the year, the company also borrowed X 55 lakh each from a bank and a financial
institution independently. It had a turnover of X 850 lakh (other than revenue of X 250 lakh from discontinuing
operations). Ascertain whether CARO, 2020 is applicable to the company. [May-22]

Applicability of CARO, 2020 in case of Private Ltd. Company: CARO, 2020 shall apply to every company including a
foreign company except-a private limited company, not being a subsidiary or holding company of a public
company,

(i) having a paid-up capital and reserves and surplus not more than one crore rupees as on the balance sheet

date; and
(i) which does not have total borrowings exceeding one crore rupees from any bank or financial institution at

any point of time during the financial year; and
(iii) which does not have a total revenue as disclosed in Scheduled 11l to the Companies Act (including revenue
from discontinuing operations) exceeding ten crore rupees during the financial year as per the financial

statements.

Applying the above to the given case, G Pvt. Ltd., its paid-up capital and reserves are X 95 Lakh (% 120 Lakh - X 25
Lakh), borrowings from a Bank and financial institution are (X 55 Lakh + X 55 Lakh) i.e., X 1.10 Crore, turnover
{including discontinuing operations (X 850 lakh + X250 Lakh)} 1100 Lakhi.e., X 11 Crore.

Since its borrowings and turnover are exceeding the specified limit and therefore it is not exempt from the
applicability of CARO, 2020.

3. State the auditor’s reporting responsibilities under CARO 2020 when -
(i) The company has raised money by public Issue.
(ii) The company has made private placement of shares. [Jan-21]

Auditor’s reporting responsibilities under CARO 2020:

(i) Clause (x) para 3 of CARO, 2020 states - whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans were applied for the purposes for which those are raised. If not,
the details together with delays or default and subsequent rectification, If any, as may be applicable, be reported.

(ll) Clause (x) para 3 of CARO, 2020 states - whether the company has made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and if so, as to whether
the requirement of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount raised have
been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. If not, provide the details in respect of the amount

Involved and nature of non-compliance.
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4. State the matters to be included in auditor's report as per CARO, 2020 regarding - Verification of inventop, ang
working capital limits. [RTP May-22]
Matters to be included in Auditor’s report as per CARO 2020: Clause (ii) of Para 3 of CARO, 2020, requires the
auditor to report

(a) whether physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the mManagement g,
whether, in the opinion of the auditor, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Managemen
appropriate; whether any discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were Noticeq
and if so, whether they have been properly dealt with in the books of account;

(b) whether during any point of time of the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess
of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets;
whether the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are i,
agreement with the books of account of the Company, if not, give details;

5. TS Ltd. has raised funds by issuing fully convertible debentures. These funds were raised for the expansion ang
diversification of the business. However, the company utilised these funds for repayment of long-term loans angd
advances. What are the reporting requirements under CARO 2020 in this case?

[RTP Nov-20 + Nov-22]
Reporting Requirements under CARO 2020 for raising funds: As per clause (x)(b) of Para 3 of CARO, 2020, the
auditor of a company has to report whether the com pany has made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and if so, whether the

requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised,

if not, provide details in respect of amount
involved and nature of non-compliance.

In the present case, TS Ltd. has raised funds by issuing fully convertible debentures for expansion and diversification
of the business. However, the company used the funds for repayment of long-term loans and advances instead of
utilisation of the same for the purpose for which the funds were raised i.e. expansion and diversification of business.

Here, the auditor should report the fact in his report that the funds were used for the purpose other than the
purpose for which the funds were raised, as per cl ause (x)(b) of Para 3 of CARO, 2020.

6. M Ltd. has given certain loans to related parties and also has accepted certain deposits. As an auditor, how will
you include the above items in paragraph 3 of CARO, 2020? [Nov-19]

Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of CARO, 2020 states
whether during year Co. has made investments in,

provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in nature of loans,

secured or unsecured, companies, firms, LLPs or any other parties, if so,-
(a) whether during year Co. has provided loans or provided advanc

provided security to any other entity [not applicable to companies
indicate-

r
es in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, ©
whose principal business is to give loans], if 50/

(A) aggregate amt during year, and balance o/s atBS date w.r.t. such lo

it
ans or advances and guarantees or secuftY
to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

(B) Agg. amt during year, and balance outstanding at BS date w.r.t such LAGS to parties other than subsidiarie*
joint ventures and associates;
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(b) whether investments made, guarantees provided, security given and T&Cs of grant of all loans and advances in
nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(¢) in respect of loans and advances in nature of loans, whether schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and whether repayments or receipts are regular;

(d) if amount is overdue, state total amount overdue for more than 90 days, and whether reasonable steps have
been taken by company for recovery of principal and interest;

(e) whether any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties, if so,
specify the aggregate amount of such dues renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans and percentage of
aggregate to total loans or advances in the nature of loans granted during year [not applicable to companies whose
principal business is to give loans];

(f) whether company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment, if so, specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to

the total loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in Sec 2(76) of
Companies Act, 2013;

2. Further, Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of CARO, 2020 states in case the company has accepted deposits,

(i) whether the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any: ether
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, where applicable, have been
complied with? If not, the nature of such contraventions be stated;

(ii) If an order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India
or any court or any other tribunal, whether the same has been complied with or not?

In the given situation, M Ltd. has given certain loans to related parties and also has accepted certain deposits. Thus,
the auditor is required to report the same as per clause (iii) and (v) of Paragraph 3 of CAROQ, 2020.

7. Mr. T, the director of A Ltd., has purchased an old car belonging to the company against the cooling equipment

belonging to the director, which is given to the company as consideration for the car. The auditor is not required
to include this in his CARO report. [Nov-22]

Incorrect: The auditor is required to report the same as per clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of CARO, 2020, “whether the
company has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and if so,
whether the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act have been complied with”.
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Test Your Understanding

1. The financial statements of a bank are prepared in a specified format. Discuss legal provisions in this regarg
as applicable to financial statements of a nationalized bank.

Section 29(1) & (2) of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 deal with the form and content of financial Statemep,
of a banking company and their authentication. These provisions are also applicable to nationalised banks.
* Every banking company is required to prepare a Balance Sheet and a Profit and Loss Account in the forme et
out in the Third Schedule to the Act or as near thereto as the circumstances admit.
~»  Form A of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, contains the form of Balance Sheet ang
Form B contains the form of Profit and Loss Account.

2. Ranjana Ceramic Private Limited is sanctioned a cash credit facility of X100 lacs from a branch of LMo Bank,
Besides, branch has also sanctioned a one-time bank guarantee of X 10 lacs on behalf of the company in fayoy,
of a statutory authority. Discuss, what type of credit facilities have been sanctioned by branch of LMO bank t,
the company along with probable purpose for each of credit facility.

Cash credit facility sanctioned by bank to company is in nature of funded credit facility. Its purpose is to meet
working capital requirements of business,

Bank guarantee sanctioned to the company is in nature of non-funded credit facility. Its probable purpose could be
requirement of a guarantee by a statutory authority in exchange of company fulfilling some statutory obligations.

3. During course of audit of branch of a nationalized bank, you find that system has generated a report marking
ten term loan accounts as SMA. Discuss, meaning of SMA accounts and significance of such a classification.

Special Mention Account (SMA) is an account which is exhibiting signs of incipient stress resulting in the borrower
defaulting in timely servicing of debt obligations, though the account has not yet been classified as NPA as per the
RBI guidelines.

It means there are overdues in accounts for a period of 0 to 90 days. Since period of 90 days has not been exceeded
as on the date, such accounts have not been classified as NPA as per RBI norms.

; p— : s T ; jal
Such a classification is significant as early recognition of such accounts enables banks to initiate timely remed
actions to prevent potential slippages of such accounts into NPAs.

he
4. CA P is conducting stock audit of a borrower availing cash credit facility of X100 lacs from branch of a bank. T:I:;s
cash credit facility is against security of paid stocks and debtors up to 90 days. Margin stipulated is 25% for sto

and 40% for debtors. Following further information is available as on 31.12.22: - I/T
g ____________,,-‘
Value of stocks 125 lacs
Value of stock (fully damaged) included in above 5
Value of debtors 50 lacs
Value of debtors exceeding 90 days included in above | 10 lacs
Value of creditors for goods 50 lacs

Is Drawing Power computed by CA P for X 82,50 lacs proper?

Ly
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The computation of Drawing power is as under: -

value of stocks as on 31.12.22 % 125 lacs
Less: value of damaged stocks %5 lacs
X120 lacs
Less: creditors for goods as on 31.12.22 %50 lacs
value of Paid stocks X 70.00 lacs
Less: Margin @ 25% 17.50 lacs
Drawing power (A) X 52.50 lacs
Webtors ason31.12.22 %50 lacs
Less: debtors exceeding 90 days % 10 lacs
%40 lacs
Less: Margin @ 40% X 16 lacs
Drawing Power (B) X 24 lacs
Brawing Power (A+B) X 76.50 lacs

The drawing power calculated by CA P is not proper. Drawing Power comes to X 76.50 lacs.

5. You are verifying interest on deposits paid by branch of a nationalized bank. Discuss, any two “analytical

procedures”, to verify interest on deposits paid by branch. CAM is conducting statutory audit of branch of MMC
Bank.

The auditor should obtain from the bank an analysis of various types of deposits outstanding at the end of each
quarter. From such information, the auditor may work out a weighted average interest rate. The auditor may then
compare this rate with the actual average rate of interest paid on the relevant deposits as per the annual accounts
and enquire into the difference, if material.

The auditor should also compare the average rate of interest paid on the relevant deposits with the corresponding
figures for the previous years and analyse any material differences.

Case Study

During the course of audit, it is noticed as under:-

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

CA Shubham Keswani

Loans under “Kisan credit card” are given by Bank to farmers to meet their short-term credit needs for
cultivation of crops. In respect of one agricultural advance classified under “Kisan Credit Card” having an
outstanding balance of X 20 lacs as at year end, there is no transaction in account since last 90 days. The said
loan has been granted for cultivation of paddy which is harvested in a period of 3-4 months from sowing. The
branch has classified the said advance as “Standard asset”.

It is also observed that account of one borrower availing cash credit limit of X50 lacs was taken over from
another bank. The proposal was sanctioned by branch manager instead of immediate next higher authority as
required in “Manual of Delegation of Powers” of Bank.

It is noticed that head office of bank has flagged a savings account maintained in branch in which interest was
wrongly paid at higher rate due to wrong data feeding entry. Now, situation has been rectified by debiting
excess interest paid in the account. Since there was little balance in savings account, a debit balance of £1.50
lac was created in the said savings account due to above reversal. The matter was immediately informed to
account holder. However, he has not turned up for payment since matter was informed to him about six
months ago.
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(iv) There are many cash credit accounts in

: i wer.
i tion of drawing po .
statements to branch showmhg c:ai't:ulaI o car loan prelin buvanch, HBUSHEGHE EMB-ara overduef
iled a housing o m M
(v) One borrower has availe

s on date of Balance
120d s on date of Balance sheet. Car loan EMIs are overdue for 60 days a nce sheqy.
aysa

wers are required to submit mqp
the branch. Such borre thly stoe

Based on above, answer following questions:

(1) As regards description of agricultural advance, which of the following statements is most appropriate j, this
regard? e —_—
a. The branch has erred in making classification as per RBI norms. Itis a “Sub s?and?rd |
b‘ The classification made by branch is proper. However, there are no transactions in account since last 90 days,
itis SMA.
¢. The classification made by branch is proper. o )
The branch has erred in making classification as per RBI norms. Itis a doubtful” asset.

(2) Regarding taken over account from another bank, which of following statements is most appropriate?

a. Itisan internal issue of Bank and auditor is not concerned with it.

b. Itisaninternal issue of Bank. However, the auditor may, at his discretion, report it.

c. Itis aserious violation of laid down procedures of bank for sanction of advances and should be reported by
auditor without fail.

d. Thereis noissue involved as credit facility was properly sanctioned.

(3) As regards debit balance of X 1.50 lacs in Savings account, which of the following is correct from point of
view of an auditor?

a. Thessituation does not attract RBI norms on asset classification.

b. The debit balance of X1.50 lacs should be classified as NPA.

c. The situation does not attract RBI norms on asset classification as no credit facility was granted.
d. The bank cannot demand excess interest paid to account holder.

(4) Which of the following statements is not true about

“drawing power” (DP)?
a.

Drawing Power refers to the amount calculated based on primary security less margin as on particular date.
It is always less than sanctioned limit.

b
€. Itcan be different from sanctioned limit.
d

Creditors for goods are reduced for purpose of calculating Drawing Power.

(5) Considering housing loan and car loan availed by a borrower, which of the following statements .
appropriate?

. ‘ ; |
a iz::ﬂ:Z:s;:felto;;z?ﬁ\::v:tl:;s‘ car loan should be classified as “NonPerforming Assets” in accordance with ¥
Housing Loan should be classified as
classification. However, Car loan should
C. Car Loan should be classified as
However, Housing Loan should
Both Housing as well as car loa

' z Set
Non-Performing Asset” in accordance with RBI norms Of &

be classified as Standard asset.

" at 2 " o= i 'an
Non Performing Asset” in accordance with RBI norms on asset C"“SS’ﬁmu
be classified as Standard asset.

ns should be classified as Standard assets.
1.c2.|:3.b4.b5.a

L i et O R RN . il RO YA I B | L
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! MCQs based Questions
() which of the following is included in “Interest Earned” in Profit & loss A/c of a bank?
(a) Dpiscount on Bills

(b) Loan processing fees
(c) Commission on bills for collection
(d) Credit Card Fees

2 While auditing advances of a bank as statutory auditor, which of the following is not a likely concern of
auditor?

(a) Appropriate documentation of advances

(b) Ensuring budgeted targets of advances given by bank management

(c) compliance of sanctioned terms and conditions

(d) Operations in advance accounts

(3) Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if: -
(a) it is not paid on the due date fixed by the bank

(b) it is not paid within 30 days of due date fixed by the bank

(c) it is not paid within 60 days of due date fixed by the bank

(d) it is not paid within 90 days of due date fixed by the bank

(4) Which of the following statement is true regarding appointment of statutory branch auditor of a nationalized
bank?

(a) The appointment is made by bank acting through its board of directors with prior approval of Central govt.

(b) The appointment is made by bank acting through its board of directors with prior approval of RBI

(c) The appointment is made by bank acting through its board of directors with prior approval of ICAI

(d) The appointment is made by shareholders in AGM.

(5) Identify the correct statement: -

(a) Income from non-performing assets is recognized on accrual basis

(b) Income from non-performing assets is never recognized.

(c) Income from non-performing assets is recognized on basis of actual recovery

(d) Income from non-performing assets is recognized only when such assets are upgraded to standard assets

Correct/Incorrect
(1) RBI has been entrusted with the responsibility of regulating the activities of commercial banks only.

Incorrect. RBI has been entrusted with the responsibility of regulating the activities of commercial and other banks.

(2) In the computerised environment, the auditor need not be familiar with latest applicable RBI guidelines that
have bearing on the classification/ provisions and income recognition.

Incorrect. In the Computerised environment, it is imperative that the auditor is familiar with, and is satisfied that,
all the norms/parameters as per the latest applicable RBI guidelines are incorporated and built into the system that

generates information/data having a bearing on the classification/ provisions and income recognition.

(3) The auditor can assume that the system ge nerated information is correct and relied upon.
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Incorrect. The auditor should not go by the assumption that the system generated- inf.ormatian is correct ang %
be relied upon without evidence that demonstrates that the system driven information is based on validation of the

required parameters for the time being in force and applicable.

(4) Collateral security refers to the security offered by the borrower for bank finance or the one against Which
credit has been extended by the bank.

Incorrect. Primary security refers to the security offered by the borrower for bank finance or the one against which
credit has been extended by the bank. This security is the principal security for an advance.

(5) Registered mortgage is effected by a mere delivery of title deeds or other documents of title with intent to

create security thereof

Incorrect. Equitable mortgage, on the other hand, is effected by a mere delivery of title deeds or other documents

of title with intent to create security thereof.

(6) Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid within 90 days of becoming
due.

Incorrect. Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid on the due date fixed by
the bank.

(7) An account should be treated as 'out of order' if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of
the sanctioned limit/drawing power.

Correct. An account should be treated as ‘out of order' if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of
the sanctioned limit/drawing power.

(8) Banks recognize income on Non-Performing Assets on accrual basis.

Incorrect: Income from non-performing assets (NPA) is not recognised on accrual basis due to its uncertainty but s
booked as income only when it is actually received.

(9) Auditor of a Nationalised bank is to be appointed at the annual general meeting of the shareholders.

Incorrect- Auditor of a nationalized bank is to be appointed by the bank concerned acting through its Boards of
Directors and approval of the Reserve bank is required before the appointment is made.

(10) Classification as NPA should be based on the availability of security and asset classification would be facility
wise and not borrower wise. [MTP Apr-23]

Incorrect: Classification as NPA should be based on the record of recovery. Availability of security or net worth of
borrower/guarantor is not to be taken into account for purpose of treating an advance as NPA or otherwise. Asset
classification would be borrower-wise and not facility-wise.
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(11) Reporting of fraud of INR 150 Lakhs by auditor will be done within three days of the fraud coming to the

knowledge of the auditor to the Board or the Audit Committee along with remedial action taken in case of audit
of ABA Bank Ltd.

Incorrect- The auditor shall report the matter to the Board or the Audit Committee, as the case may be, immediately
but not later than 2 days of his knowledge of the fraud, seeking their reply or observations within 45 days. The
panking Company is bound to disclose remedial action taken in Board's report.

(12) Central Govt. guaranteed Advances, where the guarantee is not invoked/ repudiated would be classified as
standard Assets.

Correct: Central Govt. guaranteed Advances, where the guarantee is not invoked/ repudiated would be classified as
standard Assets, but regarded as NPA for Income Recognition purpose.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. There are different types of banks prevailing in India. Explain giving examples of such banks.
[MTP Mar-21]
There are different types of banking institutions prevailing in India which are as follows:

1. Commercial banks are the most wide spread banking institutions in India, that provide a number of products and
services to general public and other segments of economy. Two of its main functions are:-

(a) accepting deposits and

(b) granting advances.

2. Regional Rural Banks known as RRBs are the banks that have been set up in rural areas in different states of the
country to cater to the basic banking and financial needs of the rural communities. Examples are :- Punjab Gramin
Bank , Tripura Gramin Bank , Allahabad UP Gramin Bank , Andhra Pradesh Grameen Vikas Bank, etc.

3. Co-operative Banks function like Commercial Banks only but are set up on the basis of Cooperative Principles and

registered under the Cooperative Societies Act of the respective state or the Multistate Cooperative Societies Act
and usually cater to the needs of the agricultural and rural sectors. Examples are :- The Gujarat State Co-operative
Bank Ltd. , Chhatisgarh Rajya Sahakari Bank Maryadit, etc.

4. Payments Banks are a new type of banks which have been recently introduced by RBI. They are allowed to accept
restricted deposits but they cannot issue loans and credit cards.

However , customers can open Current & Savings accounts and also avail the facility of ATM cum Debit cards ,
Internet-banking & Mobilebanking. Examples are :- Airtel Payments Bank , India Post Payments Bank, Paytm
Payments Bank, etc.

5. Development Banks had been conceptualized to provide funds for infrastructural facilities important for the
economic growth of the country. Examples are:- Industrial Finance Corporation of India (IFCI), Industrial
Development Bank of India (IDBI), Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI), etc.

6. Small Finance Banks have been set up by RBI to make available basic financial and banking facilities to the

unserved and unorganised sectors like small marginal farmers, small & micro business units, etc. Examples are:-
Equitas Small Finance Bank , AU Small Finance Bank , etc.
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2. In the case of a nationalised bank, the auditor is required to make a report to the Central Governmep, .
report of auditors of State Bank of India is also to be made to the Central Government and is almost iden ‘
the auditor’s report in the case of a nationalised bank. Explain what would the auditor state in his report,

(MTp Octgy

tica| to

In the case of a nationalised bank, the auditor is required to make a report to the Central Government in ypy he
has to state the following:

a. whether, in his opinion, the balance sheet is a full and fair balance sheet containing all the necessary Particulyrs
and is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of the affairs of the bank, and in case he hag Calleg
for any explanation or information, whether it has been given and whether it is satisfactory;

b. whether or not the transactions of the bank, which have come to his notice, have been within the Powers of
that bank;

c. whether or not the returns received from the offices and branches of the bank have been found adequate for
the purpose of his audit;

d. whether the profit and loss account shows a true balance of profit or loss for the period covered by such
account; and

e. any other matter which he considers should be brought to the notice of the Central Government,

The report of auditors of State Bank of India is also to be made to the Central Government and is almost identical
to the auditor’s report in the case of a nationalised bank.

3. “If an accounting professional, whether in the course of internal or external audit or in the process of
institutional audit finds anything susceptible to be fraud or fraudulent activity or act of excess power or smells
any foul play in any transaction, he should refer the matter to the regulator. Any deliberate failure on the part of
the auditor should render himself liable for action”.
Analyse and explain the above RBI Circular regarding liability of accounting and auditing profession.

[MTP Aug-18]
The RBl issued a Circular relating to implementation of recommendations of Committee on Legal Aspects of Bank
Frauds applicable to all scheduled commercial banks (excluding Regional Rural Banks). Regarding liability of
accounting and auditing profession, the said circular provided as under:

“If an accounting professional, whether in the course of internal or external audit or in the process of institutional
audit finds anything susceptible to be fraud or fraudulent activity or act of excess power or smell any foul play in
any transaction, he should refer the matter to the regulator. Any deliberate failure on the part of the auditor should
render himself liable for action”,

As per the above requirement, the member shall be required to report the kind of matters stated in the circular
RBI.

Auditor should also consider the provisions of SA 250, “Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of
Financial Statements”. The said Standard explains that the duty of confidentiality is over-ridden by statute, law Of
by courts.

. AT i itor
SA 240, "The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements " states that an audi®
. - ; : g ia
conducting an audit in accordance with SAs is responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the fina1¢!
statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
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st be noted that auditor is not expected to look into each and every transaction but to evaluate the system as

C

it my : : : i
;whole- Therefore, if -the aurjttor while performing his normal duties comes across any instance, he should report
the matter to the RBI in addition to Chairman/Managing Director/Chief Executive of the concerned bank.

puty to report on Frauds f‘"d‘-'r the Companies Act, 2013 - As per section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, if
an auditor of a company, in the course of the performance of his duties as auditor, has reason to believe that an
offence of fraud involving such amount or amounts as may be prescribed, is being or has been committed in the
company by its officers or employees, the auditor shall report the matter to the Central Government within such
time and in such manner as may be prescribed.

4. Mr. Piyush, the Bank Manager develops controls to aid in managing key business and financial risks. Discuss
the various requirements for an effective risk management system in a bank. [May-19]

An effective risk management system in a bank generally requires the following:

(i) Oversight and involvement in the control process by those charged with governance: Those charged with
governance (BOD/Chief Executive Officer) should approve written risk management policies. The policies
should be consistent with the bank’s business objectives and strategies, capital strength, management
expertise, regulatory requirements and the types and amounts of risk it regards as acceptable.

(i) Identification, measurement and monitoring of risks: Risks that could significantly impact the achievement of
bank’s goals should be identified, measured and monitored against pre-approved limits and criteria.

(iii) Control activities: A bank should have appropriate controls to manage its risks, including effective segregation
of duties (particularly, between front and back offices), accurate measurement and reporting of positions,
verification and approval of transactions, reconciliation of positions and results, setting of limits, reporting and
approval of exceptions, physical security and contingency planning.

(iv) Monitoring activities: Risk management models, methodologies and assumptions used to measure and
manage risk should be regularly assessed and updated. This function may be conducted by the independent
risk management unit.

(v) Reliable information systems: Banks require reliable information systems that provide adequate financial,

operational and compliance information on a timely and consistent basis. Those charged with governance and

management require risk management information that is easily understood and that enables them to assess

the changing nature of the bank’s risk profile.

5. The engagement team discussion ordinarily includes a discussion of the matters such as - Errors that may be
more likely to occur; Errors which have been identified in prior years; Method by which fraud might be
Perpetrated by bank personnel or others within particular account balances and/or disclosures; etc.
In the above context, explain the advantages of such a discussion. [RTP Nov-21 + July-21 Suggested]

Advantages of such a discussion :-
¥ Specific emphasis should be provided to the susceptibility of the bank’s financial statements to material

Misstatement due to fraud, that enables the engagement team to consider an appropriate response to fraud
risks, including those related to engagement risk, pervasive risks, and specific risks.
¥ It further enables the audit engagement partner to delegate the work to the experienced engagement team

members, and to determine the procedures to be followed when fraud is identified.

v Further, audit engagement partner may review the need to involve specialists to address the issues relating to

fraud.

&
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bers and the audit e€ngagement
6. The discussion between members of the engagement team me“l material misstatements, Bri
b. done on the susceptibility of the bank's financial statements[ o -
€ done o Nov-
. team.
points ordinarily included in discussion of the engagement

Partner should
eﬂ‘! diSCUSs the

: i i ollowing matters:
The engagement team discussion ordinarily includes a discussion of the fi g
(i) Errors that may be more likely to occur;
(i) Errors which have been identified in prior years; o .
(iii) Method by which fraud might be perpetrated by bank personnel or others within particular daccount balances
and / or disclosure; —
(iv) Audit responses to engagement risk, pervasive risks and specific risks;
(V) Need to maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit engagement,

the Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs) have to furnish the following reports in addition to theijr Main audit
report:

of Internal Financial Controals ov

Long Form Audit Report. (LFAR)

Report on compliance with SLR requirements,

Report on whether the treasury operations of the bank have been conducted in accordance with the

instructions issued by the RBI from time to time,

€. Report on whether the income recognition, asset classifica
guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time.

per the Guidance Note on Audit
er Financial Reporting i

tion and Provisionj

Ghosh Committee relating to
internal contro| and inspection/credit system.
Report on instances of adverse credit-deposit ratio in the ryura| areas,

-

As per the guidelines, Agricultural Advances are of two types:
(1) Agricultural Advances for “long duration” crops; and
(2) Agricultural Advances for “short duration” crops.

The “long duration” crops would be crops with crop season longer than one year ang EH6PE; which are not
duration” crops would be treated as “short duration” crops.

The crop season for each crop, which means the period up to ha rvesting of the Crops raised, would be as determined
by the State Level Bankers’ Committee in each State.

B

“long
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The following NPA norms would apply to agricultural advances (including Crop Term Loans):

« A loan granted for short duration crops will be treated as NPA, if the instalment of principal or interest thereon
remains overdue for two crop seasons; and

. A loan granted for long duration crops will be treated as NPA, if the instalment of principal or interest thereon
remains overdue for one crop season.

g, "Ramijilal & Co. had been allotted the branch audit of a nationalized bank for the year ended 31st March, 2018,
In the audit planning, the partner of Ramjilal & Co., observed that the allotted branches are predominantly based
in rural areas and major portion of the advances were for agricultural purpose.”

Now he needs your assistance on the following points so as to incorporate them in the audit plan:

(i) for determination of NPA norms for agricultural advances

(ii) for accounts where there is erosion in the value of security/frauds committed by the borrowers.

[Nov-18]
(i) Answer 9

(ii) Accounts where there is erosion in the value of security / frauds committed by borrowers

Not prudent to follow stages of asset classification. It should be straightaway classified as doubtful or loss asset as
appropriate.

(i) Erosion in the value of security can be reckoned as significant when the realisable value of the security is less than
50 per cent of the value assessed by the bank or accepted by RBI at the time of last inspection, as the case may be.
Such NPAs may be straightaway classified under doubtful category and provisioning should be made as applicable
to doubtful assets.

(ii) If the realisable value of the security, as assessed by the bank/ approved valuers/ RBI is less than 10 per cent of
the outstanding in the borrowal accounts, the existence of security should be ignored and the asset should be
straightaway classified as loss asset. It may be either written off or fully provided for by the bank.

10. After becoming Chartered Accountant, you have got your first assignment as an auditor of a bank branch
dealing in various types of advances. What are the areas which you will be looking for obtaining sufficient
appropriate evidence (for adva nces) besides studying and evaluating internal controls?

[May-22]
Audit Procedure in Audit of Advances in case of Bank Audit: The auditor can obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about advances by study and evaluation of internal controls relating to advances, and by:
(i) examining the validity of the recorded amounts;
(ii) examining loan documentation.
(iii) reviewing the operation of the accounts;
(iv) examining the existence, enforceability and valuation of the security;

(v) checking compliance with RBI norms including appropriate classification and provisioning; and
(vi) carrying out appropriate analytical procedures.

11. The auditor should examine the efficacy of various internal controls over advances to determine the nature,
timing and extent of his substantive procedures. Explain this statement. (MTP Apr-22)
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The auditor should examine the efficacy of various internal controls over advances to determine Fhe Nature, timy
and extent of his substantive procedures. In general, the internal controls over advances should Include, i,
the following:
* The bank should make an advance only after satisfying itself as to the credit worthiness of the borrowe, i
after obtaining sanction from the appropriate authorities of the bank.
* All the necessary documents (e.g., agreements, demand promissory notes, letters of hvpothecation, ete)
should be executed by the parties before advances are made.
* The compliance with the terms of sanction and end use of funds should be ensured.
* Sufficient margin as specified in the sanction letter should be kept against securities taken so as tg cover fo,
any decline in the value thereof. The availability of sufficient margin needs to be ensured at regular intervals,
* If the securities taken are in the nature of shares, debentures, etc., the ownership of the same should pe
transferred in the name of the bank and the effective control of such securities be retained as a part o
documentation.

ng
ter a|ial

d

f

All securities requiring registration should be registered in the name of the bank or otherwise accompanied

by documents sufficient to give title to the bank.

In the case of goods in the possession of the bank, contents of the packages should be test checked at the time
- of receipt. The godowns should be frequently inspected by responsible officers of the branch concerned, in

addition to the inspectors of the bank.

Drawing Power Register should be updated every month to record the value of securities hypothecated. These
entries should be checked by an officer.

* The accounts should be kept within both the drawing power and the sanctioned limit.

All the accounts which exceed the sanctioned limit or drawing power or are otherwise irregular should be
brought to the notice of the controlling authority regularly.

The operation of each advance account should be reviewed at least once a year and at more frequent intervals
in the case of large advances.

12. In carrying out audit of advances, the auditor is primarily concerned with obtaining evidence about amounts
included in balance sheet in respect of advances which are outstanding.

Explain stating clearly all the
considerations in this context. [RTP Nov-22 +RTP May-21]

Advances generally constitute the major part of the assets of the bank. There are large number of borrowers t0
whom variety of advances are granted. The audit of advances requires the major attention from the auditors.

In carrying out audit of advances, the auditor is primarily concerned with obtaining evidence about the following:
a. Amounts included in balance sheet in respect of advances which a

ce
re outstanding at the date of the bala"
sheet.

b. Advances represent amount due to the bank.

. i-able
c. Amounts due to the bank are appropriately supported by loan documents and other documents as appncabl
to the nature of advances.

d. There are no unrecorded advances.

e. The stated basis of valuation of advances is appropriate and
advances is recognised in their valuation,

f. The advances are disclosed, classified and described in accorda
practices and relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

g. Appropriate provisions towards advances have been made as
generally accepted accounting practices.

ity of
properly applied and the recoverability
. s 108 and
nce with recognized accounting policié

d
s an
per the RBI norms, Accounting standard
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3, "There is no difference in provisioning of NPA as regards to categories of NPA, whether the debt is secured or
1,-.'5ecﬂfed'" critically evaluate the statement on the basis of provisioning norms of NPA of nationalised bank

tating clearly the provision percent required. [MTP Oct-21 + Nov-22]
1

classification 25 NPA should be based on the record of recovery. Availability of security or net worth of
bormwer/guarantor is not to be taken into account for purpose of treating an advance as NPA or otherwise. Further,

asset classification would be borrower-wise and not facility-wise. All facilities including investments in securities

would be termed as NPA. There are different provisioning requirements as regards to categories of NPA such as
substandards assets, Doubuiul assets and loss assets which are given below:

m' Provision Required
sub std assets 15%

(NPAs upto 12 months)
Doubtful Assets
(Sub std for period of 12 Months)

sub Categories Secured/Unsecured
Doubtful upto 1 year 25%,/100%

Doubtful 1-3 years 40%,/100%

Doubtful > 3 years 100%/100%

Loss Assets: 100%

Loss identified by bank/internal/external auditors or
RBI but amt not w/off wholly.

14, In case of a Bank, explain the meaning of Funded loans. Also give examples. [MTP Oct-21]
Funded loans are those loans where there is an actual transfer of funds from the bank to the borrower.

Advances comprise of funded amounts by way of:
» Term loans :-

« Cash credits, Overdrafts, Demand Loans

« Bills Discounted and Purchased

* Participation on Risk Sharing basis

* Interest-bearing Staff Loans

15. Distinguish between Primary Security and Collateral security with reference to audit of Banks. Also give
examples of most common types of securities accepted by the Banks. [RTP Nov-20]

A. Primary security refers to the security offered by the borrower for bank finance or the one against which credit
has been extended by the bank. This security is the principal security for an advance.

Follateral security is an additional security. Security can be in any form i.e. tangible or intangible asset, movable
or immovable asset,

Examples of most common types of securities accepted by banks are thesioliowings
* Personal Security of Guarantor

» Goods/Stocks/Debtors/Trade Receivables

'* Gold Ornaments and Bullion

(> Immovable Property
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* Plantations (For Agricultural Advances)

* Third Party Guarantees

* Banker’s General Lien

¢ Life Insurance Policies

* Stock Exchange Securities and Other Instruments

16. Depending on the nature of the item concerned, creation of security may take the form of a mortgag

€, pleg
_ i ¢ Be,
hypothecation, assignment, set-off or lien. Explain with specific reference to Audit of Banks.

[RTP Nov-20 + mtp Mar.3
Depending on the nature of the item concerned, creation of security may take the form of a mortgage, Pledge

hypothecation, assignment, set-off or lien.

(i) Mortgage: Mortgage are of several kinds but the most important are the Registered Mortgage and the Equitape
Mortgage.

* Registered Mortgage can be affected by a registered instrument called the ‘Mortgage Deed’ signed by the
mortgagor. It registers the property to the mortgagee as a security.

* Equitable mortgage, on the other hand, is effected by a mere delivery of title deeds or other documents of title
with intent to create security thereof.

(ii) Pledge: A pledge thus involves bailment or delivery of goods by the borrower to the lending bank with the
intention of creating a charge thereon as security for the advance. The legal ownership of the goods remains with

the pledger while the lending banker gets certain defined interests in the goods. The pledge of goods constitutesa
specific (or fixed) charge.

(iii) Hypothecation: The hypothecation is the creation of an equitable charge (i.e., a charge created not by an express
enactment but by equity and reason), which is created in favour of the lending bank by execution of hypothecation
agreement in respect of the moveable securities belonging to the borrower.

Neither ownership nor possession is transferred to the bank. However, the borrower holds the physical possession
of the goods as an agent/trustee of the bank.

The borrower periodically submits statements regarding quantity and value of hypothecated assets (stocks, debtors
etc.) to the lending banker on the basis of which the drawing power of the borrower is fixed.

(iv) Assignment: Assignment represents a transfer of an existing or future debt, right or property belonging 02
person in favour of another person. Only actionable claims (i.e., claim to any debt other than a debt secured b\.’a
mortgage of immovable property or by hypothecation or pledge of moveable property) such as book debts and life
insurance policies are accepted by banks as security by way of assignment.

An assignment gives the assignee absolute right over the moneys/debts assigned to him.

(v) Set-off is a statutory right of a creditor to adjust, wholly or partly, the debit balance in the debtor’s accoun:
against any credit balance lying in another account of the debtor. The right of set-off enables a bank to combineé twe
accounts (a deposit account and a loan account) of the same person provided both the accounts are in the sam
name and same right (i.e., the capacity of the account holder in both the accounts should be the same)-

an bé
For the purpose of set-off, all the branches of a bank are treated as one single entity. The right of set-off €
exercised in respect of time-barred debts also.
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(vi) Lien: Lien is creation of a legal charge with consent of the owner, which gives lender a legal right to seize and
dispose / liquidate the asset under lien.

17. Explain "Advances under Consortium" in the context of Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances. [MTP Nov-21 + Jan-21]

Advances under Consortium: Consortium advances should be based on the record of recovery of the respective
individual member banks and other aspects having a bearing on the recoverability of the advances.

v Where the remittances by the borrower under consortium lending arrangements are pooled with one bank
and/or where the bank rczeiving remittances is not parting with the share of other member banks, the
account should be treater' as not serviced in the books of the other member banks and therefore, an NPA.

v The banks participating in the consortium, therefore, need to arrange to get their share of recovery transferred
from the lead bank or to get an express consent from the lead bank for the transfer of their share of recovery,
to ensure proper asset classification in their respective books.

18. 1. N Ltd. has been sanctioned a Cash Credit Facility by XYZ Bank Ltd. for INR 1 crore and drawing power as per
the stock statements furnished for the last quarter is INR 80 Lakh. Outstanding balance in the account is INR 75
lakh. Interest charged to the account is INR 3.5 Lakh and total credit into the account for the quarter is INR 2.5
Lakh. As an auditor how will you report this account in your report. [July-21]

Out of Order: An account should be treated as ‘out of order” if:
 the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of the sanctioned limit/drawing power or
« In cases where the outstanding balance in the principal operating account is less than the sanctioned
limit/drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of Balance Sheet; or
» Credits are there but are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, these accounts
should be treated as ‘out of order’.

Applying the above to the given case of N Ltd, its Drawing power is X 80 Lakhs, although outstanding balance in the
account is X 75 Lakhs, but still the account would be reported as out of order because credits in the account are not
sufficient to cover the interest debited during the same period.

19. In view of the significant uncertainty regarding ultimate collection of income arising in respect of non-
performing assets, the guidelines require that banks should not recognize income on non-performing assets until
it is actually realised. When a credit facility is classified as non-performing for the first time, interest accrued and
credited to the income account in the corresponding previous year which has not been realized should be
reversed or provided for, This will apply to Government guaranteed accounts also. Analyse and Explain.

[RTP May-20]
Reversal of Income:
If any advance, including bills purchased and discounted, becomes NPA as at the close of any year, the entire interest
accrued and credited to income account in the past periods, should be reversed or provided for if the same is not
realised. This will apply to Government guaranteed accounts also.

In respect of NPAs, fees, commission and similar income that have accrued should cease to accrue in the current
period and should be reversed or provided for with respect to past periods, if uncollected.
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Further, in case of banks which have wrongly recognised income in the past should reverse the intergg
recognised as income during the current year or make a provision for an equivalent amount if it was recog
income in the previous year(s).

if it Wag
Nizeq 5

Furthermore, the auditor should enquire if there are any large debits in the Interest Income account that h
been explained. It should be enquired whether there are any communications from borrowers point
differences in interest charge and whether appropriate action has been taken in this regard.

ing oy

20. In a bank, all accounts should be kept within the drawing power and the sanctioned limit. The accounts Which
exceed the sanctioned limit or drawing power should be brought to the notice of the management re
Analyse the following points to be considered in the computation of drawing power in case of bank a
Bank’s Duties (ii) Auditor’s concern (iii) Computation of DP (iv) Stock audit [MTP Apr-23]

Bularly,
udit, (j)

Computation of Drawing Power:
(i) Bank’s Duties:
v Banks should ensure that drawings in the working capital account are covered by the adequacy of the current
assets.
v" Drawing power is required to be arrived at based on current stock statement. However, considering the
difficulties of large borrowers, stock statements relied upon by the banks for determining drawing power
should not be older than three months.

¥" The outstanding in the account based on drawing power calculated from stock statements older than three
months is deemed as irregular.

(ii) Auditor’s Concern:
v" The stock statements, quarterly returns and other statements submitted by the borrower to the bank should
be scrutinized in detail.
v" The audited Annual Report submitted by the borrower should be scrutinized properly.
¥" The monthly stock statement of the month for which the audited accounts are prepared and submitted
should be compared and the reasons for deviations, if any, should be ascertained.

(ili) Computation of DP: It needs to be ensured that the drawing power is calculated as per the extant guidelines
formulated by the Board of Directors of the respective bank and agreed upon by the concerned statutory auditors

Special consideration should be given to proper reporting of sundry creditors for the purposes of calculating
drawing power.

(iv) Stock Audit:

¥" The stock audit should be carried out by the bank for all accounts having funded exposure of more than 5
crores. Auditors can also advise for stock audit in other cases if the situation warrants the same.

v' Branches should obtain the stock audit reports from lead bank in the cases where the Bank is not leader 0
consortium of working capital.

v The report submitted by the stock auditors should be reviewed during the course of the audit and Special f"f”s
should be given to the comments made by the stock auditors on valuation of security and calculation of drawiné
power.

fthe

. . vera"
21. In carrying out an audit of interest expense, the auditor is primarily concerned with assessing the ° o
s e
reasonableness of the amount of interest expense. Analyse and explain stating the audit approach and pro¢
in regard to interest expense. [RTP Nov-21]
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|n carrying out an audit of interest expense, the auditor is primarily concerned with assessing the overall
reasonableness of the amount of interest expense by analysing ratios of interest paid on different types of
deposits and borrowings to the average quantum of the respective liabilities during the year. In modern day
banking, the entries for interest expenses are automatically generated through a batch process in the CBS system.

The auditor should obtain from the bank an analysis of various types of deposits outstanding at the end of each
quarter. From such information, the auditor may work out a weighted average interest rate. The auditor may then
compare this rate with the actual average rate of interest paid on the relevant deposits as per the annual accounts
and enquire into the difference, if material.

The auditor should also compare the average rate of interest paid on the relevant deposits with the corresponding
figures for the previous years and analyse any material differences.

The auditor should obtain general ledger break-up for the interest expense incurred on deposits (savings and term
deposits) and borrowing each month/quarter. The auditor should analyse month on month (or quarter on quarter)
cost analysis and document the reasons for the variances as per the benchmark stated. He should examine whether
the interest expense considered in the cost analysis agrees with the general ledger. The auditor should understand
the process of computation of the average balance and re-compute the same on sample basis.

The auditor should, on a test check basis, verify the calculation of interest and ensure that:
a. Interest has been provided on all deposits upto the date of the balance sheet;
b. Interest rates are in accordance with the bank’s internal regulations, the RBI directives and agreements with
the respective deposit holder;
¢. Interest on savings accounts are in accordance with the rules framed by the bank/RBI in this behalf.
Interest on inter—branch balances has been provided at the rates prescribed by the head office/RBI.

The auditor should ascertain whether there are any changes in interest rate on saving accounts and term deposits
during the period. The auditor should obtain the interest rate card for various types of deposits and analyse the
interest cost for the period accordingly.

The auditor should examine the completeness that interest has been accrued on the entire borrowing portfolio
and the same should agree with the general ledgers.

The auditor should re-compute the interest accrual i.e., by referring to the parameters like frequency of payment
of interest amount, rate of interest, period elapsed till the date of balance sheet, etc. from the term sheet, deal
ticket, agreements, etc. and ensure that the recomputed amount is tallying with the amount as per books of
accounts without any significant difference.

22 Explain the following in the context of Bank audit:
a. For audit of operating expenses, the auditor should study and evaluate the system of internal control relating
to expenses.
b. For audit of Provisions and contingencies, the auditor should ensure that the compliances for various
regulatory requirements for provisioning as contained in the various circulars have been fulfilled.
[RTP May-22 + MTP Mar-23]
(a) For audit of operating expenses,
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y f internal control relating to S, Including 3y,
* Auditor should study and evaluate the system 0O _ .
procedures in order to determine the nature, timing and extent Ofdhlf: 0t2:rectdof ::':d':rESI
*  The auditor should examine whether there are any divergent tre.n SHVEESD s . ®XPense,
*  The auditor should perform substantive analytical procedures in res.pect s E);penses, ?-g- assess g,
reasonableness of expenses by working out their ratio to total operating expenses an comparing jt with the

thmilatian

corresponding figures for previous years.

*  The auditor should also verify expenses with reference to supporting documents and check the calculaﬁans

wherever required.

(b) For audit of Provisions and contingencies, the auditor should ensure that the compliances for various reEUlatnn;
requirements for provisioning as contained in the various circulars have been fulfilled.

* The auditor should obtain an understanding as to how the bank computes provision on standarg assets ang
non-performing assets.

v" It will primarily include checking the basis of classification of loans and receivables into standard, sy,
standard, doubtful, loss and non-performing assets.

v" The auditor may verify the loan classification on a sample basis. The auditor should obtain the detaileg
break up of standard loans, non-performing loans and agree the outstanding balances with the genera|
ledger.

* The auditor should obtain the tax provision computation from the bank’s management and verify the nature
of items debited and credited to profit and loss account to ascertain that the same are appropriately considered
in the tax provision computation.

* The other provisions for expenses should be examined vis-a-vis the circumstances warranting the provisioning
and the adequacy of the same by discussing and obtaining the explanations from the bank’s management.

23. When are following considered as non performing as per the RBI guidelines?
(i) Government guaranteed advances (i) Advances to staff [MTP Mar-23]

Government Guaranteed advances:
¢ Central Govt. guaranteed Advances, where the guarantee is not invoked/ rep udiated would be classified as
Standard Assets, but regarded as NPA for Income Recognition purpose.
* The situation would be different if the advance is guaranteed by State Government, where advance is to be

considered NPA if it remains overdue for more than 90 days for both Provisioning and Income recognition
purposes.

Advances to Staff

* Interest-bearing staff advances as a banker should be included as part of advances portfolio of the bank.

* In the case of housing loan or similar advances granted to staff members where interest is payable after
recovery of principal, interest need not be considered as overdue from the first quarter onwards. Such
loans/advances should be classified as NPA only when there is a default in repayment of installment of prin'.'.i.DaI
or payment of interest on the respective due dates.

e The staff advances by a bank as an employer and not as a banker are required to be included under the il
head ‘Others’ under the schedule of Other Assets.

year 2022-23. The assignment started from 1st October 2022 and is for a period of one year. By virtue 0“'"'5
assignment, he is required to issue monthly reports on different aspects of the functioning of branch including
deposits, advances and housekeeping to controlling authorities of Bank. At the end.of March, 2023, he has got "
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offer to conduct statutory audit of two branches of KLT Bank located in the State of Rajasthan for the year 2022-
23. Can he accept the above offer? Discuss. [MTP Nov-23]

Inthe given situation, CA X has undertaken concurrent audit assignment of KLT Bank which is in the nature of internal
assignments. In accordance with RBI guidelines, statutory audit assignments should not be undertaken by auditors
while being associated with internal assignments in bank during the same year like concurrent audits (Internal
audits of banks conducted monthly during the yea r).

As CA X is associated with KLT Bank as concurrent auditor, he should not accept statutory audit assignment of same
bank even though it relates to different branches of the bank.

25. While conducting statutory audit of branch of a nationalized bank, it is noticed by CA Z that credit facilities
granted to a borrower consisting solely of term loan have been classified as “Sub-standard Asset” during the year
2022-23 due to failure of borrower to pay EMIs on time. Such EMIs were outstanding for more than 90 days and
account was, therefore, classified as “Sub-Standard Asset”. CA Z has also agreed to above asset classification
made by branch management,

What are CA Z's responsibilities regarding verification of compliance with income recognition norms by branch in
respect of above credit facilities?

RBI norms stipulate that if any advance account becomes NPA as at close of any year, the entire interest accrued
or credited to income account in past periods should be reversed or provided for, if the same is not realized.

Further, in respect of NPAs, fees, commission and other similar income that have accrued should cease to accrue in
the current period and should be reversed or provided for with respect to past periods, if uncollected.

In the given case, account has turned Sub-standard asset which is a type of NPA. Therefore, auditor should make
compliance of above norms relating to income recognition.

26. While verifying provisions of advances of a branch of MCO Bank as part of statutory branch audit, CA Z notices
that credit facilities consisting of term loan to KRT Enterprises have been classified under doubtful asset (D1)
category. The outstanding balance in above term loan account as on 31.3.2023 is X 50 lakhs. Value of security held

in account is X 40 lakhs. The branch has made provision of X7.50 lakhs. Is provision made by branch proper?
Discuss. [MTP Nov-23]

The provision for advances falling in D1 category is required @ 25% of secured portion and 100% of unsecured
portion.

Therefore, provision in above case is arrived as under: -

Outstanding balance as on 31.3.23 % 50 lakhs
Less: Value of security % 40 lakhs
Unsecured portion X 10 lakhs

Therefore, outstanding balance of %50 lakhs is secured to the tune of 240 lakhs and balance X 10 lakhs is unsecured.

Provision calculation
@% of secured part i.e., 25% of 240 lakhs % 10 lakhs —I
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10 lakhs

- £310 lakhs \
100% of unsecured part i.e.,100% 0 % 20 lakhs \

Required provision

Therefore, provision made by branch is not proper. It should have made provision of X20 lakhs Ins‘ead o,

lakhs. 3

“If you can THINK about it, you can ACHIEVE it,
Think about what you WANT in LIFE”

CA Shubham Keswani 151


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-15 Government Audit

CASE STUDY
consider the following five descriptions:-

(A) Audit of “Implementation of Nagpur Metro Rail Project” was conducted by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India.

Following is extract of few audit findings placed on website cag.gov.in.

“The location of New Airport station was not ideal from the viewpoint of ridership due to sparse population in and
around the station and also from the accessibility point of view.

Cotton Market station, the second additional station was projected to have high peak hour peak direction trips but

the work was kept on hold midway citing fund crunch due to non-release of pending contribution from stakeholders.
However, the situation could have been managed through prioritization of works.”

(B) Another set of audit findings in respect of audit of Haryana Power Generation Corporation Limited, a wholly
owned government company responsible for operation of power generation plants in state of Haryana is as under:

“The main reason for low generation was higher variable cost of thermal power stations which resulted in backing
down of plants.”

(C) A report was tabled in Parliament highlighting main features of direct taxes administration of country as
mandated in Constitution of India. This report primarily discussed compliance to the provisions of the Income Tax

Act, 1961 and the associated rules and procedures etc. as applied to administration of direct taxes including
irregularities noticed in finalizing assessments etc.

(D) Radial finance corporation Limited is a government company. The audit of the company is conducted by statutory
auditors appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

(E) Bharat Insurance Company Limited is a general insurance government owned company. The statutory auditor is
appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

The annual report for a particular year also contains comments of statutory auditors on matters such as whether

company has carried out reconciliations in respect of its inter-company balances with other government owned
insurance companies.

Based on above, answer following questions:

(1) Based upon plain reading of audit findings stated at Para (A), identify type of audit carried out by office of
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

a. Audit against provision of funds
b. Propriety audit

c. Performance audit

d. Compliance audit

(2) Keeping in view audit findings in respect of Haryana Power Generation Corporation Limited, identify type of
audit carried out.

a. Audit of Government Company
b. Audit against rules and orders
c. Compliance audit

d. Performance audit
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(3) Which of the following is the most ap
administration of direct taxes?
a. Itis likely to be a report prepared for submission to the Pre
India by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.
b. Itis likely to be a report prepared for submission to the Prime
Constitution of India by an independent task force of experts.
c. Itis likely to be a report prepared for submission to the President under Article 151 of the Constitution of
India by Central Board of Direct Taxes.
d. Itis likely to be a report prepared for submission to the Prime Minister under

Constitution of India by Central Board of Direct Taxes.

propriate statement in context of report tabled in Parliament regarding
sident under Article 151 of the Constitution of

Minister under Article 151 of the

Article 151 of the

(4) Who is empowered to conduct “supplementary audit” in case of Radial finance Corporation Limited, a

government company?
a. Central Government
b. Another independent auditor appointed by CAG
c. CAG
d. Another independent auditor appointed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs

(5) As regards comments of auditors specified in respect of audit report of above insurance company, which of

the following is likely to be most appropriate statement?
a. Such are likely to be comments of test audit carried out by CAG.
b. Such are likely to be comments in respect of directions to statutory auditor by CAG for reporting on specific
aspect of their audit work.
c. Such are likely to be comments of supplementary audit carried out by CAG
Such are likely to be comments of statutory auditors in accordance with requirements of Standards on

Auditing
1.c2.d3.ad.c5.b

MCcQ
1. Consider following revenue sources of Union Government.
(P) Revenues from direct taxes
(Q) Revenues from Goods and Services Tax
(R) Revenues from Custom Duties
(S) Revenues from Excise Duties
Out of P, Q, R and S, which of the following flow to “Consolidated Fund of India”?
(a) P, Qand R '
(b) P,Qand$S
(c)Pand Q
(d)P,Q Rand$

Ans D

Test Your Unders .
ta

It is the duty of Comptroller and Auditor General of i tI'ldu'lB

0 audi

LEfritow having a Legislative Assembly and 10
een disburs for an
CA Shubham Keswani ed were legally available
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applicable to the service or purpose to which they have been applied or charged and whether the expenditure

conforms to the authority which governs it. Discuss, in above context, what is understood by “Consolidated Fund
of India”? What is its importance?

Consolidated Fund of India consists of all the revenue received from direct and indirect taxes, all the loans taken
by the Govt. of India and all the amount of repayment of loans received by the Govt. of India. Its importance lies
in the fact that all government expenditure is incurred from this fund. No moneys out of the Consolidated Fund of

India shall be appropriated except in accordance with law and for the purposes and in the manner provided in the
Constitution.

Correct/Incorrect
1. The duties and powers of the Comptroller and Auditor General in relation to the audit of the accounts of
government companies shall be performed and exercised by him in accordance with the provisions of the The
Comptroller & Auditor General’s (Duties, Powers and Conditions of Service) Act, 1971.
[RTP May-22]
Incorrect: The duties and powers of the Comptroller and Auditor General in relation to the audit of the accounts of

government companies shall be performed and exercised by him in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

2. The Constitution of India contains no specific provisions regarding the appointment, salary and duties and
powers of the CRAG. Moreover, the constitution does not guarantee the independence of the C&AG of India
[MTP May-22/RTP Nov-20]

Incorrect: The Constitution of India contains specific provisions regarding the appointment, salary and duties and
powers of the C&AG. The constitution guarantees the independence of the C&AG of India by prescribing that he

shall be appointed by the President of India and shall not be removed from office except on the ground of proven
mis-behaviour or incapacity.

3. Article 150 of the Constitution provides that the accounts of the Union and of the States shall be kept in such
form as the Finance Minister may on the advice of the C&AG prescribe.

Incorrect. Article 150 of the Constitution provides that the accounts of the Union and of the States shall be kept in
such form as the President may on the advice of the C&AG prescribe.

4. According to ‘Audit of sanctions’, the auditors try to bring out cases of improper, avoidable, or infructuous
expenditure even though the expenditure has been incurred in conformity with the existing rules and regulations.

Incorrect, According to ‘prapriety audit’, the auditors try to bring out cases of improper, avoidable, or infructuous
expenditure even though the expenditure has been incurred in conformity with the existing rules and regulations.

According to 'Audit of sanctions', the auditor has to ensure that each item of expenditure is covered by a sanction,
either general or special, of the competent authority.

Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions
1. Government audit has not only adopted the basic essentials of auditing as known and practised in the
profession to suit the requirements of governmental transactions but has also added new concepts, techniques
and procedures to the audit profession. Explain stating clearly the definition of Government auditing as discussed
in U.N. Handbook on Govt Auditing and Developing Countries and also state Objectives of Govt audit.
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~ [rw May.y
Government audit has not only adopted the basic essentials of auditing as known and pract:e‘d in the profesg
suit the requirements of governmental transactions but has also added new concepts, techniques and proce

to the audit profession.

On to
dures

The U.N. Handbook on Government Auditing and Developing Countries defines government auditing ]
comprehensive manner which is as follows:-
Government auditing is
» the objective, systematic, professional and independent examination
of financial, administrative and other operations of a public entity
made subsequently to their execution
for the purpose of evaluating and verifying them,
presenting a report containing explanatory comments on audit findings together with conclusions and
recommendations for future actions

YV VYV

v

by the responsible officials
and in the case of examination of financial statements, expressing the appropriate professional opinion
regarding the fairness of the presentation.

Y

Objectives :-

a. Accounting for Public Funds:- Government audit serves as a mechanism or process for public accounting of
government funds.

b. Appraisal of Government policies:- It also provides public accounting of the operational, management,
programme and policy aspects of public administration as well as accountability of the officials administering
them.

c. Base for Corrective actions:-Audit observations based on factual data collection also serve to highlight the
lapses of the lower hierarchy, thus helping supervisory level officers to take corrective measures.

d. Administrative Accountability :- The main objective of audit is a combination of ensuring accountability of
administration to legislature and functioning as an aid to administration

2. CR&AG's (Duties, Powers and Conditions of Service) Act, 1971 provides certain powers to the C & AG in
connection with performance of his duties. Discuss. [MTP Nov-21/Apr-23]

Powers of C & AG in performance of his duties: C&AG's (Duties, Powers and Condition of Service) Act, 1971 gives
the following powers to the C&AG in connection with the performance of his duties:

(i) To inspect any an office accounts under the control of the union or a State Government including office
responsible for creation of initial or subsidiary accounts.

(ii) To require that any accounts, books, papers and other documents which deal with or are otherwise relevant to
the transactions under audit, be sent to specified places.

(iii) To put such questions or make such observations as he may consider necessary to the person-in charge of the
office and to call for such information as he may require for preparation of any account or report, which s his
duty to prepare.

In carrying out the audit, the C&AG has the power to dispense with any part of detailed audit of any accounts or
class of transactions and to apply such limited checks in relation to such accounts or transaction as he may
determine.
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3. Explain the duties of C&AG of India. [RTP May/Nov-19]

puties of the C&AG:

(i) Compile and submit Accounts of Union and States — C&AG shall be responsible for compiling accounts of the
Union and of each State from initial and subsidiary accounts rendered to audit and accounts offices under his control
by treasuries, offices or departments responsible for the keeping of such account. C&AG shall, from the accounts
compiled by him or [by the Government or any other person responsible in that behalf] prepare in each accounts
(including, in the case of accounts compiled by him, appropriation accounts) showing under the respective heads
the annual receipts and disbursements for the purpose of the Union, of each State and of each UT having a
Legislative Assembly, and shall submit those accounts to President or Governor of State or Administrator of UT

having a Legislative Assembly, as the case may be, on or before such dates as he may, with the concurrence of the
Government concerned, determine.

(ii) General Provisions Relating to Audit - It shall be the duty of the C&AG to audit & report on—

(a) all expenditure from the Consolidated Fund of India and of each State and of each UT having a Legislative
Assembly and to ascertain whether the moneys shown in the accounts as having been disbursed were legally
available for and applicable to the service or purpose to which they have been applied or charged and whether the
expenditure conforms to the authority which governs it;

(b) all transactions of the Union and of the States relating to Contingency Funds and Public Accounts;

(c) to audit and report on all trading, manufacturing and profit and loss accounts and balance-sheets and other
subsidiary accounts kept in any department of the Union or of a State.

(iii) Audit of Receipts and Expenditure - Where any body or authority is substantially financed by grants or loans
from the Consolidated Fund of India or of any State or of any UT having a Legislative Assembly, the C&AG shall,
subject to the provisions of any law for the time being in force applicable to the body or authority, as the case may
be, audit all receipts and expenditure of that body or authority and to report on the receipts and expenditure audited
by him.

Where the grant or loan to a body or authority from the Consolidated Fund of India or of any State or of any UT
having a Legislative Assembly in a financial year is not less than rupees twenty-five lakhs and the amount of such
grant or loan is not less than seventy-five per cent of the total expenditure of that body or authority, such body or
authority shall be deemed, for this purpose to be substantially financed by such grants or loans as the case may be.

(iv) Audit of Grants or Loans - Where any grant or loan is given for any specific purpose from the Consolidated Fund
of India or of any State or of any UT having a Legislative Assembly to any authority or body, not being a foreign State
or international organisation, the C&AG shall scrutinise the procedures by which the sanctioning authority satisfies
itself as to the fulfillment of the conditions subject to which such grants or loans were given and shall for this purpose
have right of access, after giving reasonable previous notice, to the books and accounts of that authority or body.

(v) Audit of Receipts of Union or States - It shall be the duty of the C&AG to audit all receipts which are payable into
the Consolidated Fund of India and of each State and of each Union Territory having a Legislative Assembly and to
satisfy himself that the rules and procedures in that behalf are designed to secure an effective check on the
assessment, collection and proper allocation of revenue and are being duly observed and to make for this purpose
such examination of the accounts as he thinks fit and report thereon.

(vi) Audit of Accounts of Stores and Inventory - The C&AG shall have authority to audit and report on the accounts
of stores and inventory kept in any office or department of the Union or of a State.

(vii) Audit of Government Companies and Corporations -
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The duties and powers of the C&AG in relation to the audit of the accounts of government companies shy)| be
performed and exercised by him as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013. C&AG shall appoint auditor under Section
139(5) or (7) (i.e. appointment of First Auditor or Subsequent Auditor) and direct such auditor the manner i which
the accounts of the Government company are required to be audited and thereupon the auditor so appointe shall
submit a copy of the audit report to C&AG which, among other things, include the directions, if any, issued by C&AG,
the action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial statement of the company.

4. Audit of government expenditure is one of the major components of government audit conducted by the office
of C & AG. The basic standards set for audit of expenditure are to ensure that there is provision of fungs
authorised by competent authority fixing the limits within which expenditure can be incurred. Explain those
standards. [MTP Apr-22]

Expenditure Audit: The audit of government expenditure is one of the major components of government audit, The
basic standards set for audit of expenditure are to ensure that there is provision funds authorised by competent
authority fixing the limits within which expenditure can be incurred. These standards are—

() that the expenditure incurred conforms to the relevant provisions of the statutory enactment and in
accordance with the Financial Rules and Regulations framed by the competent authority. Such an audit is called
as the audit against ‘rules and orders’.

(ii) that there is sanction, either special or general, accorded by competent authority authorizing the expenditure,
Such an audit is called as the audit of sanctions.

(iii) that there is a provision of funds out of which expenditure can be incurred and the same has been authorised
by competent authority. Such an audit is called as audit against provision of funds.

(iv) that the expenditure is incurred with due regard to broad and general principles of financial propriety. Such an
audit is also called as propriety audit.

(v) that the various programmes, schemes and projects where large financial expenditure has been incurred are
being run economically and are yielding results expected of them. Such an audit is termed as the performance
audit.

5. "Public moneys should not be utilised for the benefit of a particular person or section of the community”. List
out the exceptions to this rule while audit against propriety. [MTP Oct-21]

Exceptions to the rule — Audit Against Propriety:

Public moneys should not be utilised for the benefit of a particular person or section of the community unless:

(i) the amount of expenditure involved is insignificant; or

(ii) a claim for the amount could be enforced in a Court of law; or

(iii) the expenditure is in pursuance of a recognised policy or custom; and

(iv) the amount of allowances, such as travelling allowances, granted to meet expenditure of a particular type
should be so regulated that the allowances are not, on the whole, sources of profit to the recipients.

6. PQR Ltd., a government company, constructed a building in conformity with rules and regulations for installing
a telephone exchange but not used for the same purpose resulting in the infructuous expenditure. Considering

the above case, explain the type of expenditure audit to be performed to curb the situation. [MTP Nov-21]

Propriety audit: According to ‘propriety audit’, the auditors try to bring out cases of improper, avoidable, Of
infructuous expenditure even though the expenditure has been incurred in conformity with the existing rules and
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regulations. Further, it may so happen that a transaction may satisfy all the requirements of regularity audit insofar
as the various formalities regarding rules and regulations are concerned but may still be highly wasteful.

In the given situation, PQR Ltd. being a government company, constructed a building in conformity with rules and
regulations for installing a telephone exchange but not used for the same purpose resulting in an infructuous
expenditure.

Thus, propriety audit should be done for PQR Ltd. to bring out improper, avoidable, or infructuous expenditure even
though the expenditure has been incurred in conformity with the existing rules and regulations to the notice of the
proper authorities of wastefulness in public administration.

7. C&AG shall be responsible for compiling the accounts of the Union and of each State from the initial and
subsidiary accounts rendered to the audit and accounts offices under his control by treasuries, offices or
departments responsible for the keeping of such account. Explain. [MTP Oct-20]

Compile and submit Accounts of Union and States — C&AG shall be responsible for compiling the accounts of the
Union and of each State from the initial and subsidiary accounts rendered to the audit and accounts offices under
his control by treasuries, offices or departments responsible for the keeping of such account.

C&AG shall, from accounts compiled by him or [by Government or any ather person responsible in that behalf]
prepare in each accounts (including, in case of accounts compiled by him, appropriation accounts) showing under
the respective heads the annual receipts and disbursements for the purpose of the Union, of each State and of
each Union Territory having a Legislative Assembly, and shall submit those accounts to the President or the Governor
of a State or Administrator of UT having a Legislative Assembly, as the case may be, on or before such dates as he
may, with the concurrence of the Government concerned, determine.

C&AG Act of 1971 has provisions for relieving him of this responsibility to give information and render assistance
to Union and States. C&AG shall, in so far as the accounts, for the compilation or keeping of which he is responsible,
enable him so to do, give to the Union Government, to the State Government or to the Governments of Union
Territories having Legislative Assemblies, as the case may be, such information as they may, from time to time,

require and render such assistance in the preparation of the annual financial statements as they may reasonably
ask for.

8. Audit against rules and orders aims to ensure that the expenditure conforms to the relevant provisions of the
Constitution and of the laws and rules made thereunder. The job of audit is to see that these rules, regulations
and orders are applied properly by the subordinate authorities. It is, however, not the function of audit to
prescribe what such rules, regulations and orders shall be. Analyse and Explain. [RTP Nov-20 +MTP Oct-21]

Audit against Rules & Orders - Audit against rules and orders aims to ensure that the expenditure conforms to the
relevant provisions of the Constitution and of the laws and rules made thereunder.

It also seeks to satisfy that the expenditure is in accordance with the financial rules, regulations and orders issued
by a competent authority.
These rules, regulations and orders against which regularity audit is conducted mainly fall under the following
categories:
(i) Rules and orders regulating the powers to incur and sanction expenditure from the Consolidated Fund of India
or of a State (and the Contingency Fund of India or of a State);
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(ii) Rules and orders dealing with the mode of presentation of claim® 333':5 g vernment ; ;"”; drav.,m Ney
from the Consolidated Fund, Contingency Fund and Public Acco.unts of t Z o " fDno the India and of the
States, and in general the financial rules prescribing the detailed procedure owed by BOVernmg,,
servants in dealing with government transactions; and

(iii) Rules and orders regulating the conditions of service,
servants.

pay and allowances, and pensions of BOVernm,
nt

It is the function of the executive government to frame rules, regulations and orders, which are to be obsemedb

its subordinate authorities. The job of audit is to see that these rules, regulations and orders are applied Properly
by the subordinate authorities. It is, however, not the function of audit to prescribe what such rules, regulations and

orders shall be.

But, it is the function of audit to carry out examination of the various rules, regulations and orders issued by the
executive authorities to see that:
a. they are not inconsistent with any provisions of the Constitution or any laws made thereunder;
b. they are consistent with the essential requirements of audit and accounts as determined by the C&AG;
c. they do not come in conflict with the orders of, or rules made by, any higher authority; and
d. in case they have not been separately approved by competent authority, the issuing authority possesses the
necessary rule-making power.

Audit of expenditure against regularity is of a quasi-judicial type of waork performed by the audit authorities. It
involves interpretation of the Constitution, statutes, rules, regulations and orders. The final power of interpretation
of these, however, does not vest with the C&AG.

9. The auditor of a Govt Company has to ensure that each item of expenditure is covered by a sanction, either
general or special, of the competent authority. Explain [RTP Nov-20]

Audit of sanctions - The auditor has to ensure that each item of expenditure is covered by a sanction, either general
’ or special, of the competent authority. The audit of sanctions is directed both in respect of ensuring that the
expenditure is properly covered by a sanction, and also to satisfy that the authority sanctioning it is competent for
the purpose by virtue of the powers vested in it by the provisions of the Constitution and of the law, rules or orders
made thereunder, or by the rules of delegation of financial powers made by an authority competent to do so.

10. The audit of receipts of government is not as old as audit of expenditure but with the rapid growth of public

enterprises audit of receipts tax or non-tax has come to stay. Discuss audit of receipts with respect to Government
Audit. [Nov-20]

Government auditing in India as elsewhere was primarily expenditure- oriented. Gradually, audit of receipts-tax and
non-tax was taken up.

The audit of receipts is neither all pervasive nor as old as audit of expenditure but has come to stay in somé
countries. Such an audit provides for checking;

ited
(i) whether all revenues or other debts due to government have been correctly assessed, realised and credité
to government account by the designated authorities;

. . t0
(i) whether adequate regulations and procedures have been framed by the department/agency concerne?
secure an effective check on assessment, collection and proper allocation of cases;

0
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(ill) whether such regulations and procedures are actually being carried out;

(iv) whether adequate checks are imposed to ensure prompt detection and investigation of irregularities, double
refunds, fraudulent or forged refund vouchers or other loss of revenue through fraud or wilful omission or
negligence to levy or collect taxes or to issue refunds; and

(v) review of systems and procedures to see that the internal procedures adequately secure correct and regular
accounting of demands collection and refunds and pursuant of dues up to final settlement and to suggest
improvement. The basic principle of audit of receipts is that it is more important to look at the general than on
the particular, though individual cases of assessment, demand, collection, refund, etc. Are important within the
area of test check. A review of the judicial decisions taken by tax authorities is done to judge the effectiveness
of the assessment procedure.

(vi) The extent and quantum of audit required to be done under each category of audit are determined by the
C&AG. These are neither negotiable nor questioned. The prescribed extent and quantum of audit are structured
in accordance with the design of test check, random sampling, general review ,in-depth study of specified areas,
etc .as may be warranted by the nature of transactions, its importance in the scheme of activities of a
department and the totality of its transactions, the frequency of check and total plan of audit to be executed
during a period.

(vii) Institutional mechanism provides for primary check by the auditor, test check by the supervisor and control
and direction by the group leader. Planning, executing and reporting of work is directed and monitored at
middle and top levels of the audit hierarchy. There are built =in arrangements within the C&AG to ensure that
the work assigned to each employee is carried out as prescribed.

(viil) The audit is conducted both centrally where accounts and original vouchers are kept and locally where the
drawing and disbursing functions are performed depending on the organisational and institutional

arrangements obtaining.

11. Government audit is neither equipped nor intended to function as an investigating agency, to pursue every
irregularity or misdemeanour to its logical end. Explain [RTP May-21]

v Government audit is neither equipped nor intended to function as an investigating agency, to pursue every
irregularity or misdemeanour to its logical end.

v The main objective of audit is a combination of ensuring accountability of administration to legislature and
functioning as an aid to administration.

¥ In India, the function of Government Audit is discharged by the independent statutory authority of the
Comptroller and Auditor General through the agency of the Indian Audit and Accounts Department.

¥ Audit is a necessary function to ensure accountability of the executive to Parliament, and within the executives
of the spending agencies to the sanctioning or controlling authorities. The purpose or objectives of audit need
to be tested at the touchstone of public accountability.

v" The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG), in the discharge of his functions, watches that the various
authorities act in regard to financial matters in accordance with the Constitution and the laws made by
Parliament, and conform to the rules or orders made thereunder.

12. In case of Government entities, audit of accounts of stores and inventories has been developed as a part of
expenditure audit. Discuss about the duties and responsibilities entrusted to C&AG. [Dec-21]

Audit of Accounts of Stores and Inventories in Government Companies: Audit of the accounts of stores and
inventories has been developed as a part of expenditure audit with reference to the duties and responsibilities

entrusted to C&AG. Audit is conducted:-
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. . a i

(i) toascertain whether the Regulations governing purchase, receipt and issue, e
of stores are well devised and properly carried out. N ’ held o

(i) to bring to the notice of the government any deficiencies in quantities of stores rany defects i
system of control. ) ; d .

(iii)) to verify that the purchases are properly sanctioned, made economical and in accordance with the Rules fo,
purchase laid down by the competent authority. _ _

(iv) to ensure that the prices paid are reasonable and are in agreement with those shown in the contract for the
supply of stores, and that the certificates of quality and quantity are furnished by the inspecting and rec
units. Cases of uneconomical purchase of stores and losses attributable to defective or inferior quality of
are specifically brought by the audit.

(v) to check the accounts of receipts, issues and balances regarding accuracy, correctness and reasonableness of

balances in inventories with particular reference to the specified norms for level of consum
holding.

W taklng

N the

€iving
Storeg

ption of inventory

Any excess or idle inventory is specifically mentioned in the report and periodical verification of inventory is alsg
conducted to ensure their existence, When priced accounts are maintained, the auditor should see that the prices

charged are reasonable and have been reviewed from time to time. The valuation of

the inventories is seen carefully
so that the value accounts

tally with the physical accounts and that adjustment of profits or losses due to
revaluation, inventory taking or other causes is carried out.
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h-16 Audit of Co-operative Societies

Test Your Understanding
A society has been formed by pan India employees of a public sector bank. The purpose of society is to promote
savings habits of members and to grant loan to them up to a small specified amount. Small savings are promoted
amongst members by way of compulsory contribution from monthly salary. Identify type of society and also
discuss nature of books of accounts to be maintained by such a society.

C

The society is in nature of Multi-state cooperative society as it serves interests of members in more than one state.
it accepts small savings from its members and grants loan to members. As per Multi-State Co-operative Society Rules
2002, every Multi- State Co-operative society shall keep books of account with respect to: -

a. all sum of money received and expended and matters in respect of which the receipt and expenditure take place

b. the assets and liabilities

McQ
The appointment of first auditor of a multi-state cooperative society is made by: -

(a) Central Registrar

(b) Board of society

(c) Members of society
(d) Central Government

past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions

1. You are appointed as an auditor of co-operative society. State the special features of the co-operative audit to

be borne in mind by the auditor, concerning:
(1) Audit classification of society. (2) Discussion of draft audit report with the management committee.

[Nov-20]
(1) Audit classification of society - After a judgement of an overall performance of the saciety, the auditor has to
‘ award a class to the society. This judgement is to be based on the criteria specified by the Registrar. It may be noted
| here that if the management of the society is not satisfied about the award of audit class, it can make an appeal to
the Registrar, and the Registrar may direct to review the audit classification. The auditor should be very careful,

while making a decision about the class of society.

- (2) Discussion of draft audit report with managing committee — On conclusion of the audit, the auditor should ask

' the Secretary of the society to convene the managing committee meeting to discuss the audit draft report. The audit
report should never be finalised without discussion with the managing committee. Minor irregularities may be got
settled and rectified. Matters of policy should be discussed in detail.

2. Central Govt. hold 55% of the paid up share Capital in Kisan Credit Co-operative Society, which is incurring huge
losses. Advise when the Central Government can direct Special Audit under Section 77 of the Multi State Co-
operative Society Act. [May-19 + MTP Apr-23]

Central Government shall order for special audit only if that Government or the State Government either by itself
or both hold fifty-one percent or more of the paid-up share capital in such Multi -State co-operative society. Under
section 77 of the Multi-State Co- operative Societies Act, 2002, where the Central Government is of the opinion:

i. that the affairs of any Multi-State co-operative society are not being managed in accordance with self-help and
mutual deed and co-operative principles or prudent commercial practices or with sound business principles; or

ii. that any Multi-State co-operative society is being managed in a manner likely to cause serious injury or damage
to the interests of the trade industry or business to which it pertains; or

iii. that the financial position of any Multi-State co-operative society is such as to endanger its solvency.
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Thus, in the given case since Central Govt is holding 55% shares and financial position of Kisan Credit co- Operative

society is in danger, Central government can direct for special audit.

3. Briefly explain the provisions for qualification and appointment of Auditors under the Multi- State Co-operatiyq
Societies Act, 2002. [Nov-18 + MTP Apr-21]

Qualification of i-\ud'itors - Section 72 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 states that a person whg
is a Chartered Accountant within the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 can only be appointed a5
auditor of Multi-State co-operative society.

However, the following persons are not eligible for appointment as auditors of a Multi-State co-operative society-

a. A body corporate.

b. An officer or employee of the Multi-State co-operative society.

c. A person who is a member or who is in the employment, of an officer or employee of the Multi-State co-
operative society.

d. A person who is indebted to the Multi-State co-operative society or who has given any guarantee or provided
any security in connection with the indebtedness of any third person to the Multi-State co-operative society
for an amount exceeding one thousand rupees.

If an auditor becomes subject, after his appointment, to any, of the disqualifications specified above, he shall be

deemed to have vacated his office as such,

Appointment of Auditors - Section 70 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 provides that the first
auditor or auditors of a Multi-State co-operative society shall be appointed by the board within one month of the
date of registration of such society and the auditor or auditors so appointed shall hold office until the conclusion of
the first annual general meeting. If the board fails to exercise its powers under this sub-section, the Multi- State co-
operative society in the general meeting may appoint the first auditor or auditors.

The subsequent auditor or auditors are appointed by Multi-State co-operative society, at each annual general
meeting. The auditor or auditors so appointed shall hold office from the conclusion of that meeting until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

4. As per Multi-state Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the auditor shall make a report to the members of the
Multi-State co-operative society on the accounts examined by him and on every balance-sheet and profit and loss
account and on every other document required to be part of or annexed to the balance-sheet or profit and loss
account, Explain [RTP May-20]

As per sub-section (3) & (4) of section 73 of Multi- state Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the auditor shall make 3
report to the members of the Multi-State co-operative society on the accounts examined by him and on every
balance-sheet and profit and loss account and on every other document required to be part of or annexed to the
balance-sheet or profit and loss account, which are laid before the Multi-State co- operative society in general
meeting during his tenure of office, and the report shall state whether, in his opinion and to the best of his
information and according to the explanation given to him, the said account give the information required by this
act in the manner so required, and give a true and fair view:

(a) In the case of the balance-sheet, of the state of the Multi-State co-operative society’s affairs as at the end of its
financial year; and
(b) In the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit or loss for its financial year.
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The auditor’s report shall also state:

(i) Whether he has obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of his knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of his audit.

(i) Whether, in his opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Multi- State co-operative society so
far as appears from his examination of these books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of his audit
have been received from branches or offices of the Multi-State co-operative society not visited by him.

(iii) Whether the report on the accounts of any branch office audited by a person other than the Multi-State co-
operative society’s auditor has been forwarded to him and how he has dealt with the same in preparing the
auditor’s report.

(iv) Whether the Multi-State co-operative society’s balance sheet and profit and loss account dealt with by the
report are in agreement with the books of account and return.

Where any of the matters referred to in sub-section (3) or (4) is answered in the negative or with a qualification, the
auditor’s report shall state the reason for the answer.

5. Explain the powers and duties of auditors under the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002.
[RTP May-20]

Section 73 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 discusses the powers and duties of auditors.
According to this, every auditor of a Multi-State co-operative society shall have a right of access at all times to the
books accounts and vouchers of the Multi-State co-operative society, whether kept at the head office of the Multi-
State co-operative society or elsewhere, and shall be entitled to require from the officers or other employees of the
Multi- State co-operative society such information and explanation as the auditor may think necessary for the
performance of his duties as an auditor.

As per section 73(2), the auditor shall make following inquiries:

(a) Whether loans and advances made by the Multi-State co-operative society on the basis of security have been
properly secured and whether the terms on which they have been made are not prejudicial to the interests of the
Multi-State co-operative society or its members,

(b) Whether transactions of the Multi-State co-operative society which are represented merely by book entries are
not prejudicial to the interests of the Multi-State co-operative society,

(c) Whether personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, and

(d) Where it is Stated in the books and papers of the Multi-State co-operative society that any shares have been
allotted for cash, whether cash has actually, been received in respect of such allotment, and if no cash has actually
been so received, whether the position as stated in the account books and the balance sheet as correct regular and
not misleading.

6. No inspection under Section 79 of Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 shall be made unless a notice
has been given to the multi-state co-operative society. Explain stating clearly when and how such inspection can
be made. Also state the powers available with the Central Registrar in this regard along with provisions relating
to communication of the inspection report under the said section. [RTP May-22]
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Inspection of Multi-State Co-operative societies under Section 79
1. When: The Central Registrar may, on a request from . dit
(i) federal co-operative to which a Multi-State Co-operative society i stfllated ora wrediiorer

(i) not less than one-third of the members of the board or ‘ .
(iii) not less than one-fifth of the total number of members of a Multi-State co-operative society

2. How: By general or special order in writing in this behalf inspect or direct any person authorized by him by order
in writing in this behalf to make an inspection into the constitution, working and financial condition of a Multi-stae
co-operative society, '

3. Opportunity of Being heard: No inspection shall be made unless a notice of not less than fifteen days has been
given to the multi-state co-operative society.

4. Powers available: The Central Registrar or the person authorized by him shall have the following powers;

(a) He shall at all times have access to all books, accounts, papers, vouchers, securities, stock and other property of
that society and may, in the event of serious irregularities discovered during inspection, take them into custody and
shall have power to verify the cash balance of the society and subject to the general or special order of the central
registrar to call a meeting of the society where such general meeting is, in his opinion necessary.

(b) Every officer or member of a Multi-State Co-operative society shall furnish such information with regard to the
working of the saciety as the central registrar or the person making such inspection may require.

5. Inspection Report: A copy of the report of inspection under this section shall be communicated to the Multi-State
Co-operative society within a period of three months from the date of completion of such inspection.

7. Before holding inquiry by the Central Registrar thirty days’ notice must be given to the Multi-State co-operative
society. [RTP May-22]

Incorrect: Before holding inquiry by the Central Registrar fifteen days” notice must be given to the Multi-State co-
operative society.

8. The first auditor of a Multi-State co-operative Society will be appointed in Annual General Meeting. [July-21]

Incorrect: Section 70 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 provides that the first auditor or auditors
of a Multi-State co-operative society shall be appointed by the board within one month of the date of registration
of such society and the auditor or auditors so appointed shall hold office until the conclusion of the first annual
general meeting. If the board fails to exercise its powers under this sub-section, the Multi-State Co-operative Society
in the general meeting may appoint the first auditor or auditors.
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Audit of Local Bodies

1. Draft an Audit Programme for conducting Audit of Local Bodies. [MTP Nov-23]
Audit Programme for Local Bodies

(i) APPOINTMENT:-The Local Fund Audit Wing of the State Govt. is generally incharge of the audit of municipal
accounts. Sometimes bigger municipal corporations e.g. Delhi, Mumbai etc have power to appoint their own
auditors for regular external audit. So the auditor should ensure his appointment.

(ii) AUDITOR’S CONCERNS:-The auditor while auditing the local bodies should report on the
« fairness of the contents and presentation of financial statements,
« the strengths and weaknesses of system of financial contral,
« the adherence to legal and/or administrative requirements;
. whether value is being fully received on money spent,
His objective should be to detect errors and fraud and misuse of resources.

(iii) RULES & REGULATIONS :- The auditor should ensure that the expenditure incurred conforms to the relevant
provisions of the law and is in accordance with the financial rules and regulations framed by the competent
authority.

(iv) AUTHORISATIONS :- He should ensure that all types of sanctions, either special or general, accorded by the
competent authority.

(v) PROVISIONING :- He should ensure that there is a provision of funds and the expenditure is incurred from the
provision and the same has been authorized by the competent authority.

(vi) PERFORMANCE :- The auditor should check that the different schemes, programmes and projects, where large
financial expenditure has been incurred, are running economically and getting the expected results.

2. It would be imminent on the part of the auditor to understand financial administration of local bodies before
embarking upon the audit. Explain.

Financial Administration

It would be imminent on the part of the auditor to understand financial administration of local bodies before
embarking upon the audit. Some of the aspects are as under:

(a) Budgetary Procedure: This is geared to subserve the twin considerations of financial accountability and control
of expenditure. The main objective is to ensure that funds are raised and moneys are spent by the executive
departments in accordance with the rules and regulations and within the limits of sanction and authorisation by the
legislature or council. Budget preparation is usually the occasion for determining the levels of taxation and rates and
the ceilings on expenditure. Municipal budget formats and heads of accounts vary from state to state. There are
variations between the corporation and municipalities. One important feature of the municipal budgets is that there
is no strict separation between revenue and capital items; usually there is a ‘head’ called extraordinary items which
cover most of the capital transactions. There are, however, a number of special funds (e.g. roads) or in some cases

separate budgets for specific municipal functions (e.g. education) or enterprise activities (e.g., water supply and
sanitation, transport, electricity, etc.)
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(b) Expenditure Control: The system of financial control existing in the state and central governmep,
conditioned by the fact that there is a clear demarcation between the legislature and executive. The integratio" of
legislation and executive powers in the municipal council makes it difficult for its executive to function as iy
inquisitorial body as well. Moreover the separation of executive powers and functions in municipal guuernment
cannot accommodate the existence of an independent finance officer responsible to the municipal coyngj O ity
executive committee. This leaves the system of external audit by state government as the only instrument of
controlling municipal expenditure.

leve) |

(c) Accounting System: Municipal accounting and budget format have been criticised as neither simple ngy
comprehensible, sometimes providing inadequate information and at other times a surfeit of information, Both
these situations are not conducive to a proper system of management information,

3. List out the types of Revenue Grants received by local bodies from the State. [MTP Nov-21 + Nov-20]

Local bodies may receive different types of grants from the state administration. Broadly the revenue grants are
of three types:
1. General purpose grants: These are primarily intended to substantially bridge the gap between the needs ang
resources of the local bodies.
2. Specific purpose grants: These grants which are tied to the provision of certain services or performance of
certain tasks,
3. Statutory and compensatory grants: These grants, under various enactments, are given to local bodles as

compensation on account of loss of any revenue on taking over a tax by state government from local
government.

4. The external control of municipal expenditure is exercised by the state governments through the appointment
of auditors to examine municipal accounts. Explain stating important objectives of audit of such bodies. [RTP Nov-

21] [oR|

Local Fund Audit Wing of a State of a State Government has appointed you to audit the accounts of one of the
Local body governed by it. As an auditor, what will be your reporting areas? [Dec-21]

The external control of municipal expenditure is exercised by the state governments through the appointment of
auditors to examine municipal accounts. However, the municipal corporations of Delhi, Mumbai and a few others
have powers to appoint their own auditors for regular external audit.

The important objectives of audit are:

(a) reporting on the fairness of the content and presentation of financial statements;
(b) reporting upon the strengths and weaknesses of systems of financial control;

(c) reporting on the adherence to legal and/or administrative requirements;

(d) reporting upon whether value is being fully received on money spent; and

(e) detection and prevention of error, fraud and misuse of resources,

(e
L

5. CA Sevak is appointed as an auditor of a Municipal Corporation of E;Eigsmaﬂ city. He wants to verify V2
expenditures of the Municipality. Define the term "Municipality”

. and state what are the heads under W
expenditures incurred by the Mumcipalities'and Corporations can be broadly classified ? [Nov-22]

rious
hich
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A Municipality can be defined as a unit of local self-governmentinan urban area. By the term ‘local self-government’
is ordinarily understood the administration of a locality — a village, a town, a city or any other area smaller than a
state —by @ body representing the local inhabitants, possessing fairly large autonomy, raising at least a part of its
revenue through local taxation and spending its income on services which are regarded as local and, therefore,
distinct from state and central services.

Expenditure incurred by the municipalities and corporations can be broadly classified under the following heads:
(a) general administration and revenue collection,

(b) public health,

(c) public safety,

(d) education,

(e) public works, and

(f) others such as interest payments.

7.The external control of municipal expenditure is exercised by the Central Government through the appointment
of auditors to examine municipal accounts.

Incorrect. The external control of municipal expenditure is exercised by the state governments through the
appointment of auditors to examing municipal accounts.

8. The audit of municipal corporation of a large metro city is in progress. Which of the following is not likely an
objective of such as audit? 1
(a) To report on the adherence to legal and administrative requirements

(b) To report on whether value is being fully received for money spent

(c) To report on the weakness of systems of financial control

(d) To provide better civic amenities to residents of metro city

Ans (d)

Audit of NGOs

1. As an Auditor of NGO, how do you check/verify atleast four receipts of income during the year?

[Jan-21 + MTP Apr-23]
The receipt of income of NGO may be checked on the following lines:
(i) Contributions and Grants for projects and programmes: Check agreements with donors and grants letters to
ensure that funds received have been accounted for. Check that all foreign contribution receipts are deposited in
the foreign contribution bank account as notified under the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Act, 1976.

(i) Receipts from fund raising programmes: Verify in detail the internal control system and ascertain who are the

.persons responsible for collection of funds and mode of receipt. Ensure that collections are counted and deposited
in the bank daily.

(iii) Membership Fees: Check fees received with Membership Register. Ensure proper classification is made between

entrance and annual fees and life membership fees. Reconcile fees received with fees to be received during the
year.
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. : i . Reconcile subscripti o

(iv) Subscriptions: Check with subscription register and recellpts. |ssuedh i Eoimien w_p:lon feceivay Wi
printing and dispatch of corresponding magazine/ circulars/periodicals. Chec o with s'“bSCfimign oy
schedule. ”
(V) Interest and Dividends: Check the interest and dividends received and receivable with investmenys held during
the year.

2. While planning the audit of an NGO, the auditor may focus on Knowledge of the NGO's work, its missjon ang
vision, Updating knowledge of relevant statutes especially with regard to recent amendments, circulars ote
Explain the other relevant points the auditor needs to focus while planning the audit of NGO. [RTP Nov-21)

While planning the audit, the auditor may concentrate on the following:
(i) Knowledge of the NGO’s work, its mission and vision, areas of operations and environment in which it operate.
(i) Updating knowledge of relevant statutes especially with regard to recent amendments, circulars, judicial
decisions viz. Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Act 1976, Societies Registration Act, 1860, Income Tax Act 1961
etc. and the Rules related to the statutes.
(iii) Reviewing the legal form of the Organisation and its Memorandum of Association, Articles of Association,
Rules and Regulations.
(iv) Reviewing the NGO’s Organisation chart, then Financial and Administrative Manuals, Project and Programme
Guidelines, Funding Agencies Requirements and formats, budgetary policies if any,
(v) Examination of minutes of the Board/Managing Committee/Governing Body/ Management and Committees
thereof to ascertain the impact of any decisions on the financial records.
(vi) Study the accounting system, procedures, internal controls and internal checks existing for the NGO and verify
their applicability.
(vii) Setting of materiality levels for audit purposes.
(viii) The nature and timing of reports or other communications.
(ix) The involvement of experts and their reports.
(x) Review the previous year's Audit Report.

3. An NGO operating in Delhi had collected large scale donations for Tsunami victims. The donations so collected
were sent to different NGOs operating in Tamil Nadu for relief operations. This NGO operating in Delhi has
appointed you to audit its accounts for the year in which it collected and remitted donations for Tsunami victims.
Draft audit programme for audit of receipts of donations and remittance of the collected amount to different
NGOs. Mention two points each, peculiar to the situation, which you will like to incorporate in your audit
programme for audit of said receipts and remittances of donations. [MTP Mar-19]

Receipt of Donations:

(i) Internal Control System: Existence of internal control system particularly with reference to division of
responsibilities in respect of authorised collection of donations, custody of receipt books and safe custody of
money.

(i) Custody of Receipt Books: Existence of system regarding issue of receipt books, whether unused receipt books
are returned and the same are verified physically including checking of number of receipt books and sequence
of numbering therein.

(i) Receipt of Cheques: Receipt Book should have carbon copy for duplicate receipt and signed by a responSib‘e
official. All details relating to date of cheque, bank’s name, date, amount, etc. should be clearly stated.

(iv) Bank Reconciliation: Reconciliation of bank statements with reference to all cash deposits not only with
reference to date and amount but also with reference to receipt book.
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(v) Cash Receipts: Register of cash donations to be vouched more extensively. If addresses are available of donors
who had given cash, the same may be cross-checked by asking entity to post thank you letters mentioning

amount, date and receipt number.
(vi) Foreign Contributions, if any, to receive special attention to compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Remittance of Donations to Different NGOs:
() Mode of Sending Remittance: All remittances are through account payee cheques. Remittances through
Demand Draft would also need to be scrutinised thoroughly with reference to recipient.
(i) Confirming Receipt of Remittance: All remittances are supported by receipts and acknowledgements.
(iii) 1dentity: Recipient NGO is a genuine entity. Verify address, 80G Registration Number, etc.
(iv) Direct Confirmation Procedure: Send confirmation letters to entities to whom donations have been paid.
(v) Donation Utilisation: Utilisation of donations for providing relief to Tsunami victims and not for any other

purpose.
(vi) System of NGOs’ Selection: System for selecting NGO to whom donations have been sent.

4. The audit programme of NGO should include in a seque ntial order all assets, liabilities, income and expenditure
ensuring that no material item is omitted. Explain. [MTP Mar-21]

(i) Corpus Fund: The contributions / grants received towards corpus be vouched with special reference to the
letters from the donor(s). The interest income be checked with Investment Register and Physical Investments
in hand.

(ii) Reserves: Vouch transfers from projects / programmes with donors letters and board resolutions of NGO. Also
check transfer of gross value of asset sold from capital reserve to general reserve and adjustments during the

year.
(iii) Ear-marked Funds: Check requirements of donors institutions, board resolution of NGO, rules and regulations

of the schemes of the ear-marked funds.
(iv) Project / Agency Balances: Vouch disbursements and expenditure as per agreements with donors for each of

the balances.

(v) Loans: Vouch loans with loan agreements, counterfoil of receipt issued.

(vi) Fixed Assets: Vouch all acquisitions / sale or disposal of assets including depreciation and the authorisations
for the same. Also check donor’s letters/ agreements for the grant. In the case of immovable property check
title, etc.

(vii) Investments: Check Investment Register and the investm
name of the NGO. Verify further investments and dis - investments for approval by the appropriate authority

and reference in the bank accounts for the principal amount and interest.
(viii) Cash in Hand: Physically verify the cash in hand and imprest balances, at the close of the year and whether it

ents physically ensuring that investments are in the

tallies with the books of account.
(ix) Bank Balance: Check the bank reconciliation statements and ascertain details for old outstanding and

unadjusted amounts.
(x) Inventory: Verify inventory in hand and obtain certificate from the management for the quantities and

valuation of the same.
(xi) Programme and Project Expenses: Verify agreement with donor/contributor(s) supporting the particular

programme or project to ascertain the conditions with respect to undertaking the programme/project and

accordingly, in the case of programmes/projects involving contracts, ensure that income tax is deducted,

deposited and returns filed and verify the terms of the contract.
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i b jum, employees i
(xii) Establishment Expenses: Verify that provident fund, life msurancf? p;en:thin their;scﬁbsetjtf INSurance
their administrative charges are deducted, contributed and deposited W ime. Alsg ¢

' . travelling, etc.
other office and administrative expenses such as postage, stationery &

dng
he:k

5. Non-Governmental Organisations (NGOs) registered under the Companies Act, 2013 are allowed to Maintai,

accounts either on accrual basis or cash basis. [MTP Oct-21]

Incorrect: NGOs registered under the Companies Act, 2013 must maintain their books of account under the accryga|
basis as required by the provisions of section 128 of the caid Act. If the accounts are not maintained on accrual basis,
it would amount to non-compliance of the provision of the Companies Act, 2013. The NGOs which are not registere
under the Companies Act, 2013 are allowed to maintain accounts either an accrual basis or cash basis,

6. NGOs may be defined as non-profit making organisations which raise funds from members, donors o
contributors apart from receiving donation of time, energy and skills for achieving their social objectives,

Correct. NGOs can be defined as non-profit making organisations which raise funds from members, donors or
contributors apart from receiving donation of time, energy and skills for achieving their social objectives like

imparting education, providing medical facilities, economic assistance to poor, managing disasters and emergent
situations

7. “Save Democracy” is an NGO working in cause of promoting democracy and democratic institutions in many
countries including India. Its Indian counterpart has received funds from a renowned “Flower Trust” of US. As

auditor of NGO, which of the following laws/orders would be relevant to you in context of above information?
(a) Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Foreign Contribution Regulation Act, 2010
(c) Companies Act, 2013
(d) Orders issued by Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment

Audit of Partnership Firm
1. Discuss the matters which should be specially considered in the audit of accounts of a partnership.
[RTP May-19]
Matters which should be specially considered in the audit of accounts of a partnership:

(i) Confirming that the letter of appointment, signed by a partner, duly authorised, clearly states the nature and
scope of audit contemplated by the partners, specially the limitation, if any, under which the auditor shall have
to function.

(ii) Studying the minute book, if any, maintained to record the policy decision taken by partners specially the
minutes relating to authorisation of extraordinary and capital expenditure, raising of loans; purchase of assets,
extraordinary contracts entered into and other such matters as are not of a routine nature.

(iii) Verifying that the business in which the partnership is engaged is authorised by the partnership agreem‘-’"t?
or by any extension or modification thereof agreed to subsequently.

(iv) Examining whether books of account appear to be reasonable and are considered adequate in relation to the
nature of the business of the partnership.

(v) Verifying generally that the interest of no partner has suffered prejudicially by an activity engaged in by t"®
partnership which, it was not authorised to do under the partnership deed or b
the partnership agreements.

(vi) Confirming that a provision for the firm’s tax payable by the partne rship has been made in the accounts befor
arriving at the amount of profit divisible among the partners.

i, cion in
y any violation of a provisio”
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(vii) Verifying that the profits and losses have been divided among the partners in their agreed profit-sharing ratio.

2. State six important advantages of audit of accounts of a Partnership firm. [MTP Apr-19 + RTP Nov-23]

On broad considerations, the advantages of audit of accounts of a partnership could be stated as follows:

1

Audited accounts provide a convenient and reliable means of settling accounts between the partners and,
thereby, the possibility of occurrence of a dispute among them is mitigated. On this consideration, it is usually
provided in and accepted by the partners, shall be binding upon them, unless some manifest error is brought
to light within a specified period subsequent to the accounts having been signed.

On the retirement or death of a partner, audited accounts, which have been accepted by the partners,
constitute a reliable evidence for computing the amounts due to the retiring partner or to the representative
of the deceased partner in respect of his share of capital, profits and goodwill.

The accounts of a partnership, which have been audited, are generally accepted by the Income Tax
Department as the basis for computing the assessable income of the partners.

Audited statement of accounts are relied upon by the banks when advancing loans, as well as by prospective
purchasers of the business, as ovidence of the profitability of the concern and its financial position.

Audited statements of account can be helpful in the negotiations to admit a person as a partner, especially

when they are available for a number of past years.

An audit is an effective safeguard against any undue advantage being taken by a working partner or partners

especially in the case of those partners who are not actively associated with the working of the firm.

3. CA Akash Virmani is auditor of a partnership firm consisting of 4 partners. During the year, one of the partners
has retired and another partner has joined the next day. Discuss, any one point, which shall be considered by you
to ensure that financial statements of firm are not misstated due to change of constitution of firm.

The auditor shall consider provisions of retirement deed/partnership deed for date of retiring and joining of

partners. It should be ensured that profits are appropriately distributed up to date of retirement. Further, profits
after retirement should have been distributed among partners as per terms of new partnership deed.

Audit of LLP

1. Tomo Construction Engineering LLP approached CA K to understand various returns to be maintained and filed
by them. Guide/Discuss the various returns to be maintained and filed by them. [July-21]

Returns to be maintained and filed by an LLP:

Every LLP would be required to file annual return in Form 11 with ROC within 60 days of closer of financial year.
The annual return will be available for public inspection on payment of prescribed fees to Registrar.
Every LLP is also required to submit Statement of Account and Solvency in Form 8 which shall be filed within

a period of thirty days from the end of six months or the financial year to which the Statement of Account and
Solvency relates.

2. The accounts of every LLP shall be audited in accordance with rule 24 of LLP Rules 2009. [May-19]

Incorrect- Rule 24 of LLP Rules 2009 provides that any LLP, whose turnover does not exceed, in any financial year,
forty lakh rupees, or whose contribution does not exceed twenty five lakh rupees, is not required to get its accounts
audited. However if the partners of such limited liability partnership decide to get the accounts of such LLP audited,
the accounts shall be audnted only in accordance with such rules. '
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type of books
3. Ban LLP is formed during the year 2021-22. They are not sure :bzu;:i::in: F[)NW-ZZ] o accounts be
maintained. What are the books of accounts that the LLP is requiredt
LLP’s are required to maintain books of accounts which shall contain - -
1. Particulars of all sums of money received and expended by the LLP and the matters in respect of which the re¢e;p,
and expenditure takes place,
2. A record of the assets and liabilities of the LLP, )
3. Statements of costs of goods purchased, inventories, work-in-progress, finished goods and costs of goods sold,
4. Any other particulars which the partners may decide.

4. The auditor of an LLP may be appointed by the Designated Partners or other Partners whosoever is available
at the time of appointment. [SM]

Incorrect- The auditor is to be appointed by the designated partners of the LLP. However, the Partners may appoint
the auditors only if the Designated Partners have failed to appoint them.

5. An LLP files compliance returns with: -
(a) Registrar of firms & societies

(b) Central Registrar

(c) Registrar of Companies

(d) Local fund audit wing

Ans (c)

Audit of Charitable Institutions

1. CA A is appointed as the auditor of a charitable institutions. Discuss the audit procedure undertaken by him
while auditing the Subscription and Donation received by the charitable institution. [Dec-21]

Audit Procedure in audit of Subscriptions & donations:

Audit Procedure to be undertaken by CA A in respect of Subscriptions and donations received by a Charitable
Institution is:

(i) Ascertaining, if any, the changes made in amount of annual or life membership subscription during the year.
(ii) Whether official receipts are issued:

(a) confirming that adequate control is imposed over unused receipt books;

(b) obtaining all receipt books covering the period under review;

(c) test checking the counterfoils with the cash book; any cancelled receipts being specially looked into;

(d) obtaining the printed list of subscriptions and donations and agreeing them with the total collections shown in
the accounts;

(e) examining the system of internal check regarding moneys received from box collections, flag days, etc. and

checking the amount received from representatives, with the correspondence and the official receipts issued;
paying special attention to the system of control exercised over collections a
collections made have been accounted for; and

(f) verifying the total subscriptions and donations received with any fi

charity.

nd the steps taken to ensure that all

Bures published in reports, etc. issued by the

2. In the case of audit of a charitable institution,

what attentions should be paid by the auditor regarding audit of
expenditure items? [RTP Nov-20 + May-23]
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Audit of EX enditure of Charitable Institution:

(i) Vouching payment of grants also verifying that the grants have been paid only for a charitable purpose or
purposes falling within the purview of the objects for which the charitable institution has been set up and that no
trustee, director or member of the management committee has benefited there from either directly or indirectly.
(ii) Verifying the schedules of securities held, as well as inventories of properties both movable and immovable by
inspecting the securities and title deeds of property and by physical verification of the movable properties on a test
basis.

(iii) Check payment alorg with supporting documents in regard to salary and other expenses. Verify that all
payments are made after proper sanction by appropriate authority.

(iv) Ascertaining that any funds contributed for a special purpose have been utilised for the purpose.

(v) Verifying the cash and bank balances/payments.

Audit of Educational Institutions
(SCHOOL,COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY)
1. What are the special steps involved in conducting the audit of an Educational Institution? (Write any 12 points)
[RTP Nov-19]

The Special Steps Involved in the Audit of an Educational Institution are the following:
(i) Examine the Trust Deed, or Regulations in the case of school or college and note all the provisions affecting
accounts. In the case of a university, refer to the Act of Legislature and the Regulations framed thereunder.

(il) Read through the minutes of the meetings of the Managing Committee or Governing Body, noting resolutions
affecting accounts to see that these have been duly complied with, specially the decisions as regards the operation
of bank accounts and sanctioning of expenditure.

Tuition Fees [MTP Mar-21]

(iil) Check names entered in the students’ Fee Register for each month or term, with the respective class registers,
showing names of students on rolls and test amount of fees charged; and verify that there operates a system of
internal check which ensures that demands against the students are properly raised.

(iv) Check fees received by comparing counterfoils of receipts granted with entries in the cash book and tracing
the collections in the Fee Register to confirm that the revenue from this source has been duly accounted for.

(v) Total up the various columns of the Fees Register for each month or term to ascertain that fees paid in advance

have been carried forward and the arrears that are irrecoverable have been written off under the sanction of an
appropriate authority.

(vi) Check admission fees with admission slips signed by the head of the institution and confirm that the amount
had been credited to a Capital Fund, unless the Managing Committee has taken a decision to the contrary.

(vii) See that free studentship and concessions have been granted by a person authorised to do so, having regard
to the prescribed Rules.

(viii) Confirm that fines for late payment or absence, etc., have either been collected or remitted under proper
authority.

(ix) Confirm that hostel dues were recovered before students’ accounts were closed and their deposits of caution
money refunded.

(x) Verify rental income from landed property with the rent rolls, etc.

(xi) Vouch income from endowments and legacies, as well as interest and dividends from investment; also inspect
the securities in respect of investments held.
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i ; : ers of grant. If an
(xii) Verify any Government or local authority grant with the re!evantt:a:ieof g Y €Xpense hag begp,
disallowed for purposes of grant, ascertain the reasons and compliance the ;

2. You have been appointed as an auditor of VIM Schools. Discuss the points which merit your consideratlgn B
an auditor while verifying Assets and Liabilities of VIM Schools. [July-21]

Verification of Assets & Liabilities of VIM Schools:
1. Report any old heavy arrears on account of fees, dormitory rents, etc. to the Managing Committee,
2. Confirm that caution money and other deposits paid by students on admission, have been shown as liabllity
in the balance sheet and not transferred to revenue, unless they are not refundable.
3. Seethattheinvestments representing endowment funds for prizes are kept separate and any income in excess
of the prizes has been accumulated and invested along with the corpus.
4. Ascertain that the system of ordering & inspection on receipt and issue of provisions, food stuffs, clothing and
other equipment is efficient and all bills are duly authorised and passed before payment.
5. Verify the inventories of furniture, stationery, clothing, provision and all equipment etc. These should be
checked by reference to Inventory Register or corresponding inventories of the previous year and values
applied to various items should be test checked.

3. You are auditor of a school operating in your city. During audit of a year, it is noticed that fees concessions to
students have been provided in substantial number of cases. Discuss, how, you as an auditor, would proceed to
verify the same?

The fees concessions have to be under proper authority of school management. The auditor would verify internal
controls in this regard. Besides, detailed checking of few cases needs to be <ndertaken to ensure genuineness of
fees concessions and proper management approvals.

Audit of Hospital
1. M/s T & Co. Chartered Accountants, a partnership firm, is appointed as an auditor of Treatment Hospital run
by Smile Foundation, a charitable trust. Over and above the receipts of treatment of patients, during the year
trust has received donations from various donors to treat COVID-19 patients and also incurred some capital
expenditure for further development of the hospital. On some of the investment income, income tax has been
deducted. What are the special points to be considered by M/s T & Coa. while auditing such transactions of
Treatment Hospital? [May-22]

Audit of a Hospital:

(A) Receipts from treatment of patients
1. Register of Patients: Vouch the Register of patients with copies of bills issued to them. Verify bills for a selected
period with the patients’ attendance record to see that the bills have been correctly prepared. Also see that bills
have been issued to all patients from whom an amount was recoverable according to the rules of the hospital-
2. Collection of Cash from patients: Check cash collections as entered in the Cash Book with the receipts;
counterfoils and other evidence for example, copies of patient’s bills.

(B) Donations from donors to treat the patients: Ascertain those legacies and donation received for a specific
purpose have been applied in the manner agreed upon.

(C) Capital Expenditure Incurred: Verify the Capital Expenditure was incurred only with the orior sanction of the
Trustees or the Managing Committee.
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(D) Where income-tax has been deducted from the Investment income, it should be seen that a refund thereof has
been obtained since charitable institutions are exempt from payment of Income-tax. This involves:

(i) vouching the Income-tax refund with the correspondence with the Income-tax Department; and

(ii) checking the caiculation of the repayment of claims/refund claim.

2. You have been appointed auditor of M/s. BLK Hospital. Discuss important points that would attract your
attention while audit. [MTP Apr-22]

AUDIT OF HOSPITAL
The important points involved in such an audit are stated below-

(i) Register of patients: Vouch the Register of patients with copies of bills issued to them. Verify bills for a selected
period with the patients’ attendance record to see that the bills have been correctly prepared. Also see that
bills have been issued to all patients from whom an amount was recoverable according to the rules of the
hospital.

(i) Collection of Cash: Check cash collections as entered in the Cash Book with the receipts, counterfoils and other

evidence. For eg. copies of patients bills, counterfoils of dividend and other interest warrants, copies of rent

bills etc.
(iii) Income from Investments, Rent etc.: See by reference to the property and Investment Register that all income

that should have been received by way of rent on properties, dividends and interest on securities have been

collected.
(iv) Legacies and Donations: Ascertain that legacies and donations received for a specific purpose have been

applied in the manner agreed upon.

(v) Reconciliation of Subscriptions: Trace all collections of subscription and donations from the Cash Book to the
respective Registers. Reconcile the total subscriptions due (as shown by the Subscription Register and the
amount collected and that still outstanding).

(vi) Authorisation and sanctions: Vouch all purchases and expenses and verify that the capital ex penditure incurred
only with the prior sanction of the trustees of the Managing Committee and that appointments and increments
to staff have been duly authorised.

(vii) Grants and TDS: Verify that grants, if any, received from Government or local authority has been duly
accounted for. Also, that refund in respect of taxes deducted at source has been claimed.

(viii) Budgets: Compare the totals of various items of expenditure and income with the amount budgeted for
them and report to the Trustees or the Managing Committee, significant variations which have taken place.

(ix) Internal Check: Examine the internal check as regards the receipt and issue of stores, medicines, linen,
apparatus, clothing, instruments, etc. so as to ensure that purchases have been properly recorded in the
Inventory Register and that issues have been made only against proper authorisation.

(x) Depreciation: See that depreciation has been written off against all the assets at the appropriate rates.

(xi) Registers: Inspect the bonds, share scrips, title deeds of properties and compare their particulars with those

entered in the property and Investment Registers.
(xii) Inventories: Obtain inventories, especially of stocks and stores as at the end of the year and check the

percentage of the items physically, also compare their total values with respective ledger balances.
(xiii) Management Representation and Certificate: Get proper Management Representation and Certificate with

respect to various aspects covered during audit.
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Audit of Club

You have been appointed as internal auditor of ‘City Club' in Delhi. The re‘.:e'pts o th:dub = 5.0 kg
the previous year ending 2019-20. You are required to mention special points of consideration while auditj
such receipts of the club. [Jan-21]

Uring
ng

The special steps involved, to be considered by the Internal Auditor of City Club in conducting the audit of receipts
of the club are stated below-

a. Vouch the receipt on account of entrance fees with members’ applications, counterfoils issued to them, as
well as on a reference to minutes of the Managing Committee.

b. Vouch members’ subscriptions with the counterfoils of receipt issued to them, trace receipts for a selected
period to the Register of Members; also reconcile the amount of total subscriptions due with the amount
collected and that outstanding.

. Ensure that arrears of subscriptions for the previous year have been correctly brought over and arrears for
the year under audit and subscriptions received in advance have been correctly adjusted.

d. Check totals of various columns of the Register of members and tally them across.

e. See the Register of Members to ascertain the Member’s dues which are in arrear and enquire whether
necessary steps have been taken for their recovery; the amount considered irrecoverable should be
mentioned in the Audit Report.

Verify the internal check as regards members being charged with the price of foodstuffs and drinks provided

to them and their guests, as well as, with the fees chargeable for the special services rendered, such as billiards,
tennis, etc.

Audit of Cinema

Cinescreen Multiplex Ltd. is operating cinemas in different locations in Mumbai and has appointed you as an

internal auditor. What are the areas that need to be verified in relation to receipts from sale of Tickets?

[RTP Nov-22 + Nov-22]

Audit of Cinema: The special steps involved in the audit of receipts from sale of tickets are stated below-

(i) Verify that entrance to the cinema-hall during show is only through printed tickets;
(i) Verify that they are serially numbered and bound into books

(iii) Verify that the number of tickets issued for each show and class, are di

class for the show on the same day, each week, run serially

(iv) Verify that for advance booking a separate series of tickets is issued;
(v) Verify that the inventory of tickets is kept in the custody of a responsible official.
(vi) Confirm that at the end of show, a statement of tickets sol
(vii) Verify that a record is kept of the

fferent though the numbers of the same

d is prepared and cash collected is agreed with it.

‘free passes’ and that these are issued under proper authority.

(viii) Reconcile the amount of Entertainment Tax collected with the total number of tickets issued for each class.

(ix) Vouch the entries in the Cash Book in respect of cash collected on sale of tickets for different shows on
reference to Daily Statements which have been test checked as afor

ementioned with record of tickets issued
for the different shows held.
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Audit of Hire Purchase & Leasing Companies
1. Define the different types of lease agreements as per Accounting Standard/Ind-As. [May-19]

As-19/ Ind-AS 17 defines that lease arrangements could be of 2 types i.e.
(i) Finance Lease and
(i) Operating Lease.

Finance Lease:
An arrangement with the following attributes qualifies as a Finance Lease:

The lease arrangement transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term;
Lessee has option to purchase asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than fair value at the
date option becomes exercisable for it to be reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that the option

will be exercised;
The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not transferred;

At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and
« theleased assets are of such a specialized nature that only the lessee can use them without major modifications

Operating Lease.

An arrangement that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership qualifies as an

Operating Lease.
In other words, an operating lease is a lease arrangement “Other than finance lease”.

2. An Operating Lease is a kind of Financing arrangement. [SM]

Incorrect- A Finance Lease is a Financing arrangement. An Operating lease, on the other hand, is a simple
arrangement where, in return for rent, the lessor allows the lessee to use the asset for a certain period.

3.ABCLtd. wants to buy some equipment on lease and hence is required to sign lease agreement with the supplier
of the equipment. What are the important points to be considered in the lease agreement?

Tfle important points to be examined in the lease agreement are:

() the description of the lessor, the lessee, the equipment and the location where the equipment is to be
installed. (The stipulation that the equipment shall not be removed from the described location except for
repairs. For the sake of identification, the lessor may also require plates or markings to be attached to the
equipment).

(ii) the amount of tenure of lease, dates of payment, late charges, deposits or advances etc. should be noted.

([ ——— equipment shall be returned to the lessor on termination of the agreement and the cost shall be
barne by the lessee.

(iv) whether the agreement prohibits the lessee from assigning the subletting the equipment and authorises the
lessor to do so,
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Audit of Hotels

ABC Hotel, a three star hotel, for Financial Year 2021-22, As an audito,

1.You have beena i uditor of _
ppointedasana ntories in the nature of fooq and

s ; ifvi e
what are the special points that need to be considered in verifying the Inv
beverages? [RTP Nov-22 + MTP Mar/Nov-23]

Verification of inventories in the nature of food and beverages: Inventories in any hotel are both readily portapj,

and saleable particularly the food and beverage inventories. It is therefore extremely important that all movement
and transfers of such inventories should be properly documented to enable control to be exercised over each
individual stores’ areas and sales point. The auditor should carry out tests to ensure that all such documentation js

accurately processed.

Therefore, following points may be noted in this regard:

a. All movement and transfer of inventories must be properly documented.

b. Areas where inventories are kept must be kept locked and the key retained by the departmental manager.

c. The key should be released only to trusted personnel and unauthorized persons should not be permitted in the
stores area.

d. Many hotels use specialized professional valuers to count and value the inventories on a continuous basis
throughout the year.

e. The auditor should ensure that all inventories are valued at the year end and that he should himself be present
at the year-end physical verification, to the extent practicable, having regard to materiality consideration and
nature and location of inventories

2, Pilfering is one of the greatest problems in any hotel and the importance of internal control cannot be
undermined. Explain. [RTP May-22 + MTP Nov-23)

Pilfering is one of the greatest problems in any hote! and the importance of internal control cannot be undermined.
It is the responsibility of management to introduce controls which will minimise the leakage as far as possible.
Evidence of their success is provided by the preparation of regular perhaps weekly, trading accounts for each sales
point and a detailed scrutiny of the resulting profit percentages, with any deviation from the anticipated form being
investigated. The auditor should obtain these regular trading accounts for the period under review, examine them
and obtain explanations for any apparent deviations.

The auditor should verify a few restaurant bills by reference to K.0.T.s (Kitchen Order Tickets) or basic record. This
would enable the auditor to ensure that controls regarding revenue cycle are in order,

The auditor should satisfy himself that all taxes collected from occupants on food and occupation have been paid
over to the proper authorities. If the internal control in a hotel is weak or perhaps breaks down, then a very serious
problem exists for the auditor. As a result of the transient nature of many of his clients’ records, the auditor must
rely to a very large extent on the gross margin shown by the accounts. As a result, the scope of his audit tests will

necessarily be increased and, in the event of a material margin discrepancy being unexplained, he will have t0
consider qualifying his audit report.

CA Shubham Keswani 190



Guest
Rectangle


e

Ch-17 Other Special Audits

3.An auditor should ensure that proper valuation of occupancy-in-progress at the balance sheet date is made and
inciuded in the accounts in the case of audit of a Hotel. [SM]

correct The auditor should ensure that proper valuation of occupancy-inprogress at the balance sheet date is made

and included in the accounts for proper recording of closing and opening entries and maintainance of accounts on
Accrual basis as per the Matching concept.

4, Explain and also state the role of auditor with respect to the following in case of a hotel:
Travel agents & shops [MTP Mar-23]

(i) For ledgers coming through travel agents or other booking agencies the bills are usually made on the travel
agents or booking agencies. The auditor should ensure that money are recovered from the travel agents or
booking agencies as per the terms of credit allowed.

(ii) Commission, if any, paid to travel agents or booking agents should be checked by reference to the agreement
on that behalf.

5. As an auditor, explain the areas of consideration while auditing the element of ROOM SALES during the audit
of a 5-Star Hotel. [MTP Apr-23]

Following points merit cm‘l'.i_ri_t__'L.'l_';|l‘1_n__\.-.rl'n!-_-‘.m:!nh{'l;.'__!!w_c_‘_!g;nwnt of ROOM SALES during the audit of a Hotel:-
(1) The charge for room sales is normally posted to guest bills by the receptionist/ front office or in the case of
large hotels by the night auditor.

(2) The source of these entries is the guest register and audit tests should be carried out to ensure that the correct
numbers of guests are charged for the correct period,

(3) Any difference between the charged rates used on the guests’ bills and the standard room rate should be
investigated to ensure that they have been properly authorised.

(4) In many hotels, the housekeeper prepares a daily report of the rooms which were occupied the previous night
and the number of beds kept in each room. This report tends not to be permanently retained and the auditor
should ensure that a sufficient number of reports are available for him to test both with the guest register and
with the individual guest’s bill.

(5) Ensure compliance with the provisions of FEMA and RBI if receipts are in foreign currency. Ensure application
of proper Conversion rate.

(6) Special emphasis to be laid on receipts through Credit Cards.

(7) The audi
?udltor should ensure that proper valuation of occupancy-in-progress at the balance sheet date is made
and included in the accounts.
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Test Your Understanding
1. A company is engaged in manufacturing of fabrics from yarn purchased from different suppliers. Occasiunauv
it also manufactures fabrics tailor made in accordance with requirements of certain mills from yarn receiveq fmn,:
these mills. The company raises bill of its labour charges only on mills for converting yarn into fabrics, The auditor
of company tries to ensure that stocks of the company as at year end do not include stocks pertaining to thesa
mills. Which assertion auditor tries to verify in above situation? How he can ensure that?

The auditor is trying to verify assertion relating to “Rights and Obligations”. He is verifying that the company owns
" or controls the inventory recorded in the financial statements. Any inventory held by the company on behalf of
another entity has not been recognized as part of inventory of the company. This can be achieved by verifying stock
records pertaining to goods received from mills and sent back to mills after carrying out necessary operations,
Besides, agreements with such mills may also be verified.

2. A company has availed cash credit facility of X 2 crore (O/s balance X 2 crore as at year end) from a bank for
meeting its working capital requirements against security of stocks and debtors and guaranteed by directors of
the company. Discuss, how the above cash credit facility, would be classified and disclosed in financial statements
of company.

It shall be shown under the head “Borrowings” and classified as Short-term secured borrowings specifying nature
of security. The above said outstanding amount shall be further sub-classified under heading “Loans repayable on
Demand” from Banks. As per requirements of Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013, where loans have been
guaranteed by directors or others, aggregate amount of such loans under each head shall be disclosed.

3. Various ratios of current year and preceding year are disclosed in financial statements of a company in
accordance with requirements of Schedule 11l of Companies Act, 2013. Discuss requirements of law in this regard
(Do not list out names of ratios)

A company has to disclose various ratios in its financial statements in accordance with requirements of Schedule lll
of Companies Act, 2013. The company shall also explain the terms included in numerator and denominator for
computing the above ratios. Further explanation shall be provided for any change in the ratio by more than 25%
as compared to the preceding year.

4. An auditor of a company is focusing upon revenues of a company. In this regard, besides performing usual

detailed checking of sales, he wants to perform substantive analytical procedures in respect of sales. Discuss how
he can perform such procedures.

Substantive analytical procedures in respect of sales will consist of sales trend analysis, comparison with previous
accounting period, category-wise sales analysis, any analysis the auditor may find relevant and most important of
all, building a sales expectation and comparing that with the client’s sales records. The auditor will need to know
the sales prices of the products or services over the year, monthly average sales price per product or service,
discount policy.

5. While verifying depreciation charged to statement of profit and loss account of a company, it is noticed by
auditor that one new machinery was purchased and installed in month of April. The necessary trials were carried
out and machinery was ready for use in April itself. However, owing to lack of orders in the market, the said
machinery was put into actual operation from 1st October. The company has, accordingly, provided depreciation
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in its books on this machinery w.e.f. 1st October. Is above recording of deprecation by company proper in its
books?

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Depreciation on asset is charged on
asset from the date when it is ready for use and not from date of actual usage. Hence, recording of depreciation by
company w.e.f. 1st October is not proper.

Case Study !
sunsteel Ltd. is a company engaged in the manufacture of variety of stainless steel household items rangif\g fro-m
hot pot, pressure cooker, cutlery set, bottles, to serving trays. The company has its corporate office in !)elhl aln(.:i .ItS
plant in Raigarh, a city in the state of Chhattisgarh. The company is planning to expand its manufacturmg activities
by setting up two new plants in the Raipur district of the state. For this purpose, the compaljn,r also raised funds by
making a follow-on public offer during the financial year 2022-23. R K Maheshwari & Associates are the statutory
auditors of the company since the year 2020-21.

The engagement team consisted of 5 members, with CA Raman as the engagement partner, CA Madhu as the senior
associate and three articled trainees namely, Aman, Chetanya and Depesh.

The company raised fresh capital of * 5 Cr during the FY 2022-23. The shares with the nominal value of X 10 per
share were issued at a premium of ® 5 per share. The company has the Reserves and Surplus totaling to X 2 Cr;
comprising of securities premium and general reserve,

CA Raman directed CA Madhu to verify the issue of the share capital in detail giving special consideration to the
utilization of the securities premium amount.

The audit engagement team discussed with the management about the performance of the company during the
year under consideration. To this, the management told the engagement team that the company is performing very
well and the company has doubled its revenue during the year as compared to the last year. The management of
the company also told the auditors that during the year the company has made majority of its sales on credit basis

to its customers. CA Raman directed Mr. Aman to send balance confirmation requests to debtors having balance in
excess of X1 lakh.

During the course of audit, CA Raman, Chetanya and Depesh also visited the power plants in Raigarh to get a detailed
understanding of the manufacturing process.

The team performed analytical procedures to obtain audit evidence with respect to the overall reasonableness of
purchase quantity and price of inventory. More specifically, Chetanya collected the reports from the management
for composition of stock i.e. raw materials as a percentage of total stock and compared the same with the data of

the previous year. CA Raman and Chetanya thereafter, discussed the reasons for the variations with the
management.

Also, while considering the presentation and disclosure requirements as per Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, CA
Madhu discussed with CA Raman the disclosure with respect to the following account balances:

e Current maturities to long term borrowings

« Long term maturities of finance lease obligations

e |nterest accrued but not due on borrowings
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e Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Based on the above facts, answer the following questions:

. i ecuritie
1. Which of the following is not correct with respect to shares issued at premium and s S Premium accoyp,
in terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013?

a) Where a company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggrega,

amount of the premium received on those shares shall be transferredto a securit.ies premiurn account,
b) The securities premium account can be applied by the company in paying up unissued equity shares of the
company to be issued to members of the company as fully paid bonus shares.
c) The securities premium account cannot be applied by the company in writing off the expenses of or the
commission paid or discount allowed on any issue of equity shares of the company.
[ d) The securities premium account can be applied by the company for the purchase of its own shares o

securities under section 68.

2. Which of the following is not an example of capital reserve?
a) Revaluation reserve arising from revaluation of fixed assets
b) Securities Premium
c) Capital redemption reserve
d) General reserve

3. Statement 1: Confirmations as well as undelivered letters should be given/ returned to the auditor and not to
the client.
Statement 2: When no reply is received, the auditor should perform alternate procedures regarding the balances.
a) Only statement 1 is correct

b) Only statement 2 is correct

c) Both statements 1 & 2 are correct

d) Both statements 1 & 2 are incorrect

4, Mr. Chetanya performed which of the following analytical procedures to obtain the audit evidence with respect
to the overall reasonableness of purchase quantity and price of raw material?

a) Consumption Analysis

b) Stock Composition Analysis

c) Reasonableness test

d) Ratio analysis

5. Which of the following is not correct with respect to the disclosure requirements of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act 2013?

a) Current maturities of long term borrowings is to be disclosed under the head long term borrowings

b) Long term maturities of finance lease obligations is to be disclosed under the head long term borrowings
c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings is to be disclosed under the head Other Current Liabilities

d) Interest accrued and due on borrowings is to be disclosed under the head Other Current Liabilities

1.c2.d3.c4.b5.a
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MCQs based Questions
1. An auditor is verifying purchases to ensure their genuineness,

. i Consequently,
fake “trade payables” are present in financial statements. Which assertions conie
trade payables respectively are being verified by auditor?

(a) Occurrence; Existence

(b) Occurrence; Completeness
(c) Existence; Occurrence

(d) Completeness; Occurrence

heis also trying to verify that no
erning purchase tra nsactions and

2. Which of the following statement is most appropriate as regards to disclosure of goods in transit in financial
statements of a company?

(a) No separate disclosure of goods in transit is required.
(b) Disclosure of total goods in transit under head of inventories is required.

(c) Disclosure of goods in transit under each sub-head of inventories is required.
(d) Disclosure of goods in transit for raw material and finished goods is required.

3. Sweat Equity shares are issued by a company at a discount or for consideration other than cash to its:-
(a) Directors only

(b) Clients only
(c) Directors or employees
(d) Auditors only

4, Which of the following is not an element of cost of an item of machinery included under head “Property, Plant
and Equipment”?

(a) Installation costs

(b) Freight cost of bringing the item to its location
(c) Inaugural costs

(d) Employee benefit cost for making such an item suitable for production

5. Which of the classification is not required by a company in respect of its “Cash and cash equivalents?”
(a) Balance with Banks

(b) Balance with scheduled banks
(c) Cash on hand
(d) Cheques on hand

1l.a2.c3.c4.¢c5.b

Correct/Incorrect
State with reasons (in short) whether the following statement is correct or incorrect:

1. Employee benefits expenses represent the sum an entity pays to its employees for their labour/ efforts only.

Incorrect: Employee benefits expenses, commonly called payroll expenses, represent the aggregate sum an entity
pays to its employees for their labour/ efforts, as well as associated expenses such as perquisites/ benefits,

postemployment benefits like gratuity, superannuation, leave encashment, provident fund contribution etc. as well
as towards their hiring, their welfare and training.
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2. Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit
the dividend is established.

and loss only when the entity’s right to receive Paymen, "

it and loss only when:
Incorrect: Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit

. i lished;
(i) the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend Is.eSta: I|:|'\Jridem:| will flow to the entity; and
(ii) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the di

(iii) the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

3. “Sweat Equity Shares” means equity shares issued by the company to e.mplovl:ees cfr d:'ectors ata Ffre""i'-"'n or
for consideration other than cash for providing know-how or making avallabli right In'the:ndture of Intellecty,|
property rights or value additions, by whatever name called.

Incorrect: “Sweat Equity Shares” means equity shares issued by the company to employees or directors at discount
or for consideration other than cash for providing know-how or making available right in the nature of intellectya|
property rights or value additions, by whatever name called

4. Capital reserves represent profits that are available for distribution to shareholders held for the time being or
any one or more purpose.

Incorrect: Revenue reserves represent profits that are available for distribution to shareholders.

5. A capital reserve, generally, can be utilised for writing down fictitious assets or losses or (subject to provisions

in the Articles) for issuing bonus shares if it is realised.

Correct: A capital reserve, generally,
provisions in the Articles)
redemption reserve accou
Companies Act, 2013,

can be utilised for writing down fictitious assets or losses or (subject to
for issuing bonus shares if it is realised. But the amount of share premium or capital

nt can be utilised only for the purpose specified in Sections 52 and 55 respectively of the

Incorrect: If Company X’s balance sheet shows buildi ' :
ng with carrying am itor shall assume
that the management has claimed/ asserteq that: TYIng amount of X 100 lakh, the auditor s

ng (Rights and ob|igati .
® The building has been valued accurate obligations assertion);

All buildings owned and controlled by Com
pany X are j L h
(Completeness assertion). included within the carrying amount of % 100 lak

Incorrect: Material and Wages incurreq )

N construction
“Plant, Property and Equitment”, Therefore o

7 these have tD

not be expensed off to Statement of Profit and Loss

AS 10
|V to be i iture as per
be add ; . capital expendltu

all
he cost of the asset i.e building and sh
CA Shubham Keswani
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8. PPE are depreciated when the asset is actually put to active use.

incorrect: Depreciation is a fall in value of asset due to obsolescence, usage and effluxion of time, Therefore,
depreciation is charged when the asset is ready for use . Active use of assetis nota mandatory criteria for charge of

depreciation.
9. Increase in authorised capital of the company requires special resolution to be passed at the general meeting.

Incorrect: Increase in Authorised capital requires alteration of capital clause of memorandum of Association.
Therefore, ordinary resolution is passed for increase in authorised capital of the company as per the Companies Act,
’

2013.

10. Capital redemption reserve can be used for distribution of dividends.

Incorrect: Capital Redemption reserve is not a free reserve. It is a restrictive reserve and can be used only for
purposes given in the Act. Since it is not a free reserve, it cannot be utilised for payment of dividends. CRR can be
used only for the purpose of issuing fully paid up bonus shares.

11. Dividends are recommended by the Board, and declared by the Shareholders.

Correct: The dividends are recommended by the Board of Directors by passing a resolution at the board meeting.
The Shareholders declare the dividends at the AGM by passing an ordinary resolution. Declaration of dividend is an

item of ordinary business. However, the shareholders can decrease the amount of dividends recommended by the
board but cannot increase it.

12. In verifying Trade Receivables balance, Direct Confirmation Procedure is one of the important audit activity.

Correct: While auditing trade receivable balance, direct confirmations as per SA 505, is considered to be the most
important audit activity. Direct confirmation can be sought from the debtors directly confirming their balance due.
The replies to the confirmation can be then matched with the records maintained by the client. Any discrepancies
so revealed, can be investigated and checked in detail for possibility of any risk of material misstatement. Auditor

selects few debtors’ balances and ask the client to prepare the confirmations properly addressed to the debtors.
Auditor maintains strict control over this process.

SM Questions =
1. How will you vouch and/or verify the following:

(a) Goods sent out on Sale or Return Basis.
(b) Borrowing from Banks.

(a) The audit procedure generally required to be undertaken by the auditor while auditing Goods sent out on Sale
or Return Basis is as under:
(i) Check whether a separate memoranda record of goods sent out on sale or return basis is maintained. The
) party accounts are debited only after the goods have been sold and the sales account is credited.
(ii) Verify that price of such goods is unloaded from the sales account and the trade receivables record. Check the
memoranda record to confirm that on the receipt of acceptance from each party, his account has been debited
and the sales account correspondingly credited.
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. . | has expired a
(iii) Ensure that the goods in respect of which the period of ap[:lrlil\;a
. ited.
been received back or customers’ accounts have been debi _
iod of approval in respect of whi
(iv) Confirm that the inventory of goods sent out on approval, the perloj- tthclosing invento i g ot
expired till the end of the year lying with the party, has been included in "

t the end of the yea r, have Bithe
r

(b) Borrowing from Banks: Borrowing from banks may be either in the form of overdraft limits or term loang_ |,
each case, the borrowings should be verified as follows-

(i) Reconcile the balances in the overdrafts or loan accounts with that shown in the pass book(s) and confirm the
last mentioned balance by obtaining a certificate from the bank showing the balance in the accounts as at the
end of the year.

(i) Obtain independent balance confirmation from the bank showing balances, particulars of securities depositeqd
with the bank as security for the loans or of the charge created on an asset and confirm that the same has beep
correctly disclosed and duly registered with Registrar of Companies and recorded in the Register of charges,

(iii) Verify the authority under which the loan or draft has been raised. In the case of a company, only the Boarg
of Directors is authorised to raise a loan or borrow from a bank.

(iv) Confirm, in the case of a company, that the restraint contained in Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 a5
regards the maximum amount of loan that the company can raise has not been contravened. Ascertain the

purpose for which loan has been raised and the manner in which it has been utilised and that this has not
prejudicially affected the entity.

2. How will you vouch/verify the following:
(a) Goods sent on consignment.

(b) Foreign travel expenses.

(c) Receipt of capital subsidy.

(d) Provision for income tax.

Goods Sent on Consignment:

(i) Verify the accounts sales submitted by the consignee showing goods sold and inventory of goods in hand.
(ii) Reconcile the figure of the goods on hand, as given in the last accounts sales, with the Performa invoices and

accounts sales received during the year. If any consignment inventory was in the hands of the consignee at the
beginning of the year, the same should be taken into account in the reconciliation

(iii) Obtain confirmation from the consignee for the Boods held on consignment on the balance sheet date. Verify
the terms of agreement between the consignor and the consignee to check the commission and other expenses

; nsignee’s account. les also must be
correspondingly checked. The accounts sa

(iv) Ensure that the quantity of goods in hand with the ¢
onsignee ha : non-
recurring expenses, e.g., freight, dock dues, ® been ualued at cost plus progortionate

value is lower, the inventory in hand of th B i o dnicat the R L g’
f of the consignee should be valued at net realisable value. Also see that
and obsolete goods in making the valuation.

ave bee
n shown Seéparately under the head inventories.
(b) Foreign Travel Expenses:

(i i o Tra"e“ing A"D\N‘ance hi“s Sl.lbl'ni

y the e 3 i |
| |tEd b ||Ip|0 ees Statlng tl e details of to ’ -II
{ii} if ” at the tour programme was prupeﬂv autllorised b\[ the hol tv
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(iii) Check the T.A. bills along with accompanying supporting documents such as air tickets travel agents bill and
hotel bills with reference to the internal rules for entitlement of the employees and also make sure that the
bills are properly passed.

(iv) See that the tour report accompanies the T.A. bill. The tour report will show the purpose of the tour Satisfy
that the purpose of the tour as shown by the tour report conforms to the authorisation for the tour

(v) Check Reserve Bank of India’s permission, if necessary, for withdrawing the foreign exchange. For a company
the amount of foreign exchange spent is to be disclosed separately in the accounts as per requirement of

Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard 11 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”.

(c) Receipt of Capital Subsidy:

(i) Check the application made for the claim of subsidy to ascertain the purpose and the scheme under which the
subsidy has been made available.

(i) Examine documents for the grant of subsidy and note the conditions attached with the same relating to its
use, etc.

(iii) Ensure that the conditions to be fulfilled and other terms especially whether the same is for a specific asset or
is for setting up a factory at a specific location.

(iv) Check relevant entries for receipt of subsidy.

(v) Check compliance with requirements of AS 12 on “Accounting for Government Grants” i.e. whether it relates

to specific amount or in the form of promoters’ contribution and accordingly accounted for as also compliance
with the disclosure requirements.

(d) Provision for Income Tax:

(i) Obtain the computation of income and income tax prepared by the entity and verify whether it is as per the
Income-tax Act, 1961 and Rules made thereunder,

(i) Review adjustments, expenses, disallowed special rebates, etc. with particular reference to the last available
completed assessment,

(iii) Examine relevant records and documents pertaining to advance tax, self-assessment tax and other demands
(iv) Compute tax payable as per the latest applicable rates in the Finance Act.

(v) Ensure that overall provisions on the date of the balance sheet is adequate having regard to current year
provision, advance tax paid, assessment orders, etc.

(vi) Ensure that the requirements of AS 22 on Accounting for Taxes on Income have been appropriately followed
for the period under audit.

3. Explain how you will verify the items given while conducting an audit of an entity :
(a) Payment of Taxes

(b) Sale proceeds of scrap material
(c) Advertisement Expenses.

Payment of Taxes:

() Payment on account of income-tax and other taxes consequent upon a regular assessment should be verified
by reference to the copy of the assessment order, assessment form, notice of demand and the receipted
challan,

(ii) Payments or advance payments of income-tax should also be verified with the notice of demand and the
receipted challan acknowledging the amount paid.

(iii) The interest allowed on advance payments of income-tax should be included as income and penal interest
charged for non-payment should be debited to the interest account.
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(iv) Nowadays, electronic payment of taxes is also in trend. Electronic pa
by way of internet banking facility or credit or debit cards.

(v) The entity can make electronic payment of taxes also from the account of any other person, HOWever, the
challan for making such payment must clearly indicate the Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the assesseq
on whose behalf the payment is made. This should be checked by the auditor.

(vi) It is not necessary for the entity to make payment of taxes from his own account in an authorized bank. While
vouching such e-payment, the auditor should cross verify the payments of taxes through the receipted challap

along with PAN No /TAN No. etc.

yment of taxes means payment of taxe,
S

Sale Proceeds of Scrap Material:
(i) Review the internal control on scrap materials, as regards its generation, storage and disposal and see whether
it was properly followed at every stage.
(i) Ascertain whether the organisation is maintaining reasonable records for the sale and disposal of scrap
materials.
(iii) Review the production and cost records for determination of the extent of scrap materials that may arise in 3
given period.
(iv) Compare the income from the sale of scrap materials with the corresponding figures of the preceding three
years.
(v) Check the rates at which different types of scrap materials have been sold and compare the same with the
rates that prevailed in the preceding year.
(vi) See that scrap materials sold have been billed and check the calculations on the invoices.
(vii) Ensure that there exists a proper procedure to identify the scrap material and good quality material is not
mixed up with it and sold as scrap
(viii) Make an overall assessment of the value of the realisation from the sale of scrap materials as to its
reasonableness

Advertisement Expenses:

(i) Verify the bills/invoices from advertising agency to ensure that rates charged for different types of
advertisement are as per the contract.

(i) See that the advertisement relates to client’s business.

(iii) Inspect the receipt issued by the agency.

(iv) Ascertain the nature of expenditure — revenue or capital expenditure and see that it has been recorded
properly.

(v) Ascertain the period for which payment is made and see that prepaid amount, if any, is carried to the balance
sheet,

(vi) See that all outstanding advertisement bills have been provided for,

4. ABC Ltd. has issued shares for cash at a premium. Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that 2
Company shall transfer the amount received by it as securities premium to securities premium account. Advisé
the means in which the amount in the account can be applied.

Shares Issued at Premium; In case a company has Issued shares at a premium, that is, at amount in excess of the
nominal value of the shares, whether for cash or otherwise, section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that 3
Company shall transfer the amount received by it as securities premium to securities premium account and staté
the means in which the amount in the account can be applied. As per the section, where a company issues shares
at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on
those shares shall be transferred to a “securities premium account” and the provisions of this Act relating o
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reduction of share capital of a company shall apply as if the securities premium account were the paid-up share
capital of the company.

Application of securities premium account: The securities premium account may be applied by the Company:

a) towards the issue of unissued shares of the company to the members of the company as fully paid bonus shares;

b) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the Company;

c) inwriting off the expenses of, or the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures
of the company;

d) in providing for the premium payable on the redemption of any redeemable preference shares or of any
debentures of the company; or

e) forthe purchase of its own shares or other securities under section 68.

The auditor needs to verify whether the premium received on shares, if any, has been transferred to a “securities
premium account” and whether the application of any amount out of the said “securities premium account” is only
for the purposes mentioned above

5. The auditor has to ensure whether PPE has been valued appropriately and as per generally accepted accounting
policies and practices and also the entity has valid legal ownership rights over the PPE claimed to be held by the
entity and recorded in the financial statements . Explain how the auditor will verify the same.

[MTP Nov-22 + Dec’21] [OR
CA Mehta is statutory auditor of ABC Ltd. While performing testing of additions during the year, he wanted to
verify that:
(i) All PPE (property, plant and equipment) are in the nhame of the entity he is auditing.
(ii) For all additions to land and building in particular, auditor desires to have concrete about the ownership.
(iii) The auditor wants to know whether entity has valid legal ownership rights over PPE, where it is kept as
security for any borrowings.
Advise auditor on audit procedure to be undertaken by him to establish Rights and Obligations of entity over the
PPE. (3M) [MTP Apr-23]

The auditor has to ensure whether PPE has been valued appropriately and as per generally accepted accounting
policies and practices.

The value of fixed assets/ PPE depreciates due to efflux of time, use and obsolescence. The diminution of the value
represents an item of cost to the entity for earning revenue during a given period. Unless this cost in the form of
depreciation is charged to the accounts, the profit or loss would not be correctly ascertained, and the values of PPE
would be shown at higher amounts.

The auditor should:
> Verify that the entity has charged depreciation on all items of PPE unless any item of PPE is non- depreciable
like freehold land;
> Assess that the depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits
are expected to be consumed by the entity. It could be Straight line method, diminishing value method, unit

of production method, as applicable.
»  The auditor should also verify whether the management has done an impairment assessment to determine

whether an item of property, plant and equipment is impaired as per the requirements of AS 28 - Impairment
of Assets,

CA Shubham Keswani 201


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-18 Audit of Items of FS

To verify whether the entity has valid legal ownership rights over the PPE claimed to be held by the entity ang

recorded in the financial statements

* Inaddition to the procedures undertaken for verifying completeness of additions to PPE during the period under
audit, the auditor while performing testing of additions should also verify that all PPE purchase invoices are ip
the name of the entity that entitles legal title of ownership to the respective entity.

* For all additions to land and building in particular, the auditor should check the conveyance deed/ sale deed to
verify whether the entity is the legal and valid owner or not.

* The auditor should insist and verify the original title deeds for all immoveable properties held as at the balance
sheet date.

* Incase the entity has given such immoveable property as security for any borrowings and the original title deeds
are not available with the entity, the auditor should request the entity’s management for obtaining a
confirmation from the respective lenders that they are holding the original title deeds of immoveable property
as security.

* In addition, the auditor should also verify the register of charges, available with the entity to assess that any
charge has been created against the PPE.

6. Write the audit Procedure for verification of existence of Trade Receivables.

For Verification of Existence of Trade Receivables, the auditor should check the following :

i. Check whether there are controls in place to ensure that invoices cannot be recorded more than once and
receivable balances are automatically recorded in the general ledger from the original invoice. Ask for a period-
end accounts receivable aging report and trace the balance as per the report to the general ledger.

ii. Check whether realization is recorded invoice-wise or not. If not, check that money received from debtors is
adjusted chronologically invoice-wise and on FIFO basis i.e. previous bill is adjusted first.

iii. If any large balance is due for a long time, auditor should ask for reasons and justification for the same.

iv. A list of trade receivables selected for confirmation should be given to the entity for preparing request letters
for confirmation which should be properly addressed.

v. The auditor should maintain strict control to ensure the correctness and proper despatch of request letters. It
should be ensured that confirmations as well as any undelivered letters are returned to the auditor and not to the
client.

vi. Any discrepancies revealed by the confirmations received or by the additional tests carried out by the auditor
may have a bearing on other accounts not included in the original sample.

vii. Where no reply is received, the auditor should perform alternate procedures regarding the balances. This
could include:

viii. Agreeing the balance to cash received subsequently;

xi. Check that receivables for other than sales or services are not included in the list.

7. MNO & Associates are the statutory auditor of Venus Ltd. for the FY 2021-22. During the course of audit, one
of the audit team members, Mr. Viaan noticed that the company has made loans totaling to X 50 lakhs to the
promoters of the company, namely, Mr. Ra] and Mr. Rajeev without specifying the period of repayment. Mr.
Viaan discussed with Mr. Manik, the engagement partner, about the disclosure requirements with respect to
such loans required by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. What should Mr. Manik advise Mr. Viaan?

Mr. Manik should advise Mr. Viaan to consider whether the following disclosures as required by Schedule IIl to the
Companies Act, 2013, has been made in respect of the loans granted to Promoters, namely, Mr. Raj and Mr. Rajeev,
either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment
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Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the | Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in—\
nature of loan outstanding the nature of loans

|
Promoters

Directors
KMPs

Related Parties

8. How is “Cash and cash equivalents” disclosed in the Financial Statements as required under Schedule Il (part
1) to Companies Act, 20152 |Dec’21 + MTP Mar-23]

Disclosure of Cash & Cash Equivalent in the Financial Statements: Regarding Cash and cash equivalents- Ensure
whether the following disclosures as required under Schedule 11l (Part 1) to Companies Act, 2013 have been made:
(i) Cash and cash equivalents shall be classified as: '

(a) Balances with banks;

(b) Cheques, drafts on hand;

(c) Cash on hand;

(d) Others (specify nature)
(i) Earmarked balances with banks (for example, for unpaid dividend) shall be separately stated.
(iii) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees, other
commitments shall be disclosed separately.
(iv) Repatriation restrictions, if any, in respect of cash and bank balances shall be separately stated.
(v) Bank deposits with more than 12 months’ maturity shall be disclosed separately

9. Studymate Limited is a company engaged in the manufacture of stationery items. The company sells its goods
on credit. The debtors as on 31.03.2024, amounted to X 10 crores. What is the disclosure requirement for the
company with respect to the ageing schedule of the trade receivables in terms of Schedule il (Part 1) to the
Companies Act, 2013?

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

\ ] | Amt (in %)
articulars 0/s for following periods from due date of payment #
Less 6 Months- 1| 1-2 2-3 More Total
than 6 months | year years | years than 3 years
(i) Undisputed

Trade receivables —considered
good

(ilUndisputed

Trade Receivables — Considered
doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivahles
Considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
Considered doubtful

# similar information shall be given where no due date of payment Is specified, in that case disclosure shall be from
the date of transaction.

Unbilled dues shall be disclosed separately.

CA Shubham Keswani 203


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-18 Audit of Items of FS

10. You are the statutory auditor of Jupiter Ltd. for the FY 2022-23. During th.e course of audit, you noticed that
the company has PPE under construction i.e. Capital Work in Progress. What disclosures should the company giye
with respect to the ageing schedule of such capital work in progress as required by Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 20132
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)
(a) For Capital-work-in progress, following ageing schedule shall be given:
CWIP ageing schedule

CWIP <1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
Projects in Progress

Projects temporarily suspended

(b) For CWIP, whose completion is overdue or exceeded its cost compared to original plan, following cwip
completion schedule shall be given:

| To be completed in: Total
cwip <1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Project 1
Project 2

(Details of projects where activity has been suspended to be given separately)

11. The auditor of Saturn Ltd. wants to verify whether the company has valid legal ownership rights over the

inventories recorded in the balance sheet as on 31.03.2023. What audit procedures should the statutory auditor
of the company perform?

The statutory auditor of Saturn Ltd. should perform the following audit procedures to verify if the com pany hasvalid
legal ownership rights over the inventories recorded in the balance sheet as on 31.03.2023. The auditor should:

# vouch recorded purchases to underlying documentation (purchase requisition, purchase order, receiving
report, vendor invoice and cancelled cheque or payment file).
evaluate the consigned goods.

v

\f

examine client correspondence, sales and receivables records, purchase documents
determine existence of collateral agreements.
review consignment agreements.

review material purchase commitment agreements.

v Y

b '

examine invoices for evidence of ownership i.e. the invoices shall be in the name of the client.
obtain confirmation for significant items of inventory.

v

For instances of inventory held by third party, the auditor should insist on obtaining declaration from the third party

authorized personnel of that third party confirming that the items of
held by such third party on behalf of and for the benefit of the entity

on its business letterhead and signed by an
inventory belong to the entity and are being
under audit.
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1. What audit points are to be borne in mind in case of issue of “Sweat Equity Shares” by a limited company?
(MTP Oct-19] [OR

s& Co., Chartered Accountants, are appointed as the auditors of ABC Ltd. CA 5, the engagement partner, has come
across the following while verifying equity share capital of the company:

(i) He noticed that some of the equity shares are held by promoters.

(i) Some shares are issued as sweat equity shares to the employees.

What is the meaning of sweat equity shares? What are the disclosure requirements of such promoter's
shareholding? [Nov-22]

1ssue of Sweat Equity Shares: As per section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013, the employees may be compensated
in the form of ‘Sweat Equity Shares”.

“Sweat Equity Shares” means equity shares issued by the company to employees or directors at a discount or for
consideration other than cash for providing know-how or making available right in the nature of intellectual property
rights or value additions, by whatever name called. The auditor may see that the Sweat Equity Shares issued by the
company are of a class of shares already issued and following conditions are fulfilled-

(a) The issue is authorized by a special resolution passed by the company;

(b) The resolution specifies the number of shares, the current market price, consideration, if any, and the class or
classes of directors or employees to whom such equity shares are to be issued;

(c) Not less than one year has, at the date of such issue, elapsed since the date on which the company had
commenced business; and

(d) Where the equity shares of the company are listed on a recognized stock exchange, the sweat equity shares are
issued in accordance with the regulations made by the Securities and Exchange Board in this behalf and if they are
not so listed, the sweat equity shares are issued in accordance with such rules as may be prescribed.

The rights, limitations, restrictions and provisions as are for the time being applicable to equity shares shall be
applicable to the sweat equity shares issued under this section and the holders of such shares shall rank paripassu
with other equity shareholders.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the year***
| SNo- | Promoter Name | No. of shares | % of total shares**

* Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

¥y £ .
¢ Details shall be given sepa rately for each class of shares.
* ¥

- percentage change shall be computed with respect to the number at the beginning of the year or if issued
uring the year for the first time then with respect to the date of issue.]

2. BNP Ltd has reduced its Share Capital to a greater extent in the year for which you are conducting the audit.
State how will you proceed for verifying the reduction of Capital. [MTP Oct-20]
Reduction of Capital

For verifying reduction of capital, the auditor needs to undertake the following procedures:

(i) Verify that meeting of shareholders held to pass speclal resolution was properly convened and that proposal
was circularized in advance to all the shareholders;

(i) Verify that the Articles of Association authorises reduction of capital;
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: i
(iii) Examine the order of the Tribunal confirming the reduction and verify

have been registered and filed with the Registrar of Companies;

i ital;
(iv) Check the Registrar’s Certificate as regards to reduction o'f capital; o i aseis e
(v) Vouch the accounting entries recorded to reduce the capital and to write Y reference to

resolution of shareholders and other docu mentary evidence; also check whether the requirements of Scheduyle

I1I, Part I, have been complied with in relation to presentation; . . X
(vi) Confirm that the words “and reduced”, if required by the order of the Tribunal, have been added to the name

of the company in the Balance Sheet.
(vii) Verify that the Memorandum of Associat

at a copy of the order and the Minut
es

ion of the company has been suitably amended.

3. Reserves are a vital source of financing by internal means. Explain and also discuss the meaning of reseryeg

along with revenue reserve and capital reserve. [MTP Oct-22]

Reserves are the amounts appropriated out of profits that are not intended

» to meet any liability,

* contingency,

» commitment or

« diminution in the value of assets known to exist as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

Reserves are a vital source of financing by internal means. They are held for the purpose of distribution of dividend
or financing the expansion of the company or strengthening the company financially. The company utilizes the
reserves according to the nature and type of such reserve.

The reserves can be segregated as revenue or capital reserves.

Revenue reserves represent profits that are available for distribution to shareholders or below purposes such as:
To supplement divisible profits in lean years, to finance an extension of business, to augment theworking capital of
the business or to generally strengthen the company’s financial position.

Capital Reserve represents a reserve which does not include any amount regarded as free for distribution. They can
be utilized only for certain limited purposes.

Example
Securities premium, capital redemption reserve,

It may be noted that if a company appropriates revenue
profit for be i serve
with the objective that Ing credited to the asset replacement ¢

these are to be used for a

capital purpose, s ofa
. u i ure
capital reserve. » such a reserve shall also be in the nat

4. Discuss the audit procedure to be considered by an auditor

. ain
audit evidence as to overall reasonableness of purchase Wi while performing analytical procedure t0 obt

ty and price, [RTP May-23]

Auditor needs to perform analytical
' . p . .v procedures to obtain audit evide chase
quantity and price which may include: Nce as to overall reasonableness of PY"

significant variations found.
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(i) Stock Composition Analysis: Auditor to collect the reports from management for composition of stock i.e. raw
materials as a percentage of total stock and compare the same with compare the same with previous years and
ask for the reasons from management if any significant variations found.

(iii) Ratios: Auditor should compare the creditors turnover ratios and stock turnover ratios of the current year with
previous years.

(iv) Auditor should review quantitative reconciliation of closing stocks with opening stock, purchases and
consumption,

5. PK Pvt Ltd, based in Moradabad, is engaged in export of brassware goods. The company has huge export
receivables as on 31st March 2022. It is also analysed from Export Sales account of the company that large number
of small shipments were almost despatched daily during month of March 2022. List out few audit procedures you
would adopt as an auditor to verify completeness assertion of export trade receivables. [RTP Nov-22 + Nov-22]

Completeness assertion in respect of account balances means that all balances which should have been recorded
have been recorded. The auditor needs to satisfy himself about cut off so that there is no understatement or
overstatement in account balances of export receivables.

In this context, while verifying completeness assertion of export trade receivables, following audit procedures are
required: -

1. Check that in respect of invoices raised in last few days nearing the cut off date, goods have been actually
dispatched and not lying with the company.

2. Check stock records, e-way bill, and transporter receipt regarding actual movement of goods. It would provide
assurance that export invoices in respect of which revenue was booked have been actually moved out of
company’s premises.

3. Ensure that all goods invoiced prior to cut off date/year end have been included in export receivables on test
check basis.

4. Ensure that no goods despatched after year end have been included in export receivables by tracing entries
in export sales, stock records of next year. The same can be verified from e-way bills also.

5. Match invoices to despatch/shipping details. Further match invoices dates to despatch dates to see if sales are
being recorded in correct accounting period.

6. Test invoices in receivable report. Select invoices from ageing report of export receivables and compare them
with supporting documentation to ensure that these are billed with correct names, dates and amounts.

6. A significant and important audit activity is to contact banks/ financial institution s directly and ask them to
confirm the amounts held in current accounts, deposit accounts, EEFC account, cash credit accounts, etc. as at the
end of the reporting period under audit, Explain the audit procedure in this context. [RTP Nov-20]

Direct confirmation procedure

e Asignificant and important audit activity Is to contact banks/ financial institutions directly and ask them to
confirm the amounts held in current accounts, deposit accounts, EEFC account, cash credit accounts,
restrictive use accounts like dividend, escrow accounts as of the end of the reporting period under audit.
This should necessarily be done for all account balances as at the period-end.

e The Company should be asked to Investigate and reconcile the discrepancies, if any, including seeking
written explanations/ clarifications from the banks/ financial institutions on any unresolved queries.

e The auditor should emphasize for confirmation of 100% of bank account balances.
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In remote situations, where no reply is received, the auditor should pe

balances.

This testing could include: ; ; ;

v Agreeing the balance to bank statement received by the Company or internet/ online login to account jp
auditor’s personal presence; sy .

v Sending the audit team member to the bank branch along with the entity's personal to obtain balance
confirmation from the bank directly.

rform additional testing regarding the

7. Write the audit procedures to be performed as an auditor for valuation (assertion) of Finished goods and goods
for resale. [MTP May-20]

Audit procedure for valuation of finished goods and goods for resale

» Enquire into what costs are included, how these have been established and ensure that the overheads included
have been determined based on normal costs and appear reasonable in relation to the information disclosed
in the draft financial statements.

% Ensure that inventories are valued at net realizable value if they are likely to fetch a value lower than their

cost. For any such items, also verify if the relevant semi/ partly processed inventories (work in progress) and
raw materials have also been written down.

> Follow up for items that are obsolete, damaged, slow moving and ascertain the possible realizable value of
such items. For the purpose, request the client to provide inventory ageing split between less than 30 days, 30-
60 days old, 60-90 days old, 90-180 days old, 180-385 days old and more than 365 days old (refer screenshot
below).

> Follow up any inventories which at time of observance of physical counting were noted as being damaged or
obsolete.

> Compare recorded costs with replacement costs. Examine vendor price lists to determine if recorded cost is
less than current prices.

» Calculate inventory turnover ratio. Obsolete inventory may be revealed if ratio is significantly lower.

Vs

In manufacturing environments, test overhead allocation rates and ensure that only direct labor, direct
material and overhead have been included.

> Verify the correct application of lower-of-cost-or-net realizable value principles

8. ABC Limited has a closing balance of work in progress of inventories aggregating X 850 lakhs in their balance
sheet as at March 31, 2020. As Statutory Auditor of ABC Limited, explain various audit procedures which need t0

be performed to confirm Work-in-progress of inventories hav I
e been valued i r generally
accepted accounting policies and practices. [Jan-21) appropriately and as per &

Audit procedure which needs to be performed to confirm work in progress worth Rs.850 lakhs has been valued
appropriately and as per generally accepted accounting policies and Practices is gi ; ad s ha
given hereunder :

(i) Ascertain how the various stages of production/ value i
additlon ar £ ~ ade
understand the basis for such estimates. e measured and in case estimates ar¢ <"

(i) Ascertain what elements of cost are included. If overheads are included, a hich theY are
/ o , ascertai i '
included and compare such basis with the available costing and financi .am A on.w ined by thé
i ncial data/ information maintainé
(iii) Ensure that material costs exclude any abnormal Wastage f
actors,
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9. XYZ Ltd made huge additions to Intangible assets during the period 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022 i.e period under
audit. You have been appointed as an auditor and you want to verify the additions made to intangible assets
during the period. Suggest the audit procedure to verify the additions to intangible assets. [MTP Sep-22]

1. Verify the movement in the intangible assets schedule (asset class wise like software, designs/ drawings, goodwill
etc.) compiled by the management i.e. Opening balances + Additions — Deletions = Closing balances. Tally the closing
balances to the entity’s books of account.

2. Check the arithmetical accuracy of the movement in intangible assets schedule.

For additions during the period under audit, obtain a listing of all additions from the management and undertake

the following procedures:

(i) For all material additions, verify whether such expenditure meets the criterion for recognition of an intangible
asset as per AS 26.

(ii) Ensure that no cost related to research (or from the research phase of an internal project) gets recognized as
intangible asset.

(iii) Check the certificate or report or other similar documentation maintained by the entity to verify the date of
use of the intangible which could be linked to date of commencement of commercial production/ economic use to
the entity, for all additions to intangible assets during the period under audit.

(iv) Verify whether the additions (acquisitions) have been approved by appropriate entity’s personnel.

(v) Verify whether proper internal processes and procedures like inviting competitive quotations/ proper tenders
etc. were followed prior to finalizing the vendor for procuring item of intangible assets by testing those documents
on a sample basis.

(vi) In relation to deletions of intangible assets, understand from the management the reason and rationale for
deletion and the manner of disposal. Obtain the management approval and disposal note authoring disposal of the
asset from its active use. Verify the process followed for sale of discarded asset, example inviting competitive
guotes, tenders and the basis of calculation of sales proceeds. Verify that the management has accurately recorded
the deletion of intangible asset (original cost and accumulated amortization up to the date of disposal) and the
resultant gain/ loss on disposal in the entity’s books of account.

10. The value of intangible assets may diminish due to efflux of time, use and/or obsolescence. The diminution of
the value represents cost to the entity for earning revenue during a given period. Discuss the audit procedures to
be applied by the auditor to ensure that Intangible assets have been valued appropriately and as per generally
accepted accounting policies and practices. [July-21]

The value of intangible assets may diminish due to efflux of time, use and/ or obsolescence. The diminution of the
value represents cost to the entity for earning revenue during a given period. Unless this cost in the form of
amortization is charged to the accounts, the profit or loss would not be correctly ascertained and the values of
intangible asset would be shown at higher amounts.

The auditor should:
v Verify that the entity has charged amortization on all intangible assets;

v Verify that the amortization method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed by the entity.

The auditor should also verify whether the management has done an impairment assessment to determine whether
an intangible asset is impaired. For this purpose, the auditor needs to verify whether the entity has applied AS 28 -
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Impairment of Assets for determining the manner of reviewing the carrying amount of its intangible asset,
determining the recoverable amount of the asset to determine impairment loss, if any.

11. You are an auditor of PQR Ltd. which has spent X 50 lakhs on Research activities of the product during perigg
under audit, Board of Directors want to recognize it as an internally generated intangible assets. Advise ang
discuss the conditions necessary to be fulfilled to recognize the intangible assets in the financial statements,
[MTP Nov-20/Apr-23]
No Intangible asset arising from research (or from the research phase of an internal project) shall be recognised.
Expenditure on research shall be recognised as an expense when it is incurred since in the research phase of an
internal project, an entity cannot demonstrate that an intangible asset exists that will generate probable future

economic benefits. Thus, board of directors of PQR Ltd cannot recognize the expense as internally generated
intangible asset.

An intangible asset shall be recognised if, and only if:
(i) the said asset is identifiable;

(ii) the entity controls the asset i.e. the entity has the power to obtain the future economic benefits flowing from
the underlying resource and to restrict the access of others to those benefits;

(iii) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity;
(iv) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

12. While auditing the accounts of ABC Ltd, a member of audit team is not clear about :

(i) the criteria regarding classification of liability into current liability and non-current liability.
(ii) Classificaticn of Reserves and Surplus

You being the senior member of audit team guide the member of the audit team about such criteria and

classification as per general instructions for preparation of balance sheet as per Schedule III.
[MTP May-22]

(i) A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

result in its settlement by

(ii) Reserves and Surplus shall be classified as:

(a) Capital Reserves;

(b) Capital Redemption Reserve;

(c) Securities Premium;

(d) Debenture Redemption Reserve;

(e) Revaluation Reserve;

(f) Share Options Outstanding Account;

(g) Other Reserves — (specify the nature and purpose of each reserve and the amount in -

(h) Surplus i.e. balance in Statement of Profit & Loss disclosing allocations ang er'sp.ect thereof): ]
bonus shares and transfer to/from reserves etc. Nd appropriations such as dividend:

(Additions and deductions since last balance sheet to be shown under each
of the specified heads)
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Note: A reserve specifically represented by earmarked investments shall be termed as a ‘fund’.

Note: Debit balance of statement of profit and loss shall be shown as a negative figure under the head ‘Surplus’.
similarly, the balance of ‘Reserves and Surplus’, after adjusting negative balance of surplus, if any, shall be shown
under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’ even if the resulting figure is in the negative.

13. Write the audit procedures to be performed as an auditor for valuation (assertion) of Loans and Advances and
other current assets. [MTP May-20]

Audit procedure for valuation of Loans and Advances and other current assets

e Assess the allowance for doubtful accounts. Review the process followed by the Company to derive an
allowance for doubtful accounts. This will include a consistency comparison with the method used in the last
year, and a determination of whether the method is appropriate for the underlying business environment.

e Obtain the ageing report of loans and advances, split between not currently due, 30 days old, 30-60 days old,
60-180 days old, 180-365 days old and more than 365 days old. Also, obtain the list of loans and advances under
litigation and compare with previous year.

e Scrutinize the analysis and identify those loans and advances that appear doubtful; Discuss with ma nagement
their reasons, if any of these loans/ advances are not included in the provision for bad recoverable; Perform
further testing where any disputes exist; Reach a final conclusion regarding the adequacy of the bad and
doubtful loans/ advances provision.

e Assess bad loans/ advances write-offs. Prepare schedule of movements on Bad loans/ advances — Provision
Accounts and loans/ advances written off.

« Check that write-offs or other reductions in the recoverable balances have been approved by an appropriate
and authorised member of senior management, for example the financial controller or finance director.

e Check that the restatement of foreign currency loans and advances/ other current assets has been done
properly.

14. From the auditing point of view, the auditor should verify that a proper disclosure about contingent liabilities
is made in financial statements as required by AS 29. What type of disclosures should be made for each class of
contingent liability as at the balance sheet date? [MTP Mar-21]

Disclosure for each class of Contingent Liability: From the auditing point of view, the auditor should verify that a
proper disclosure about contingent liabilities is made in financial statement as required by AS 29. As per, AS 29 an
enterprise should disclose for each class of contingent liability at the balance sheet date.

(i) A brief description of the nature of the contingent liability and where practicable.

(ii) An estimate of the amount as per measurement principle as prescribed for provision in AS 29.

(iii) Indication of the uncertainty relating to outflow.

(iv) The possibility of any reimbursement,

Where any of the information as required above is not disclosed because it is not practicable to do so, that fact
should be stated.

15. Auditor of ABC Ltd while auditing its financlal statements wants to ensure whether the disclosures regarding

sales has been made as required under Schedule Il (Part 1) to Companies Act, 2013. Explain such disclosure
requirements. [MTP Mar-21]

CA Shubham Keswani 211


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-18 Audit of Items of FS

With respect to sales of the client entity, the auditor is required to ensure
required under Schedule 1l (Part 1) to Companies Act, 2013 have been made:
«  Whether disclosure of sales in respect of each class of goods has been made. N
e Whether revenue from operations is disclosed separately in the notes as revenue arising fram:
v Sale of products (including excise duty)
v Sale of services
v/ Other operating revenues.
Whether brokerage and discount on sales othert
e Whether the transactions with related parties are

whether the following disclosures ag

han usual trade discount has been disclosed.
n notes to accounts.

appropriatelv disclosed i

16. ABC limited appointed XYZ & Company, Chartered Accountants, asa statutory Auditor of the Company for
the year 2019-20. CA X, partner of XYZ & Company, was looking after the audit of other income of the company
which consists of interest income on fixed deposits. As a Statutory Auditor how would CAX verify interest income

on fixed deposits for the year 2019-20? [Nov-20]
CA X, partner of XYZ & Company, would carry out the following audit procedure for verifying interest income on
fixed deposits of ABC Limited:

under audit along with the applicable interest rate

1. Obtain a listing of fixed deposits opened during the period
the period. Verify the arithmetical

and the number of days for which the deposit was outstanding during

accuracy of the interest calculation made by the entity by recomputing i.e. multiplying the deposit amou nt with

the applicable rate and number of days during the period under audit.
2. For deposits still outstanding as at the period- end, trace the same to the direct con

the respective bank/ financial institution.
3. Obtain a confirmation of interest income from the bank and verify that the interest income as per bank

firmations obtained from

reconciles to the calculation shared by the entity.
4. Also, obtain a copy of Form 26AS (TDS withholding by the bank/ financial institution) and reconcile the interest

reflected therein to the calculation shared by client.

17. CA "X" while conducting an audit of Joyful Ltd. found a considerable increase in sales as compared to the
previous year, he doubts that few fictitious sales have been recorded by the company to overstate its revenues
Discuss any four audit procedures to be undertaken by the auditor to ensure revenue from sales of goods and
services performed during the period is not overstated? [July-21]

CA X, having doubts about fictitious sales being recorded b
’ y Joyful Ltd would en i
overstated by performing following audit procedures: sure that revenue is N0t

e Check whether ? single salles invoice Is recorded twice or a cancelled sales invoice could also be recorded-
e Test check few invoices with their relevant entries in sales journal
) al.
. Obtain confirmation from few customers to ensure genuineness of sal i
» Whether any fictitious customers and sales have been recorded ales transaction
rded.

ether any shipments wer|
e Wh y ship e done without the consent and agree ially at
the year end to inflate the sales figure ment of the customer, especid Y

e Whether unearned revenue recorded as earned
« Whether any substantial uncertainty exists about collectabil
ability

e \Whether customer obligations are contingent on other actions (fi
inancing, resale etc.)
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18. As a Statutory Auditor of the company list out audit procedure required to be undertaken for the recognition
of following other income:

i Interest income from fixed deposit

ji. Dividend income

iii. Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds. [Jan-21]

statutory auditor would perform the following audit procedure for recognition of different items given in the
question:

(1) Interest income on fixed deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

(2) Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when:

(i) the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;

(ii} it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and
(iii) the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(3) Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds is recorded as other income on transfer of title from the entity
and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and carrying value of the investments.

19. Explain how you would verify Employee Benefit Expense incurred by a Company. [MTP Oct-22]

The auditor shall verify that:
(i) Employee benefit expense has been incurred during the period in respect of the personnel employed by the
entity. Employee benefit expense does not include the cost of any unauthorized personnel.
(i) Employee benefit expenses in respect of all personnel have been fully accounted for.
(iii) Employee benefit expenses recognized during the period relates to the current accounting period only.
(iv) Employee benefit expense has been measured/ calculated accurately. Any adjustments such as tax deduction
at source have been correctly reconciled and accounted for.

20. Name the assertions for the following audit procedures: [RTP May-22]

(i) Year end inventory verification: Existence

(ii) Depreciation has been properly charged on all assets. Valuation

ii}i:,}IIThe title deeds of the lands disclosed in the Balance Sheet are held in the name of the company: Rights &
igations

(iv) All liabilities are properly recorded in the financial statements: Completeness
(v) Related party transactions are shown properly: Presentation & Disclosure

21.D i
epreciation and amortisation expense generally constitute an entity's significant part of overall expenses

and h
ave_dlrect impact on the profit/loss of the entity. What are the attributes, the Auditor needs to consider
while verifying Depreciation and amortisation expense, [Jan-21]

Audi
d tc':; needs to consider the following attributes while verifying for depreciation and amortisation expenses:
. :
tain the understanding of entity’s accounting policy related to depreciation and amortisation.

Ensure the Company policy for charging depreciation and amortisation is as per the relevant provisions of
Companies Act/ applicable accounting standards.

Whether the depreciation has been calculated after making adjustment of residual value from the cost of the
assets.
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e Whether depreciation and amortisation charges are valid.
e  Whether depreciation and amortisation charges are accurate

e Whether all depreciation and amortisation charges are recorded in the appropriate period.
plant and equipment that are to be depreciateq

ly calculated and recorded.

e Ensure the parts (components) of each item of property,
separately have been properly identified.

e Whether the most appropriate depreciation method
used.

for each separately depreciable component has beep

22. While checking sales of the client, the auditor has to ensure that all sales are accurately measured as per
applicable accounting standards and correctly journalized, summarized, and posted. Explain the audit procedures
to ensure the same. [MTP Nov-22]

While checking sales of the client, the auditor has to ensure that all sales are accurately measured as per applicable
accounting standards and correctly journalized, summarized, and posted. The auditor can perform the following
procedures to ensure the same.
e Trace a few transactions from inception to completion. (Examination in depth)
E.g: Take few sales transaction, and check from the receipt of sales order to the payment of receivable balance,
every underlying document to ensure if it is properly recorded at every stage and measured accurately taking
into consideration all the incentives, discounts, if any. The recognition shall be according to the revenue
recognition policy of the entity.
e Ifthe client is engaged in export sales, then compliance with AS 11 shall be ensured.
« Auditor must understand client’s operations and related GAAP issues e.g. point of sale revenue recognition
vs. percentage of completion, wherever applicable.
« Compare the rate of sales affected with related parties and review them for collectability, as well as whether
they were properly authorized and the value of such transactions were reasonable and at arm’s length.

23. Proft and Loss account of an organization shows various types of expenses like rent, power and fuel, repairs
and maintenance, insurance, travelling, miscellaneous expenses etc., that are essential and incidental to running

of business operations. What are the attributes that an auditor generally prefers for vouching these types of
expenses? [Dec-21 +MTP Oct-21 + Nov-22]

Attributes to be preferred for vouching other expenses:

While the auditor may choose to analyse the monthly trends for expenses like rent, power and fuel, an auditor
generally prefers to vouch for other expenses to verify following attributes:

(i) Whether the expenditure pertained to current period under audit;

(i) Whether the expenditure qualified as a revenue and not capital expenditure;

(iii) Whether the expenditure had a valid supporting documents like travel tickets, insurance policy, third pard
invoice etc.;

(iv) Whether the expenditure has been classified under the correct expense head:

(v) Whether the expenditure was authorised as per the delegation of authority m;trix-

(vi) Whether the expenditure was in relation to the entity’s business and not a persor;al expenditure

24. The auditor may choose to analyse the monthly trend for Power &
F : : is
will be performed by the auditor [MTP Nov-21] uel expense. Explain how this analys

power and fuel expense -
« Obtain a month wise expense schedule along with the power bills
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. Verify if expenseé has been recorded for all 12 months.

« Also, compile a month wise summary of power units consumed and the applicable rate and check the arithmetical
accuracy of the bill raised on monthly basis.

« In relation to the units consumed, analyse the monthly power units consumed by linking it to units of finished
goods produced and investigate reasons for variance in monthly trends.

25. Explain how you would verify rent expense incurred by a Company. [MTP Nov-22]

Rent expense can be verified by:
« Obtaining a month wise expense schedule along with the rent agreements.

« Verifying if expense has been recorded for all 12 months and whether the rent amount is as per the underlying

agreement.

« Giving specific consideration to the escalation clause in the agreement to verify if the rent was required to be
recorded on a straightline basis during the period under audit.

« Also, verifying if the agreement is in the name of the entity and whether the expense pertains to premises used

for running business operations of the entity

26. B Ltd. is covered u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). What matters
(other than the amount spent, amount not spent, amount required to be spent etc.) shall be disclosed by the
company with regard to CSR activities done by the company? [May-22 + MTP Apr-23]

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): Since B Ltd is covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, the following
matters shall be disclosed by the B Ltd with regard to CSR activities:

(a) total of previous years shortfall,

(b) reason for shortfall,

(c) nature of CSR activities,

(d) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard,

(e) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the

movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately.

::;n'.:;:::::r‘lf’io:?:lbee" initiated against False Limited for holding benami property under the Btanami

et e oflt on) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder, but such property is not

P l.EqmremeI.la"l:;:;:nuﬂtz'q.. As a cur:lsultant to the company, what will you advice to the company as far as
re concerned in relation to said proceedings? [May-22 +MTP May-22]

Disclosure in case o
sy fc:enaml Properties held by the Company: Where any proceedings have been initiated or
mpany for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988

(a) Details of sucI}1 1’:2;::?tFU!eslm;de thereunder, the company shall disclose the following:
¥, Including year of

(b) Amount thereof, of acquisition,

(c) Details of Beneficlaries,

d
(d) If property is not in the books, then the fact shall be stated with reasons,

(e) Where there are pro
. proceedings against the company under this law as an abetter of the transaction or as the
ransferor, then the details shall be provided

(f) Nature of proceedings, status of same and company’s view on same.
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Ch-18 Audit of Items of FS

28. A Ltd. has traded for X 50.00 Lacs in “TETRA”, a virtual currency, durin
of X 20.00 Lacs on it. What disclosure requirements are prescribed for suc
company ? [Nov-22]

g the F.Y. 2021-2022 and earned a profit
h type of transactions done by the

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency . ;
Where the Company has traded or invested in Crypto currency Of Virtual Currency during the financial year, the

following shall be disclosed:-
(a) profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virtual Currency

(b) amount of currency held as at the reporting date,
(c) deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing i Gryra Carrenen Virtusl curverey

29. While verifying the legal and professional expenses of the client company, what audit procedures should the
auditor perform? (MTP Mar-23)

While verifying legal and professional expenses of client company, auditor should perform following audit
procedures

Obtain a month-wise and consultant-wise summary.

In case of monthly retainership agreements, verify whether the expenditure for all 12 months has been

v

Y

recorded correctly.

For non- recurring expenses, select a sample and vouch for the attributes discussed above.

Auditor should be cautious while vouching for legal expenses as the same may highlight a dispute for which
entity may not have made any provision and matter may also not have been discussed/ highlighted to

AT

v

auditor for his specific consideration

30. While auditing books of accounts of SOLAR Ltd., you observed that an amount due from a debtor for invoice
issued on 31.03.2022 has not been recognized in the books of accounts. As an auditor, you want to ensure that
all trade receivable balances that are supposed to be recorded have been recognized in the financial statements.
How will you achieve the stated objective? [Nov-22]

Audit of Trade Receivable:

All Trade receivable balances that were supposed to be recorded have been recognized in the financial statements.
(COMPLETENESS): The auditor needs to satisfy himself of the cut-offs. Without a cut-off, sales could be UI'h'J*‘!fS“’ted
or overstated, hence there is a need to perform the following cut off procedure: J
(a) For the invoices issued during the last few days (last 5 days of the reporting year) i.e cut-off date and which
have been included in the debtors; check that the o ith the
' goods should [ ing with
e have been dispatched and not Iying

(b) Ensure that all goods dispatched prior to the peri _ on
a test check basis; period/ year-end have been invoiced and included in debtor®

(c) Ensurethatno goods dispatched after the year- (iod
under audit. end have been invoiced and included in debtors for t"*”

0 EI’ & » "

CA Shubham Keswani 216


Guest
Rectangle


Ch-19 Internal Audit & SA 610

Test your Understanding
1. A company has stipulated a control through its automated software that interest @ 12% p.a. is charged in case
of those customers who fail to make payment within a month of a sales transaction. The internal auditor of the
company finds that during a certain period, software has failed to charge interest due to certain technical glitches.
Does reporting of above situation fall in domain of internal auditor’s work?

one of the functions of internal auditor includes responsibility for reviewing controls, evaluating their operation,
and recommending improvements thereto. In the given case, internal auditor has found that controls relating to
levying of interest have not operated. The system has not levied stipulated interest in respect of a certain period. It
can result in loss of income for the company and improper financial reporting. Such a matter, definitely, falls in the
domain of reporting by internal auditor.

2. CA Sukesh is external auditor of an entity. He comes to know that there is also an internal auditor in the entity.
However, he finds that internal auditor is not reporting directly to higher echelons of the management. CA Sukesh
has also assessed risk of material misstatement to be high. Discuss, whether it would be proper for CA Sukesh to
rely upon work of internal auditor extensively in above situation.

In the given case, the organizational status of internal audit function is not commensurate with his duties. He is
not reporting directly to higher echelons of management. It shows that such a function is not given its due
importance in entity. Since risk of material misstatements has also been assessed as high by CA Sukesh, both the
above factors suggest that he should not rely upon work of internal auditor extensively.

MCQs
1. Which of the following is not one of functions of internal auditor of an organization?
(a) Performing assurance activities
(b) Performing consulting activities to improve governance of organization
(c) Performing risk management activities
(d) Expressing independent opinion on financial statements of organization

Descriptive Question
1. Discuss some of circumstances when work of the internal auditor cannot be used by external auditor. [SM]

The external auditor shall not use the work of the internal audit function if the external auditor determines that:
a) The function’s organizational status and relevant policies and procedures do not adequately support the
objectivity of internal auditors;
b) The function lacks sufficient competence; or
c) The function does not apply a systematic and disciplined approach, including quality control.

All Questions DDD!!

swani
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